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REVIEW AND REAUTHORIZATION OF CERTAIN
CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAMS

MONDAY, MARCH 12, 19$4

U.S. SENATE,
SUR(VMMITTEE ON NUTRITION,

('ommirrEF: ON AGRICULTURE, NUTRITION, AND FORESTRY,
Washington, DC

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 12:34 p.m., in room
328-A, Russell Senate Office Building, Hon. Bob Dole (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Senator Dole.

STATEMENT OF HON. BOB DOLE, A U.S. SENATOR FROM KANSAS

Senator DOLE. Let me welcome our witnesses and guests to the
Senate Agriculture Committee's Nutrition Subcommittee.

I have a statement which I will ask be made a part of the record.
so I will just highlight the statement.' We are going to be hearing
from various experts in the field of nutrition, and we hope we can
malrbe ask some questions as we go along.

from time to time we have an opportunity to evaluate the child
nutrition programs in their entirety, even though we are technical-
ly engaged in the process of reauthorizing only the nonentitlement
programs, which are WIC, the Summer Food Service Program, Nu-
trition Education and Training, State Administrative Expenses,
and the authority for section 32 commodities.

I would just suggest, as I did speaking with some of the ASFSA
people earlier this morning, there is strong bipartisan support on
this committee for nutrition programs. There have been a lot of
changes made in these programs, including the level of Govern-
ment spending since 1970. At that time, we spent about $700 mil-
lion for all child nutrition programs; now we are up to around $4.4
billion.

There are others who would suggest that we add additional
spending. This year, we are somewhat concerned about the target-
ing of nutrition programs. Most important, as I have indicated, we
are all concerned about the overall Federal deficit. So let me sug-
gest that I think we are making some progress. There is no one
hostile group or person, and I am convinced that we can work out
any policy disagreements that we may have. I am very pleased to
be here to preside over these hearings today.

'Sore p II:, icor the poi/aired ?statement of Seruster note
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Our first witness is not a newcomer to the committeeJohn
Bode, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Food and Consumer Services.

Jehn, you may proceed in any way you wish. We will make your
entire statement a part of the record. If you can summarize it, and
touch the highlights, that would be very helpful.

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN W. RODE. DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRE-
TARY FOR FOOD AND CONSUMER SERVICES, US. DEPARTMENT
OF AGRICULTURE

Mr_ Bony. Thank you, Senator.
My statement, is very long, and I do have a lot to say, so I will

summarize.'
I appreciate the opportunity to be here again addressing an im-

portant subject.
Before commenting on S. 1913 specifically, I would like to em-

phasize that current laws provide generous child nutrition benefits.
I certainly appreciate your reference to the bipartisan approach

that has existed for a long time. If one updated in real dollar terms
the level of expenditures liar nutrition programs that took place in
190, expenditures would be something like $2.5 billion, and of
course this year we are spending well over $19 billion on nutrition
assistance. I think that indicates the strong bipartisan approach
that exists in this country to fight the problems of hunger.

I would also like' to talk about the child nutrition programs spe-
cifically. These benefits are very generous. Any child, in a partici-
pating school can receive a free meal if his or her family's income
is less than 1:(0 percent of the poverty guideline, which is almost
$13,000 a year for a family of four.

Students from families with incomes up to $18,315 for a family of
lour are eligible for a Federal subsidy of 92 cents per meal, not in-
cluding the 10 cents per meal average value of bonus commodities
which we are now providing. These children cannot be charged
over 40 cents for that lunch, which typically costs around $1.80 to
produce. This lunch is clearly the best bargain in town.

Over 23 million children a day participate in the school lunch
program. In addition, this administration, is distributing surplus
commodities.

It is true that we have restrained the budgets of the child nutri-
tion programs through the judicious changes adopted by this com-
mittee and the Congress in 1981, The changes that were made
served to better target scarce Federal resources to these with the'
greatest need. Despite our reforms, the Federal Government still
provides large subsidies to upper and middle-income families
thnigh the child nutrition programs.

For example. this year in the school food programs, we will
spend approximately $164) million to subsidize' meals served to stu-
dents from families with incomes above 18:1 percent of the poverty
guideline'. Also. the Child Care Food Program is growing dramati-
cally in family clay care homes. Yet, two-thirds of the subsidies ben-
efit families in that same, highest income group.

'VT'. 1; !I f .1 ch. fct.fucr'd %t
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The administration strongly opposes the enactment of S. 1913.
Most of the provisions of S. 1913 are aimed at reversing a number
of entitlement reforms adopted by Congress as part of the 1981 Om-
nibus Budget Reconciliation Act. It would use taxpayers' money to
provide new entitlement funding for those well above the poverty
line. At a time of unparalleled need to control Federal spending,
we simply cannot justify this bill, which would add about $1140 mil-
lion to the deficit in 198 alone.

I think that fairly well summarizes our reasons for opposing the
bill. My statement goes through the bill in greater detail, and talks
about specific provisions.

With respect to expiring authorizations that you referred to, Sen-
ator, there are five programs expiring this year. The WIC Program
we recommend reauthorizing for a year, the Summer Feeding Pro-
gram we recommend, be included in a nonschool food assistance
grant, along with the Child Care Food Program.

State Administrative Expenses and Commodity Distribution we
also recommend reauthorizing. We recommend that the Nutrition
Education and Training Program authority lapse.

That is a quick summary of our views, Senator.
4nator Dewy. Well, what about the funding levels lin. the expir-

ing authorization? Are they contained in your statement? Take the
Wit' Program, for example.

Mr. Boni.:. For the WI(' Program we have recommended a fund-
ing level that would maintain an average annual participation of
2.S million persons.

Senator MI:. flow much money is that?
Mr. Rom:. That is one point-
Senator Dot.E. $1.3 billion?
Mr. Bony. It is approximately $1.3 billion, yes. sir.
Senator Doti.. As opposed to what, $1.2 billion last year?
Mr. Boni :. You know, the Wit' Program has grown tremendously

over the last few years, Senator. This year's participation is up by
about rr, percent over the level in 1950, so during this admitiistra-
t ion t he WI(' Program has grown tremendously, not all of those in-
rass. of course, urged by the administration. but that is the
status t he program.

Senator Dot.E. What about dropouts in the program? We get a lot
of reports and the committee likes to focus on some of these. Sup-
posedly, :I lot of the nar-wr students dropped out of the school
lunch program.

you have any statistics, or surveys that would give us itifor-
citation as to what the dropout rate fOr near-poor students has been
over the last 3 or 4 rears?

Mr lio. Well, sir, really good data is not present. There have
been references at times in the past, to participation levels, and the
tact that there was a decline' in participation levels was pointed to
as a cause for concern about dropout. But that data. of course. re-
lieves a significant reduction of school enrollment. We have seen
about a 4-percent decline in school enrollment which accounts for
22 million students, as I recall.

And there has been another factor. of course, with improved yen-.
fication we are seeing a reduced amount of inappropriate part icipa.
t iort
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You may recall that the USDA Inspector General found very
high rates of inappropriate participation, where children getting
free and reduced priced meals simply were not eligible to partici-
pate in those categories. Those children should have been in the
paid category.

I think we have not seen a reduction, or a dropout of the low-
income children, because those children are all entitled to free
school meals, if their families have Licome below 130 percent of the
poverty level.

Senator Dom. What about participation by children in the Child
Care Food Program, particularly in day care homes? If you do not
have the information, you can furnish it for the record. Here again,
there have been indications that participation has declined since
1981.

Mr. Bons. Those numbers have increased, sir. Knowing your spe-
cial concern about service to the low income, I must admit that we
are not doing a good job with the Child Care Food Program in
family day care homes. Almost two-thirds of those subsidies go to
families with income above 18.5 percent of the poverty guidelines.

Senator Doty,. You might furnish that information for the
record, along with information concerning the Summer Feeding
Program. That would be helpful.

Mr. Bony. I would be happy to.
[The following information was subsequently received by the

committee; I

FAMILY DAY CAKE MIME Smolt:HEN TO UPPER EYWOME cHDDHEN

A study of the Child Care Food Program completed in 19)42 indicated that the
family day care home portion of the program predominately serves children from
(al-mires with income over 1N percent of poverty. The distribution is as follows

Percent of Family Day Carr Horne Participants

Income category as a pert.ent of poverty.
At or below 130 street. 24 5
1:t 1ST; (reduced price'. 11.1

Greater than Is.' pouf'. t:4 4

Total 190

From Fvaluation of the Chad Care Food Program. Ant Aastroates, In( . August Oti;'.

Th, shows that the program is poorly targeted. (her three-quarters of those par
ticipating are from families above 130 percent of the poverty fine 412,470 for a
family tour: and almost two-thirds of the participants are from families above Inri
per( ent of the vvertv line 41t4,315 for a family of fourl

(asoWTE IN CHILD CAKE Moil YROoRAM

Th. cud Carr, Food program ha. exprieneed growth in every year during the
venial Fiscal Years l!fsl 19S4 ito date, the following data illustrate the trend

,e'rotatr, 0. 'too 411,S(

Ale JD, 144 anentlAnCo -ripen 1%* Quartz, !try a1 i

01:13 raft teIle%
tirrily nay Are honk..
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Growth has been inure rapid in family day care homes than in child care centers.
Between 1981 and 1984 participation in homes increased 97 percent. In centers, par-
ticipation increased S percent. Total program participation increased 2b percent.

PARTICIPATION IN THE SUMMER FOOD NERVICE PROGRAM

The following table illustrates participation trends in the Summer Program

Avenge daily p.itrapationi

Pk dally patinpataig

' Nip al hot IA sit August
14111' s iwkwalos

1981 1982 19$3

14 10 II

I6 14 14

The decline between Fiscal Years 1981 and 1982 was due to sections of the 1981
Reconciliation Act that tightened eligibility standard and restricted sponsorship of
programs to *ohm's. residential camps, and government sponsors.

Senator Dot.. There is a lot of concern, that we have gone too
far with regal to budget cuts in some areas. Maybe we ought to go
back and m ke some changes. I would hope your Department
would recommend any area where we picked up participants, or
spent some additional funds. However, I understand you do not
support this kind of legislation- -

Mr. Bow S. 1913, sir.
Senator fkn.t: [continuing]. S. 1913, for the reasons you stated

more fully in your statement.
There will be some witnesses who support that bill later on this

afternon.
As I indicated earlier, I assume, in the not too distant future,

that the School Lunch Program will just be made part of the
normal schoolday. This may not happen in my lifetime, but maybe
in the next 10 or 15 years. I would not be surprised if we see major
changes in our national policy of feeding children. In the meantime
we have an obligation to keep these programs as effective as possi-
ble. I hope we have fulfilled this obligation. We also have an over-
riding concern, about reducing Federal deficits. However, this does
not excuse us from making adjustments in some of these programs,
particularly a.s they affect low-income children, or low-income
Americans in general. We do not have any excuse f,r not taking
care of these needs.

So 1 would hope that if you find any areas that we need to go
hack and take a look at, we would be happy to do that.

Mr. Borst:. Senator, we have shared that concern of yours for
sometime, and I think it has been consistently reflected in our rec-
ommendations, including those for 1985. That is why we recom-
mended no change, no reduction be made in the entitlement fund-
ing in school lunch for the low-income group, families with incomes
below 1:tu percent of the lx)verty level.

o
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You know, with the bonus commodities that we are making
available to schools, the level of Federal assistance provided for the
lowest income group has actually increased faster than inflation.

We have kept up pretty well with the entitlement to cash, and
the commodity entitlement for the free category, and we have dra-
matically increased the bonus commodities.

Senator DOLE. Do you recommend any areas for increased fund-
int;

r. Bonn . No, sir. It is because we feel that we have a good
system now of providing assistance to that lowest income group.
The reductions have been targeted fairly well to the higher income
categories. We still have rather generous benefits with lunch, for
example, $460 million being spent on the highest income group.

Senator DOLE. In the highest income group, what is that?
Mr. BonE. 185 percent.
Senator DOLE. How much of an income would that be for a

family of four?
Mr. BonE. That is $18,315 a year, for a family of four.
We agree that it is a matter of allocating some scarce Federal

resources. It is nice to provide more for an everwider group, but we
feel that the benefits going to the nonpoor, if you will. are generous
in the context of the Federal budget situation.

Senator DOLE. Well, there may be other questions, John, from
members who are not here. It is probably a strange time to have a
hearing, but the lunch hour is a pretty good time for a nutrition
hearing. We will focus on it a little more.

[The following information was subsequently received by the sub-
committee: I
ADDITIONAL 441414TIONS Suiturrm m MR JOHN Boor, DEPUTY AltY WANT SPICKICTAItY

PAM FOOD AND CNSUI1031 SVIIVILTS, USDA, NY SENATOR JR8LIV. IIVILMS. AND AN-
s'W ERA Thrum;

Question. Earlier this year. I asked the General Accounting Office to undertake a
study on school lunch participation. As you know. concerns have been raised about
supposed "drop out" from program participation of both students and schools The
GAO report, released after your appearance. indicates that the decline in participa-
tion has been -primarily because fewer students ate full-price lunches-. Do you find
the GAO report consistent with the Department's own figures and arisessment of
school lunch participation trends. particularly with regard to the trend that the
drop out took place among those well above poverty?

Answer The GAO report is consistent with the Department's own data reflecting
changes in participation and attests to the continuing wide participation in the
lunch program of those in need. The most significant drop m participation occurred
to paid lunches purchased by children from families well atsive the poverty level. To
a much lesser extent. free lunches also declined However. in the current fiscal year.
free lunch participation has nearly returned to the peak level reached in Fiscal

despite a continuing decline in overall enrollment.
We believe that those in need are still being well served under tlw tree and re-

ducd-price meal policy. Moreover. despite the dtcline in paid meal participation,
there are still over 11.6 million full-price participants daily, a strung indication that
the ..chool lunch remains a sound nutritional value for all children.

question Ikr yll have any inform- Lion on what impact the increased verification
;iris edures have had on fire or reduced price participation"

Answer' The completed verificatam pilot study indicates that an improved appli
cation fOrm, with a specific reference to the possibility of verification, significantly
reduces :he incidence of misreporting. These results are encouraging when com-
ared with findings from other studies about the level of misreporting. For example,

in the Mary pi541 audit conducted by the Office of the Inspector General, Iftillit. the
overall error rate due to misreporting was 25 5 percent In-hitow audits conducted

11
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during the National Evaluation of School Nutrition Programs disovred an error
rate of 21 S percent. The simple quality assurance methods conducted during Phase
I of the Income Verification Pilot Study reduced the error rate due to misreporting
to 17. percent. And Plume II of the pilot study, using more advanced quality assur
once procedures. was able to reduce the error rate even further. to 11.7 percent.
This means that the children of some applicants who had previously misreported
their financial circumstances will now be receiving reduced price lunches instead of
free lunches or be required to pay full price instead of receiving free or reduced
price lunches. Along with these positive results, the study has also indicated that
new application and verification procedures, properly conducted, will nut result in
eligible applicants bring denied participation in the program. We do expect further
advances to be' made in error rate reduction as new regulations on application and
verification procedures are implemented in school districts, and as administrators
gain expertise in their use.

These findings are primarily derived from a controlled, experimental setting
within one fiscal year. UnfOrtunately, due to changers in many other variables from
one year to the next, such as enrollment fluctuations and changes in the economic
circumstances of participating families. we are unable to attribute a specific part of
an actual participation change' (e.g.. FY 19$3 compared with FY 19821 to verification
procedures per tee.

Question. What is yot;,- response to the contention made by various child nutrition
officials that USDA should continue to administer various child nutrition programs
because of constitutional or statutory prohibitions within States that they chain; pre
clude their direct administration of these' programs?

Answer The Department has recommended that direct Federal administration be
discontunoi in the interest of improving State and focal management of the child
nutrition programs. We also believe it is both appropriate and beneficial for State
agencies to assume responsibility for local programs rather than fur the Federal
Government to intervene at the local level. Food and Nutrition Service regional of
lice, are frequently located far from participating schools and institutions and, in
addition, regional office staffs are not as familiar with local circumstances or corn
noway resources as State agencies are Also. we have found that direct Federal ad-
ministration can create certain ambiguities because State agencies and regional of
fices may operate under different sets of rules for such requirements as audit do
surs arid report submission deadline's. We expect all States that do not currently.
administer these programs to do so if Federal administration is no longer available

I anderseirui that some Senators have discussed an ameralmen: to specifically au
thorize the Scrtary of Agriculture to use State Administratise Expense funds to
coot tact lot the provision of best adnoneti alive 4,ery ices to eases where the Stat.
&times to porterm the services While we would nrcif to review such 311 J11)411(1
ttleIlt nnot to taki.ig bars shorn, the' Administration is ginerally receptive to such an"pioach

ttiiie%ti,,n At least one witness has rceett:Ittlende'd a -14'10441,y study or pilot
projct !in Sot arils fOthods onet at ing slt-Imancing school Min h program fur
!I rhilctrru . that as a univers:.1 bee lunch program U., you hose any mforroatoin

the 1,1.0.1v cost it a national universal free lunch.' What would be the cost of
tiwng a i1.111.41.111% representative study on the subject"

A 11,%A ()or very rough est ttnate at this time, assuming an average daily p:irtici
,,.,Leon If :;; million students and allowing for absenteeism, :s about

11,4 of 3 1131 iimAlly refire-sra:dive study could vary wider, depending upon
on Ittilliallon 1411,rd approach on already collected data. or

whether Jenninstratimi We're OnettiCted Such a demonstration. an a nationally
ri-pre,elitat e s angle of schools, would include 0 year's worth of operation It would

toad a hernial ailalysis and evaluation winch would extend an additional year
of the dernme.rration The estimated cost of the year long demon

- tr.ttann phi.. the evaluation component might approach $10 million
you hose ans information on the degree of State' or local funding

Khach for State administrative expenses or nutrition education and training"
A re-wel Re F.4,4 and Nutrition Service NS' does not regularly collect data on

agwalot Lind', (AIM r tinned by State of tot-31 entities toward the. Animist rat
of mi child nutrition programs nor that of State and focal monies contrihuted for
Nutrition education and training mtivaies ilowever. in 195:1 FNS authorized ap
proviriately Srll !I million in State athilltlIstratiVt entttil Mollie!, to State ;eget,

additH,11 t arriouni States cont t et, Aloof $14; for administra
1-bjci ',Lora ion programs N4.1 InfOrtri,1 aaetiltelt Oft the' :Itelonnt Of land,.

1,t,1(1441 r -,u .,iirces Nish r ,pct to nutrition education and framing. we' d"

12
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have some data which indicate that relatively few States expend funds for this pur-
pose.

Question. You indicated that because of donations of bonus commodities Federal
support for free lunches had outpaced inflation. What has been the total and per
meal value of bonus commodities furnished in 'recent years?

Answer. Bonus commodity donations to school lunch programs totaled $132.0 mil-
lion, $316.3 million, W30.8 million and $389.9 million during School Years 1979-80,
1980-81, 1981-82 and 1952-Ki, respectively. Based on the total number of lunches
served during those school years, the value of bonus commodities equaled 3.00*.
7 C. 8-981 and 10.51* per lunch.

Senator Dom. If we axe going to have other witnesses, you might
want to at least stick around for a while. We will now hear from
Ms. Bender and Ms. White, wh6 are next. Betty and Gene, are you
ready?

I think, Betty, you are listed here as going first. You are presi-
dent of the American School Food Service Association and also the
director of child nutrition for Dayton, OH; Ms. Gene White, is legis-
lative chairperson of the American School Food Service Association
and assistant superintendent of education for child nutrition in
California.

Ms. BENDER. Mr. Chairman, this is Mary Filko. director of
Akron, OH.

Senator Dole, I am here strictly in support, and to say that the
position that Gene White, as our legislative chairman is going to
present to you, is endorsed by the association, and has its full sup-
port, and at this time I would like to turn it over to Gene.

Ms. WHITE. Thank you, Senator.
I would just like to say again on behalf of our association we did

appreciate Fe-ding you,with us this morning. Also, we are looking
forward tc ti Sea or Huddleston tonight for our banquet. So
for us this per Monday. Although I think in the eyes of others
tomorrow is super Tuesday.

Senator Dot.E. You twill probably be able to get a number of
speake, s after tomorrow. There may be some you do not want.

Ms. WHITE. But we did sincerely appreciate this, and we do have
a prepared statement, which we have submitted for the record.'

Senator I)ou:. Do I have a copy of it?
Ms. WHITE. I believe you do, and if you do not, I have an addi

tional copy I would be glad to give you right now.
Senator Dot.E. Thank you.
Ms. WitrrE. The thing I would like to do, with your permission, is

simply highlight some of this, in the interest of your time, and this
morning, when you did graciously meet with us, you did mention
the fact that you would like to know what our priorities are.

Senator Doll:. Right.

STATEMF ;NT OF ( ;ENE WHITE, LECISLATIVE CHAIRMAN. AMERI-
CAN SCI1001. FOOD SF:RVICE ASSOCIATION. ACCOMPANIED BY
BETTY RENDER. PRF:SIDENT, AND MARY FHA°. DIRECTOR.
AMERICAN S('11001. FOOD SERVICE ASSOCIATION
Ms. WHITE. And you also would like to know what some of our

concerns are. So I think perhaps we will just simply start by ad-
._

'See p I 'ZS for the prepared statement of M White
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dressing that. and, of course. be very pleased to answer any ques-
tions that you might have.

I think as an opening concern, we would simply like to state for
the record that it is important to the programs that they remain
bipartisan. This seems to be a particularly important thing to know
during this election year, when so easily something of national im-
portance and difficulty like child nutrition could be diverted to bi-
partisan issues.

So we would urge that this committee continue to proceed as it
has in the past, and have child nutrition remain as a bipartisan
issue.

Now, in terms of our priorities, there are really three things that
we would like to stress this morning.

As a preface to this, of course, we recognize and appreciate the
fact that there have been no significant budget cuts for us this
year, that has been a tremendous help for the programs.

Looking to the future, we have data which indicates a real con-
cern of what is happening to a certain segment of the children.
These are the children of the working poor, and our concerns this
morning art' really for those children, and we are asking that some
harshness of the former cuts be mitigated, by slowly adding back a
little funding to help the reduced-price children, children of the re-
duced meal price programs.

Now. in a minute, we are going to share with you some data that
we have in some of our cities, which shows the dropout children in
the reduced price meal category. But let me first highlight the
three priorities that we have, and then we will look at the data.

Now, our first priority is to lower the cost of the reduced-price
lunch.

Senator Dot.E. I have got that.
Ms. WHITE. The first priority is to lower the price' of the reduced

price lunch for the working fxfor children. from .10 cents per meal
to :15.

Now, ni the last couple' of years that price has escalated 20 cents
to -10 cents. It is a 101) percent increase.

Senator Dem.:. What is the value of that meal now?
Ms. Wiwi:. The actual--
Senator Doi.E. $1.S0, is that it?
Ms. Mum. Approximately.
Senuitor DoLE. What was the value of it when it was 2.5 cents?
Ms. Wiirm Probably more like $1.60, as I remember it, $1.55.
So our next priority then would be to do the' same thing for the

breakfast program for the' reduced price child, and lower that sell-
ing price from 30 cents per breakfast to 15 cents.

Our third priority is again for the breakfast program, and her:.
we are asking that we have sufficient fund; to improve the nutri-
tional quali;y of that breakfast, and improve that quality consist-
ent with the findings of the USDA study, the National Evaluation
of School Nutrition Programs, published in March 19s:l.

One of the things that we are finding is that about S5 percent of
our oreaklasts today are served to needy children. There is a
strong feeling that there should sonic protein in that breakfast.
SA; th< se. are the three priorities.

Now, in terms of why we are asking this

I'1
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Senator Doll:. As I understand it, the cost of A, B, p.nd C is
Ms. WHITE. The cost, as referenced above is approximately $ 1 5 0

million, which is add back funding.
Now, on the next page, Senator, we are showing you some of the

data that we are using to support this request, and again it is im-
portant to note that from 70 to 80 percent of the benefits we are
asicing for would go to families with incomes below 185 percent of
the poverty line.

As I said, clearly this is targeted to benefit children of the work-
ing poor.

Now, I would like to very quickly look at this data with you, and
then Mary Filko from the Akron, OH, schools, who is referenced in
this first item is prepared to give you some information on what is
going on in typical major cities, this being Akron.

Now, you will note that the cities that we are listing here are
really distributed throughout the Nation, and we are showing the
percentage decline in the participation, lunch participation for the
reduced-price category of meals, and we are comparing October
1980 with October 1983, and quickly looking at this Akron, OH,
down 48 percent; Memphis, TN, down 67 percent; Raleigh, NC,
down 27 percent; Birmingham, AL, down 29 percent; Albuquerque
down 28 percent; Cleveland down 22 percent; Louisville down 22
percent; Kansas City, MO, down 4 percent; and Fort Lauderdale,
FL, down 12 percent.

It might be interesting to note the statistic for Kansas City being
4 percent.

We have tried to look at some of the unemployment rates in
other cities, and find that it does appear to be much higher in
other cities, such as Akron, instead of a 48-percent dropout.

Now, in my own State of California, I would just like to add a
statistic to show that statewide we are down 30 percent. That is
across-the-board. So it is based upon this information that we feel a
need, and even a responsibility to bring this to your attention, and
ask for this add back of sufficient funds to cover this.

Now, with your permission, I think Mary Filko might like to
highlight what is going on in Akron.

Ms. Faso. I am sure you are aware of the loss of many factory
jobs in our State. And when we talk of parents, we find that----it
may not seem like a lot to us, but in a family where there is more
than one child, they quite often do not get together that amount of
money to eat a lunch.

We find that, as you can see by the figures, our pricesor our
participation dropped 8 percent, reduced price, when we increased
from 20 cents to 40 cents, and I was hoping that they would come
hack. be we feel the need to provide a meal for those children.

But as I said, parents are finding that they just cannot afford, in
their minds. to pay that, when they have several children.

Senator Dem. I assume there is a direct relationship between the
unemployed parent and the dropout?

Ms. ixo. Yes. The other thing is, we do have people who have
been employed, after leaving higher paid manufacturing jobs, but
the pay is not there, and the income is lower, and they just do not
seem to have it. and of course, some of the women who art' one
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parent families, also find this problem. It is something that we
have not been able to overcome.

Senator Doi.E. Anything else, Gene?
Ms. WHITE. I have just one other comment, Senator.
This morning when you met with us you mentioned what we

would call a possible dream. And it was referenced a few minutes
ago in your comments, and I would just like to pick up on that, and
say that the American School Food Service Association, and those
of us who are operating programs each day, share that dream of
yours, to somehow in the future incorporate the nutrition program
into the educational program of the schools.

You know, in our judgment, schools should not be filling stations.
Schools should be educational institutions, and everything we do
there should be targeted to the health and education of children.
This is a concept that we would like to bring forth by way of an
official proposal to you.

We are asking this year that the Congress authorize a study
which would look at the feasibility of some alternative ways to
fund a universal type of program, a program in which child nutri-
tion would be incorporated into the education program, for all chil-
dren. and in so doing we feel this would meet the intent of Con-
gress. as expressed in the National School Lunch Act, and to help
the Nation preserve its most important resource, and that is the
health and education of our children.

So when we talk about goals, and when we look to the future, we
fvel this is just an important thing to now start considering.

We are well aware of the budget constraint.-;, a lot of the con-
cerns that you have expressed. I know that also is a reality. We
feel there is a dream. and a goal that should be pursued. and that
it should be pursued through a congressional mandated study. to
objectively and seriously look at the feasibility of some alternative
ways to fund this type of program.

Senator Dot.E. Is there any interest at the State and local level in
that same concept? Is that State picking up some of the tub?

Ms WHITE. I think, sir, that honestly this is something that
(..ould be. explored in a feasibility study. We need a commitment
and a priority to do the study.

I personally think there are ways in which there could be some
shared costs Because the reality is the cost of administering the
program as it is now in.wrating is quite expensive. We. have high
co::: 01 application . of verification and all of the related controls
that seem to be necessary for this program. and I guess our feeling
is than the school lunch program is something at a crossroads right
ntw. ant; we must soon decide if this 1:4 to be a welfare program, or
it it is to be a health education program targeted to the educational
oal of this Nation
We would strongly. urge' that we do this kind of study, test t

bi 1 y of t his alternative
S. mom- Doi.r. I should have asked Mr. 114..xle.
ive von done any studies like that, John" You could make one,

do one."
Mr We have the capability to do one, a fair amount of the

work would be coil I railed outside of the Department.
Senator f iotl: There would he some expense involved''

I 6
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Mr. BonE. Yes, sir.
Senator DOLE. I think this is something that we might look at.
Again, I recall something similar in the House. It has been a

long time since I was in the House, but Judge Smith, who was
chairman of the Rules Committee, used to say that some day we
will be feeding all children in school.

At the time, I do not remember whether I thought very much
about this concept, but it is probably going to happen some day. If
it is done in the right way, it might save a lot of expense, and it
might eliminate the welfare aspect of the programdiscrimination
against poor students, and a lot of other things that I do not think
are necessary. If we can avoid these aspects and find a better way
to run the program. We should explore this possibility. Paying for
it is something else. That is always the problem.

Ms. WHrra. Well, there may even be some creative ways in fi-
nancing this. You know, we would hope that any feasibility study
would seriously look at financing. We know that this is a very im-
portant consideration, a primary consideration, but we do think
there may be some creative ways, ways perhaps that we have not
even thought of, although we have thought of a few, but there may
be many others that should be explored.

Senator DOLE. Betty, do you have anything else?
Ms. BENDER. I would like to say to you, Senator, and I am speak-

ing as a program operator, if there could be some feasibility study,
I think the cost we perhaps have to spend for our own controls to
meet the regulations would reduce the cost of the meal as we pres-
ently serve it to the students, so financially it would perhaps be
beneficial, as well as it would provide all students an opportunity
to have a good, sound nutritional meal every day, and be a part of
the educational system.

So I think that there are, of course, some problems in figuring
out creative financing, but 1 think you could also see some addi-
tional benefits as far as reducing the cost of the program, bet er
utilization of the people who run it.

We would then return to the nutrition and the feeding of chil-
dren, rather than some of the other aspects that we have to deal
with.

Senator DOLE. You may have some estimates. What does your
proposal cost?

Ms. WHrrE. Well, we have done some early on, I do not even
know if 1 have that with me, Senator.

Senator DOLE. That is all right, you can furnish it.
Ms. WHITE. If I might just look at that.
We have looked at it from several perspectives, and of course, we

also would price into that some possible increase in participation,
since the meals would initially be available without cost.

The information we have is from, I believe, the Senatewas it,
Marshall

Senator Doi.E. I think Marshall is looking in his briefcase.
Ms. WHITE. Well, we are not lost, we just do not have everything

in the right briefcase this morning.
Thank you, Marshall.

I7
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What we are ,hawing is an estimate of cost of $.9 billion, sub
tract ing out $2.o billion for current services, we are talking about a
short fall of $3.3 billion.

Now, the question is how do you raise that amount of money.
This is where a proposal was made through some legislation last
'ear, the proposal of Senator hart, which would have, through the

IRS procets, reduced the amount of tax deductible lunches for en-
tertainment, and thereby generate some additional moneys.

We are estimating that if about 70 percent of entertainment
lunches could be deducted, and the balance diverted to child nutri-
tion, we would pick up about $1.05 billion, Senator flares bill then
would further support that.

We can see some other ways to administrative savings, to create
some dollars. This is all something that would have to be further
studied, of course, through a pilot study.

I think one of the questions that we all have is what would the
participation level be if indeed this were part of the educational
program, such as all of the other public school educational compo-
nents. That is something that only a study would show.

Senator Dom. I have read this background information. In an-
other area where we try to earmark taxes for a specific program
we have taxes fir cigarettes, taxes for medicare, taxes for alcoholic
spirits-- there is usually a direct relationship, like truck taxes for
highways. I assume you could figure out some relationship here.

Ms. WHITE. We would certainly be challenged to try.
Senator Doi.v. We are talking about the business expense ac-

count deduction. I guess lunches and meal deductions are close.
Anyway, I think this is an idea that has been around for a long
time. and the fact that you are now more serious about it might
move it to the front burner for a while.

Are you suggesting that if we could make some adjustments in
your so-called priority items, A, B, and C. that you would fi-ego
any other provisions of S. 1913, or

Ms. WurrE. Well, those certainly are the priority items that we
would wish to urge support.

Senator Dom. What is the total cost of S. 1913?
Ms. WHITE. About $158 million.
Senator Di.c. The reason I asked earlier about the price was

that when it was 25 cents, for example, the value of the meal was
$1 55. Now it is $1.$0, so there might he some adjustment there.

MS. WHITE. Yes, that is another possibility.
Senator Doi.K. Do you have anything else? I do not want to shut

anyone off here'.
Ml,. We' do want to thank you for your time this morning.

We appreciate the chance to make the statement to you, and also
to assure you that as always we are here to provide assistance and
information :my way that we can

Senator Dom. I think the one thing you mentioned, which is
even more important than where' we come out in the details, is the
bipartisan nature of the program. As far as I know, it is going to
continue. that way.

Ms. WHITE. Thank you. We appreciate that
Senator Dom. Sometimes, we are pl:ring a game' of who can

sp "nd the' most money. We have been playing that game so long
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that we are broke, and now we have to be a little more careful. I do
not suggest that you have ever urged us to be excessive in any
area, but, obviously, you have a different view in this area than we
do. You are working with these programs on a daily basis, while we
hope we are being responsive to the real needs of children. I do not
see any change from the bipartisan nature of our committee's or
the Congress' approach to these programs.

Ms. WHITE. Thank you. That is very reassuring.

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS HUMMED TD Ms. GENE WHITE BY SENATOR JERRE HELMS,
AND ARMOR; THERETO

Question I_ As you know. legislation has been introduced to restore a special medi-
cal deduction for families applying for free and reduced-price meals which had been
eliminated in 1981. My recollection is that many school food service people had told
me that such a deduction was an enormous administrative burden, complicating the
process of verification and increasing the costs. Do you support or oppose a return to
u special medical deduction?

Response. ASFSA supports a return to a special medical deduction. It is quite
likely that families who are overburdened with high medical costs may actually
have net incomes that fall within free or reduced price meal eligibility guidelines.

Question I You will recall that the Administration initially recommended in 1981
that Federal reimbursements for the paying child be eliminated altogether. ly
in response to suggestions from school food service personnel, Congress in-
stead to spread such needed reductions among all categories. Now that you are rec-
ommending a significant (15 midst increase in Federal reimbursements for reduced-
price meals. would you now support some reduction in the reimbursement for
paving students to finance this change?

Response. ASFSA does not support reduction in reimbursement for the payirnrg
child. Reimbursement for paying students has already been severly cut. Additional
cuts will further increase the selling price of meals thereby eliminating additional
children from the program. As reported in the National Evaluation of School Nutri-
tion Programs (FNS/USDA/April, 19831, "Particiption rates for the School Lunch
and Breakfast are more sensitive to differences in the price of meals than
any other factor ecting participation." In general, our philosophy is that the best
way to serve poor children is to serve all children. We believe there must be incen-
tive for local school boards to operate the programs for all students. It is from this
perspective that ASFSA has asked the Congress to study the feasibility of a self
funding universal program.

Question According to the Congressional Budget Office, the maximum meal
charge fur reduced-price lunches aczually would be 53 cents. if the original price,
established in 1970, turd been indexed for inflation (instead of the present maximum
of" 40 ntmt Why do you support lowering the price by 15 cents (to 25 cents( with a
corresponding incremse in Federal reimbursement of i., cents?

Response. ASFSA supports lowering the selling price of reduced price meals (from
411 cents to 25 cents! in order to reduce student drop out and to enable more eligi-
bl students to participate Most schools cannot ufford to charge less than 40 cents.
The cut in meal reimbursement makes it impossible for them to du so.

questrun 4 Flow can the Congress ensure that any additional funding for break-
fast reunbursements will be used for actually improving the meal quality of break-
fasts. the purported objective?.

Re vonse 'flit. assurance could be obtained through statute and effective regula-
tions for implementing this provision

questurri am concerned that any proposed increase in Federal reimbursements
not be use d simply to replace existing State or local expenditures. Would you sup -
p crt a provision to ensure State "maintenance of effort so that increased Federal
funds would not simply replace existing State or local funds?

Response ASFSA would certainly concur that additional federal monies should
not be used simply to replace existing state or local expenditures A "maintenance
of effort" provision is one way to provide this protection. Although ASFSA has not
taken an official position on this issue, it would be consistent with our philosophy of
wing new money fOr program improvement and outreach.

tpo.itos s You described the results of 1961 reenneiliation legislation has having
'Anemic walk reduced participation in the reduced-price category." Yet the General
Accounting Offic recently released a report which noted. among other facts, that
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reduced-price participation nationally had declined from 1 7 million in 1979 to Ili
million in 19s3. During the peak years of 1980 and 1981. participation was 1.9 mil-
lion. At worst, such a decline represents a reduction of Iti percent from the peak
years; less than ti percent from 1979. Do you really consider these participation fig-
ures dramatic reductions? What part might increased verification. declining school
enrollment, or elimination of high tuition private schools have had on reduced-price
participation?

Response I believe that participation trends described in my teatimony relate to
California data (please see attached tablet You will note a dramatic decrease in all
three meal categories has occurred. During the referenced period, school enrollment
in California declined by approximately one percent. Verification was not in effect
at this time.

Question 7 You cited reduced-pric lunch participation figures for nine -'haul dis-
tricts in your testimony. Could you provide the comparable (October 1980 and Octo-
ber 19831 student enrollment figures for the school districts covered by your testimo-
ny as well as the corresponding figures for free meal participation in these districts
with the percentage changer Are any private schools included in this data.'

Response. Data for the 1980-443 period is not in my possession but could probably
be obtained from each of the referenced school districts. To the hest of my knowl-
edge. data from these nine school districts related only to public (not private,
schools

Questam y You indicated your opposition to the Administration's proposal that
States nut already doing so should assume responsibility for adminis:ering various
child nutrition programs and eliminating direct Federal administration in such
States. Could the States' reluctance to administer these programs he a reflection of
the relatively low value placed on the prey .ants by these States? For instance, why
has California not administered the summer food service program?

Response I have no information as to why other states decline administration of
child nutrition programs. California has administered all child nutrition programs.
including the Summer Food Service Program. for a number of years We stopped
administering the Summer Program in 1979 due to management problems with the
program. Some of these problems resulted from budgetary and employment proce
dures that may have been unique to California. However. the most significant prof)
km resulted from late federal regulations, inadequate regulatory controls for fiscal
accountability at the local level. and inadequate funding for state Waft'

Questuar Recent legislation has proposed that the ceiling on high tuition pri-
vate schools that can participate in the school lunch and breakfast programs mow
set at $1,7,0111 he removed. Do you support this provision? flow many private schools.
have tuitions above $1.50(f° flow Rainy would you expect to participate in theme pro-
grams'

Response ASFSA believes that private as well as public schools should be encour-
aged to participate in the program. We have supported current legislative proposals
to raise the tuition ceding from $1.500 to $2.5410. We do not have current informs
tion on the number of private schools with tuition above sum nor can we accurate-
ly predict how many of these schools would participate in the program. I believe
this data is avadidde from the Congressional Budget Office

questwrs 1(1 Two pieces of legislation have been introduced which would expend
the special milk program. One would restore the program to all schools from which
it was elinrinatd in 1981 (that is. schools with other meal service programs;. The
other would istor the program to kindergartens (with other meal service pro-
grams, One reason fOr the change in 1981 was the claim made by many, including

food service persoonel, that much of the milk served in the' special milk pro-
gram was wasted, children received meals at which milk was served and did not
want. or drink. the additional milk. The waste was said to lw especially large among
younger children Ito you see a need tor any expansion of the special milk program
to schools where milk is typically providit at breakfast and lunch'

Response ASFSA believes food must be conserved and not wasted In terms of ex
paroling the Special Milk Program, it would seem appropriate to restore' certain
parts of the program so that children who are not able to participate in the school
lunch or breakhst programs would he able to obtain milk at school

llastital 11 In your testimony you advocated a "feasibility study or pilot project
con v;crioas methods of operating a slffinancing school lunch program for all chil-
dren Po you have any estimate of the cost of initiating such a feasibility study or
pilot project that would he nationally representative? What are the participation as
simptions that were used to arrive at your estimated increased cost of $:1 3 billion
fire as national universal school lunch program? What amount of money would be
saved triqn the elimination of what you diribed as the 'ustly and burdensome
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business of fuming to document and verify the income of families participating in
the program-?

Response. The preliminary data used to support our request for a feasibility study
was obtained from the Senate Committee on Budget and the Congressional Budget
Office.

Question I!. What is the basis for your statement that privately owned operators
of school food service would nut benefit the school lunch program and the children
it server?

Response. This question is not clear. I don't recall making this statement. If you
could cite the section of testimony referred to here, I will clarify these comments.

Question l.t Legislation has been introduced which proposes to provide Federal
funds for the transportation and storage of commodities. According to the Congres-
sional Budget Office these Federal dollars "largely substitute for current State and
local spending for these activities" at a cast of $14 million in fiscal year 1985 Do
you support this provision? If so, why should the Federal government assume a new,
additional financial burden for costs which traditionally have been borne by the
States?

Response. ASFSA supports the limited use of federal funds for the transportation
and storage of commodities. In reality, when local school food authorities pay the
state for there costs, it serves as an additional cut in Section 4 funding. We believe
schools should get full value of commodities without redirecting meal reimburse-
ments. To require local school food authorities to pay state costa undermines the
integrity of the commodity distribution program. We have worked very closely with
commodity organizations in an effort to resolve this objection to the commodity pro-
gram. We felt this wide but small new program would solidify support for the com-
modity distribution program.

California Department of Education
PARTICIPATION TRENDS
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Senator i)ce,v. Sharon, you're next.
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We are honored now to have a Kansah before our committee,
Sharon Evans, director of food service from Kansas City, KS.

Sharon, we will make your entire statement a part of the record.
Any way you wish to proceed is fine.

STATEMENT OF SHARON EVANS. DIRECTOR, FOOD SERVICE FOR
PUBLIC SCHOOLS, KANSAS CITY, KS

Ms. EVANS. Thank you, Senator.
I have a copy of my statment.
I, first of all, would like to make it perfectly clear that I am here

as a program administrator only. I am not here as a spokesman for
Kansas City School Food Service Association nor certainly the
American School Food Service Association.

I would at this time just like to read my brief statement, because
I am more comfortable reading it than I would be to do otherwise.

Senator Doi.E. Fine.
Ms. EVANS. I am Sharon Evans, director of food service for the

Kansas City, KS, public schools, and I have been associated with
school food service of the past 19 years.

I thank you for the opportunity to share my concerns related to
S. 1913. But first I would like to give yoU a little information about
my district and community. and how these relate to a couple of the
provisions of S. 1913.

Kansas City, KS, is the third largest school district in the State
of Kansas, and one of three Kansas districts encompassed within
the metropolitan Kansas City area. Our district consists of an
inner city and a suburban area. A majority of the city's population
are blue collar workers, since the largest employer is the General
Motors Assembly Plant in Fairfax.

Our student population is 21,426, and of that number approxi-
mately 13,500 students participate daily in the National School
Lunch Program. An additional a,000 students purchase food a Is
carte. There are, no breakfast programs in the district. Lunches are
prepared by 325 employees, and served in 52 schools combining
onsite, base, and central kitchen preparation centers, with an
elaborate satellite system of bulk transported and preplated meals.

All secondary schools have a closed campus. Many students ride
the bus to school as a result of an extensive court approved deseg-
regation plan. The district has a racial mix of 47 percent white, 45
percent black, ti percent Hispanic and 2 percent Asian and others.

My school district has several unique qualities and is comparable
on a smaller scale to many large inner city school districts. We
have forced busing; we have a 50-50 racial mix; we have consider-
able poverty; we have declining enrollment; but we have a strong
community that supports its schools.

During the early 1970's, when school enrollments were mush-
rooming, and building bond issues were being defeated across the
Nation, Kansas City, KS, approved a $241/2 million expansion pro-
gram that would make school lunch available to all students in our
district.

We have a conservative community that works peacefully to re-
. solve its problems. While smoke from racial disturbance hung

above Kansas City, MO, in the late sixties, across the Kansas
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River, Kansas City, KS, watched. Believe me, the potential for vio-
lence was there, but it never erupted.

Our community is a cross section of America with Croatian,
black, Catholic and WASP. We have welfare recipients, as well as
people raised with a strong Kansas work ethic. It was these work-
ing families that withdrew or withheld their support of the lunch
program following the budget cuts of the Omnibus Reconciliation
Act of 1980 and 1981.

These families felt a case of reverse discrimination. They felt
they were paying twiceonce as taxpayers, and again as parents,
when their children participated in the school lunch program. It
was a case of double indemnity. We are gradually gaining their
support back, but it is a slow process and an uphill battle. I am
afraid the gain over the past 2 years will be eroded if increased
support is isolated to one category, namely, the reduced-price meal.

At this time I would like for us to turn to page 4 for a brief sta-
tistical review of my district over the past 5 years.

First of all, I would like to point out that the free meal participa-
tion has increased. You can see from 1970, the percentage of par-
ticipation was 50 percent, and current 5 months to now it has in-
creased to 58 and 59 percent. So we have had a gradual increase of
our free meal participation.

Our average daily participation, of course, has dropped off. It has
dropped drastically with the Reconciliation Act. It has plateaued,
and is starting to climb now, and has for the last 3 years.

Senator DOLE. The 16,015 figure includes all students, is that
right?

Ms. EVANS. Yes. In 1979 our average daily participation was
16,000. It is now 13,800.

Senator DOLE. Right.
Ms. EVANS. You can see that our enrollment has declined, and it

declined at the rate of approximately 400 students a year.
I would like to point out the percentage of enrollment served,

that means the number of students enrolled in the district, how
many of thme participate in the program. You can see in 1979 we
were at 69 percent, it dropped down to 61 percent in 1980, 1981,
and 1982, and it has now ...limbed back up to 64 percent.

I should point out that we have approximately 3 to 7 percent ab-
senteeism in our district per day.

All right, the next line indicates our lunch prices. You can see in
1980 it was 70 cents, it has now jumped to 95, and we have held
that steady. Reimbursement rates are just a point of information.

I would also like to point out that our a la carte sales have in-
creased from 1979, it WUN a little under $2,000 a day, we are now
serving or receiving about $3,100 a day a la carte. Now, that is
for that is gleaned from 11 schools, 11 secondary schools.

I say to you. 40 cents is not an unreasonable price to pay for
lunch. Nor is 95 cents unreasonable. So why single out one catego-
ry to receive concessions? Why not spread it across the board to all
categories? But better yet, let us not increase entitlement program
budgets at all. Middle-income Americans are already overburdened
by the huge national deficit.

My other concern with S. 1913 pertains to the repeal of provi-
sions provided for in the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980 and
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1951. If you are going to repeal provisions. why did you put us
through the cuts originally?

Facing those cuts was no easy task. It was tough and difficult
and scary. Tough for employees who had no job security for
months, and I am talking about those powerless people. It was diffi-
cult to reduce the force, to establish productivity standards, to
detail work schedules, to evaluate staff assignments and to evalu-

ate serving techniques. It was scary facing the uncertainty of un-
known reimbursement rates. But we did survive, and our programs
are stronger as a result.

During the summer of 1982, Secretary of Agriculture John Block
spoke at the National Conference of American School Food Service
Association in Denver, CO. He was asked if Federal moneys would
be restored to child nutrition programs. Being a good pig farmer
from Illinois, and since then I understand that the more sophisti-
cated expression for that would be pork producerbut any way,
being a good pork producer from Illinois, he answered, "once a
baby pig is weaned from the mother sow, one does not turn around
and give it back to the sow." Let us not give the baby pig back. Let
us not regress and turn away from the progress made over the past
2 years.

In closing. I urge you to recall the original intent of the National
School Lunch Program established in 19.16. That intent was to pro-
tect the health and well-being of all the Nation's children.

We need the continued support of Congress, not necessarily any
more. but certainly not any less.

Thank you.
Senator Dol.": Well, thank you very much. What is the urwm

ployment rate in Kansas City, KS?
Ms. EVANS. You know, Senator. I do not know.
Senator Dot.r. It is fairly high. but it is not as high as Akron.

011.
Ms. EvANs. No.
Senator Den.E. Again. we have the automobile industry there

which is the biggest employer, and they have been in a state of de-
pression for some time.

Are you suggesting that participation in the reduced price cate-
gory has not decreased significantly?

Ms. EvANs. Certainly
Senator Dot.E. You have nut had that much of a drop in the re-

ducd price?
Ms. EvANS. No. Very stable.. Nine to ten percent all along.
Senator Doi.E. Do you personally know of people who have had to

drop out of the- reduced-price category?
Ms. EvANS. I do not personally know of any, no,
Senator Den.. I was just wondering what happens to that child

during the school lunch time whether they are in the a In carte
section. or they bring their lunch.

Ms. EvANs. You know, of course, our statistics do not indicate
that the reduced-price students have dropped out, you know, that
we lost thew. We lost the paying students. and really feel that
those students are participating through a la carte sales.

And just an observation, I do not see many brown bags in our
cafeterias. at all.
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Senator DOLE. In other words, the bottom line is that you think
the program is probably working fairly well?

Ms. EVANS. 1 feel, for my district, it is working very well. Very
well.

Senator DoLE. I have no further questions. There is a difference
of view here.

Ms. EVANS. I know there is.
Senator Doii. That is why we have hearings. If everybody agreed

on all issues, we would not have to hold hearings. Thank you very
much.

[The following information was subsequently received by the sub-
committee:]
ADDITIONAL QUIIMONS Sosarrrurn WI MS. SHARON EVANS BY SENATOR JESSE HELMS.

AND ANSWER& THERETO

chOlilion As you know. legislation has been introduced to restore a special trwdi-
cal deduction for families applying for free and reduced-price meals which had been
eliminated in 1981. My recollection is that many school food service people had told
me that such a deduction was an enormous administrative burden, complicating the
process of verification and increasing the costs. Do you support or oppose a return to
a special medical deduction?

Answer. I oppose this deduction.
Question. What part might increased verification, declining school enrollment, or

elimination of high tuition private schools have had on declining reduced-price- par-
ticipation?

Answer. In my opinion. those have had no impact.
Question. Recent legislation has proposed that the ceiling on high tuition private

schools that can participate in the school lunch and breakfast programs (now set at
$1500i be removed. Do you support this provision?

Answer. No.
question. Two pieces of legislation hoof been introduced which would expand the

special milk program. One would restore the program to all schools from which it
was eliminated in 1981 (that is, echools with other meal service . The other
would restore the progra,a to kindergartens with other reeservice programs).
One reason for the change in 1981 was the claim made by many, including school
food service personnel, that much of the milk served in the special milk program
was wasted: children received meals at which milk was served and did not want, or
drink, the additional milk. The waste was said to be especially huge among younger
children. Do you see a need for any expsnsion of the special milk program to schools
where milk is typically provided at breakfast and lunch?

Answer. No. I see no need to expand today's program.
Question. Do you see any need for a "feasibility study or pilot project on various

methods of operating a self-financing school lunch program for all children ", as rec-
ommended by some?

Answer. Yes. but at the elementary level only.
Question Legislation has been introduced which proposes to provide Federal

funds for the transportation and storage of commodities. According to the Congres-
sional Budget Office these Federal dollars "largely substitute for current state and
local spending for these activites" at a cost of $14 million in fiscal year 1985. Do you
support this provision? If so. why should the Federal government assume a new, ad-
ditional financial burden for costs which traditionally have been borne by the
States?

Answer I cannot answer this question because Kansas does not receive commod-
ities We do receive "bonus' commodities and are responsible for pick-up and distri-
bution from federal storage.

Senator DoLE. Patricia Maltz and Nancy van Domelen, you're
next. Congressman, are you going to introduce them? If so, I will
put you on earlier.
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STATEMENT OF HON. HAROLD S. SAWYER. A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

Mr. SAWYER. Mr. Chairman, I am not here to contribute as an
expert to this, but I am here to contribute an expert, let us put it
that way.

I have with me Nancy van Dome len from Aspen, (X), but late of
Grand Rapids, MI, and her husband, Peter, who happens to be
here, is one of our outstanding lawyers, and one of my partners in
my law firm for many years, and suddenly decided that the lure of
the mountains was more for him, so he resigned a very valuable
partnership, resigned from the board of our leading bank, and took
off for Aspen, and has started from scratch, with four children, and
has succeeded immensely out then.

So I am very proud to introduce to you Nancy van Dome len, who
incidentally was the brains of that family. Peter was a nice guy.

Well, any way, I am very, very pleased and proud to present
Nancy van Dome len.

Senator DOLE. Thank you very much. I do apologize, you must
have other things on your schedule. but it is good to listen to these
witnesses.

Let us see, how are we going to start.
Pat, do you want to start first?
Ms. MALTZ. I think Nancy has some statistics.
Senator Dom Nancy, you go first.
Let me say at the outset that your entire statement will be made

a part of the record, and you can proceed in any way you wish.

STATEMENT OF NANCY VAN DOMELEN, PRESIDENT. BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, WILDWOOD CHILD CARE PROGRAM, DINVER, CO

Ms. VAN DOMELEN. Thank you very much.
I have a copy of the testimony, and I am just going to summa-

rize.' and I also brought with me, because I thought you might be
interested, it is a book on nutrition for daily care providers, that
was produced by the Child Care Food Program's sponsorship, and it
came through the training program. I thought you might be inter-
ested in it. We published it a year ago, and we have printed about
7,000 copies, and it is being used throughout the country, and it
was purely because of the NET funds that it was possible.

Senator Doi.E. I always sort of liked those NET funds. They got
lost somewhere.

Ms. VAN DOMELEN. I would like to thank you, Senator Dole, for
your past support for the Child Care Food Program. I am not cur-
rently employed by an agency working with the Child Care Fond
Program, but I think the value of the testimony that I bring is pos-
sibly twofold.

directed a statewide sponsorship of the Child Care Food Pro-
gram in the State of Colorado for the past 7 years, just completing
that role in December. I alsoduring that period of time, we func-
tioned for 4 years with means testing criteria since 1976 through
l9Sit. and we functioned for 3 years without it. We saw a dramatic

e 'tier p for f he prepared atatement of Mu van t)oenrlret. wsth attached uhave-referred-to
rk.,14
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difference, which I hope that I will have an opportunity to speak
to.

Possibly the other 'experience that I bring is just peripheral, as I
was selected official of the Aspen School Board, and served as
president for 3 years, and I served in that position for 5 years.

I understand what you are going through trying to look at needs,
analyzing priorities, and then having dwindling financial resources.
I am very sympathetic to that position.

I was asked to write a position paper because of my 7 years of
experience in the Child Care Food Program, because of the spon-
sor's program, and that is basically what you have before you, and
in the position paper what I did was I dealt with two major issues.

The first issue was just an issue of child care in the United
States. In the past 7 years I have seen a dramatic change, not only
in Colorado, but following it nationwide, and I think my approach
is possibly different from some of the other people who will be tes-
tifying here.

I am coming from the standpoint of the- working parents, and
what the working parents' needs are, and how that group is consti-
tuted. There was an old status, I guess, I really am hesitating be-
cause Senator Gary Hart from Colorado is using this concept of old
and new, so I think I am going to change my words a little bit, but
I think there is more a former condition and a new reality for
working parents that we all have to be aware of, and the first reali-
ty is that 60 percent of the American mothers are now working,
and the number that is working, that have children from infancy
through 2 years of age, is increasing.

This number is supposed to increase at lesser rates throughout
the rest of this decade. This is almost revolutionary in nature from
where we were 15 years ago.

Another important point is that child care is being used by fami-
lies of all socioeconomic backgrounds, not just the working poor, as
it used to be, and that parents are considering child care to be ben-
eficial for their children, whereas in an earlier time it was consid-
ered an option that low-income parents or parents who were
having problems with their children and needed to place them out-
side the home, that is no longer the case.

Women have moved into the work force in large number's, and
what is happening is that working women are having real difficul-
ty finding child care. The reality out there, Senator, is that the
salary of the mother, the working mother, seems to be setting the
rate, the cap on what the family day care provider will charge. It is
not the combined salary of the mother and the father, and I would
like to just refer to that in a minute, as to what it means to the
day care provider who is purchasing the food and offering the'
labor.

Also, I think that there is a dramatic change in that parents are
really looking to the Federal Government to establish basic stand-
ards. I think parentsworking parents of a new constituency, and
they are saying we need care for our children that is affordable,
accessible, available, and improved in quality. And I think that
they are looking to the Federal Government to set up some basic
standards
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1 think they are looking to the State and local government to en-
hance their programs, but the role of the Federal Government is
setting a basic standard. Right now it is the Department of Social
Services that sets the standards tbr safety within the home, and it
is ti.e Child Care Food Program that is setting the standard for the
types of food the children are being offered.

So 1 just. in the first part of this paper, 1 have dealt with that
reality, which is very different than what we were experiencing
even 10 years ago, and I think this is something that, when you are
looking at priority setting, hopefully you will take into consider-
ation.

The Child Care Food Program, as you know, has about 700 spon-
sors nationwide, apd they are serving roughly 720.04$) children. 1
do not agree with some of the information that has been given
here. and I would like to point that out, particularly in the role
ofin regards to the parents and the family day care provider. The
parents, particularly.

Means testing, or income eligibility criteria, its basic premise is
that parents that have children from high-income homes are being
served by the Child Care Food Program in excess of low-income
and middle-income parents.

The National Day Care Home Study which was done by the De-
partment of Health and Human Services counters that. It says ba-
sically that the parents who are putting their children in family
day care homes are parents from low-income families, that the
mean income of these parents is from $12,000 to $15,000 a year,
which is below the average. So it is not basically high-income fami-
lies that are basically placing their children, that has been our ex-
perience in Colorado and throughout the States.

Senator Doi.E Not even $1SA00 is considered high income.
Ms. VAN 1.)0111ELEN. No. and $12,000 to $15,000, if you are spend-

ing-- the figures are that they are spending aboutparents are
spending about 10 percent of their income on child care, that
means $1.200 to $1,500 per child. That is not high enough rate of
pay. It really requires some degree of subsidization. So we have
parents from low- and middle-income families.

Senator limy. If I had $1S,000 staff people making decisions,
rat her than $50,000 staff making decisions--

Ms. VAN DomEi.EN. The largest proportion of children that are
placed in the family day care, and this is one of the greatest advan-
tages. I do not know win 'her people are aware that family day
care serves more working parents than any other type of cart',
center-based care. outside of relative care, and so parents are
moving to this type of day care because it is affordable., because it
is as small setting. and they feel they can care for the children.

So then we have to look at the day care provider, the person of-

fering this care. She is taking care of basically children from a
wide range of economic backgrounds in her home. There is not just
a home of low-income children. Irsually there is a diversity, and
what she does is she charges a .4ingle rate, the' going market rate,
and ba:..ically it is in the lowincome level. She herself is generally
a high schotil graduate. She is earning mean income per year from
her day cart' opt:ration. of .-;10.1 WO per year. bir $1.92 an hour fir
her .-ervices
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When she participates in the Child Care Food Program it more
than doubles her food costs to establish that standard. And yet, as
the act study pointed out, it is only covering 35 percent of her food
service. So she is taking on that additional expense in order to set
that standard, and she is not even beginning to break even on it.

So here we have low income, caring for the children of working
parents. These people are not receiving an adequate reiurn on
their care, and the only thing that is assisting them is the Child
Care Food Program. The Child Care Food Program is bringing in a
partial subsidy for their direct aid, and to cut back on this, and
resort to means testing, will dramatically affect them.

We had a 200-percent increase in the Wildwood Child Care Pro-
gram in Colorado after means testing was eliminated, in the first 9
months, and we brought in children of low-income parents, as well
as middle income, as well as high income. And I guess it is a point
that I would like to make, is that it is the Federal Government's
responsibility to set the standards in certain basic levels, from a
sponsorship, from a sponsor's standpoint, I can tell you that it in-
creased the administrative paperwork geometrically, to have to
pull in income documentation information on 727,000 children na-
tionwide. It is a very complex process.

The day care providers do not like it, because they are in small,
intimate settings, in neighborhoods, and they do not like to gather
income information. They find that there are discriminatory as-
pects that occur there toward children, no matter how hard you
try. it does happen, and basically all children are subsidizing the
program.

And so I guess I would like to conclude perhaps with asking that
you give very serious consideration to this means testing, which I
know you are d9ing, and to not introduce it back into the Child
Care Program, it would diminish the participation significantly,
and it is going to hurt all the children, low income, middle, and
high. that you look to whatever you feel is appropriate within this
program, and as far as reinstating any money that is something I
cannot speak to. You have a much broader issue which you must
deal with.

Rut I think over and abore that, finally, we desperately need in
this cauntry. a national child care policy, a policy that will identify
the program for children, a national program for children, and that
will include direct aid and indirect aid and will look at the funding,
and how that is done. I think that that needs to tie into all this.

In the meantime, all we have' is the Child Care Food Program for
those children of preschool age.

Thank you.
Senator Doty. We will make the' analysis a part of the record.'
rfhe following material was subsequently received by the sub-
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lies' I believe that one of the discrepancies in the income levels of families served
by day care homes may be due to the different date of the studies being used The
National Day ('are !tome Study to which you referred was published in September
lOS1. but examined day care homes during an earlier time period. The September
30, 11042, OKI report on Quality Child Care, one of the largest family day care home
sponsors in the Nation, was based on participation in September 11041. The report
prepared for the Department of Agriculture by Abt Associates (published August '2.
19,421 examined day care home participation in January 19P(2.

The tatter report concluded "The most important factor explaining the recent
growth of the (day cam home) program is the ability of sponsors to recruit homes
serving middle -income children. . . Prior to (eliminating income-based reimburse-
ment ratesr only :12 percent of the children served in participating family day care
homes were in the paid income eligibility category; by January 1982, more than 60
percent of these children were in the paid category."

Do you have any nationally representative statistics on current participation in
day care homes which would contradict the findings in these two reports?

Question Do you have any evidence to support your contention that a return to
a means test will result in day care home providers (in the child care food program)
actually discontinuing day care? Those providers that serve primarily rampoor chil-
dren may decide that reduced Federal reimbursement; no longer make participation
in the child care food program worthwhile, but what makes you suggest they would
discontinue offering child care altogether?

quertt,in Nationally, participation in the child care food program by day care
homes increased even during the period in which the means test was in effect. You
mentioned that Wildwood Child Care Programs participated during this earlier
period Didn't the number of providers sponsored by Wildwood (and the number of
children provided meals) increase during the period in which the means test was in
effect?

411,estiun Eve ti with the rapid growth of day cam homes participating in the
child rare food anr, only S percent of all homes participate in the child care
food program EVell if we accept your a.'stumption that some current providers may
(1, ,p not only from the child care food program, but from offering any child care, it
e .,41d seem that there are many other providers, available to provide child care
Why should we expect an overall reduction in the availability of child care simply
front reiistating the means test?

; You indicated that most day care home providers do not use a sliding
sc.(l al sett mg rates, but generally charge a single fee to all parents regardless of
moqu Is there anything that would prevent providers from charging variable.
rat, based on income"

ii,ec,trene ta flow would reinstatement of an incomehased means test result in
+lunation toward children''

Qu,;f1,,ri , Are you aware that reintroduction of a means test, as provided in S
w aid increase the reimbursements made on behalf of poor children

from f:, with incomes below 1341 percent of poverty" Day care home providers
serYmg the poor would actually receive increased Federal assistance only those pro-
videa-s ...et-Now children well above the poverty line would receive reduction in Fed-
eral rerilii:r !rent If the income of those parents sending children to day care is

A's you ha.. stated. why would you oppose a means test. who . would increase
Federal reimhtsi 'etas for children of the most needy families?

queNtion la, re-cord. I think rt important to note' that all of the' figures used
in your testimony regarding salaries of those sending their children to day care
homes, in-aridrus. and average day care eosts represent figures, which are now at

:l!ree !-,ti years old Doesrt 'f. this: lead to trosinterpro+Ation of the current
mat tact Ian v, h regard H. d ec care hoiti,s'

Qteeseeen o As you know, the Administration has in the' past proposed total elimi-
nation u1 the Federal hoofing for day care homes. Isn't the reinstatement of

ti--t a mare impfler;c approach rather than testa! eliutination'' Surely homes.
would rather c,ilies.t tricorn, at(ormat ion than have no day care homes participating
al all

Question It) Some h:ie itu,:tioned whether day care- homes (which are -tor
nr,pit should hi' fs'rtrlit it'd to participate in the child rare' fixxl program
at all hi other Federal nutrition programs participation by Ain -profit- entities gen.
ratic fx rmiite.d. tiviiipols and most child care centers ;ill must be nori-profit
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ASPEN, CO. June ;V. 1984.
Mr. Tom Berm, Jr .

U.S. Senate. Committer on Agriculture. Nutrition, and Forestry.
Washington, DC.

DEAR Tom: After reviewing in depth the questions submitted to me by Senator
Jesse Helms following my testimony before the Subcommittee on Nutrition. I regret
to inform you that I will be unable to supply you with the response you requested.
In order to satisfactorily reply to the issues you have raised would require extensive
time and professional research resources which I currently do not possess. I apolo-
gize for any inconvenience this matter may have caused you.

Yours truly,
NANCY VAN DOMELEN.

Senator Doi.E. Pat, do you want to followup?

STATEMENT OF PATRICIA MALTZ, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.
QUALITY CHILD CARE, MOUND, MN

Ms. MAI.TZ. I certainly would.
Thank you very much for the opportunity to be here today. I ap-

preciate the ability to share some of my thoughts about the Child
Care Food Program.'

I will be speaking specifically about family day care, as Nancy
has done, and I would like to supplement a couple of things that
Nancy said, to highlight even further in terms of who provides
familyor who provides care for infants and toddlers in this
Nation.

It truly is family day care, and traditionally they also provide
the care for the off-hours, which day care centers are very often set
in the hours that they provide, and family day care does evening
care, weekend care, it does night care. Those things happen for all
various combinations of peoples' work schedules, and people do
turn to family day care as the primary care for their children.

My experience in the Child Food Care Program is limited to
being the director of a sponsorship that is now in eight States, and
in preparing to conic here today, we talked about the lining up of
those States with the targeting for summer feeding programs, to
have no means tests in those areas, that would be in some of the
competing areas, and I wanted to share with you that I did look at
Minnesota, North Dakota, and Nebraska, much of Illinois, and
much of Wisconsin, which are the States that I am definitely in-
volved with, would not have a lot of areas that would fall under
the summer feeding program, so if you did do a means test, it
would be a means test statewide, and I just think that is an impor-
tant piece of information to be sharing. I understand that is a simi-
lar situation in Kansas, from some of the things that I have been
reading.

In Texas, which is another State that we operate in, we have
some major cities, but we also serve a number of providers who live
outside of those cities, and our focus has been to serve the rural
providers, and we also need to have benefits for the programs. I
wanted to share that piece of information with you.

Additionally, I want to talk about some things that I heard this
morning at the AFSA's meeting, where we talked about long-term
spending realities, arid the problems that we are in due to the out-

4..1, II Li it th. prtparrNi :taterrwis tfi M14 Maltz
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year contracts of the military. I know that sounds farfetched to the
issue of child nutrition, but I think it gets to be a bigger issue that
I think we need to address, and I will incorporate some of what
Nancy is saying about a policy, or child care, and that we do not
need to think in terms of what is going to happen this year.

As we look at economic realities for this Nation, family day care
is one of the pieces that needs to be in place for us to achieve our
economic goals, because if people are not able to find adequate
care, they are not going to be employed, or generate the revenue
and the income that is needed, and so the whole issue of family day
care and what happens when the Child Food Care Program gets
tied into that long-term economic issue, and I think it is important
that we are not shortsighted and say we are going to do this this
year, because it is going to do this on our budget and our deficits,
that we do look in the long term, and avoid some of the outyears
contracts that we discussed this morning, and the military.

Hut I think what is important is that the family day care is
going to be heard. It is an important part of our economic plan as a
Nation. It plays a key role, and the Child Food Care Program is
one of the pieces that supports family day care ability to feed.
Other pieces have included the exemption from exclusive use in
the income tax laws, and also the dependent tax care credit which,
Senator, I understand you provided a great deal of leadership for,
and we appreciate that.

Se'natur Dm. Again, we are trying to make certain that these
benefits are' targeted to tow income children. We had some families
with income's up to $100,000 getting tax credit, and that is crazy.
This is surely what means testing ought to address.

Ms MALTZ. Well, the family day care providers have had the'
benefit of the dependent tax care credit for their children, and I
think that is important.

The <ither thing that has been received very receptively is the
commodities distribution, and I just want to put in a statement
that we do encourage that to continue, our providers have found it
very helpful.

In looking at some of the specific things that I have heard being
talked about in terms of cuts to the program, I am concerned that
if we want to continue to have the outreach going on to the low-
income families. some of the very things that are being discussed
would prohibit that from happening.

Leaving the program the way it is allows that outreach to contin-
ue happening, and allows sponsors to continue to provid,. the' pro-
gram.

In my testimony I very specifically talk about the reaction from
providers that I hear continuously, as I read of the providers who
are going to go back to a means test, and providers believe that you
are giving them a statement that says we no longer support family
day care, when we start talking about means testing, because of
the relationship with their parents, that they do not want to be in
the position of having to say, ask me, or having to ask parents
what is th income', so that they can be involved in the Child
Food Care 'rogriirn.

As a spi ism-. the burden that is put on tea to process all of those
pieces of E (per, and do that verification, which is becoming more
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and more complicated, and equally burdensome, that is why I have
concerns in that area.

My providers tell me that they like the program the way it is,
and they would like it to stay that way, and not have any changes
in it. I think there are lots of reasons for that, but I wanted to be
sure that you get the Massage that the providers are sharing with
me.

I would be happy to answer any questions, Senator.
Thank you.
[The following material was subsequently received by the sub -

committee:
QUALITY Carta, INC.,

June IS. 1984.
Mr. WARREN OXFORD,
Clerk. Senate Committee on Agrieultuiv, Nutrition and Forystry. Russell Senate

Offier Building, Washington, DC.
DEAR MR. Oxman: In response to the questions attached to Senator Helms' letter

of April 18, 1984, I submit the following responses.
Question I. As I know you are aware, the Inspector General of the Department of

Agriculture conducted a major audit of Quality Child Care, Inc., completed on Sep-
tember 30, 1982. The audit indicated that 71 percent of the children surveyed, in the
OIG sample, had incomes which would have placed them in the "paid" category for
other child nutrition programsabove 185 percent of poverty. Another 15 percent
were in the reduced-price category and onl 14 pereeat were low income children
from families below 130 percent of poverty. 10 calculated that a potential sav-
ings of $5.8 million in focal year 1981 could have been realized at this one r
alone if provider reimbursement would have been based on income criteria. In-
spector General recommended the reinstatement of the means test. Given the cur-
rent deficit crisis, how can you rationalize continued Federal subsidies which are
clearly being spent on behalf of ;amities well above the poverty line?

Answer. I continue to support the delivery of the Child Care Food Program to all
children. I believe that the program as is currently delivered is a wise investment.
When compared to the recent information of the coat of other government contracts
in what is known as the "out years," I believe the costs of the CCFP to be minimal
and the product ---a healthy populationof superior quality; therefore, this cost
gives a good return on investment.

Question 2. In the same audit, the 010 noted the following areas as needing im-
provement: (11 inadequate financial management system; (21 large cash advances
which were used for nonfood program purposes; (3) mconsiatent and arbitrary allo-
cation of costs; and (4) lack of documentation to I contractual arrangements,
purchases. and salary ants. Have these aspects of ity Child Care's management
operations subsequently been corrected to the ,- action of the Inspector General?

Answer. In the follow-up audit, I believe, 0IG indicated that these areas have
been adequately addressed by Quality Child Care, Inc.

Question J You indicated that a means test is "unworkable" in day care homes.
As you know, prior to May 1980, this is precisely the method that was used, and
over MOM homes serving over 70,000 children participated in the child care load
program under those circumstances. Why is this approach now supposedly "unwork-
able '''

Answer. As you know, prior to May 1980, QCCI sponsored 1,500 of the 16,000 spon-
sored homes It took 21 work days to process claims for this number of homes even
with our computer system. This was due to the significant paperwork necessary to

reply with the means test approach. Additionally, the financial risk to the sponsor
eat us they are unable to plan their revenue out of which their administrative

are paid until after all meals are processed. This means that while they are
actually processing the paperwork, they don't have any idea as to whether their
iris will even be paid for, much less all the related casts. There are few govern-

ment contracts to my knowledge where the contractors are willing to do the work
up front but are only paid based on the number of low income clients actually
served.

Question 4 Are you aware that reintroduction of a means test, as provided in S.
1994. would actually increase the reimbursements made on behalf of poor children
from families with incomes below 13() percent of poverty? Day care home providers

0
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serving the poor would actually receive increased Federal assistance Only those
providers serviog children well above the poverty line would receive a reduction in
Federal reimbursement.

Answer. I understand that the dollar value would increase for meals served to low
income children. I must point out that. first. you must have sponsors willing to take
the risks: and secondly. providers willing to participate. Then and only then will the
benefit of the nutrition reach the child.

Question .; !low does a means test, intended to target Federal support to the most
needy. send the message of no longer supporting family day care homes or children
in such homes'.' seems like a non sequitur. Nationally, the number of providers
participating (and the number of children served) increased even prior to the elimi-
nation of the means test in May MO. Similarly. didn't the number of providers
spot:wired by the Quality Child Care and children provided means) increase even
during the period during which the means test was previously in effect'?

Answer. Family day care providers tell me they serve children. They serve them
all the same meals regardless of the economic status of the family. They tell me
they do not intend to ask parents for income information or social security numbers
as they feel it is not any of their businew. Therefore, implementing this proposed
change is received by family day care as the federal government no longer being
interested in supporting the important work this profession does as the federal goy
eminent is choosing to put unacceptable burdens on the provider therefore remov-
ing the benefit the provider receives from the program.

QCt'ls program grew prior to the means test for the following reasons: (a, The
means test would soon be eliminated and one only had to indicate the number of
people in a family and which income category one was in Today. we are required to
get social security numbers and actual sources and amounts of money; and (to Pro
cider's own children could also he claimed. This is no longer true except for low
income providers This change was prudent and reasonable. It has received good
support by providers.

Question Ii Some have questioned whether day care homes (which ore "for-profit-
businesseso should be permitted to participate in the child care food program at all
In (OL Federal nutrition programs participation by "for- profit" entities generally
is riot permitted: schools and most child care centers must he nonprofit flow do you
respond to this criticism?

Answer Family day care is generally considered a business that operates at very
iitt!e excess income over expenses. The individual works long hours On to II! hours
per (faye at an annual gross salary of P4.700 to $10.0110 per year TI .s hardly equates
to a "for profit" environment as all expenses must come from the incotm.

I hope these responses provide the input Senator Helms was seeking I appreciate
the opportunity to provide this and apologize for my tardiness

Respectful ly,
PATRICIA Elect/n(1r Aro ((tr.

StflatOr Hal, do you want to make any statement?
Mr. SAWYER. No, I rather enjoyed this. It is educational.
Senator Den.E. It is very interesting.
Mr Sawmt. You do not usually get this high level testimuay

over on the other side of the Capitol.
Senator Dol.& Well, I do not want to touch that subject. They are

outstanding witnesses- I will agree with that.
We do not have any preconceived notions, but we do have some

rather serious problems.
There is a statement in the committee report which I will ask to

have placed in the record, based on OIG audits of large multi-State
sponsors of the program, such as Quality Child Care. Inc., where
they found only a very few children below the Exiverty line were
participating in the program.

Means testing may be a way to address the problem. We are now
looking at some programs, like medicare, that are not means-tested
hew:lust. they have gone from zero to :5tiS billion, and headed for
:!;100 plus billion in ti or 5 years.

Maybe means testing is not the best way. and maybe there. is an-
(qher way to make certain that we are helping those who need it



without sulasidising those who to be paying their own way. I
would never buy the idea that children, leas of their par-
ents' 1111108030, oeght to in all these progrians, and I do
not know how they could, we are talking about the School
Lunch Program.

Ms. VAN Dosunatri. Senator, could I speak to that?
Senator DMA. &left, because we have two more witnesses.
Ms. VAN Ikatsurs. Mw point that I wanted to make is that you

have to go back to the family day care service, she is not charging
a higher rate to those parents, she w charging what the going
market rate is to those parents, and whit: is low.

I think there i®4,4 presumption here that she is passing it on, and
it is just not the way it is working.

Senator Dom. No, I am not quarreling with the problem that it
creates, but I do not know how we could run it.

Ms. Wu:1z. I think there are two things worth pointing out.
Number one is that we knew that before they eve 0IG. If any-

body asked, we would have told them
Senator Dom That would not have made any difference.
Ms. MAvrz. Well, it would have saved some money.
Second, I think it is important that youthat the record also rec-

ognizes that Quality Child Care, Inc., does not represent all of the
homes of this Nation, and I know at the same time with that that
we were maintaining that the 30 percent price grouping that we
had a number of other sponsors that were at 66 percent, 85 per-
cent, 95 percent, so to us child care in that study has a basis for
decisions, I think.

Senator DOLE. Yes, I have not suggested doing that, but there is
a hearing reportsomething has been called to our attention.

Well, we appreciate your assistance very much. We will be trying
to figure out a solution to this concern.

[The report referred to above by Senator Dole follows:]
trend And Phantom Sense...MN Liar Food Pnicre. spelt sor at Iliad, it air* home. *war

(lull Owe. Inc. Now* MN Audit Report No em.1411

AUDIT REPORT- I/ S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, OFFICE OF INSPECTOR Grt4FICAL

IX --pwrituz OF AUDIT FINDINGS

Income Eligibility Criteria

1. Public law 85-827 provides that effective May 1, 1980, meals served in family
day care homes were to be reimbursed at a flat rate regardless of parent income.
Prior to May 1. 1980. reimbursement was based upon the income of the children's
parents. Effective January 1, 1982, children of the providers need to meet family-
size income standards for free or reduced price meals but children from other fami-
lies still are not required to meet any income criteria. We believe the legislative
change of May 1, 1980. has unnecessarily increased program COWS.

Our audit of Qa.71. one of the largest family day care home in the
nation, has disclosed what we believe to be a serious problem w indicates the
need for legislative change in the program. Prior to May 1, 1900, the income statis-
tics QtX71 used for reimbursement purviews were 70 percent paid, 18 percent re-
duced, and 12 percent free. From a universe of QIXT's 5,715 providers who 'partici-
pated in September 1981, we randomly selected 200 providers. Using income poverty
guidelines ithe same guidelines used for the School Lunch Program and Day Care
Centers we asked parents of enrolled children what income range their family
income would fall in. Our sample results show that the income mixes were 71 per-
cent paid. 15 percent reduced, and 14 percent free. These income statistics are

:3 5



31

almost the same as the income mixes QCCI used for reimbursement purposes prior
to May 1, 1980.

We computed that a potential savings of $5.8 million in FY 1981, could have been
realized at this spores alone if provider reimbursement would have been based on
income criteria. We also estimated possible savings of $36.5 million in FY
1981 and $34.9 million in FY 1982, if other wily day care home sponsors had
income mixes similar to QCCI. These amounts were determined as follows:

MCI PROGRAM REIMBURSEMENTS FOR MOIL YEAR 1 1

Wait imam Cassimm we Pima*
wow mesa name axes (sums roam

Ptovidew resularsemest 811,155.068 $5391,509 $5,757,559 52
Sponsor adarrinstrabon 1.617,846 1,617,846 0 0

Total sponsor rennbraseavent 12.772.914 7.015,355 5.757,559 45

_

Using data supplied by FNS, the following effect on total program outlays nation-
wide is possible:
1981:

Number of meals in centers 388,785,461
Number of meals in homes 151,667,671

Total meals 540,453,132_
Percentage in homes 1151,667,671--540,453,132) 28.66%
19S1 actual expenditure (homes + centers( $290 million

x 28%

Actual expenditures homers $81 million
Reduction based on income criteria (Q(X711 x45%

Possible saving 1981 $36.5 million_ .
19s2 budget (homes + centers'. $276.9 million

x28%

Budgeted homes $77.5 million
x 45%

Passible sin,ings 1982 $34.9 million
We issued en interim letter report on February 2.5 1982, to the Administrator of

FNS addressing this issue and recommending that FNS reinstitute the income eligi-
bility criteria for family day care borne participants as is currently required for day
care centers.

FNS informed us that they had no data to support the assumption that QCCI its
representative of the total population of family day care homes nationwide. The
ma I recent data FNS had available on national participation for all family day
care homes shows that as of May 1980, 47 percent of the children were eligible for
free meals, 24 percent of the children were eligible for reduced price meals, and the
remaining 29 percent were in the paid category. FNS indicated that Abt Associates,
Inc.. was finalizing an evaluation of the CCFP and the report was expected to con-
tain national data on free and reduced price eligibility in family day care homes.
ENS added that any attempts, at the national level, to restrict the eligibility of
recipients by income would not be appropriate at this time because current propos-
als are to eliminate the (X7FP and replace it with a General Nutrition Assistance
(;rant which would give maximum flexibility to States in administering the new
program FNS agreed that Federal funds should be targeted to those most in need
and agreed to consider a tal income test in family day cure homes if the cur-
rent structure of the CCFIgirretained.

The preliminary report on the evalution of the Child Care Food Program by Abt
Associates, Inc,, indicates that in December 1981, between 57 and 67 percent of the
children served in family day care hornet, would have been in the paid income eligi-
bility category. ;inlets the current structure of the CCFP is eliminated, FNS needs
to reinstate income eligibility criteria for family day care home participants.
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IQ PERCENT AMILIKUITIATIV11 REDUCTION

2. Public Law 97-35, the Chnodus Reconciliation Act of 1981, enacted August 13,
1981, mandated an adjustment in the maximum allowable levels for administrative

tfor organizations which sponsor day care homes) so as to
=rr ielltbsertent reduction in the total amount ef rein:barge:Dent pnevided to
institutions for such administrative expenses. Congress directed the Department to
"increase the economy of scale factors used to distinguish institutions that eponsor a

nnumber of family or group day case bosses from deem which firmer a
umber of such homes." The Department replaced the three'tieted structure

used to determine mazimum reimbursement with a four4iered structure and estab-
lished new rates in all four tiers. The rates for the tiers are as follows
1982: Per home

Post 50 homes ,, $42
51-200 homes 32
201-1,000 homes 25
Each home over 1,000 22

1981:
First 25 homes 53
26-75 hoines 41
Each home over 75 35

We applied the new rates which became effective January 1, 1982, to QCCI's oper-
idiom for FY 1981, to determine if the. new Wee would result in a 10 percent reduc-
tion in administrative eXtItellif08. We determined there would have been only an 8.6
permit reduction in admmistrative As a result, the mandated 10 percent
reduction in the total amount of provided to sponsoring orgaasire-
tions for administrative expenses may not be achieved.

This issue was also prese nted to the FNS Administrator in our interim letter
report issued on February 26, 1982. FNS responded that traditionally QOCI has re-
ceived lower per borne administrative payments than other "ng organiza-
tions. Therefore, a reduction in payments of 8.6 percent for does not necessari-
ly indicate that the 10 percent reduction will not be achieved nationally.

Senator Dom. Our next witness is Armand Ball, Jr. While he is
coming up, I need to step outside with my Kansas group here. We
are:going to have our picture taken.

[Short )recess.
Senator Dom. Mr. Ball, you may proceed in any way you wish. I

have some information here and your entire statement will be
made a part of the record. I appreciate your coming.

STATEMENT OF ARMAND BALL, JR, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESI-
DENT, AMERICAN CAMPING ASSOCIATION, MARTINSVILLE, IN

Mr. BALL. As you know, the American Camping Association rep-
resents summer camps for children, run by all sorts of organiza-
tions and groups, but I am here to speak particularly for a group of
our camps that serve low-income youngsters. These are primarily
camps that are operated by national youth serving organizations,
and religiously affiliated groups, which _give their primary atten-
tion to serving low-income youngsters. They have been participat-
ing since the inception of the program, the Summer Feeding Pro-
gram, and are very concerned to see that it continues.

We have found it a very valuable program in several ways for
summer camps. The previous witnesses spoke to the growing con-
cern around child care in this country, and the number of working
parents, the number of single parent families. All of these factors
have contributed to the importance of the summer camp, in terms
of providing some care for youngsters, who otherwise would be run-

See' p 1:kri for the prepared estatentent of Mr Ball
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ning in the streets, and be without daytime home care during the
summer.

We are very concerned that the Summer Feeding Program con-
tinue to provide them the sort of nutritious meals that they have
had during the school year. We see no reason to lapse that pro-
gram for 3 months a year, and let those youngsters continue on
whatever sort of diet they can manage.

We have found that it not only has provided good nutritious
meals, it has much upgraded the sort of meals that these camps
have been able to serve. It has brought the use of the contributory
dollar, which really provides these experiences for children, to
make it possible for many more low-income youngsters to go to
camp than could go before, and to have the sorts of meals that they
do.

We are also very concerned about the proposal to move the pro-
gram into a block grant to States. We feel that there should be a
standard approach, eligibility, nutritional guidelines and then the
total approach to nutrition for children at the Federal level.

In fact, there are a number of States that could not provide serv-
ice to nonpublic entities in their States, and since 95 percent of the
camps that provide camping experiences for low-income youth are
from the private sector, the nonprofit private sector, they would
not be able in those States to receive funds, as I understand it, be-
cause the State Department of Education is not allowed, under law,
to administer funds to nonpublic entities.

We also have a problem of camps that are operated in one State,
and serve youngsters from several States, in the larger metropoli-
tan areas, and those camps would have a very difficult time trying
to operate with two or three different State programs, two or three
different State levels.

We are also concerned about the possibility that this program
might bring about addition *I paperwork. We have had considerable
problems with the increasea amount of paperwork, and verification
required in recent years under the Summer Feeding Program. It
has consumed considerably more dollars in the nonprofit sector
than we would have liked, and we fear that that will increase it
more if we have to deal with multiple State entities.

So we would very much urge the committee to continue the
Summer Feeding Program, to continue it at the Federal level, and
to continue it at its present. level.

Thank you.
Senator Doty. All right. I was just scanning through the state-

ment. I think on page 4, where you summarize, you indicate that
you have been able to enroll some additional low-income young-
strs in camp. Do you have statistics on that? I assume they might
be available?

Mr. BALI.. Yes. we could certainly try to develop some statistics
for you.

Obviously, we are dealing with the voluntary sector, but we
would try to do that.

Senator Doi.E. You have a number of statements from constitu-
ent groups, and it might be helpful if we had some information
that might make a difference,

Mr. BALL. We will try to provide that.
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Senator Dom. I think the other questions that I have are more
or leas answered in your statement, so I will not get into those.
Well, I have no additional questions. We appreciate your testimo-
ny. As we get into this, we will probably be in touch with you or
your association. Thank you.

[The following information was subsequently received by the sub-
committee:I

AMERICAN CAMPING ARSOCIATION,
Martinsville. IN, March 10. 1584.

Hon. Roma Dots,
U.S.' Senate, Committee on Agriculture. Nutrition, and Forestry. Russell Senate

Office Building. Washington, IX
DEAR SENATOR Dotx I ameciated the opportunity to speak on behalf of the

Summer Feeding Program beore the Subcommittee on Nutrition last week. At the
time you asked if we had any data arding the benefit campers had received from
participation in the Summer Feeding'r+ogram.

Upon return to our office, we have attempted to call a number of the camp direc-
tors whose camps participate in the program. We have been able to talk by tele-
phone with 20 clirecties in 10 different states about the difference the Program had
made in their service to low-income campers. With one exception, every director
commented upon the fact that the camp had been able to greatly improve the
menus served the campers during their stay. One director illustrated it by saying
"before the Summer Feeding Program we were serving spaghetti every other &y."
Over half of those interviewed mentioned that they had been able to increase the
quantity of fresh vegetables, and fruit, milk, fruit Juices served the children. Several
mentioned that they were now able to furnish larger portions at mealtime to the
campers.

Only one-third of those interviewed indicated that they were able to serve more
low-income campers because of the Program freeing up money they had previously
spent on food, but those numbers were urnpressive. One director indicated the camp
had served 300 more youngsters from low-income families, another 40 to 50 during
that summer. The other camps had full enrollments prior to the Program so could
not increase the enrollment, but felt the principal benefit was in the area of in-
creased quality of food and menus providing better nutrition to the youngsters. I
should note that almost all of these camp, primarily serve law-income families, so
the vont melt/ray of youngsters qualify for the Program.

I am sorry that we did not have time to complete a larger survey, but the short
time between testimony and the close of the record prevented any extensive survey.

I would like to comment upon the point made by Mr. Bode in his testi y in
which he states that the Summer Feedin Program "precludes assurances
gram benefits go to low-income children.' The camp portion of the Summer F1
Program requires that eligibility for every youngster be determined on an i divi
ual basis. So please be assured that the summer camps are utilizing the Summer
Feeding Program only to serve those qualified.

Further, I would :ike to point out the value to summer camps and low- ihtome
youth of two other programs under consideration by your Committee. The Special
Milk Program and Simmer Commodity Program provide assistance to numerous
youth who fall in that gray area just above the 185% poverty level, as well as many
who qualify. Many youth organizations who primarily serve middle - income youth
have found it almost impossible to justify the expense of verification and adminis-
trative paper work required to individually verify their small number of youngsters
who would qualify under the Summer Feeding Program. These camps have largely
dropped out of the Summer Feeding Program as more paper work has been re-
quired. These two programs provide support to those youngsters in a large number
of those camps, and probably serve as large a number of low-income youth collec-
tively as are served under the Summer Feeding Program. Without these two pro-
grams, these camps would likely be forced to further concentrate their service on
the middleincome group.

We urge the Committee to continue alt three of these programa.
Sincerely,

ARMAND BALI, Executive Vier President

Senator Mix. Next is Anita Ellis, assistant director, Society for
Nutrition Education. We are happy to have you here, and we will
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make your statement a part of the record. If you could summarize
it, it would be helpful.

STATEMENT OF ANITA ELLIS, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, WEST VIR-
GINIA NUTRITION EDUCATION AND TRAINING INETI PROGRAM:
AND MEMBER, SOCIETY FOR NUTRITION EDUCATION

Ms. al.'s. I will definitely summarize. Thank you, Senator.*
I am Anita Ellis. I am substituting for Kristen McNutt, who

hoped to be here, and she extends her apologies. She was unable to
change her schedule.

I am delighted to be here, because I do direct the NET Program
in the State of West Virginia, and I am here on behalf of the Socie-
ty for Nutrition Education, which is a society that promotes nutri-
tion education.

I am very thankful to be able to share some of my concerns, and
some of the things that I know about the NET Program with you.

Kirst, I would like to address just what the program is supposed
to he. The goals of the program are very well established by law, as
you know. They are to provide nutrition education opportunities
for children, nutrition education for teachers for food service per-
sonnel, and then for the development of educational materials and
curriculum.

I think the administration has mentioned in their fiscal year
1985 budget proposal that since curriculum has been developed,
and that was the objective of the p m, it really was time to
phase out the Nutrition Education anrAllining Program.

I do ne like to admit how long, but I have been a teacher for a
while, ar..: t would like to emphasize that curriculum development
is just the beginning of the educational process. There is training
that needs to be done with teachers, and it is a continual need.

The NET Program is very important, because it is the first na-
tionwide effort to combine all the elements of the educational proc-
ess. Teachers dream of these opportunities. We have the perfect
setting here. We can teach children about nutrition in the class-
room, and then they can practice it in the cafeteria which is a very
valuable part of the educational process.

We think that the NET Program is very important in West Vir-
ginia.-- and, of course, all over the country, because we can provide
some training for food service personnel. This helps to improve
school meal management through controlling costs and maximizing
the use of commodities.

Moreover, the training of service workers helps to improve the
nutritional value and the quality of meals served, thereby reduces
plate waste, as a result.

NET is also very important as a cost-saving measure, because it
does ultimately decrease, or can ultimately decrease health care
costs. The education of school-age children is thought to be the
most cost-effective way in which to develop a nutritionally in-
formed public.

And we know that--
Senator 1)411.1-:. If I could just ask, what is it, 5 million now'

p 112 fur the prepared statrrtent of M f:Itts
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Ms. Ews. Yes, 5 million.
Senator Dom. What was it, 15?
Ms. ELLIS. It has been 5 for the last 2 years. It was 26 originally.

It is now 5 million. It has been for the last 2 years.
Senator DOLE. Is there enough there to do any good?
Ms. Etas. Yes, it does provide some seed money. Of course, it is

difficult to administer a program when one receives a minimum
grant of $50,000. It is difficult to administer, but it does provide an
opportunity to do some things that could not have been done
before.

I actually was on the State Department staff prior to the incep-
tion of the NET Program, or prior to its enactment, and I can tell
you for a fact, I had zero dollars to spend for the program. I had
some travel money, but I had zero dollars to spend for the pro-
gram, and it has helped me a great deal.

Senator DOLE. I think there is a relationship. In the Finance
Committee we are dealing with these big, big numbers, with medi-
care and medicaid, costing, taxpayers $100 billion for medicare in a
couple of years, and medicaid is up $1 billion or so. We hear all
these theories that, if we had better nutrition education, we might
avoid some of these costs in medicare and medicaid in layer life.
Maybe not, but we should try a preventive approach.

Ms. Ews. I do not think there is any doubt that it would have to
have some effect. Yoti know, there are, studies that prove that our
poor dietary choices do cause problems later in life, as far as health
is concerned, and if we can avoid florae of those, and prevent some
of those, it certainly would, in the longrun. I think, have a real
effect on medical costs.

Senator Do..E. Nowadays you cannot eat anything, according to
some people, without it being a cause of something.

Ms. Ews. Well--
Senator Dom. It might be all right for most of L1F.
Ms. ELUS. I would like to share with you just a few things that

we think are important. Right now the program is currently oper-
ating in 54 States, so although some of us are operating on a mini-
mum budget, we still are operating a program. We have reached
about 19 million students, about 600,000 teachers, and about
:150,000 food service workers.

You are very aware, I am sure, that the Abt Ass wiates' evalua-
tion that was done in 1981, and the GAG report entitled "What
Can Be Done to Improve Nutrition FAlucation Efforts in the
Schools?," are quite supportive of the importance and the cost of
fectiveness of nutrition education.

There have been various educational methods and techniques.
that have been used throughout the country, one of which was
training seminars at the local level, so that people did not have' to
travel. Another was college nutrition courses, and in West Virgin
in. particularly, we had done some college courses for food service
personnel. and have discovered that a lot of those gals. since being
introduced to that kind of a program, have gore on for associate
degree programs and bachelor programs, of which we are very
proud.

We have some mass media programs going on throughout the
country. resource centers. and of course, curriculum has been d,-
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velopt.d and is being implemented. We have had some nice interest-
ing results, very impressive, I think.

Th "re has been a decrease in plate waste, particularly in the
State of Arkansas. a '15- percent decrease in plate waste. In some
States an increase in school lunch participation, and in many
States there is documented evidence of mcreased knowledge on the
part of students and teacherf.., and cooks.

We have seen---1 hat food choices among students have improved,
we have seen a change in attitude, and more parental involvement.

So I guess what I would really like to emphasize is that there is a
tot more than curriculum development, and curriculum does need
to Ex' updated. Nutrition is riot static. We have new children, and
new teachers, and new food service personnel all the time.

We- are suffering because of the budgeting cuts; I am sure every-
one is saying that; but it is difficult. It has created a need to
change our emphasis. and for some States to employ a part-time co-
ordinator. It r;dly is very difficult for a part-time coordinator to
administer a full-time program. I know there wr.e, some mention
this morning that a fart of the current funds were used fur staff but
I do not think that a lot of States nave been able to maintain staff
on the funds they are getting now. Funds are slow in coining right
atter tln first of the fiscal year; so it is very difficult to use NET
funding for salarie. A part-time coordinator has to develop and
plan a statewide program that involves al! the children, all the
teachers. and all the' food service personnel in net 'iv schools and
firivatt sciarol-4 and child care centers; that is read:, ewe than a
ttrll ina lob. Sir it is really quite difficult.

SNE is wry c.rerned about the future of the NET Vrogritin. We'
are nut to th,. rwd for budgetary. restraints. We would

erx much era mirage,' if we could have the original funding of
cents per child, but tel that at least $1ff million would be a

he and of course, that would be' an increa se of $7)
:',:enattit Wt' have hi,en working on a rvauthoritation bill

t h.a i'ort;t1Itt-, '`1.1t million for NET. I have' riot ;ntrodued it yet
Ei.i.s; Now is the time
,-trongly supports (he' irerMarint autharvation that rs pro

1(1111 in St.ti:Utt )!!! 191:i
1 would tike empl.ii:siz that we iel very strongly that the'

\FT Prol_;r<itti dew!, cant n of which the administra-
sUpptutivet; it is cct,t effectl,:, based on t he needs

-t *:1, 0 maiyidull Stat, it fasters inutVidtial responsibility for
health And h;it ;t !Mist

Wi tee! thai we have done a of in our ve'r'y short 0Xistertcf*
hot Ito ;ut I,tt to ni do:te We' fee! that i'ontintid support
and Inc ri..t-.d fundint: is a but far reaching inves.t merit in

!inur td ft!, v;f!'S (1.; Art11
14,,:!iti I Lc to thank N'tki ;11.!;110 ;.r- your time and appreciate itet

-;ett.,,i 1.11:1111: tolt l tr% thttcli !or 4Mil inf.! E leave nit epic
W. are obviously pleased to have your testimony.

E! .i.e, Thank You
,tik.equentiv rielYcd by the sub



STATE OR Weer VIRGINIA,
DellANMIENT or EDUCATION,
Charksten, WV dune 14 1984.

lk Mr. WADDEN Osman,
('lurk. Smote Committee on Agriculture Nutrition and Fooestry, Russell Senate

Woe Budding. Washington, LK:.
Ilium Ma. Owens: The following is in response to a for information about

nutrition education from Senator Jew Helme. My for the delay in an-
swering. As you know, the earrospondenor reached me late due to an inaccurate
mailing address.

ADINTIONAL QUIERITONS SussiTTTED TO Ms. AMU ELL RV &NAME hum HEWS AND
MENWERS TN:arra

(tuesttors 1. Do you know of any specific studies to indicate, one way or another,
the effectiveness of expenditure for nutrition education? Is there any data to suggest
that children for adults, actually will change their eating habits based on nutrition
education?

Answer 1. As to studies which indicate the activeness of expenditures for nutri-
tion education, the one with which I am most familiar is a study conducted by the
West Virginia Department of Education in 1974-75 which is on file with USDA and
at FNIC Library in Beltsville, Maryland, Copies of that report are included in this
mailing Through a nutrition education program of only three and one -half months,
educators were able to:

1 i Improve at a .05 significanee level the cognitive scores of students in grades K
ti with the exception of fourth grade.

clr Improve attitude scores at a .05 significance level of children in grades 1-41.
431 Decrease plate waste in 5 out of 7 items.
Although study results did not indicate a significant increase in school lunch par-

ticpation of students K.-6, principals involved in the project felt there was better
participation and that attitudes toward school lunch improved. Similar results were
found in the Nebraska Department of Education at this same time That report is
also on file with USDA.

Other states that have evidence of the positive effects of nutrition education are
as follows.
State', area. and address of net coordinator

Arkansas plate waste, Ernestine MCIAINXI, Arkan,.as Deportment of Education,
Education Building. Little Rock, AR 72201.

Ohio. school lunch participation, Harold Armstrong, Ohio Departments Budding,
r;:i South Front Street, Columbus. OH 43215.

Tennessee, nutrition knowledge. Helen Minns, Tennessee- Department ut Edina
tam 117 C Building,Cordell Hull Buildi, Nashville, TN 37219.

Cobh/mei, food choices, attitudes toward nutrition. Amanda Melinger. California
Department of Education, 721 Capitol Mall, Sacramento, CA 95814.

Florida. parent involvement. Dianne Giordanno, Florida Department of Educa
non, Bureau of t 'tirriculurn, Knott Building, Tallahassee. El. =01.

queqicon .1 You indicated that one of the purposes of the Nutrition Education and
Training Program is to train school food service personnel in the -principles and
practices of food service. management". Shouldn't those involved in school food sere
ice already be knowledgeable about nutrition practices?

Answer '2 In answer to your question regarding whether school food service per
mound should be knowledgeable about good nutrition practices, the fact is that per
sminel hired to prepare school lunches should have knowleige about nutrition prac
flees and program management skills but do not You know from the history of the
program, the first personnel were employed fur school food se,-vice through the
W A and no training was required. Generally, persons applying for school cooks'
positions do riot have to meet training or edu.-itional requirements. Salaries paid to
school cooks are not lucrative enough to attract persons with profeasional training
t'orrently. due to the influx oi unions and the peasitige of labor laws in many states.
many personnel positions are protected by seniority therefore, it is in the best in
terest of school lunch program* to provide training for thole*. individuals

In Wert Virginia, prior to funding through the NET program, there was no pruvi
siori for framing of newly hired personnel except for on-the-job training. We are
abl through NET to offer training for new personnel which has made a vast im
prevenient in school meal programs Sonar personnel after years of experience se-
quirt- acceptable management skills and some do not Through training programs
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funded by NET, West Virginia cooks have acquired many management skills and
some have been motivated to pursue a two-year college program_ We still do not
have a trained manager in all schools, however.

Additionally. since school food service is big business and since nutrition and
management are complex skills, training in these areas can not be effectively pre-
sented in one hour, instead, effective training programs require several in-depth sea
siona. Just as all educational personnel are required to renew training, so should
food service personnel renew training.

Recent utilization of computers for school meal reports and recent developments
in nutrition have great implications for training of food nervier personnel. The criti-
cal need for more efficient, economical management in the food service program
makes it necessary to address purchasing skills. time management. menu costing.
use of staff and many other areas. All these skills are needed to say nothing of
training to update personnel on program changes due to changes in-federal regula-
tions It is my conviction that effective training programs are those that provide a
statewide comprehensive approach.

I am pleased to provide you with information about the nutrition education pro-
gram. if t can be of further assistance, please let me know.

Sincerely.
ANITA

A ss,,tont Director. Nutrition Education anti Draining

Senator Doty.. John, you have anything to say, after hearing
the witnesses? IN) you want to change your testimony?

Mr. Boot:. No. I think our concerns are pretty well addressed in
my testimony.

I would like to refer to one, The earlier witness referred to an
1111S study that the income level for child care --home child care
benefits, that is an older study, much older than the date I referred
to, which we do have tremendous confidence in, that two-thirds of
the benefits are going to families with income above 1S5 percent of
the poverty guideline.

Senator Dot.E. Welt, we have that in the record. We appreciate
vu it coming here today. I know of no other witnesses to this hear-
ing

If anybody has any comments they would like to make part of
the record, we would he happy to do that. Thank you very much,

it 2:03 p.m.. the subcommittee adjourned. subject to
call of the. Ciulit-.1



REVIEW AND REAUTHORIZATION OF CERTAIN
CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAMS

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 4, 1984

U.S. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE, NUTRITION, AND FORESTRY,

Washington, DC.
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:10 a.m., in room

SR-328-A, Russell Senate Office Building, Hon. Jesse Helms (chair-
man of the committee) presiding.

Present: Senators Helms and Huddleston.

STATEMENT OF HON. JESSE HELMS, A U.S. SENATOR FROM
NORTH CAROLINA

The CHAIRMAN. The committee will come to order.
This hearing is being held in part at the request of 11 Senators,

who wrote to me, most of whom apparently will not be able to
make it. But all Senators are loaded down with responsibilities,
and the Chair can understand that, so we will proceed with the
hearing, and will, of course, make it a matter of record, so that the
printed record will be available to all Members of the Senate.

Today, the committee will focus on an examination of the pro-
grams within the Department of Agriculture, generally classified
as child nutrition programs. Several of these programs must be ex-
amined iy, the course of reauthorization deliberations, and in addi-
tion to those programs that expire this year, we also will look at
related programs and how these are operatingfor example, the
School Lunch Program, the School Breakfast Program, the Child
Care Food Program, and so forth.

Changes made in both 1980 and 1981 were designed to improve
the operation of these programs and ensure that benefits were
more appropriately targeted to those in real need. For instance,
audits conducted in the 1980-81 school year by the Inspector Gen-
eral of the Department of Agriculture found that about one-fourth
of the recipients of both free and reduced-price lunches were not
e.igible for all of the benefits they were receiving.

in response to these findings, we in Congress took action in 1981
designed to improve the verification of information submitted with
school lunch applications. Specifically, social security numbers
were required on applications in order to provide a uniform
method for detecting improper information. Often, such small
changes can dramatically improve a program's operation and, obvi-
ously, the accountability of it.

'41

45



42

Additionally. USDA was authorized to require verification of
family income in a further attempt to reduce the misuse of school
lunch benefits. Many have reported to me that these changes have
had the desired effect of improving verification in the lunch pro-
gram and thereby ensuring that the taxpayers' dollars are being
properly spent.

Another purpose of both the 1980 and 1981 reforms was to target
benefits to low-income families. Now, the proportion of funds pro-
vided for income-tested programs versus non-income-tested pro-

has improved significantly since fiscal year 1970. Last year,
fir:cants year 1983, the proportion for expenditures provided for
income-tested programs was approximately 73 percent, which was
up from 22 percent in 1970.

Recently, some have expressed concerns that the changes made
by the 1980 and 1981 reconciliation bills may have gone too far.
They have s that students and schools dropped out of the
School Lunch am because at these changes, and that Congress
should restore more Federal funds. Because of these concerns, I
asked the General Accounting Office to undertake a survey of
recent school lunch participation. In my view, the results of their
report, published last week, confirm that the result of the program
changes has been a better targeting of school lunch benefits. While
the GAO noted that student participation has indeed declined since
1979, the decline took placeand I am quoting"primarily be-
cause fewer students ate full-price lunches." Thus, such a decline
took place among students from higher income familiesthat is
the so-called paying student, those with incomes above 18.5 percent
of poverty, currently $18,315 for a family of four. Much of the de-
cline occurred even before any reconciliation reforms. Additionally,
a significant portion of the reduced participation is the result of
the overall trend of reduced student enrollment. Another signifi-
cant portion is the result of eliminating high-tuition private schools
from participation.'

This corresponds to the findings of the President's Task Force on
Food Assistance, which reported earlier this year that reconcilia-
tion changes have not reduced the receipt of free and reduced-price
school lunches within the poverty population. Indeed, the task
force found that among families below the poverty line, participa-
tion had increased from 57 percent in 1979 to 61 percent in 1982.

Contrary to the claim that the School Lunch Program and other
nutrition programs were "slashed"and that is a popular word in
some of the major newspapers around this countrythe GAO
noted that program expenditures for the School Lunch Program
last year were greater than at any time except 1981, which hap-
pened to be the peak year, and therefore, I respectfully disagree
with distinguished members of this committee and others, who
have suggested that we must increase even more the Federal
spending for these programs.

To those who would suggest millions in increased spending for
these programs, I would feel obliged to ask the corresponding ques-
tion: -Where would you make offsetting reductions in these pro-
grams to pay for the increases?" The unrestrained, big spending

r<</II the t.AO report are printed ;MVP 154
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days of the past are over. The day I sat down as chairman of the
Senate Agriculture Committee was the first time in history that a
Senator chaired this committee with any budgetary restraints
whatsoever. And no matter whether I like it or anybody else likes
it, we are operating under budgetary restraints, and we have to ac-
count for these spending ;ncreames, and we must offset them in
other places.

Congress has, in the judgment of this Senator, an obligation to be
fiscally prudent in the financing and administration of these and
all other programs. So in my view, any further increases must be
offset by reductions in other aspects of these feeding programs so
that there is no net increase in spending in the area; otherwise we
run into an objection on the floor because it violates the terms of
the budget agreement.

Sometimes it is said, and with some accuracy, that there is no
constituency pressure for fiscal responsibility for individual pro-
grams. There is no one to lobby against increases for somebody
else's pet project in this area or any other area. I am convinced
that the American people are becoming increasingly aware of the
connection between such spending increases, no matter how well-
intentioned, and the taxes that the American people are required
to pay to finance these programsor the deficits which occur.

We cannot have it both ways. We cannot give it all away and
then complain about deficits. that is what goes on so much in the
political arena these days; the people talking loudest about the
Federal deficits are the ones who created them in the first place.

I am concerned, for instance, about the mounting costs for so-
called administrative expenses in connection with these programs.
It seems that the Federal Government is forever expected to pick
up all of the costs associated with these programs. I do not think it
unreasonable to expect State and local governments to contribute.
particularly with regard to administrative costs when the Federal
Government is already paying generously with the reimbursement
costs.

The Summer Food Program was supposed to have been made
more accountable in I941. While there were some improvements,
t he program which operates as an entitlement continues to cost

million more than had been anticipated. Additionally, there
are tremendous difficulties in ensuring whether the benefits are
targeted to the pior. Any child who goes to a summer foodsite may
receive a free meal without regard to income status.

Another area that vweds careful examination is the Child Care
Food Program, and in particular the day care home portion of that
program Such clay care homes typii..11y have' not more than 3 to f,
children, and the provider usually a mother of one. of the chil
dren receives Federal reimbursements for meals and snacks
served to the chileren.

Prior to 19sO, Federal payments were based on the income level
of the families whose children ge to day care 1:wines an income-
based or flte:MS tested program However, since 19t+0, a separate,
standardized payment system has been in effect Under this cur-
rent system, the Federal Government pays a set rate for all meals
regardless of the income of the children's parents. USDA has re
ported that approximately percent of the children now in surf.
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homes are from families with incomes well above the poverty line,
and the Inspector General has recommended the reimposition of a
means test.

I have introduced legislation, S. 1994, to reinstate the income-
based test for Federal reimbursements for day care homes. Such a
reform would restore the program's accountability as well as re-
align it with the School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs.

To change the reimbursement rates in the fashion I am advocat-
ing would save taxpayers approximately $45 million per year. I
want to emphasize, however, that in doing so, reimbursements on
behalf of poor children below 130 percent of poverty would actually
be increased. The reductions come from those above 130 percent of
poverty.

More can be done, in my judgment, to target these scarce and
valuable Federal dollars, and better serve American taxpayers and
children alike.

The first panel we welcome today is on the Child Care Food Pro-
gramMrs. Sharon L. Montgomery and Mrs. Nancy Sander, day
care home providers in Greeley, CO; and Mrs. Gerrie Smith, a
member of the Child Care Advisory Council of Fairfax County, VA.

If you three ladies will come forward and occupy the empty seats
of Senators, that will be fine.

I will let you proceed. First, I have a little note here: "Mr. Chair-
man, please ask the witnesses to speak directly into the micro-
phones. Thanks."

STATEMENTS (W SHARON L. MONTGOMERY AND NANCY SAITIWR,
DAY CARE HOME PROVIDERS, GREELEY, CO

Mrs. MONTGOMERY. My name is Sharon Montgomery, and I am
from Greeley, CO, and I am with my daugher, Nancy Sander."

We =le: day care home in our home, and I am paid to run
this b by the parents who pay me to care and feed their
children.

I have been in home day care for 5 years in Greeley, and in pre-
vious years, in Inglewood, CO, and Loveland, CO.

I would like to give you a little bit of my background.
As a single parent, I raised four children on what is now consid-

ered poverty income without assistance from the U.S. Government.
My children are now successfully educated adultstwo with mas-
ter's degrees. Through real life experiences, they learned the im-
portance of doing with what we had and making the most of what
we had to do with.

I feel that I am a successful businesswoman, and I have come
here today at my own expense because I have first-hand experience
about the home day care and the Child Care Food Programs, and I
feel I can help you to better understand, to save you some money.

The parents pay me to run my business, to feed and care for
their children, and the Government has stepped in and said, "We
will supplement your income by giving you x amount of money
each month for your food." I do not understand why you need to do
this.

t Sec p t "IC for thr prepared statement of Mrs Montgomery

48



45

I can run my business and feed my children with what the par-
ents pay me, without any help from the Government. I feel that
this food program is structured to cause people to become depend-
ent on Government subsidies, and I do not feel that we need this
type of subsidy to supplement the business that I run. I was on this
program for several months, because I wanted to be sure that I
knew what I was talking about, and I feel very strongly that it is
wrong. I feel that I could use the incomeI could use this to sup-
plement my incomeI am a widow nowbut I feel very strongly
that there is no need to waste this money in this way, when we
have such national debt as we do.

Did I cover it? I am quite nervous, to be quite frank with you.
The CHAIRMAN. Well, you are among friends, so please, do not be

nervous.
This is Senator Huddleston, of Kentucky.
Mrs. SAUDER. We are sorry that you did not get our testimony

before today; we did mail it. But we did have three pages of reasons
why we felt that the program is discriminatory and also, wasteful.
Any time you talk about feeding children, it becomes a real touchy
subject.

The CHAIRMAN. You'd better believe it.
Mrs. SAUDER. We do not want anybody to go hungry, but we just

do not think this is the right vehicle for feeding children. In es-
sence, what you are saying is it is really discriminatory to the par-
ents, No. 1, because you are saying to the parents, "We do not
t hink you are feeding your kid right, but we do not trust you with
the money, so we are going to give it to your babysitter, and then
we are going to make sure they feed your children." And then, you
are also discriminating because you are giving one segment of the
population a subsidy for their income. We are saying we are going
to subsidize home day care providers, because under this program,
home day care has no income limitation. And while we commend
you for at least trying to reinstate the income limitations, we think
that better use of the funds would be to completely abolish the
home day care component and the component that says that you
will feed children in for-profit day care centers.

Reading through your committee print, it does not make clear
that a home day care provider is a for-profit business; it is a busi-
ness in the home, where the object is to take care of children and
make money at it. And the :tune way in your day care centers; it
says in your committee print, it makes the impression that most
day care centers are Ilene start centers, and in fact, many are for-
profit centers, and they are making money.

In one part of it, it says thatI think it was on page :a. Do you
want me to quote from the committee print or from my paper?

The CHAIRMAN, Whatever.
Mrs. SAUDF:R. OK. In the committee print, you have this program

spends '7;110 million The home day care component spends $110
million 1984; $12(t million in 10$5; $130 million in 1986, while
day care centers, which are not the home, only spend $3 million in
)984. $3 million in 1985, and .'4 million in 1986. You see, the day
care centers have income limitations, so they are not spending near
chi. money that home day care is. and people who are not needing
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money are having the Government feed their kids. And it is such a

waste.
I know that $100 million to you is nothing, because you have to

work with billions, but $100 to me is a lot of money.
Senator HUDDLESTON. You ought to hear us arguing over a mil-

lion sometimes.

Mrs. SAUDER. We really feel that the children are not going to go

hungry, and what we have created herewhen we were talking to
other day care providers, home day care providers, they feel that
this money is owed to them by the Government, it is a subsidy to
their income. And they are not reducing their prices for kids. They
do not deduct $2 every day because you are giving them $2 every
day for food. And we just think that we have to cut. I am giving
you 35 percent of my grm income in taxes, and I want some of
that for me. I am tired of giving it to the Government in such a
way that it is not being used to the best advantage, where our
taxes should be used for better advantages, like in retiring the na-
tional debt, for instance, which would make the country stronger.

Also, another way that it discriminates is that the home day care
provider's children are not allowed to go on the food program
unless she is below poverty, if her income is below poverty. Yet she
can I we five children in her home as day care children, and if
their parents are even making $100,000 a year, the Government
will still pay for their food, but not hers. So you can see how that
discriminates.

Also, it is a very profitable business to be a sponsoring agency of
the food program. We have seven in Colorado, seven sponsoring
agencies, where you are giving them $50 a month for every home
day care provider on this food program. And they are advertising it
as a way to subsidize their incomewhich we question the appro-
priateness of that.

Besides giving them money for foodwell, you know how much
you give thembut it could be $2 a day, with breakfast, lunch, and
a snack. Then, you also give the home day care providers who are
on the food program supplements of the surplus commodities. Like
they get 60 pounds of cheese, 15 pounds of honey, 32 pounds of
butter, and 50 pounds of milk every quarter. So you are giving
them food for free that they can use to cook with for their children,
and then on top of that, you are paying them to feed them free
food. Do you see what I meanso it is a dual funding, and it is
something that the Government does not need to be paying because
the parents are paying them.

If you want to subsidize child care, then subsidize child care, but
do not do it this way, because this just is not right. We just feel
that it is being abused and that it is a waste of our money, and we
can be better represented by utilizing the money somewhere else.

The CHAIRMAN. Amen.
We will be back with some questions and comments.
Mrs. Smith?

5 0
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STATEMENT OF GERRIE SMITH. MEMBER, ('Hill) CARE
ADVISORY COUNCIL. FAIRFAX COUNTY, VA

Mrs. SMITH. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the com-
mittee, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Gerrie Smith, and I am
a member of the Child Care Advisory Council in Fairfax County,
VA, that advises the board of supervisors, which is the local gov-
erning body, regarding child care issues and policies in Fairfax
County, VA.'

Although I am here as an individual, representing only myself,
as a member of this advisory, nonpolicymaking board, I have
become aware of a number of child care policie.i that I find, in my
view, are in need of reform, and the Child Oire Food Program is
one of' these programs. But I am not aloile in my concern. The
chairman of the board of supervisors in Fairfax County wrote a
letter to Dave Stockman on November 16, 1981. to the effect that- -
and I would like to read it now:

The Fairfax County Board of Supervisors recently took action to participate UN an
umbrella, sponsor for the second year of the USDA Child Care Food l'rograrn for
family day care providers.

While the Board of Supervisors sup its family day care and this program, it ex-
pressed concern that the USDA Child Care Food Program for family day care pro-
vider, is not specifically targeted at low-income families. Further, we are in a period
of budget and program reductions, some of which are impacting persons truly in
need. Accordingly, we are concerned that this program serves all income levels, and
would like to see the program's guidelines revised so that it is directed to meet the
needs of thaw families with the greatest economic need.

We would appreciate your review of this program to determine how ti. resources
allocated to the program can be targeted to serving low-income families

Sincerely, the Honorable John F. Herrity. Chairman, Huard of Supervisors

My objective today is to state first of all, categorically, that I am
in favor of aid to the needy, especially single-parent families in
which the mother is forced to work out of necessity. I am unalter-
ably opposed to aid to the dual-income-earning families that unfor-
tunately predominate in the Child Care Food Program, in the
family day care provider section.

The Department of Health and Human Services in Washington
has determined that approximately 56 percent of all children who
are in day core are in private family home day care. This accounts
for the enormous growth in the Child Care Food Program, as there
is no income ceiling, no eligibility requirement, for participation in
this program. I think the demographics of Fairfax County, VA, il-
Iustrate this point quite well, in that it is one of the most affluent
regions in the. Nation, and yet, the Fairfax County government is a
sponsor, an umbrella sponsor, of this program. The median family
income according to the' IIIsu census is approximately $33.2:0; per
year. The mean family income for families with two workers is
listed at $39,S16 per year. A family with one worker is listed at
$31.335 per year. The proportion of families with two or more
income earners in Fairfax County is 64.S percent of all families. So
thus. the residents of Fairfax County are predominantly dual,
income artiers. They are affluent; S5.4 percent are white, only 5.9
pa.ra.tat of its residents are black. Only 3,3 percent of those' who

11/4' ..tANfit.4.1 ';fyii..h



48

reside within the county are of Spanish orWn, and the others are
various percentages that are obviously less then that.

The CwAIRMAN. Mrs. Smith, could I impose on you for a
moment? I have a call from Secretary Clarke that I have got to
take. Could we just suspend here for a couple of minutes? I do not
want to miss what you are saying.

Mrs. &MI. Certainly.
The CHAIRMAN. I apologize, and I will be right back.
[(Short recess.]
The CHAIRMAN. I apologize. As Senator Huddleston will testify,

we all have 12 balls in the air at one time, you know.
Mrs. %Arm. I certainly understand. sir. Thank you very much.
The CHAIRMAN. Let me just say that your whole statement will

be a matter of record, but I think since you have highlighted that
paragraph, I think you ought to go into the next two paragraphs,
too.

Mrs. Storrs. All right.
The houses in which the residents of Fairfax County, VA, live

are no less impressive in terms of their relative affluence. The esti-
mated median value of owned housing units in 1983 was $103,600,
with the median value of owner-occupied homes listed at $95,200,
makingFairfax County, VA, the 15th most costly housing ranking
in the United States, according to the U.S. census.

I think an important comparison and contrast that we need to
make is that according to the 1980 census, it is estimated that the
weighted average poverty threshold for a family comprised of four
personsand I believe the weighted average poverty threshold is
the amount of food that a family would have to consume for base-
line maintenance livingfor a family of four persons, it was esti-
mated to be $9,860 per year. Again, the median family income of
Fairfax County, VA, a legal participant of the USDA Child Care
Food Program, is $33,236 per year; less than 6.3 percent of families
in Fairfax County, VA, have incomes less than $9,999 per year.

The magisterial district in which I reside, Dranesville District, in
Fairfax County, is even more revealing regarding the demog:raphic
monomic statistics of the residents-31.8 percent of the families
report incomes in excess of $50,000 per year; 9 percent report in-
comes in excess of $75,000 per year. Yet all are eligible to receive
benefits under the current provisions of the Child Cure Food Pro-
gram.

One family day care provider who resides in Fairfax County has
told me that she uses the extra money to treat herself and her day
care children to meals at various restaurants. She reports that she
would otherwise be unable to offer this outing to the children in
her care. Another day care provider saves all of the money that
she receives from the CCFP to purchase additional toys for the use
of the children she cares for, as well as for the use of her own chil-
dren.

Sometimes, parents who have their children in family day care
arrangements do not wish to participate in the program unless the
day care provider is willing to reduce the cost of the care given to
their children by the amount of the subsidy received by the CCFP
reimbursement schedule. The family day care provider may or may
not be willing to do this.
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Several parents have expressed their apprehension over the pro-
gram, stating that they fail to comprehend the need for participa-
tion in the CCFP, for which they are eligible simply by virtue of
the fact that they have their children in family day care, since
their children's day care provider is rendering something that they
receive anyway: good substitute child care at reasonable cost, given
by a trustworthy neighbor.

In summation, I would like to state thatI had it here some-
placeI am sorry this is so discombobulated. My daughter stepped
on my typewriter and jammed the keys, and I had to go out and
get another typewriter at the last minute, and I had it typed up in
a better form, and it was just a disasterand then it rained.

The CHAIRMAN. You ought to see some of the stuff we produce
around here, and we do not even have daughters jamming up the
keys.

Mrs. SMITH. Well, I know it sounds like "The dog ate my home-
work," but it really happened.

THE CHAIRMAN. It's fine.
Mrs. SMITH. There are many parents of various income levels

who have decided that while their children are young, their right
and free choice is to provide for the day-to-day care of their chil-
dren. The upper income classes have always had this option, just as
they have other options available to them that may not necessarily
be available to the less affluent families. On the other hand, there
are many parents of various income levels who have decided that
while their children are young, their right and free choice is to
seek alternative substitute care for their children. But the fact of
the matter is that the two-income-earning family, as the figures in
Fairfax County, VA, demonstrate, is demanding services and bene-
fits that are not allocated to the single-income family, who may in
fact be decidedly well off than the dual-income-earning families.
The equity of setting public policy such as provided in the CCFP as
now constituted has not been adequately addressed, in my opinion.
S. 1994 will start that reform and thus, equity, in restoring the in-
tegrity to the CCFP.

As we live in the age of dangerously high budget deficits, the
U.S. Congress endeavored to enact some changes in the entitlement
programs. Some of that reform took the shape of the income eligi-
bility requirements. The Gramm-Latta Act of 1941 is credited with
saving approximately $1.5 billion. Unfortunately, the CAW, a
small program by Federal Government standards, was not part of
that income-specific reform. S. 1994 would provide that needed
reform. It could set a trend toward reforming our entire social wel-
fare benefits and entitlements such that only those who are in
need of our assistance are eligible for that assistance.

After all the testimony is heard, all the evidence is tallied, and
the members of this committee, as well as Members of the Senate,
have made their final decision, there will be one group of citizens
that will gain from that decision, and one group of citizens that
will lose from that decision. Let it be said that those who were
denied benefits were the affluent. Do not he misted by the well-in-
tentioned. but misinformed, opponents of S. 1994. It is the Ivor
child who is in need of our assistance, not the nonpoor child. And
with more people seeking aid from our (;overnment, there is less
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money to assist the truly needy. Their cries for assistance are often
lost amid the clamor from the upper- and middle-income classes,
who know how to use the system to their advantage, and often do
so to the detriment of the underprivileged. It is my opinion, then,
that it is an act of true compassion to delete all but the truly needy
families from this program, thus rendering it less vulnerable to the
valid criticism that it is an income transfer program for the
wealthy, from the nonwealthy.

I strongly urge that this committee pass S. 1994, as well as the
full Senate.

I thank you for your time and consideration of this matter.
The CHAIRMAN. Well, I thank all three of you.
I suppose you know that the testimony that you have given here

this morning, each of the three of you, will be the best-kept secret
in Washington, DC, as far as the Washington Post is concerned. If
you had come here this morning and condemned the Reagan ad-
ministration for slashing spending, for starving little children to
death, the television cameras would have been lined up four-deep
over there, and there would be headlines on the front page tomor-
row. But I daresay that few, if any, of the ma* media of this
country will even refer to what you have said. And I include my
own State in this. If you had come here and condemned the Reagan
administration, you would have made the headlines. And obviously,
you came at your own expense. I appreciate it.

Let me ask a few questions. Just for purport s of emphasis, a day
care homeand you have said thisis one in which a person pro-
vides child care for small children, usually no more than what,
three or four?

Mrs. SAUDER. In Colorado, the limit is six at one time, but you
can also have two before and after school, so then you can have
eight. But I do not know of any day care home in Colorado that
only wants three or four. They want to have all the children they
can have.

The CHAIRMAN. And the person caring for the children is the
provider. Under current law, if the provider's income is above 185
percent of poverty, her childi en may not receive Federal reim-
bursement; however, all other children may. Is that correct?

Mrs. SAUDER. Yes.
The CHAIRMAN. And regardless of income, as Mrs. Smith has in-

dicated. The Federal Government provides reimbursement, as you
have said, for two meals and a snack.

Mrs. MONThOMERY. Well, let's clarify that. It is one meal and two
snacks a shift.

Mrs. SAUDER. Or, it is breakfast and dinner and a snack, or
dinner and supper and a snack.

The CHAIRMAN. Now, the administration has supported eliminat-
ing funding for day care homes altogether, probably because of the
high percentage of the higher income participation you are talking
about.

Let me ask each of the three of youshould the taxpayers,
hrough their Federal Government, continue any degre? of subsidi-

zation for these homes, or do you think it should be eliminated? I
guess I am asking whether you agree with the administration on
this or not.
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Mrs. SAUDER. I do.
Mrs. MONTGOMERY. I feel it should he abolished. toecalitie even a

single parent or the low income family who is being assisted by I

do not know what you call it in Washington, in Cireks ley, we call a
social servicesthey pay the day care providers.

Mrs. SAUCIER. So it is not as if somebody is going to go w!thotit
child care.

Mrs. MONTGOMIttlY. It is usually the going rate, or a dollar below
the rate, which is still sufficient to feed the child So you see'. if the
Government is paying for the care, and then they come along with
the program and pay again, you are still paying twice

Mrs. S'AUDER. Also, a day care provider makes considerably more
than minimum wage. Are you going to then go ahead and subsidize
the incomes of minimum wage earners? You see, if you are going to
be consistent and if you are going to be fair, we think that It
should be totally abolished in home day care. And like Mrs. Smith
said. parents understand this program. They do not believe that
the Government should be paying for their children's food when
they are paying for it. And most day care providers will not redoce
their fees. Like, say, we charge $ a day. You are going to give me
$2. So the' parents should only have' to pay $4i, right, because you
are going to give us $2 to feed them. o out of that $s per day, $2
ges for food And they are not doing that. because they are so used
to having that extra money, as you ;aid, for other things---:End we
know that, alo. You use that money inr other things

And since the day care provider does make more than the nun.
mum wage, and she has a business in her home so she has the' Li\
advantages. et cetera. et cetera. it is ready not ricyessar and vie'
think our tax money can be better utilized isewhre

The CitAiumAN. Now, let me be the' devil's advoe ate How many
providers would go out of business If we stopped

\lrs SAIWIt The ones who du not re;tily want to be ii4mie
care providers. Just because you are' giving them a sahsi% riim y, riot
InprOVE' the quality of child care.

Mrs SMITIf Mr. (11,tirman. I would like to -gate that I prceb :ehlt
would rather see ;! voucher system w hutchv it would
tiintt(*ii to assist low.itwome families. but partiulari those Chi:
driri of single parents In Fairfax Couro. VA. from
thtre was. I belie.. a III percent increas, in ie' number of,
voice.- That not tinust4:41. it is unfortunately a 1..'t tit lilt'
throughout the Nation Ari(f the ensuing M.1) m tot t tt duo It.
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abuse, and it occurs so flagrantly. But it is a political liability, as I
have learned even to question the system. I have been accused of
being hard-hearted, wanting to starve children to death, and that
sort of thing. All 1 am -sayilig is let's think about that taxpayer
down there who makes maybe one-third of that median income
that you were talking about, and he is having to support this stuff.
I think it is only simple fairness and equity at least to limit what
the taxpayer :s required to pay. limit this assistance to people who
are truly needy.

Now, we have all sorts of disagreements on this thing for one
reason or another in this committee. But I remember early on, I
started looking at the duplication in the Food Stamp Program with
reference to the Shoal Lunch Program. Here, a family of four are
getting food stamps. They have two children in school, and they
are eating breakfast and lunch at school, but the family is still get
ting the food stamps for 21 meals a week, presumably, for each of
the four, including the two children. And I said, well, 1 wonder
what just that one duplication is costing us. My own feeling when I
looked at it was "Why bother with it?' but I asked staff to have it
analyzed. and do you know how much that cne duplication cost?
Six hundred million dollars a year. I proposed to tighten that thing
up, and I wish you coati see the editorials and the cartoons and all
the rest that just came flying. They had me cutting off children's
heads and all the' rest of it. So it is a political liability to try to talk
commonsense. which you ladies are doing, in my judgment.

Mrs SAI Wit But do you know, if enough people stopped believ
ina eve.>rything they read in the paper and paid attention to what
the. person in front of them at the grocery store was buying and
pa". Mg for that with -this happens to us every time we go to the

store' I become so enraged. Here we are, economizing,
risking the most of our money, buying generic itemsyou know,
name brand has always been something that we could never afford,
because all vou were paying for was the label. We could never have
steak three or tour tones a week; we' made do with hamburger. But
every time I elo to the grocery store, I See three or four people
paying with food stamps. and they have steak, three or four pack.
;ae s of ,;teak. retaie brand items. not frozen orange juice, but
(Iratto in the' carton or the' jar. that costs three times as
!Mich It'SS than the frozen. with the same nutrients. You

the '..ino nutrient value.
think people. when they understand this program, especial-

1 he, ones we' have talked to, they will support you I

htit'r\S I toll SVC ;Ire not goon! to elect you, but if you wanted to move'
t ttlr It (lift

The ttiAihNI,IN I rii;r havi, to after thin election (Laughter
:if 0 IA pie-:o-s, Finro% that sortie of us appreciate, rm.
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So we' are glad that you are doing what you are doing.
The CHAIRMAN. I thank you.
Let me ask you about collecting income information. so that the'

means test can be implemented in a meaningful was how much
trouble would that be to you? None?

[Mrs. Montgomery and Mrs. Sauder nod agreement I
What about for the parent? Do you think it imis ws too much of

a burden to ask them to provide this information?
Mrs. SAtTorm. Not if it is going to benefit them If they do not

want you to know how much they are making, they will nut tell
you If they are not making very much, they will tell you.

The CHAIRMAN. Mrs. Montgomery. I have one final question. and
then I will yield to Senator Iluddleston

Le t's talk about other day care providers Now. these are non
profit, right."

Mrs. Movna/MERY. No. Why do you call home day care nonpot

Mrs SAtiwit That is the problem a lot of legislators have Even
in Colorado. the State legislators do not understand that home day
care' is a for-profit agency.

The' CHAIRMAN. I guess I was referring to day care centers
Mrs. SAI'DER. Day care centers, many of them. are for profit
Mrs. SMITH. But the' umbrella sponsoring agencies must be non.

profit. :11010(4h there is a provision within the law to allow for
profit centers to participate in the program if they have in excess
of 2 percent of the' children enrolled who are former title XX par
t avows.

The CHAIRMAN. Well, this would just have to be a horseback esti-
mate, but in the homes of other day care providers in your area in
the State of Colorado, what would you estimate to be the income
status of the' parents of the' children who are' in these facilities- Do
you have an% idea about that'' It rnav be an unfair arithmetical
quest ion

Mrs SAImic Well. it varies
You see, in our borne, we have and this i- the vaN it is in home

dak care. because day cart' centers are much more' 4,Xim,nsivr
number one. and especially for infants. it is twice' as much money
lit ,t dak care center as it is in a day care home. So we have' people
making minimum wage. rohablY $12.00, a VE'ar, the
outdo. and then vke have' college profes:40i:, SOU, arc making this

ene couple'. they are both professors, so they probably make
So that is quite a range'

Fht- CHAIRMAN set tt Would he hard to an,wer 111% qustion
tTl :11(,N; i(a)miitY Hut l cart Find out, if the", are to coop
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the program myself and another lady. And it is because we feel it
is a ripoff to the taxpayer.

The CHAIRMAN. Senator Huddleston?
Senator IlUDDLESTON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I am sorry I was not here at the beginning of the hearing. S.

1913, which I introduced along with Senator Cochran and others, is
designed to correct some inequities that have occurred because of
the reductions in the school lunch and other child nutrition pro-
grams that have been initiated, totaling some $1.5 billion. I will
submit that for the record.'

The CHAIRMAN. Without objection, it will be included.
Senator HUDDLE/1TM. I think all of us want thiMe programs to
rate as efficiently and economically as possible. Certainly,

y wants to subsidize those who do not need to be subsidized.
I think we can make a general policy statement that in all of our

programs, if we are going to help the truly needy, we must have
programs that are targeted to help those who are in need.

Now, as far as the day care home and centers, is it your judg-
n tnt that we have an adequate number of day care home provid-
ers and day care centers to accommodate children of parents who
need to be away from home and need to work?

Mrs. MONTGOMERY. I feel there is, yes.
Mrs. Ssirrn. Senator Huddleston, I believe that given that we

have a free market economy, the supply never exceeds the demand
for long. And though increased numbers of women are returning to
the work force when they have very young infants, neonates some-
times, there is an enormous demand for care for these tiny infants.
But the day care method of choice among families with young chil-
dren is the private home, because that most nearly recreates the
natural model.

Senator thannxs-roN. You believe there are enough centers to ac-
commodate all those, at all income levels, who have to work?

Mrs. SMITH. Yes. That is where my voucher thing would come in.
It we could specifically target aid and true a voucher system to
those families who are in need, and they can take that voucher and
spend it anywhere they wantedit would be just like money- -so
that they would not be required to go to this day care center that is
across town, that may not be conveniently locatedmaybe they do
nut like the philosophy of the centermost women who work who
have children in day care prefer to have a day care home that is
within. I think, less than 2 miles of their homes. That is certainly
an understandable preference.

Senator flutt.wroN. But, you do not believe there are any
single parent households where the parent would like to work and
has limited skills and would have to take a low-paying job. but
cannot find affordable are for their children while they work?

Mrs SAilwit No.
!-*enator lit:unlYsToN. That is not a problem?
Mrs MONTGOMERY. No, because in our area, :1cial services wtii

pAN the home day care provider.
Mrs S A 'DER iNin't you have sot:Kit serviCe!, hre"!

1,.1 th. preictr,.1.4!JiitlictIt "t Sruit,,t Ifudtfic,tm,
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Mrs. MONTGOMERY. I call it "welfare," but I guess the new word
for it is "social services"; I do not know. But they pay----

Mrs. SAUDER. They will pay wherever the mother wants to take
the child.

Mrs. MONTGOMERY. All of us who are licensed are in a book, and
they just give them the list that is close to their area or where they
need to go.

Senator HUDDLESTON. But say that all these are profitable oper-
ations; that is they are in business to make money.

Mrs. MONTGOMERY. Well, I support myself.
Mrs. SMITH. Senator, I believe the operative word in your state-

ment was "would like to work." We need to make a distinction, be-
cause I think there is an enormous distinction between the woman
who wants to work, who chooses to work, and that is her free
choice, and the woman who wants to stay home with her child, and
that is her free choice, as well. We need to recognize these as legiti-
mate choices that people make regarding their child care. Thus we
should help those who want to work, but cannot find help; rather,
we need to help those who need to work and thus are in need of
assistance.

Senator flunnugsroN. I think it is somewhat of an oversimplifica-
tion to say that everyone has an option, because there are people
who desperately need to work and have to work, who do not neces-
sarily want to work, but have to work.

Mrs. Sham. That is true. The destinction is my point.
Senator IIUDDLESrON. So, are we going to help them, or are we

going to have to turn them away.
Mrs. Swill. But I am specifically referring to the dual-income

family. The single-income family, the woman who is the single
head-of-household, who has childre" really has little choice but to
work. Many times, she is not receiving alimony, she is not receiv-
ing her child supportthe child support that she does receive is
almost always in arrears.

Senator IIUDDLESTON. You think there is adequate accommoda-
tion for those kinds of people?

Mrs. SMITH. I believe there may be especially if we reaffirm our
commitment to them by limiting day care benefits to the needy.

Mrs. MONTGOMERY. I understand what you are saying. The
woman that has to work to support her familyis there a day care
home in her area. That is where our county has this list, and social
services pays they will either paylike, I charge $S a daythey
either pay the $S----1 think $7 is what they pay now. Now, if 0
care provider does not want to accept that $7, she can as le
mother to pay $1 more out of her salaryor, there are others that
will do it. I have d ,ne it for what social services pays.

Mrs. SituDER. But you are talking about child care. You are not
talking about the food. And here is the thing--

Senator flumniwroN. Well, you cannot take care of a child with
out feeding that child.

Mrs. SA 'DER. Well, you need to separate it. though.
Mrs. MONTGOMEI(Y. But that $7 will pay it.
Mrs SAUDEK. That is right. If you are going to talk about wheth

or or not that child is going to he fed properly, then I think some-
how. we need to make a distinction. because in effect, that is what

r
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you are doing right now is subsidizing child care with the intent of
providing good food. And it is up to the parents to make that deci-_ sionNo. 1, are they going to put their child in a place where their
child is going to get the best care? If they are going to put their
child in the best care, then they trust that that woman is going to
feed their children properly. If they do not care, that is another
subject, entirely, what kind of care the child is getting there.

But I am just wondering why the Government needs to make the
choices for the parents. You see, I believe that the parent is the
supreme one in charge of his children, and so they need to make
those decisions.

Senator HUDDISSTON. It seems to me, though, that when you are
talking about those who truly need help, and whose children could
benefit from the nutritious meals during the day, you are talking
about a group that may not have all these options. They cannot be
particular because of their lack of financial resources.

Mrs. SAUDER. I think it is improving, though. We have parent
education classes and courses and workshops and stuff, that a lot of
parents are going to now who are in that lower income group. The
situation is improving. They want to do what is best for their chil-
dren. and they are taking that all into consideration.

Now, maybe in your Brea, the segment of the population is differ-
ent, but from when. we are in Colorado, I think that they are
learning, and I am just not sure that this is the right vehicle to
instruct them on.

Senator flunno*rroN. I think all of you indicated that the Child
('are Food Program does not, in fact, reduce the cost to the provid-
er.

Mrs. SAW**, No, it does not.
Mrs. SMITH. It may not. Some parents do find a provider who

will cut, so it ends up being simply a subsidy. But I would like to
add. Senator, that in most cases, the day care provider is a woman
who has children of her own that she is caring for in her home.
These' children also eat, as does the mother. I think it unlikely that
a woman would provide one meal for a child in her paid care and
then spend extra time and energy producing another meal that is
separate that is either nutritionally deficient or excessive than that
meal that she previously prepared for another child.

So I think it only makes commonsense to state that in most
cases- and of course. we cannot really state categorically, because

der not. have omniscient powers here --but I think it is safe to
state that in almost all cases, where the mother who is the day
care provider is caring flrr her own child as well as another's child,
she is preparing one meal, and they are all eating this meal. And I
think it would be unnecessarily cruel and discriminatory for the
mother to he producing a meal for her child and then another meal
tor the other child. So I think it does not even make sense. logical-
ly, that That would occur.

Senator tironi.Ess I assume though that not every day care
home provider has children of the person who is operating the
home

Second d4, v,,u think that. in all day care settings, meats would
;,.. 'filo. ri tthorE no Child Care Food Program*!
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Mrs Mosynaises.t4v Yes. I do, because if she is going to feed them
nutritious food, She is going to feed them nutritious food, regard
less. And if she is not going to, she is not going to. You've either
got it, or you don't.

Mrs. Shirrs'. I think that approach kind of presupposes that per
haps they are not being served nutritious foods, and I would object
to &hat, because it seems to me that there is no way to categorically
stare that all people are receiving x amount of benefits or nutrition
or whatever at all times, but I think it is only reasonable to state
that most children are well cared for in their day care homes, and
that this is simply an income redistribution program and not a
child care nutrition program. As a matter of fact, in Fairfax
County, VA, one day care home provider has reported to me that
she is inspected twice a year by her USDA agent, an itinerant kind
of schedule. The' woman calls before she comeswhich is only rea-
sonable; it is a matter of common courtesy to do so. It is also in
order to ensure that the woman will be at home when she arrives
for the inspection. But to presume that the rest of the time, the
woman is giving them junk food, we just have to say that when
children are in care outside their parents' authority, we can hope
to empower that parent with the best available knowledge con
cerned with child care nutrition and other kinds of child care pro-
grams that are the most up-to-date, and that given that, then the'
parent will make that decision, and the child care provider who is
the day care provider will be, in a sense, the agent in loco parentis
for the parent.

So I really think that many of these programs are unnecessary.
Mrs Sminrs. Maybe -and we can understand this, of course, be-

aus being a farm family, we already know how to "vonornize. and
have' all the nutritious forxis

Senator litrnal.F.s.roN. I'm sure you do.
Mrs SAunER. That is what I wags just going to say. Wouldn't it be

better to take this money and set up some kitchens somewhere and
practice making the menu, practice menu planning, going to the
groc'e'ry store. comparison buying, and then going back and show,
ing theta how to cook this food so that it tastes good, because here
is the problem Some people don't know how to cook, right?

Senator Iltnan,vs-rotv Do You think that would cost less than the
current progams'?

Mrs. Saria-lt I think in the long run, you an going to have
people who will know how to eat, who will know how to buy. If
they do not kr ow what to buy and they do not know how to buy it.
then you are doing is giving them more money to go out and
buy Ow same stuff, which is just compounding the problem.

Mrs Smt. I think, Senator, the families who are recipients of
t,wwf aro rpc,: and they ztre generally economically
(11.ativarit:wd Amf they do not feel like opening as can of' reconsti-
tuted orange Mice. arid !squashing it up or whatever. And 1 do feel
for these people I do not have a solution to that problem, and I
ralk have not done sufficient research into it to really address it
today lint I want to tat t hat what we should focus on I-"re today,
I think. is the need to assist those who are in need. And in many

tho, v.-II(' arc on the Food Stamp Program are in need of
t h;tt ityit ittlitte expense, I believe'.

C
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Thank you.
Senator IlUDDLFSIX)N Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAtastAN. Thank you very much, ladies.
I guess we are agreed that to the extent that people who partici-

pate in any of these programs across the board who are not in the
category of needy denegrate the amount of help that can be given
to the truly needy, and I think that is one of the points that each
of you has made this morning. But in any case, we appreciate your
coming, and thank you very much.

The second panel will be Mrs. Susan Brogdon, the president of
the Texas School Food Service Association, Castleberry School Dis-
trict, in Forth Worth, TX; Ms. Elizabeth Cagan, chief administrator
of the Office of School Food and Nutrition Services in New York
City; and Marshall Matz, who is counsel for the American School
Food Service Association in Washington, DC.

We will proceed in the order of the witnesses listed, and we
thank you very much for coming and helping us out.

STATEMENT OF SUSAN BROGDON, PRESIDENT. TEXAS SCHOOL
FOOD SERVICE ASSOCIATIONCASTIEBERRY !WNW DIS-
TRICT, FORT WORTH, TX
Ms. Bilmaxmi. Mr. Chairman, my name is Susan Brogdon.' I am

the president of Texas School Food Service Association, and I am
also the director of food service for Castleberry Independent School
District in Fort Worth.

Texas School Food Service Association is pleased and honored to
have thi: opportunity to share with the committee our views on
current issues facing the National School Lunch and Breakfast
Programs.

The child nutrition programs in Texas are the largest federally
funded program there. During the 1982-443 school year, Texas re-
ceived over $217 million in reimbursement for serving over 267 mil-
lion lunches and 70 million breakfasts. By the way, breakfast is
mandated in Texas. Those figures, when averaged, shows Texas
serve's over I million lunches per day, of which approximately
s20,000 are free and reduced-price lunches. The number of free and
reduced-price lunches served daily is the near equivalent of the
population of San Antonio, TX, which is the 10th largest city in the
United States.

The national school lunch and breakfast programs are a big busi-
ness in Texas. TSFSA offers the following for your consideration.

On competitive foods, the proposed rules concerning the competi-
tive food regulations in the national school lunch and breakfast
programs troziline the control of competitive food sales to the food
service area and only during the meal hours. This proposed rule
would allow the school officials, at their discretion, to serve such
foods as carbonated beverages right outside the cafeteria door.
Texas School Food Service Association is opposed to this regulation,

School fyod service programs often ,lepend on the revenues from
the sale or additional food items to purchase new equipment, offset

Lvl }qtr 1,11 red .-..t .1 M, firrwdon

ry
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the oast of the paid lunches, and to raise salaries. ThFSA submits
'he following recommendationthat a federal regulation be en-
acted which would the local school district the authority to set
the guidelines all food sake on school premises. in the
area of competitive foods, the IOW districts two beet decide what
foods should be served and when these foods should be served. This
recommendation would also allow for added financial flexibility in
the food service .

On verification, schoolts are re used to verify at least S
of the free and reduced-price meal approved

Crreelitthe 1983-84 year. Our polls Uwe inthwted that an average of
II percent of the appboatioas have been verified, with 55 percent
using the error-r. one method, 36 percent the random Eclec-
tio .tirethoct, and 10 percent using other

rider the present system, it is most frustrating for all concerned
approve a child for free meals and 2 months later, have to

remove him from the free meals list because of the results of verifi-
cation. This situation could be eliminated if 100 percent up front
documentation of income is required to be submitted with the ini-
tial application. Documentation at the time of submitting the appli-
cation would also serve as a deterrent to those applicants who are
ineligible, and thereby eliminating a child being removed from free
lunches for failure to document 1 week and reapplying the next
week, without submitting documentation. That is currently what is
happening.

The 100-percent documentation would also reduce community
and parent confusion, increase the workload for approximately 1
month instead of 3 or 4 months, and it could be incorporated into
the already existing application process.

At the beginning of the school year, we would need to increase
the days we have to approve from 10 to 20 days, becatgle it does
take longer to do it. I was on the pilot programour scladFlol district
waslast year, and we did 100-percent documentation. This year,
we have done the 3 percent error-prone. I prefer the 100-percent
documentation.

Texas School Food Service Association supports a regulation re-
quiring up-front documentation of income. We feel this would
reduce repetitive paperwork and increase the accountability of the
school lunch and breakfast programs.

On the Breakfast Program, the Texas School Food Service Asso-
ciation supports the implementation of offer versus served regula-
tion during breakfast. This provision should alto be made so that
the final decision to participate in offer versus served at breakfast
could be left to the local district like it currently is at lunch.

We have some concerns about the Breakfast Program. No. I.
therf, is too much liquid at breakfast. Some children have difficulty
consuming K ounces of milk and 4 ounces of fruit _Once. Oiler
versus served could eliminate that problem.

No. 2, at lunch, a child may select three out of five items with
offer versus served regulation. But at breakfast, they may take
every item they must. take every item. That difficult to con
circa a first grader of.

Also, when a child chooses his own fotxi, there is less plate wa.'-te
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We have had very positive reactions to offer versus served at
lunch. TSFSA looks forward to the time when we can implement
offer versus served at breakfast. This provision would increase fi-
nancial flexibility, give children the opportunity to select foods,
and increase the consistency of meal pattern choices.

It has also been suggested that we should increase the meat or
meat alternate to a daily requirement at breakfast with additional
funding to offset the increased expense. Some of the concerns we
had with this were: Since we have47.5-percent of our breakfasts in
Texas free and reduced, the importance of protein at breakfast
should be considered, since the last meal consumed for the day by a
lot of children is school lunch.

If the meal pattern requirements are inert.. ;ed along with the
funding, the increased requirement should be directly tied to the
funding so that the funding could not be reduced without reduction
of the meal requirements.

Some of our people in Texas feel that a good breakfast can be
prepared under the current requirements, and this is not neces-
sary.

As an association, we would support the meat or meat alternate,
with the provision that adequate funding is continually supplied.

We appreciate the changes leading to increased flexibility and
accountability in the school lunch and breakfast programs during
the last 2 school years. We are always seeking ways to improve our
programs.

In summary, we support the returning of control to the local
school districts of competitive foods served in each district: requir-
ing up-front documentation for every free or reduced-price meal ap-
plication before processing; implementing the offer versus served
regulation during breakfast, and increasing the meat or meat alter-
nate requirement to daily at breakfast, with continued adequate
funding.

The money expended by the national school lunch and breakfast
programs is spent for food, labor, supplies, and direct administra-
tion of the programs with the end result being that a child is
served nutritious meals. These meals provide a greater opportunity
for a child to learn, grow, and fulfill his potential.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and members of the com-
mittee, for the opportunity to provide information.

The CHAIRMAN. Thank you very mech.
I noticed you looked up at the clock during all that buzzing. Do

you know what that is? A lot of folks around here do not. That in-
dicates what is going on on the floor, in general. That was what we
call a dead quorum call. two buzzes, end so forth

Not long ago, I understand that two ladies from upstate New
York, up in their years, were outside the Senate Chamber. The
buzzers are' very loud thereas a matter of fact, it is a combination
of a barter and a bell, and it is very loud. They walked up just as
the blast started. One of them looked at the' other and said, "What
do you reckon is cuing on?" and the other one said, "I think one of
t hem may have t, aped." (Laughter.1

Now, Ms Cagan. we are glad to have you, and you may proceed.
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STATEMENT OF ELIZABETH CAGAN, CHIEF ADMINISTRATOR.
orrlei: 4W scurom. FOOL) AND NUTRITION SERVICES, NEW
YORK CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION. NEW YORK. NY
Ms. Cm:AN. Good morning, Mr. Chairman. and Senator Huddle-

ston.
I am pleased to have the opportunity to appear before you today.

My name is Ms. Elizabeth Cagan, and I am the chief administrator
of the Office of School Food and Nutrition Services of the New
York City Board of Education.

We are the largest school ..ystem in the country, with almost I
million children, over 1,000 buildings, and 100,000 staff. My own
operation has over 9,000 workers, represented by 13 different union
locals. We serve over 500,000 lunches a day and over 100,000 break-
fasts each day.

The ethnic breakdown of the total student population, by the
school census of 1982, indicates: 24.8 percent white; 38.5 percent
black; 31.8 percent Hispanic, and 4.9 percent Asian or Pacific lo
lander.

The New York State Legislature, in 1969-70, passed what they
called the decentralization bill, which broke up the city into 32
community school districts, and those community school districts
had responsibility for the administration of their elementary and
junior high schools. The central board of education still maintains
the responsibility for the high schools in the city and for the spe-
cial education children.

The ethnic composition of the 32 community districts is as fol-
lows: 14 have between 90 and 190 percent minority students: .1

have between $0 and 90 percent minority students; 5 have between
79 and s0 percent minority; 3 have between E() and 71) percent mi.,
nority, and only fi fall below 50 percent.

In preparation for the Summer Feeding Program, to determine
eligibility under the present regulations, which set the criteria for
an attendance area having 50 percent or more students during the
school year on free and reduced lunches:, we point out the follow.
ing this is what the latest information shows one district has be-
twn 30 and 39 percent; 2 between 40 and 9 percent; those 3 dis-
tricts, the Only districts which fall between the current eligibility.
Orie district has :ill to ti() percent. 7 between 60 and 419 percent; 1
between 744 and 79 percent: 1ti between 80 and 89 percent; and one
dist ri t with 91.9 percent.

It t interesting to note that more' than half of the districts fall
between ,0 and 92 percent. I mako special note of this data in
order to emphasize the points that I have been trying to mak' to
USDA during the years that I have been chief administrator in
New York City to require individua! applications each and every
year from areas which every demographic report. including the
I-41 census. identifies as needy is both burdensome and duplica
!lye Additional confirm:0nm of such a condition is indicated in an
annual report which the New York City Board of Education must
gen i.a.- in order to determine which schools are targeted to re
crI ye chapter 1 funds Sixty percent of the criteria used for this d
termination must he based on t he Illifght'r of AFDC children within
the ,cht foi Ihwu kit ion i :%VrN 4104f1 In 11 of there ct,runounity
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school districts are chapter 1 targeted schools. Therefore, there is a
direct relationship between our records of free and reduced-price
applications, the census reports, and chapter 1 eligibility criteria.

Knowing the hardships that most of these families undergo, it is
with great difficulty that our school principals are able to receive
for most of these children accurately completed applications.

I subreit to this auflust body that there should be recognition
that we have great diversity in this wonderful country of ours,
thank God, and that for urban and rural areas, large and small, to
be required to fulfill the identical burdensome procedures, with no
recognition given to this diversity, just indicates a lack of under-
standing of the intent of the program by USDA.

In New York City, to avoid the negative national publicity which
occurred in 1980-81, where the media castigated the Congress and
the administration for the mandated inclusion of Social Security
numbers. Highlighted on television, headlined in the newspapers
and we went through that in New York, I think you well know
was the charge that hungry children were being denied benefits. It
was through the ipassive, concerted effort in New York City by
teachers, princip4, superintendents, advocacy groups, and unions,
that we were aby lo ensure that every needy child received the
maximum benefits he was entitled to. This, of course, also required
additional local -fiscal outlay.

I must add that one thing interesting happened, which has come
out in some other previous testimony. The idea of a deterrent was
very good. We did not opposein fact, we supportedthe idea of
the inclusion of the Social Security number. We have always been
trying on our own, as other people have, to ferret out fraud and
abuse. And it was interesting that the prior year, the percentage of
free and reduced applications had been as followsalmost 94-per-
cent free and about 4-percent reduced price. The year that Social
Security numbers were mandated, we did not lose a child, as I indi-
cated, but it worked out to come out to be 84 percent, almost 85-
percent free, and the children swung into the reduced-price catego-
ry. a few into the paid.

Now, when I talk about this concerted effort, what was told to
parents--1 personally went out to 15 different community groups
where they had big community meetingswas something very
simple. of course, they always raised the question of the invasion
of privacy, and we had determined legally that there was no inva-
sion of privacy, and so forth. And we all said very simply: "If you
have nothing to fear, then you should have no objection." And that
was the end of that problem.

We have always endeavored to ensure the integrity of our claims.
By subsidizing as a paid child any needy child, for whatever
reason, whether by neglect, child abuse, et cetera --the reason I say
that is that New York had that headline that we said all the chil-
dren were suffering from child abusewas not able to return a
cimipletely valid application signed by a parent or guardian. It was
throok.th this massive cooperative' effort, and the support of the city
and Ole hoard of education, allowing us to maintain our pricing
schedule. which made us one of the few local educational agencies
in the country which did not experience a drop in participation by
the needy children.

I:
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We are also very proud of the' fact that we have introduced many
innovative programs which not only have enhanced the School
Lunch Program but have reduced waste, which again results in
very cost-effective programs. Among the general innovations is the
establishment of what we call energy factories, mini enemy facto-
ries, offering many choices from which elementary schoolchildren
can select, which we find is a better alternative to the option of
offer versus served. I will get into that, and I might as well say it
now, because if you get to know me, you will know that I always
say I am not going to say anything, ..) u t say it anyway.

The CHAIRMAN. Well, you are eligible for the U.S. -Senate.
Laughter.]

Ms. CAGAN. I should have had that advice 35 years ago.
I think I am maybe uniqueand this is probably why I Logue so

much with USDAhaving only been in charge of this program for
the last 6 years, originally against my desires, I could not see the
connection between a school administratorbecause I hvd come up
as a teacher and a principal and assistant superintendent and did
not know what connection there was between whether v kid has
the peanut butter on whole wheat or white bread, and the educa-
tional process. Let me tell you, we have done a miraculous job;
cause there is no job in the world that I can get that I do not tieup
with the education of kids. And in New York City, it is integrally
interlaced. Of course, you can gather that having been an assistant
superintendent, I can also yell at my former colleagues, and they
listen. I have an advantage over those who have only been in food
service. Unfortunately, in my operation all over the country, they
have always been looked upon as separate and as sort of second-
class, without realizing it. In fact, we are using local funds to final-
ly do a formal research project, because we have found informally
that because of programs, breakfast and lunchand we have
others that we fund locallythat there has been a tremendous im-
provement in attendance. And we have heard this in other reports,
but those scientists will never, never listen unless it is scientifically
researched. We have found that there has been a tremendousof
course', if a kid is not in school, he cannot learn anywaybut
maybe because of improved attendance, reading and math scores in
New York City have' increased dramatically. But it is the working
toget her

Why do I say I am a maverick? I believe that all of this has to
locus around good nutrition. USDA meal patternswell. they have
changed the name from type A, but everybody says, "The new
meals patterns, which used to be called type A," we proved to them
that you can provide a "type A lunch" and never, never meet the
nutritional requirements for that age child. And we have shown
them menus that more than meet the nutritional requirements
that do nut meet their pattern, and I have challenged them for the
ti years either to stop saying this will provide good nutrition to
kids, and then just say we just want to fill their bellies; or, if they
are concerned with nutrition, then that has to be the goal, and
then everything else falls into place.

Wen, we are' very consistent in that, and that is why I am happy
that you mentioned the new competitive tOod regulation. I know
that the Federal Government is very shy at being sued, because
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you can be sued about everythingbut so am I, in New York. Ev-
erybody sued me on the competitive foods. But I am not afraid of a
suit. Da you know why I win those suits? Because I have that one
commitment. And when the chocolate people sued me they did not
win because they could not prove that this was a nutritionally
sound addition into the program.

Now, when we get this backing down from the Federal Govern-
ment, the regulation does encourage the States and locals to go
beyond the USDA regulation. But we are very fortunate in New
York because, as I said, we all work r, and we have seen the
improvements in kids. So the boardd elheits and the
State legislature is now going to be introducing l legislation for all of
New York State. But the Feds should not be so lightened. If they
knew where they were going and had only one goal and would not
fragment these things and not have a clear policy of where we are
going, many criticisms would be negated.

We talked about some of the innovative programs, and I got into
some of the choices. In addition, each of our schools has a student
nutrition committeewhich I mandatein which they have
learned the nutrient value of foods, the Federal regulations con-
cerning RDA's, which provide both the science and mathematic ac-
tivities far more meaningful to the students than the memorization
of the vitamins and minerals that they used to have to do in I hour
in the science class, which is far removed from their day-to-day ex-
perience.

Parents are invited to visit our technology unit, where we taste
and test new foods. This unit also vigilantly, on a random basis,
pulls samples out of our delivered items to the schools to ensure
our rigid specifications are being followed.

We have been happy to give workshops both to USDA and people
across the country. We are very proud of our very, very tight speci-
fications. In fact, I offered Secretary of Defense Weinberger, when I
was present at a luncheon at which he spoke, and he was telling
about the terrible contracts that they had inherited to send my
person to write rigid contracts for him. We are very, very strict
about that. When I came in 6 years ago --this is very interestingI
am not paying any more for my today than we were paying
in 1975and you know prices have ,one uponly because we
found manipulation by suppliers because of loose contracts; we also
found that the board itself was not paying vendors for 2 or 3 years,
and you can hardly blame people for adding on all of this borrowed
money interest. But we got our act together, and we worked very,
very well with industry. They called me crazy the first year; I
called them crooks. But we are working together, because we
changed all those specifications, and our foods are absolutely the
most wholesome In fact, we were way ahead of the nutrition goals,
we were ahead of the cancer report. We are very proud of it.

All of our foods introduced in the program are student tasted
before introduction into the program. This eliminates waste. The
student nutrition committees also help in the planning of menus
for their particular schools, within the parameters of RDA, meal
patterns, and budgetary constraints.

When you said earlier, Mr. Chairman, that you were called all
sorts of names because you were starving children, I must say that
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I am so fiscally conservative that t have been called a Republican
!Laughter. I

Senator Iltan.E.svoN. Heaven forbid.
Ms. CAGAN. Well, you know in New York. that that is quite

thing.
But I also want to point out that one need not be a conservative

Republican to believe in a fiscally sound and conservative program.
and yet not have any impact on having what I consider the best
program in the countryI am very humble, too, you see.

Theoretically, we can have 1,2(0 different menus on any partici'
tar day, because I think we are unique in this country that I do not
have any full value contracts. Every one of the contracts which we
generate for every item of food which we purchase is what we call
a requirement contract, so that we can have the children get the
kinds of food so that every food that they may order meets the nu
tritionat goals that we are trying to set.

Our original nutrition grantsthis has to do with Nrr. and this
is what I am talking about we pull everything together- have been
looked upon by us as actual seed moneys, in that when the moneys
are drastically reduced, local support was provided because of the
success we were having.

We are proud that we did not waste any moneys on the duplica-
tion of curricula, of which we had plenty, but instead emphaFized
the priority uses as indicated in the original legislation. This hrts
paid off. We are now beginning to set the effects of the student se

of fOod items. These patterns are lifelong and should pre-
*Juke adult diseases we hear about that are brought on by

poor nutrition.
We are also proud that New York City was in the forefront in

the establishment of nutrition goals. as I said to ensure reduction
of sugar, salt, fats, and the removal of all artificial flavors. color .
into. and unbeneficial additives. This.in conjunction with our ongo
ing programs for cooks, managers, teachers. and students, resulted
in exemplary menu planning. which has encouraged the consuuip
tam of the fresh fruits. vegetables, arid whole grains And you fr,iit

.it from me for nothing. we' did not need a ig. expensive report.
a task force

it is for these very reasons t hat I support t toot In mit ion of no
trition education funds, not to by given out indiscriminately. how
ever, but to be disbursed on the basis of proven isTformance
record. or at least on the basis of a proposal for the proper use of
these funds in accordance with the' aims of the original legislation

want to note that I think the Office of School Food and Nutri.
lion Services is the only place in the country because this money
was given to State's which received the NFT moneys from Nevi,
York Stole Education Department I made t hat they under.
stood the p:irpose of that legislation, which was to reduce the waste
and enhance the :school Lunch Program We firiovid more riotri
lion education for teachers who have. over the last L' or alt years.
receive:1 t he so called education t the formal iipproai h
v, hick h(! Inipct A teacher is not 1;mia! to take milli t itkill edii
eitt Pal and add it onto an eighth curriculum area. They do not
have the tint,- What we have' done. and per imps it 0-- III+.

hAT tn;tiit it tie -lel irr di; here. hilt Niro hi, LI. Wile- Jr,
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every other place in the country if you Work together --is to pro-
vide lesson plans for teachers so that they can teach their English
and even literature. We have a beautiful curriculum in literature
and references to nutrition. You would be surprised how many fine
books aad fine plays have some reference to it. It makes it very ex-
citing to kids. because it is not dry. It makes at very easy for teach-
ers, because they can teach their area and include this as an item
instead of looking upon it as separate and distinct from the ongo-
ing course of study.

There is no reluctance in other Federal agencies other than in
USDA in denying money for undeserving programs. I, personally,
and the Board of Education as a body, feel very strongly that the
receipt of Federal moneys in any form is as binding a contract as
one can enter into and that one must ensure the proper use of the
moneys received to be used in accordance with the Federal legisla-
tion authorizing specific programs.

The GAO. in a report to Congress several years ago, noted that
the New York City Board of Education's Summer Program was the
hest, most cost effective program of all those reviewed. This report
recommended that boards of education should be encouraged to ad-
minister the program

The regulations concerning the use of private sponsors have been
changed in the last 2 years, and I say, to the great betterment of
the program. and we are proud to say that the Board of Education
nil d every corn ill un ity-based program. The programs were

good We had had unscrupulous private sponsors. If you eliminate
those, we were able to make sure that every child enrolled in a pro-
gram whether they did it in a school -fir when we umbrellaed
them and I becaro their sponsor But we scrupulously monitor
these things

Last sliFi mer. v fed 3 million breakfasts and h million
lunches. and we are very proud we are not surprised. but other
people' are Since we are so scrupulous in our supervision and mon,
itor mg, we did riot receive even one disallowance.

New Yi)rl, Ciiv is urging that this regulation not be changed. or
at least that the boards of education be given the first right of re

any consideration could be given to private sponsor
ship In that way. no child could possibly be denied the opportunity

reliN %Ole wlonit. breakfasts and lunches during the SUrtglier
hav had two sides of the story I spoke to Mr. Cooney when I

heard about the amendment allowing the private sponsors back.
Aoy nine there was a drastic change in regulations, with all the
advocacy groups and the unions in New York City, I go through
hi it «(11. interesting that they were now united with rite'
;11;;11(1.4 t h When I spoke to Mr. 0.,oney. he told me' about experi-

- tLit had ikvurred that he wal.; familiar with in Connecticut
here no child was ted hecau?..e the hoards of education would not

run 11!1' pr,wrain On the other hand. I was able to tell hint about
()Aloud. CA and other places where, because of that change.
ho,ird,..0 education came in. Arid I think we agreed that this would
Ire ..,,,riticrtuf cttrnproutise. Si) I hat no child need he denied

\\ f II; New York ('its have been supervim-d y USDA In the
l'ruer:irn. ;in(' t Ins has keen, interestingly enough.

'-'- partner-011p I am disturbed that.
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,,thisild St;it4.,-. f1' tucd to administer the' program. and that it not
he mandated to he under the aegis of the State Education Dpart
inOilt . which is responsible for the supervision of the' breakfast and
lunch. that the' continuity and cooperation which is required from
the school administrators will 1w fragmented. resulting in a dis-
set-% ice to the kids.

This gets me' hack to the tact that when there is no mission, or
no goal that everybody is working toward. These are the kinds of
things that happen when. myopically. each thing is looked at as a
separate kind of program. with no interrelationship.

The office of School Ftxxi and Nutrition Services is in its last
throes of the verification mandate. Since we are one of the two
cities in the country which were required to verily 3 percent or
3.0041 applications. you can we'll imagine what a learning experi-
nce this has been for all of us, and we' will be very happy to share,

as we have been asked to by USDA, our experiences with them.
It came as a shock to me, yesterday, when I received the Federal

Register. to which I subscribe, dated March 30. HW41,. with the new
proposed rules on verification. My opinion of USDA. never high to
begin with. was reinfOrced Il..aughter.l

Their earlier regulations had negated their original promise to
provide guidance to us on how to best perform the' verification. and
then they came out and said, "We are not ready to share this with
%oil. so you go ahead and then share your information with us.- So
yesterday. they come out and tell us, "Now, here is the guidance
we promised you.- Well. why didn't they wait? We are almost
through We are able to share the experiences, and so forth They
do not remember from 1 month to the' next, and this is not the only
thing. of what they have issued in regulations. But it is this incon-
sistency and this incompetence' which drives administrators of pro-
gram!, and administrators of schools, with whom we must work, up
a wall It again highlights the fact -and I have said this to them
publicly. I have even challenged them to stand up if they come
under this not one person wb:i generates these regulations has
,-. el h'e'n responsible for the implementation of any program. let
;done for the procedures which they are telling us are' mandated

It might be interesting tee mandate that they Ix' assigned to van-
(to, school districts now in the ptfxt school year. to help implement
these regulations. which they "re now mandating to he' done. intf.r-
istawk enough, by Novernblit r, That was done because of some
commerit such as yours. tha 1 said by the time we identify it.

mNiles. if nicest school distri -ts are just about completing it now.
Inc M. in the world are you going to be able to do it by November 1:-i,
when they even caution you in these new proposed regs -you
must OVe" plenty of notice to the' parents that it is being verified'
And that p- ti!-uatiy, according to the previous Federal mandate.
hord Pi day,-; then. you must allow the right of appeal and that
1.- v lip !No, are- going,tg, on mini on and on Again. I say that all of us
acriis,- the country have had different experiences. We know what
Mt% %ork what may not work. and we should all get together
hi toio an fund rule's I do not think there is anyone t,%hii is op
ft,-.e(4 io verification That I, one thing that I have found to is' sup
,,,rli'd : c `- I 11 i'-, Cutint Iv It n dust a ipit.,,tion ot how be-t to dr, it
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so that it becomes least burdensome, least costly, and becomes
therefore more effective.

The CHAIRMAN. We have another panel. Can you wrap up?
Ms. CAGAN. Yes.
I do not support the reinstitution of the Special Milk Program, in

schools which do have a breakfast or lunch program. Having been
a teacher and school administrator most of my career, I was per-
sonally able to note the difficulty in properly and legally adminis-
tering this program. There was overt identification, and schools
were not clear that this program was really open to all children,
and therefore it became a discriminatory practice.

On my present assignment, I also observed, in visiting hundreds
of schools in our system, that. the waste of milk with the small chil-
dreninterestingly enough, other than what I read--was horren-
dous. A child consumed milk for breakfast, whether he had it at
home or had it in school; received the special milk at midmorning,
and then received milk again at lunch, resulting in, at best, a
waste of much of this liquid, and eating less of the lunch, which
was waste- -and at -.worst, many kids, the little ones, just gave it up.

My recommendations in summary are as follows:
First, to permit by legislation the use of are eligibility for the

breakfast and lunch programs where studies and application expe-
rience have shown a continuous high percentage of poverty chil-
drenwhether that be 90 percent, 80 percent, whatever you think.

Sf.cond, the continuation of the Nutrition Education Training
Program.

Third, the continuation of the Summer Meals Program under the
I resent regulations or with the boards of ?ducat ion having the first
right of refusal.

Fourth, the verification regulations should not be changed until
current experiences have been shared and evaluated.

Fifth, no change in the Special Milk Program.
Thank you very much.
The CHAIRMAN. I will tell you what I want you to do. The' next

time you come down here, before you come, you take it little course
in how to speak with conviction. !Laughter.'

As far as drinking milk, you stop preaching and start meddling
You are' not aware of the dairy surplus we have.

Ms. CAGAN Yes, I am; I am very much aware of that, but there
an. other ways of handling that

Ilie CHAIRMAN. Exactly, exactly.
4.-riator from.croN I think she should do it once more. with

feeling. !Laughter. I
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Matz, please excuse me while I step out for

just a minute. I have some 'Japanese officials I need to meet with
out there. and I will be' right back.

i will have' far more difficulty understanding them than I have
had understanding you. Ms. Cagan.

Ms. CAnAN. Oh, when you finish reading my te,tinony. we have
applications in eight languages, and our verification answers have
to be in eight languages,

The CHAIRMAN I wilt he right back
Whereupon. Senator Iluddleston assumed he Chair '

ti4nator It.tini.EsToN, Mr. Mat?. go ahead
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Mr. MATz. Senator Fluddleston, thank you. As you will appreci-
at. the task in front of me is formidable. following Ms. Cagan. one
of our better witnesses.

In deference to her, and in deference to time, let me ask if I may
just iatert my entire statement into the record and make just a few
points ? '

Senator Ilunnt.wroN Without objection the statement will be' in-
cluded.

STATEMENT OF MARSHALL. MATZ. COUNSEL, AMERICAN SCHOOL
FOOD SERVICE ASSOCIATION

Mr. MATZ. Both points that I would like to highlight and bring to
the committee's attention are, in fact, quotes from the USDA
survey and study on the Child Nutrition Program, done in response
to S. Res, 90, which was marked up and reported out by this Com-
mittee.

The study i- entitled "The National Evaluation of School Nutri-
tion Programs; the Final Report." It is a rather lengthy, two-
volume publication, very well done.

Finding No. I was that the biggest single determinant of school
lunch participation is meal price. Now, that may sound like a
fairly obvious statement, but believe it or not, it has come under
some discussion lately. It is the main reason, also, that we are
strong supporters of your bill, S. 1913, which would among other
things. lower the price of a reduced-price lunch from 40 cents to 25
cents, and of a reduced-price breakfast from 30 cents to 15 cents.

Mr. Chairman, the experience that we have had in recent year
totally corroborates the finding of the Department of Agriculture
study: There is a very, very acute relationship between price and
participation.

Our testimony contains a: chart that I would like to call your at-
tention to on page 3 of our statement. This is a chart showing the
decline in reduced -price lunch in selected citiesand I hesitate to
point out that this is not a national average but these are, in fact,
the ntirnbe'rs reported to us by these cities. It compares reduced-
pric lunch participation in October 19(1 with October 19143. As
you can see, the drop has been rather significant. The reduced-
price lunch category has at the same time experienced the most
-ignificant increase in price. At the end of the 1970's. 1979, the' re.
dud-price lunch was increased. in the last year of the Carter ad-
ministration from 10 to 20 cents Under President Reagan it has
been increased from to .10 cents. So. within a fairly short period
of time. we have seen a dramatic increase in the cost of a reduced-
prie luta

y4'e art. not talking iii that category about high income' people.
( 'hair-roan, as your floor statement pointed out The reduced

()Viet' lunch category is aimed at the working poor. those people,
,vho are not qualified for a free lunch. hut nonetheless are certain
k Wt;l1(114 Ab4)(It 'TO 01 so percent of all the be/W-
ith- providoqi (olr voter W t!to tarn I I f".. IW I.}
0'1 CC11! 10 I Fit' if)Vt'll
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I have heard a lot of fairly subjective rhetoric as t / whether the
bill helps poor people or does not help poor people. Clearly, it de-
pends on where you are sitting, what State you are in, and how
you define "poor. The vast majority, of the benefits under your bill
go to people below 185 percent of the poverty line, and are, in our
opinion, extremely necessary.

The second point I would like to make, Mr. Chairman, in also
from the USDA report, and it deals with the nutritional quality of
the program. It found that students who participate in the School
Lunch Program have a higher intake of energy and most nutrients
than students who do not participate in any of the school nutrition
programs. The report goes on to findand I am quoting--"The su-
periority of school lunch is reflected in higher daily intake of nutri-
ents for the general school-age population and for all the popula-
tion subgroups that were examined--in short, all income strata of
the population."

The study also points out that the School Breakfast Program is
not as nutritionally sound as the School Lunch Program. It is for
that reason that we think the provision of your bill, which would
increase the funding for the School Breakfast Program so as to im-
prove the nutritional content of the program is so important.

I might mention a third finding of the report, given the fact that
we are sitting here at the table of the Senate Agriculture Commit-
tee, which is that it is a highly effective program in terms of in-
creasing the consumption of agricultural commodities. The USDA
report found that school lunch promotes the consumption of domes-
tic agricultural products by increasing the amount and quality of
food obtained by participating families. And then, this sentence.
which I thought was very important: "The study shows that an in-
crease of between $9 and $10 of direct cash income would he
needed to have the same effect on food expenditures as only $1 of
school lunch subsidy. So, to the extent that one of the stated pur-
poses of the statute is also agricultural, it is clearly meeting that
test, Mr. Chairman.

In summary. I would like to just make one basic point, Senator
lluddleston, and that addresses the subjective question of what is
the basic purpose of this program. There is an awful lot of discus-
sion- Senator Helms referred to it, previous panels discussed it,
and numerous articles have discussed the topic of targeting-- who
should benefit and who should not benefit from the program. lin-
pliit in that discussion- and in our opinion, an incorrect implica-
tion is that the. stated congressional purpose of this program is to
function as a welfare program aimed exclusively at the poor within
our society But nowhere in the statute does it say that. As a
rtt:Ittr of fact. the legislative history is quite to the contrary. This
provo-arn :iirtieti at the nutritional health of all childrenall chil
dren

It the Congress wanted to change that legislative purpose, then
obviously certain other things would follow. If this program was in-
tended exclusively as a welfare program. there should not be subsi-
dies for people that were not defined as poor. But the fact of the
matter is. the purpose clause of the statute has not been changed.
The purpose is to aid the nutritional health of all children. Inter-
e,4!rigly enoot..h. that language was written right after World War
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II when the arttled Services found that -4) many people were failing
physicals as a result of nutritional debt ency diseases.

o, I would like to say to the committee in conclusion: Step back
from the debate over the pending regs and the pending bill. and
address more boldly and more forthrightly, the basic goal and pur-
pose of the program. If school lunch is going to continue to be, as
the current law states, a nutrition program for all children, then I
ask what is wrong with subsidies that are based on nonincome cri-
teria. When you enter a national park, you do not pay entrance
fees based on the income of the person, because the goal of support-
ing that park is not income security. As a matter of public polic,
we have decided it is important to fund and protect that park.

I would say the same thing is true for school lunch. As long as
the purpose of that program is aimed at improving the nutritional
health of all children. then sound nutrition should be the criteria,
not whether or not it is targeted toward the poorest of the poor.

Mr. Chairman. if' we are going to discuss the targeting of bene-
fits, the committee should discuss it more forthrightly, and we
should discuss the basic purpose and goal of the program. If we are
going to turn it exclusively into a Function 6(H) Welfare Program,
forget about the nutrition goals, forget about the agricultural goals,
forget about the health goalsthen, let's amend the section of the
statute that defines the purpose of the program.

Thaok you very much.
Senator Ilunnt.F..sToN, I thank you very much. and thank all of

you for your testimony.
Just one further comment. Mr. Matz. related to the bill I nitro

dued S. 191:1.
Mr. MATz. We' are working hard on behalf of it, Senator
Senator IhmneEsToN. I appreciate, that. There is a lot to be' done.
Mr. MAz. Yes. there is. I notice that a majority of this mmit-

tee supports it. but we still lack a few vital cosponsors.
,ttor Ilitan.vsToN. But in spite of the' questions that have

been raised about the targeting the fact is that the modest restora-
tions proposed in S. 191:1 are, in fact, targeted more to the needy
than they are to the upper income levels.

Mr MA'11. Mr. Chairman, there- is no question about that
Senator If t-nin.vs-rots;. That was our purpose. We' knew. of course,

we' could out repair every inequity that might have occurred he
,' :etc-,e of the cuts, but some cuts were more' inequitable that! others
Our hope is that the bill corrects some of the inequities.

Mr MAT! It would indeed correct quite a few problem s. I would
just like to make two observations ahout your bill. One is that, as
you mention. tt is highly targeted on the working poor: that group
beI,,w Is:, percent. of the poverty line that seems always to come up

lude hit short it is [Mt a windfi:11 hir th wealth.% The seiond
!it I would like to unik is that it onk restores 141 percent of
wh.:1 was cut in !!151.

It is a ttitlest restoration It tr one Mind Oa. :+nel I

hope thts conInnttee will enact It
tits A(.AN 1Iav I maki ttflt tr,:ird t1,111:11
Senator lit'1/1.1-SliPN Yes
Ms M:AN I tchtritVtt I have ,spiken. have ,ink ,.1)4ikett

:shout what happens ir, New York. because that 1,". NN. liIT I know If

i :)
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there are areas in this country which feel the need, or other local
educational agencies, for the Special Milk Program, I have no ob-
jection to its reinstitutionif it could be done that it not man-
dated on all of us.

Senator HunotzsTorg. You want the choice.
Ms. CAGAN. That is right.
[Whereupon, Senator Helms resumed the Chair.i
The CHAIRMAN. I thank you. We have another panel to go If you

do not mind, may I file a few written questions with each of you?
Ms. CAGAN. Yes. I would be delighted.
Mr. MATZ. Sure.
The CHAIRMAN. You understand the situation. You have been

here.
Mr Matz. Yes, sir.
The CHAIRMAN. I have enjoyed all of your testimonyI am sorry

I missed yours, Mr. Matz, but will read it with great interest.
Thank you very much for coming; it has been a great help.

The third and concluding panel are: James Bovard, author of
"Feeding Everybody: How Federal Food Programs Grew and
Grew," Policy Review magazine of the Heritage Foundation; Helen
Blank and Ed Cooney, representing the Child Nutrition Forum,
Washington, DC. If you three folks would come forward, please.

We will hear from you first, Mr. Bovard, and I thank you very
much for your patience. These hearings always last longer than we
intend, but we find them very valuable and helpful.

Mr. Boy Attn. It is too bad you aren't paid by the hour.
The CHAIRMAN. Well, you know, the pay raise question mines up

periodically in the Senate, and I have always said that I do not
want a pay raise; I just want overtime.

You may proceed, please.

STATEMENT OF JAMES HOVARI). INVESTIGATIVE JOURNALIST
Mr. Boy Atm I am Jim Bovard. I am an investigative journalist. I

have written for Reader's Digest. Wall Street Journal, New York
Times, and other publications. Last year. I did an article for Herit
age Foundation, entitled, "Feeding Everybody" on Federal food as-
sistance programs.

Today. I will focus my comments on the child nutrition pro-
grams. In the past three decades, the Federal Government has
piled one food assistance program on top of another. Right now, we
have 1:i separate food assistance programs, including 10 for chil-
dren. Yet, there has been little or no effort to determine each pro-
gram's nutritional impact, and weigh them against the costs to tax
payers.

Federal 14041 programs now routinely pay for five meals per child
per day, and a family of four can participate in up to seven differ-
ent programs. Congress seems to have assumed that the more Gov-
ernment spends on food, the better people 'ill eat. But USDA die-
tars surveys show little improvement in lower income diets since

School lunches are one of the largest and most popular food as
sistance programs. The National School Lunch Program receives :f;:i
billion a year to provide one-third of the RDA of vitamins and on-

7 U
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t rients for Sehookthildrer. The General Accounting Office has re-
peatedly pointed out that the Government's lunches do not even
meet the Government standards. In 1977, GAO noted, "The ab-
sence of any indication that the program is having a benefit upon
the health of either needy or nonneedy children raises questions
about the nutritional value of the lunch."

In 1975, GAO reported that lab tests found that a random sample
of school lunches were significantly short in as many as S of the 13
nutrients tested. Separate tests in New York showed that. at least
40 percent of the lunches did not meet USDA requirements as to
quantities served.

In a 19S1 followup, GM) concluded, "All types of lunches fell
short of providing the recommended levels of as many as 7 of 14
nutrients tested, some to a serious extent."

The Congressional Budget Office noted in l9$0, "The nutritional
status of children who participate only in the National School
Lunch Program does not appear to be better than that of the non-
participating children."

Some studies have found benefits from school lunches. but it is
amazing that after almost 40 years, there is no consensus that this
program has improved diets.

Nor has the' school breakfast proved its value. The American
(Journal of Public Health reported in 197S that only two studies of
the School Breakfast Program have reported beneficial effects; five
others had found no difference.

A recent USDA study found that school breakfasts have lower vi-
tamin Bel, vitamin A and iron than breakfasts children eat else-
where

Much of the problem with child nutrition programs, as with food
assistance in general, is that Government spending tends to replace
money people would spend on fixed anyway. The School Lunch Pro-
gram pays 23 cents for every paid lunch, no matter if a kid's par-
ents are millionaire's, Likewise, with the School Breakfast Pro-
gram Middle-class kids get 9 cents off their breakfast when they
eat at school, thanks to Uncle Sam.

The rationale for these' subsidies is that the Government cannot
afford to feed the poor unless Government also pays to feed the
middle class and rich. Hut there has ti, be a better way. a more
cot efficient way, to run the program.

But. only 10 percent of those getting sch, breakfasts come from
families with incline above 185 percent of poverty level. The Gov-
ernment subsidy for middle-class breakfasts results only in Govern-
ment feeding more kids arid parents feeding fewer.

N:(ir is there a good excuse for Government paying for middle-
lass lunches. Congress should abolish the paid lunch subsidy and

tor,- school lon-h programs to survive on their own merits. If it
turn,- out that hools cannot feed the poor without Government
paying lo feed the rich. then a general administrative subsidy can
he given to schools according to their need. This would be as Wee-
1 1%1' anel much cheaper than the current system The purpose of

rogram should he to improve diets, not for Government to
iced as many people as possible by hook or crook

Th, this care bowie providers program is another example of a
ti,dint; prt..gram gone haywire. In 197,N, Congress abolished the

of
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means test for recipients of free meals at such facilities. By 1982,
enrollment had skyrocketed over fivefold. According to a USDA In-
spector General audit, only 14 percent of children in such centers
had incomes below 130 percent of poverty level; 71 percent of the
children enrolled came from families with incomes above 185 per-
cent of poverty. The result is that Government spends another $10()
million feeding those who would feed themselves anyway.

And, even for low-income children, most of their families already
receive food stamps, which is supposed to pay for three meals a day
per person. How many times should Government pay for the same
meal?

One solution would be to abolish Federal funding for all the
lunch, breakfast, and other feeding programs and allow food
stumps to be redeemed for school and day care center meals. This
would ensure that poor kids would still have access to free meals
and would end the need for 10 programs to achieve one goal.

Dr. Jean Mayer said in 1982, "If everybody who needs food
stamps got them, the kids would go to school with a thermos bottle
of milk and a sandwich." But since every family with incomes
below 130 percent of poverty can already get food stamps, the need
for more Federal feeding programs is questionable.

If the problem is that food stamps are inadequatewhich I do
not think sothen the food stamp allotment should be increased.
But it makes no sense to have so many programs, all supposed to
he doing the same thing, with no coordination and pervasive dupli-
cation.

The ultimate question in judging all these programs is how have
we managed to spend so much money, yet have so little to show for
it? Food assistance spending for the poor has increased a hundred-
fold since 1955. Yet, USDA dietary surveys show little or no im-
provement in the diet of the average poor person. In the nutrient
the' poor lack mostcalciumthe poor consume less now than they
did 30 years ago. Part of the reason there has been little improve-
ment is that three-quarters of the poor already had adequate diets
in 1955before Government decided they could not feed them-
selves. Since then, the major industry has developed a hunger hys-
teria, with hundreds of press releases a year.

All these programs were supposed to combat hunger, but the av-
erage poor person consumes 10 percent fewer calories now than the
poor did then. In some ways, the diets are better, and in some
ways, they are worse, but there has been no unquestionable im-
provement.

Much of the good that food programs might have done has been
counterbalanced by Federal agriculture policies that drive up the
price' of milk, peanuts, corn, and other staples.

We need to judge these programs by their results, not their in
tentions. And, by that measure, all of our food programs need to be
overhauled.

The CHAIRMAN Thank vou. sir
Ms. Blank?
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STATEMENT OF HELEN BLANK. DIRECTOR. CHILD CARE AND
FAMILY SUPPORT. CHILDREN'S DEFENSE FUND. REPRESENT-
ING CHILD NUTRITION FORUM

Bi.ssia. This isn't related to CCFP, but we at CDF are proud
that we do not have the worms that they found in Mississippi and
in Harlem 10 years ago, and we feel that many of the food pro-
grams have worked, and we see many children able to learn in
school, and bright-eyed, who were sick and hungry beforea differ-
ent point of view.

Let me talk about CCFP, because we feel we have a child care
crisis in this country, and we are anxious that the Agriculture
Committee not act precipitously, because we feel It has a very big
responsibility.

Before I get to the meat of my testimony,' I would just like to
address several of the points raised by the witnesses earlier this
morning.

First of all, we are also proud and feel good because CCFP as a
program has worked, and it has worked well. The Abt study talks
about the benefits of the program to centers, and then it talks
about the benefits of the in family day care homes.
"Equally striking," it says, "Mindingfinding that participating family
day care homes also serve meals of nutritional quality,
and that these meals generally contain of higher quality and
variety than those served by nonparticipa centers."

iThirteen child nutrition directors in the ortlwast region did a
study on the child care food in family day care, and they
also found that the quality an quantities of food served in day
care homes improved with their participation in CCFP, because of
the funding for food, and because of an increase in the availability
of good nutrition information thst comes with the program. This
knowlede becomes twice as important, when you realise that the
information is often passed on to the parents of the children, be-
cause of the close relationship and contact that is possible in family
day care.

I would also like to point out that this is not a program of unpar-
alleled growth. This m's growth has leveled off since the
means test was 1 t was only 3 percent of total program
growth between 1982 and 1983. The rates in this program do not
cover the full cost of food for providers. The Abt study found that
37 percent of providers' food costs must come out of their own
pockets.

There was some confusion about the percentage of family day
care homes that participate in the program. Most children in this
country are in family day care. Family day care is a very impor-
tant part of our child care system. It provides a very good use of
care for children of parents who do not like more formal institu-
tional settings. Only about one-quarter of the children who partici-

. pate are in family day care. The rest are in day care centers. The
for-profit centers are only a small percentage of the total program.
They were allowed in in 1981, in an amendment offered by .Mr.
Ashbrook.

itier p 17o for thr prepared otatvawnt of Ma Blank
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The administrative rates far its sponsors are not $50 for all
homes; they are $50 for sponsors who serve a small number of
homes, and they go down to $26 a home. `Family day care
are not all women who earn above the mipimum wage. . - are
women who earn very low solaria* 87 percent of family day care
providers earn below the Minimum wage.

What is amazing in this country is that child care is sultddized
by woven, by low-income women. Two out of three center-based
care givers earn held* poverty level and family day care providers
earn even less.

There was a sugiptitial in early testinKonY that if providers were
not mbking ends meet that they had other choicesthey could
raise rates. Let us look at the average Income of families in family
day care. There are a number of studies that shed different light
on the Abt study conclusion.

The national day care home study found that the average income
of families was $12,000 to $15,000. We have strong reason to believe
that family day care is a system used by hind-working =. The
same study that found that CCFP was working so in the
Northeast also found that 69 percent of the parents in family day
care were from blue collar, working class families, and that 40 pets
cent were from single families.

Another alternative for these woven was they could work a
second shift. Family day care providersand I think that the dher
witnesses would agneeperform a marvelous service. They work 12
to 14 hours a day, with no relief. Very few are connected to a
system, and that is why CCFP is so important. There is very little
time to do a second shift.

There was another insinuation about how wealthy dual-income
families were. Let me point out that women who work i.t this coun-
try work because they have to; 51 = .=, t of women who work
have insibiuxhi that earn under $15,111, 78 percent have husbands
who earn under $20,000. The avenge single mother was far worse
of in 1981, she earned less than $10,000.

and some training some nicesitoridt"
CCFP does improve the4quality a care. Every study

with this. It does . so
training and .1 1 very important, because in this country,
we have vet', few supports to child care. We do not have training
moneythat was wiped out in 1981and the contact froin the
CCFP sponsor is very important. The national day care home study
concluded that day care systems such as the ones spurred by the
food programs should be promoted because they so much improve
the quality of care. And again, the CCFP is meeting its goal of pro-
viding nutritious meals to children in child care.

We do have a child care crisis in this country, and we would urge
that any changes made in the food look at this crisis. Just
across the street now, the Select mittee for Children, Youth,
and Families, on a bipartisan basisMr. Marriott was an equal
sponsor of this focus on child careis holding its first hearing on
tine need to do something about the child care situation in this
country. The demographics have run away with us, and unlike
other industrialized nations, we do not have a system in place to
adequately take care of our children.
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CCFP is ironically the second source of direct support for
child care. We know this is the re Committee, and we
know that you deal with food if we are honest and
we look closely, all we have is the title XX social services block
grantand a small and shrinkinfl piece of thatand the food prc.
gram, and the day care tax credit, which is available to all fir.ni-
lies, but does not provide the targeted assistance that direct turf-
ices do.

As I said, withers are working because they have to, and the
lack of child care is keeping other mothers in poverty. In a rement
Census Bureau survey, it found that 45 t of single mothers
and 36 percent of low- income women work if child care were
available. Family day care is a critical piece of that child care
system. As I pointed out, and other witnesses pointed out, it cares
for over 50 percent of our children.

Family day care cogs are usually lower than center-based costs.
Child care can run from $1,200 to over $5,000 in this country. I
found a cab driver the other night whose wife was having trouble
starting up a family day care business in Falls Church. He told me
her rates were low. I said, "What are her low rates?" He said, "$65
dollars a week. Her neighbors are charging $100."

If we look at what the average family earns and the average
woman earns, and the cost of care, we have got a problem on our
hands. Family day care providers, as I said, work odd hours, and"
they can accommodate lower income women and working class
women who work on different shifts.

A provider in Louisville, KY, testified before the Education and
Labor Committee and told about a nurse who had to work a split
shift at night and then a split shift in the mornim. It was only
family day care that enabled her to work and enabled her to get
her job, and now she earns $10 an hour.

Northeast family day care study also showed that family day
care has enabled those blue collar workers who work to move out
of poverty.

We feel that it is important to help families so that they can
become self-sufficient and not to cut them off when they still need
help, that that is a good use of money to enable them to make it
and to be taxpaying citizens.

CCFP has played a vital role in improving family day care and
making it more accessible. Again, this country has very few child
care supports. It has been shown that if you have some system,
someone to help the family day care provider if she is sick, if she
cannot take care of her children, if she needs a day off to go and
get some equipment, if she needs health insurancethese women
work without health coverage for themselves or for their chil-
drenor if she needs liability insurance, that being connected to a
system helps. Well, the child care food program umbrella sponsors
provide the bulk of those systems, because there are so few other
systems. Most family day care is below ground. CCFP has been the
single most important factor in moving family day car., above
ground. Being above ground is important, not only to the provider.
When she is above ground, she pays taxes, and she earns credits
toward her own Social Security, so she will not be dependent on
welfare in her retirement years. It is important to parents, because

0 H4 - Fr 81



78

an information and referral program cannot refer you to a family
day care provider Who is not licensed or registered. It is important
to children, because if day care is above ground, it gets a
little monitoring and a little from umbrella sponsor. And it IR
the food program that every care professknud in this country
and every perms working In the field frays has been the single
most important factor in encouraging homes to become Ikensed
and registered. And I think that we do want to know where our
children are during the day.

We know that times are tight. but we would argue that this is an
ins ate time, given the limited Federal resources targeted to
ariM care, to direct. and care help. to cut any thing. And we at
OW have a point of view. We agree strongly with Mr. Matz, that it
is not wrong for the Federal Government to provide some nutrition
benefits that are nonmeruns tested; that it is a good use of our
money, and it is a good use to support a child care system and to
su low-income women who are providers themselves.

e, of course, have our examples. If we doubled the liquor tax at
$10.50 g;allon, which has not been raised awe 1951, we could
raise $3.5 billion. If the military_ sent nomnssential messages by
mail rather than teletype, we could save $20 million. We know that
nonworking women need help, tomiThe Finance Committee just ex-
panded the spousal IRA so hkglier humus women can put more
toward their retirement That may be fair, because we should after
supports to women who do not as well as to women who

But I think we have to look y at the whole picture and
at the fact that we are su higher income women
the spousal IRA. So we have to about
and not go after the means test in s And million, we
feel, is a very small amount to help providers; to help children, and
to help parents, and we urge you to think carefully about making
anIThachgges in the food program at this point in time.

you.
The CHAIRMAN. Thank you very much.
[The following material was subsequently received for the

record:]
ADDITIONAL QUIDITIONS SUOSIITIKD TO HELEN BLANK WV SENATOM AMR HUMS AND

Answees name
Queshon J. You stated that the growth in day care homes has leveled off since the

means to was lifted. and that Prallraal growth was 3 percent between 1982 and
1981 However, latest figures hem the Department of Agriculture (for December,
19K1) indicate that the number of meals served In day care homes is up 16.4 percent
over a year earlier, and that expenditures fiir such meals are up 21 percent over a
year earlier. As such, it continues to be the fastest growing food assistance program.
On what basis do you make your claim that the growth in the program is "leveling
ale"?

Answer 1. In private conversations with Department of Agriculture officials, it
was indicated that program growth was leveling off. There was a smaller percentage
increase in program growth in 1 versus 1961 and 1980. It is also important to
note that expenditure figures include a fader for inflation. In December V.P41, aver-
age daily attendance was 217,200. In March 1983. it bad grown only to 269,000 while
in March of 1984 it reached 902,751. These figures do not represent an extraordi-
nary increase in participation. It is impossible to examine program growth without
considering the surge al' mothers who have entered the labor farce in the pest
twenty years. Child care is an extremely important and growing need in this coun-
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try. Fifty eight percent of mothers of three to five year aids are now in the labor
force. 8.7 million children under age six currently have mothers in the labor force.

Familiy day care accounts for more than 50 t of all of our home care. How-
ever. 750,000 children who participate in the , Care Food Program are enrolled
in centers while only 250,00kare in family day care homes. Thus, day care homes
account for only about a thinfof all CUP funding.

Only about permit of the about 1.14 million child care homes participated in
OCFP last year. It is difficult to see participation of family day care expanding tag-
nificantly since only about 10 to 30 Percent of these homes are now
Future genvtit of family day care Participation is likely to remain small. EiMulahonie
must be licensed or approved by a government agency. The majority of homes are
unregulated. Disarray in licensing offices because of significant cutbacks in staff
over the last several years will make it very difficult for additional homes to even
obtain approval for licensing or registration.

Question 'Z. I behove that one of the discrepancies in the income levels of families
served by day care homey may be due to the different date of the studies being used.
The National Day Care Home Study to which you referred was published in Sep-
tember 1981, but examined day care homes during an earlier time period. The Sep-
tember 3:1, 198.2. OIG relent on Quality Child Care, one of the lamest family day
care homes sponsors in the Nation, was based on participation in September 1981.
The report prepared for the Department of Agriculture by Abt Associated (pub-
lished August 2. 1982) esamined clay care home participation in January 1982.

The latter report concluded "The most important factor explaining the recent'
growth of the (day care home) program is the ability of sponsors to recruit homes
serving middle-income children. . . . Prior to (eliminating income-based reimburse-
ment rates) only 32 percent of the children served in participating family day care
homes were in the paid income eligibility category.,.by January 1982. more than 60
percent of these children were in the paid category.'

Do you have any nationally representative statistics on current participation in
v care homes which would contradict the findings in these two reports?
knower 2. Unlike the Abt Study and the OIG Study, the National Day Care Hume
ly is a national' representative study. The O1G Study only included homes

ted by Quality Child Care. A recent survey of OCFP sponsors in the Northeast
region carried out by the Connecticut Department of Education found that 69 per
cent of the parents using the day care homes participating in the Child Care loud
Program in the region held blue-collar or unskilled jobs and that 40 percent repro
rented one parent families, Furthermore the report stated: -The availability of
CCEP funds has enabled many providers to remain in operation and to k their
fees at an affordable level. The accessibility of affordable day care has freed many
families from low-income status.

Question For the record, I think it important to note that all of the figures used
in your testimony regarding salaries of those sending their children to day care
homes, providers. and average day care costs represent figures which are new at
least three or four years old. Doesn't this lead to misinterpretation of the current
situation with regard to day care homes?

Answer 3 Since the period meetioned in the question, while inflation has mender
ated, public support for centers and home has been cut There is no reason to he
lieve from any expert in the field of child care that salaries of child care workers
have increased to alter the data presented in the April .1 testimony A reimburse
nient rate tart for centers and homes representing Title XX funded programs be
twerit 19S1 alid 1953 which indicates little increase in rates is enclosed. In addition.
a survey done of well over 1(5) Family Day Care Associations indicates that proval
ere do not raise rates on an annual itasis once they have begun to serve a family
There is no misrepresentation in the statistics presented on salaries of child car
workers They continue to earn extremely tow Wages

; Arr you aware that reintroduction of a means test. as provided in S
would actually increase the reintharsements made on behalf of poor children

from families with incomes below 13(t percent of poverty.' Day care home pro vin:
serving the poor would actually receive increased Federal assi:aance, only those pro .
viders serving children well above the poverty line would receive a reduction in Fed
eral rimhursements If the 1111101Mr of those parents sending children to day c3re

would you appris a means test, which would increase Federal reimburse
merits for children from the (MOM needy

Answer I The administrative costs to sponsors would r significantly with is
means test In addition. tin' fear of spw:sors that providers would have difficu!ty
keeping accurate records would deter sponsor participation S 1991 makes no pro.;
sum for increased nrittlfrustrsittv costs to sheenier'. The complex cliff, of f
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imbursement levels in a small home would deter many providers from participating.
When they drop out. the low-income children they serve would receive no benefits
from CCFP.

The food program may be the sole reason that providers serving children of di-
verse income levels are licensed or registered. If they drop out of the program and
go undergro.ind again low-income children are denied the program's benefits.

Finally a discriminatory situation would result when a provider managed to stay
in the program and sonw children brought their own food (because the provider is
unlikely to be able to raise rates to cover the additional cost& and others in a small
setting participated in the Child Care Food Program. Nancy van Domelen. repre-
senting the Child Care Food Program Sponsors Forum summarized the negative
consequences of a means test in testimony delivered before the Agriculture Cmmit-
tee in March of !1S The reinstatement of income eligibility criteria could bring
about a sharp reeuction in provider participation in the Child Care Food Program
which would raise the level of administrative coat, decrease the economies of scale.
and force many sponsors to drop out of the Child Care Food Program. Those spon-
sors that remain in the program will experience with: dramatically in-
creased paperwork from income documentation. di amities with recruitment of low-
income children. confidentiality complications involving providers who resist gather-
ing income information from parents, and possible discrimination against middle
And high income children in the offering of available slots for child ere.

Question .; Do you have any evidence to support your contention that return to a
means test will result in day care home providers fin the child care food program,
actually discontinuing day care? Those providers that serve primarily nonpoor chil-
dren may decide that reduced Federal reimbursement no longer make participation
in the child care food program worthwhile, but what makes you suggest they would
discontinue differing child care altogether' Additionally, are you aware that national
pdirticipation in the child care food program by day care homes increased even
during the earlier period in which the means test was in effect?

Answer Nationally, participation in the Child ('are Food Program by family
dia% care providers grew more rapidly when the program was first open to family
dfas (-lire homes because it was moving from a zero base of participation, In addition.
the child cure system was in a stronger position. Title XX training monies were

midi licensing agencies were not esperiencirat cutbacks.
The grewth in fariolv day care participation over the past five years in ('('F1' has

re.ulted in main! pro. ide t 1asdiming licensed or registered and thus more accessible
f,, parents Information and Referral Programs cannot even refer parents to unregu

ppo..iders
/Kt-millers dropped (no of partwipittIng in the food program. they would no

ti.i%d thy impetus of il'EP to remain licensed Furthermon., the current die:
arca,. Itlices would act as a further inipetus to force them underground
I ht. %,,tt 1,1 MA 10- t t .4IIC*.!. tlIteerSithif to ninny children and families
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The CHAIRMAN. I have got to go and preside over the Steering
Committee.

Tom, what I want you to do is to take Mr. Cooney's testimony,
and then, to the extent that t > 4e others who have testified this
morning, I think the most beneficial thing I can imagine is to just
have a discussion of the various points of viewall of you are per-
suasive. But if you have the time to do it, just, come back to the
table after this gentleman's testimony, and Tom, you serve as the
catalyst, and let's just pick their brains, because we have got some
good brains in this room this morning.

Mr. COONEY. TOED said there are some cots in the back, so we
might be here a while.

Ciimarami. That will be fine. But I do appreciate all of the
witnesses this morning, and I am sorry that more members of the
committee were not here, but we all do a lot of reading of the testi-
mony of hearings we are not able to attend, and those who have
been connected with this body understand how that works. But I do
want you to know that, personally and as a Senator, I appreciate
your coming.

So, Tom, if you will take over and get this roundrobin going here,
I would appreciate it.

Thank you very much.
Mr. COONEY. Thank you, Mr. Boney.
Despite some ugly rumors to the contrary, advocates do not get

paid by the word, so I am going to try to make this brief.
I do have a statement for the record, which I trust will be incor-

porated.'
Mr. BoNicv. Yes.

STATEMENT OF EDWARD COONEY, REPRESENTING CHILD
NUTRITION FORUM

Mr. COONEY. I would like to thank Senator Helms and Senator
Huddleston for the opportunity of presenting this testimony. Helen
and I are testifying on behalf of the Child Nutrition Forum Steer-
ing Committee. I think many members are aware of the committee,
but the purpose of this particular group is to embrace the chief ob-
jectives of the National School Lunch Act and the Child Nutrition
Act, which is to safeguard the health and well-being of the Nation's
children and to encourage the domestic consumption of nutritious
agricultural products and foods.

The Forum believes that these objectives will best be achieved
through :he adequate funding of these programs authorized by
these two laws, and we oppose any attempt to reduce Federal sup-
port for them.

We have at times been viewed as critics of the administration's
policies, and that has been true of all of the administrations since
1970 when FRAC, as an individual group, was formed, and I would
like to speak a little bit to that.

But we do have an area in which we do agree on some policies,
and I thought that perhaps you could share this with Senator
helms It is a book called, "Doing More With Less.- It was pro-

New. p I 6,t Ow. preparrd fstatelrietit td Mr Comey
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duced by the Child Nutrition Forum, and while it acknowledges
that there is a vital and necessary Federal role, it also acknowl-
edges that the quality of school lunch can be maintained by taking
some innovative steps to reduce costs. It also recognizes that the
private sector can provide additional and valuable assistance to
school food authorities, and that we can build do new and innova-
tive ideas without getting involved in Presidential politics.

We got a grant from the Foundation for Child Development and
the Rockefeller Foundation, to involve school food authorities, di-
rectors, administrators, advocates, members of public and private
industry to come up with these suggestions. We locked these folks
up in a room for 48 hours, had a sten rapher, wrote a book, and
distributed it to 15,000 local school f authorities at no charge.
Aetna Life Insurance Co., thankfully, gave us the funds to produce
the book, in terms of printing. We think it is a cooperative effort.
USDA, not ortly nationally, but in their regional office in New Eng-
land, provided us with invaluable assistance, both in terms of time
and material and so forth, and we credit them for those efforts in
the book.

We hope that the Department and other agencies will benefit
from it.

We do have some areas of specific legislative concern. One of
those areas is the School Breakfast Program. And, as the lady from
Texas indicated, we also feel that there is a need to improve the
quality of the School Breakfast Program. There was a mention ear-
lier today about the national evaluation of school nutrition meals,
and in that particular study, they do make a recommendation that
the meal pattern of the School Breakfast Program be improved.

I know the administration would like to target benefits to the
needy. and if that is their desire, certainly. the School Breakfast
Program is one area where they should look. Almost 00 percent of
the children in that program get a free or reduced-price meal.

It is also true that the Government Accounting Office has in the
past found that school breakfast reimbursements were, in fact, in-
adequate. What we are recommending is an across -the- board, 6
cent increase', so that we can provide not only protein, but a wider
variety of fruits and grains. While that does not mean to say that
some' of the school lunch directors are not providing a dynamite
breakfast right now, as was indicated in the Texas testimony, if
you take' a look at Texas, there is a State that has a State' law that
says that if you have it) percent or more of your kids getting a free'
or reduced-price breakfast, you have to provide breakfast to all
children it is a State rights issue. What we would like to do is to
improve the' meal pattern for those' schools. Texas brought in &OM
..hook in 1 year into the' breakfast program. We are very proud of
the. efforts of not only the State education agency in that area. but
also the' local school lunch two!, e.

There are a number of different studies that impact on the
Schad{ Lunch and Breakfast Programs that sort of give' you a
flavor of how valuable. sttme of these programs are' Mr Mat/ re-
ferred to the national evaluation before. which talked about stu
dents who do participate in the' Sch(s.l Lunch Pi ogratn. in fact, do
have higher intake's of energy and more nutrients. But the' study
ako indicates that. "ft is worth noting that many of the nutrients
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for which school lunch participants show superior intakesfor ex-
ample, vitamins A, B6, calcium and magnesiumare also ones that
typically are deficient in the diet of the school-age population." So
without a School Lunch Program, you would not be getting those
nutrients.

It is also true that the School Breakfast has had a
fairly dramatic impact on children's lives. Barry in, from the
State of North Carolina, the University of North . had a
study which USDA funded, which concluded that

Participat he in the school lunch and echotd breakfast programs is associated with
improvements in nutrient intakes fr equently found to be under-consumed by chil-
dren of school age.

His analysis provided strong evidence that participation is associ-
ated with increases in nutrient intake for some of the most needed
nutrients, like the ones that I have pointed out. Mr. Bovard indi-
cated earlier in his testimony that the General Accounting Office
in 1977 pointed out that you need to take g look at the nutritional
value of the School Lunch Program. That is true. That has hap-
pened. The National Evaluation of School Nutrition Meals is a $4
million, 4-year, study, a nationally representative sample, which,
frankly, came out of Senate Resolution 90 and some of the GAO
findings, and it found that the children benefited from school
lunch. They found it to be a superior meal.

I want to point out some of that, because I think it is helpful,
particularly if you want to focus on low-income, and as other parts
of the bill do, on the working poor, that you should take a look at
the School Breakfast Program.

There are some other general comments that I would like to
make about school lunch: There has been a lot in the press recent-
ly about are there too many programs, is it a situation where you
have 10 child nutrition programs and are people getting too many
benefits. Well. in the National Evaluation of School Nutrition
Meals, they took a look at that issue, and they found the follow
ingand I quote:

Bath the school lunch and breakfast programs function more as food supplemen-
tation than as ;MOM, supplementation programs. This is because in general. Feder-
al subsidy results in an increase in the value of food available to the family. rather
than an increase in discretionary income. Moreover. both programs are likely more
efficient than the provision of additional cash income in accomplishing foo:I supple
mentation goals.

Sc, I think the committee can take some credit for, over the
years, having chiid nutrition programs that are well-organized and
well-managed, and in fact, achieve the goals that the committee is
most interested in achieving.

There was another general comment that there is some concern
over caloric intake in these particular programs._--I- Id just
advise the committee to take a look at something more tha calo-
ries. The population as a wholeall people--are consumin less
calories these days. That may be due to a number of factors. B t it
is more important to take a look at the nutrients and the vitae ins
that people are consuming, not the calories.

If you take a look at the food consumption survey, they /lave
(Mild between 1965 and 1977, that there has been a signiticafit im-
provement in the diets of low-income people. That is part 44 the

90
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reason why we su ',it bills like S. 1913.1 know that there is some
disagreement in t areas, but in terms of the breakfast meal
pattern, in terms of additional meals for the Child Care Food Pro-
gram, we think that those are areas which you may want to look
at.

We are also concerned about a focus that the Department has no
nutrition education and training program, because we believe, with
people who have testified earlier on both sides of the aisle, whether
they be Republican or Democrat, and we do to the biparti-
san support that these programs have enjoyed. t the Department
has pointed out in the area of nutrition education that the chief or
sole goal was curriculum development, and since that has been
achieved, we do not need to take another look at what we are doing
in terms of nutrition education. We would submit that there are
really three other goals in the statute that are worth taking a look
at. You have a situation where nutrition education and training
program, also provide for nutrition education !(ot only to the kids,
but nutrition education for the teachers, and it also, according to
Kate Clancy, one of the past presidents of the Society of Nutrition
Education, the NET program not only teaches the concepts of food
as it relates to nutrition, but actually puts these concepts into prac-
tice in the lunch room. It does, in some senses, dovetail with some
of the concerns that Senator Helms has had in the past. He has
frequently indicated that he wants an expansion and an acknowl-
edgment of volunteers, people who stimulate, act as a catalyst, and
provide programs.

Here is a $.5 million program that reaches millions of kids, that
basically provides for a half-time State coordinator, and the in-
crease in fundswhich I know that Senator Dole is taking a took
at this program. and I know that Senator Huddleston is taking a
look at it. and certainly, Senator Helmsbut if the program were
funded at a $10 million level, that would provide one State level
full-time coordinator, and we think that would be a very good thing
to have.

I guess that suing up the areas where we sort of agree with the
administration. There are a few other areas, in which we disagree.
One is the recommendation that came forth recently in the Grace
Commission, which got a lot of play, and I know, Tom, you are fa-
miliar with it, and the members of the committee are, because they
have addressed it before. We are concerned about the issue of
whether or not you should count child nutrition program benefits
as income for the purposes of addressing food stamp eligibility. We
are opposed to it. And the reason is that this same national evalua-
tion of school nutrition mealsand this is a 4-year study which
carries the signature of the U.S. Department of Agriculturefound
that school lunches for low-income families, in fact, do not replace
other food. Food stamps are supplementary. And we are concerned
about an effort that is recommended by the Grace Commission that
would, in effect, take away $7 a month from food stamp house-
holds. We think the American School Food Service Association has
testified against this provision in the past, and the Senate Agricul
cure ('ommittee, in fact, has taken a vote on this issue under an
earlier proposal by the administration, which is different than this
one it would have subtracted $11) a month. But that was a vote on
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a bipartisan basis of 14 to 3, and the corept was rejected. We feel
that it was a bad idea, whose time has come and left.

We also have similar concerns on the issue of block grants. The
President's Task Force on Food Assistance has recommended a gen-
eral block grant which would eliminate national uniform eligibility
standards and set local benefit levels. We are concerned about this,
because we have talked to the people who are going to have to ad-
minister these programs. We have talked to the National Associa-
tion of Countieswhich, in general, supports the concept of block
grants; 1 believe that is their position. They do not support block
grants in the general area of income maintenance, and the reason
they feel that way is the same way the National Governors' Asso-
ciation, the U.S. Conference of Mayors, and so forth, and the school
lunch directors, as wellthe very people who are going to have to
administer these programs raise the concern that they feel that
there is a vital and necessary Federal role in terms of nutrition;
that we as a nation should recognize that what happened to us in
World War II, in terms of anemic 19-year-old males showing up
and being rejected, we do not want to have that happen again.
Since we are fortunate enough to be this close to Williamsburg,
and if we wanted to return to the colonial days, we could do it, be-
cause it is only a 2-hour drive. There is this concern of the national
role, and this is something that Mr. Bovard and other members of
the panelin our free-flowing discussionI think if we could get
someone of the caliber of Mr. Matz back to the table. I am sure we
could tackle this issue head on.

I had one final note. That is that Liz Cagan mentioned a concern
about the withdrawal of the USDA program administration. And.
Tom, I heard you address the American School Food Service Asso-
ciation. so I know that you are concerned about this issue. We
agree with the statement -and we have sympathy for the Depart-
ment of Agriculture, not only in this administration, but in past
administrationsthey do not want to administer these programs.
They do not feel it is in their vital interest. They feel that the
States should administer the program. We agree with them. How-
ever, if you do not have nny protections, like a requirement that
the States actually run these programs. you are going to run into
difficult ies. because there are 9 States which do not administer the
Child ('are Food Program; there are 17 States that do not adminis-
ter the Summer Fo(xi Program. There are hundreds of thousands of
children in those' program sponsors, and either the State adminis-
ter it. or the I.TSDA administers it. They have only got two
choices. The States have turned back the administration there.

You have a separate! problem, and I have outlined it in my testi-
rriurrS, died heir .tt t that sort of de 'ribs it fulls, but you
have the private school issue There are, as you know. some States
that, either by State constitution. State tatute. or State' 1)1)10', du
not administer funds that go to private' schools. And it may not be
realist I tic Viiptlt iii 'n to change their State. constitution to do
t hat

I raise these ;i tsmies that you in future hearings may want to
addres and that we. as interested groups that want children to be
fed. ;Is members of the committee do. we want to make sure that
the administratioe hurdles associated with thi. oroblem are :id



dressed and overcome prior to the time that USDA takes the
money and runs.

I guess that is basically it, except that we do agree with the
statement made by the American School Food Service Association,
that 70 to 80 percent of all the funds in S. 1918, which we strongly
endorse, go to the working -- people who have incomes between
130 percent of the poverty' line and 185 percent the poverty line.
And we as a nation, I think, should be committed to providing
those funds.

We do appreciate the fact that Senator Helms stayed here almost
through the whole testimony, knowing that he has other commit-

. ments. But I have been waiting for years for an opportunity to ad-
dress Mr. Boney, and this has been a break for me.

Thank you.
Mr. HONEY. Before we resume with the others at the table, per-

* h.aps if these panels have any discussion with each other.
Mr. COONEY. Well, there is one other point. Jim mentioned the

concern about school breakfasts, and he looked at the American
public health survey. If you are looking for impact, the actual, final
conclusion of that study was that the studies on school breakfast,
at least at that pointthis was 6 years ago, 1978the studies that
focused on this issue showed that the effects of hunger or morning
feeding suggest that the provision of breakfast may both benefit
the student emotionally and enhance his or her capacity to work
on school tasks.

So, while we are not going to agree on all the issues, we should
share the view that these studies do reflect and have reflected
rather consistently that they benefit children. I guess that is all we
have to say, and I am sure we can have some sort of roundtable
discussion on this.

Mr. BOYAR!). Ed, you mentioned that the nutrients were more
important than the calories, as far as the diet- -

Mr. COONEY. That is what my nutritionist and companion and
wife has just briefed me on. about 5 minutes agoI do not know.

Mr. BovAito. Yes, I fully agree on that; there is no question that
the nutrients are at the bottom line. The thing that concerns me is
that there has been so much talk about hunger being so wide-
spread. when in less-developed countries, the usual measure of
hunger is the per capita calorie intake. It is one thing to say these
programs are fighting hunger, and it is another thing to say they
are fighting nutrition. I can.xt see that any case can be made for
Federal programs fighting hunger, when the average poor person's
calorie consumption is down. So you can talk about nutrition, but
not about hunger.

Mr. CooNr.y. Well, we would have a disagreement with that. We
have a lot of studies, and people refer to them as "antidotal," and
many of them are. That is an accurate assessment of some of the
studies Others are not antidotal. The Hiirvard School of Public
Health. while maybe something is wrong with that institution. an-
t idotalism isn't One of them.

I was in Utah. I spent a week out there. It was the last place
that I thought that I would find a study on hunger. The Depart-
meat of social Services has just come out, on February 6, with a
study on hunger in Utah And it is increasing in certain areas, par-
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titularly among the elderly. That was the specific finding.

a
with you on the point that there is more evidence ntt:the studies need to be more scientific; that USDA and H

have to decide the 4r turf battle in the skywho is going to do
nutrition, how is it 4,: to be done, and how much money is going
to be spent.

And the Utah study does agree that you need more kinds of
things along that line. But they found that there is a significant
increase in their participation in the Food Stamp Program; their
WIC Program has expanded recently. And they have found that
over 10 percent of all elderly people who reside in Utah are
hungry. That is a specific finding. I mean, Utah is not generally
perceived to be in the forefront of liberal thoughtit may be. It
may be ahead of its time on this. But I just think you ought to look
at that stuff.

Mr. BOYAR!). Yes. I am not oaring there if! not any hunser here,
but I am saying that if we've stilt got h after increasing these
programs so many-fold, you have to r about the basic effec-
tiveness of the programs. I think in general, the programs tend to
replace money that people would spend on food, anyhow. There are
a lot of exceptions to that, but I think

Mr. COONEY. Well, the National Evaluation of School Nutrition
Meals, a $4 million USDA study, disagrees with you on that point,
and that is an important point. They say that that is not so, that
these programs do not, in fact, replace money that people would be
spending on other food.

Mr. Bovaan. There was another USDA study in 1982 on the
elderly cashing out the SSI recipient food stamps. And USDA
found that the elderly only spent 14 cents of each dollar in cash on
food. So in other words, there was very little food need, according
to that study.

Mr. COONEY. Well, I agree with your general point, and that is
why I gave the book to Tom, that we need to look not only at issues
relating to hunger, but we need to look at the quality of meals
being served. we need to look at are they being well-targeted, are
they serving the population in the ways that they are designed to
serve. However, i will point out that the programs have grown
partly because in 1963, you had very few counties in America even
having any food stamps at all. In 1967, when the often-quoted Field
Foundation went out, they found significant problems nutritional-
ly, and 1 years later, they came back, when those programs were
then in place. and they found that those problems were no longer
as significant. Today, you haveI do not knowI think 53 cents a
meal is your average food stamp benefit. If someone is overeating
at that level, 1 would like to meet them, and show them to the
folks that drive around in the Cadillacs and pick up the steaks, and
we will let the air out of their tires, and we will have these pro -
grams in better shape.

Mr. BOYAR!). Well, it is not really relevant to talk about the aver-
age food stamp benefit, because--

Mr. CoolvFv. It is, if you are the average guy getting the benefit.
Mr. KovAso. Oh. but the person is also supposed to supplement

that with their other income.
Mr. COONEY. Well. that is true.
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Mr. Bovilite. A person with ZINO income
Mr. Horny. Well, let's try to stay on child nutrition today, if we

can.
Mr. Comm. I always blow it when I get to food stamps.
Mr. Boner. Did you have sonsething you wanted to insert in

there?
Ms. BLANK. Well, it is a general statement, and it would relate to

food stamps and child nutrition. Eligibility 'standards for these
meals are i low. I used to work in food stamps, and I have not
for years, know they have cut hack on eligibility standards,
and when you earn $9,000 or $10,000 a year, and your rent is $300
CN' $400 a month and you have fso yottr children shoes or cloth-.
ing, and you probably do not have ImIth insurance, and you are
paying for that, if you are having any health coverage at all,
do not have too much to t your food stamp benefits. = I
thin

thk
you have to look at , people are stniggling with in terms

of eir basic
Mr. Bovsemb.= the cut off is $12,500.
Ms. BLANK. For a family of four, that is not a lot of money. If

you look atand we have done this, and I am not going to do it
todaybut if you took apart a budget, and you looked at what they
spent for rent, and yar looked at the increased coats of their utih-
ties, and if you lo*ed at their medical costs, I think you would
find that there wasn't a penny leftover for extra food. I mean,
think about raising two children on $12,000 in Washington or any-
where else in this couny.

Mr. Roney. If you dotrn't mind, let's try to stay more to child nu-
trition today. We will have plenty of time for food stamps at other
times.

Let me just ask you, Ed, in your prepared remarks, on the first
page, when you say that this Child Nutrition Forum that you're
representing today opposes any attempt to reduce Federal support
for the prtgrams, is "support" synonymous with "funding?"

Mr. Coosa y. Not necessarily. Your point is well-taken. We be-
lieve, and the statement should reflect, in well-managed, well-run
programs that provide the benefits. And if recommendations come
forth that the advocacy community, the child nutrition community,
whether we have bipartisan support for these positions, but we are
not goi- 7 to support something we cannot defend. This is probably
one least known facts in the world, but the chairman of the
board r own organization is a fairly well-known Republican at-
torney. I just share that with you to show that while we have been
hostile to some of the administration policiesand that may be a
generous word, on my partwe also do support things that they do
well. We think that that national evaluation of school nutrition
mealsthat spanned two administrations. Senate Resolution 90
came out of this committee. We are very pleased at thatand we
do not like everything in ityou know our position on income veri-
fication and so forth, and there is some stuff in there that we do
not like, but we thought it was a pretty good effort, and it has been
received fairly well, on both sides of the aisle and on both sides of
the Capitol.

I
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To answer your question, thoughTek If there are problems
with that are not being well-served, then we would not
say that ding is synonymous.

Mr. BOHM. Are there any areas in the child nutrition programs
before this committee, either up for reauthorization or otherwise,
where you have identified problems, inequities or whatever, where
changes would result in any reduced spending? Do you have any

ions?
r. COONEY. Well, we have identified some areas where inequi-

ties exist. For example, as Ms. Cagan pointed out, at Mr. Goodling's
recommendation, we had a tag team wrestling match over the issue
of private sponsors for the Summer Food Program, because where I
come fromI am originally from Connecticutand when I came to
the Food Research and Action Center, I started wo on that
program, and I found out that in certain areas, like Des IA
and New London, CT, we were not able to find school boards and
school food authorities that were enlightened enough to sponsor
the continuation of the school Lunch Program in the summer. And
there were problems with the private nonprofit spinuors, and they
were eliminated. So I went to talk to pw on the House side and
said, "Can't we do something about this inequity?" And we have
painfully, but mit finally, worked or t a scenario where you have
private nonprofits that self-prepare their meals, that are limited in
the number of students that they can serve, and that are limited in
the number of sites that they can participate inand Liz Cagan
would like, and we agree, that school food authorities and public
agencies should get a first shot at sponsoring it, but if they do not,
we want a mechanism in place so that local nonprofits who are
small and do self-prepare can take care of the 500,000 kids that we
lost. So that is one area we looked at.

Mr. BoNEir. That is an area you looked at, but the net result of
that would actually be an increase in spending. My question really
was are there any areas where the net result would be any reduc-
tion in spending?

Mr. COONEY. Not yet. But Laura Rice has been rather painfully
clear in her requests for us to do the same thing. We tend to be
better at finding

Mr. BONNY. Ways to increase spending.
Mr. COONEY [continuing]. Provisions that have modest increases,

rather than deep cuts.
Mr. BONER. That is a general condition that is often easier.
Let me ask the people to come back, then, if you wouldthe

ladies from Colorado, and Mrs. Smith and Ms. Brogdon and Ms.
Caganand we will have a little bit of a round-robin discussion.

Mr. CooNev. We agree with whatever Liz Cagan says.
Mr. BONE,. This is obviously much more informal, so any nerv-

ousness can be gone now.
Several of you brought out, and Marshall did, as well, in his tes-

timonyhe had to leavethe idea of increasing the reimburse-
ment for the breakfast program, and the assertion in both his and
in Ed's testimony is that it would be used to increase the nutrition-
al value of the meal. What is to ensure that that would be the
effect of such an increase? I mean, how can we be sure that 6 cents
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worth of increased protein or whatever will result from a 6-cent
breakfast reimbursement?

You can start.
Mr. Comm. I think that is something that we arewe, as a

community, and you as a committeehave to work out with the
Departmentment of Agriculture. They arc going to have to take a look,
and may come back with counterproposals to your committee,
as to how do you do it. In terms of the what the normal is, two
things have to happen. You have to pass a law, and the nt
has to sign it, and then has to &velap and implement regu-
lations which, in our n, should require a general improve-
ment. We had initially s. II out by saying why don't you have it
three times a week, improve the protein ,'uirement. Well, some
of the school lunch u. and smne of the better school lunch
programs, do that ready if breakfast. Some of them do, and we
acknowledge that.

It was suggested to us as an administrative matter that it might
be better to spread the 6 cents over 5 days, and then have a regula-
tion developed that not only provides protein, but that enhances
the possibility that a wider variety of whole grains, fruits, and
vegetables get provided. These things cost money. In our experi-
enceand the GAO has told usin many places, the breakfast re-
imbursement was not adequateand this study is 4 or 5 years old.

So, to answer your question, I think we all have to work with
USDA in the development of regulations which would require that
the money be spent in that fashion, and then we have to do it as
an individual school breakfast person, as an advocacy group work-
ing with parents and children, and as this committee and the De-
partmenttie- committee has oversight reaponstiAlities; we have
personal and .oral and programmatic responsibilities, and the De-
partment has capacities to monitor. We have to monitor that those
regtpations are implemented not orgy fairly, but accurately.

ms. CAGAN. Right now, in New York City, we have a mandated
4, breakfast program.

Mr. BONNY. You do have a mandated program, as well?
Ms. CAGAN. Yes. But when the State monitors come around right

now, one of the things they do is they visit the breakfast, the
lunch, and review the applications, and so forth. They list the
menu; they even go so far as to figure out, if you open x number of
cans of juice, if you happen to be serving juices, that it is sufficient
to meet the requirement as set. So that this would really not be
anything different. If they had this mandated that the extra money
go for the provision of the meat or meat alternate--I do not think
it is any additional burden or any new regulation, other than it
comes out and says, "from now on, these are the requirements."

Mr. BONNY. But my question, really, is how do we ensure that we
are going to get 6 cents more worth of nutrition than we are cur-
rently getting. Are we just going to pay 6 cents more for the same
status quo?

Mr. COONEY. We would be opposed to that.
Ms. BROGDON. Well, from the meal pattern; add it to the meal

pattern.
Ms. CAGAN. I like what Mr. Roney is sayinghow can you assure

that the t centsmaybe it will cost you 2 cents or 3 centshow
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can assure thlit the full 6 cents is going to be added to the
program?'

Mr. Bomar. That it is going to improvenot just sort of subsidise
existing levels, but that you are actually going to get 6 cents more
worth of some sort of food, Preferably Inetelm

Ms. CAGAN. Well, a comparison of the previous menus as com-
pared to the current moms is an obvious way.

Ms. ibtoonort. Then it could be monitored by the States.
Ms. CAGAN. Yes. I mean, they are easily monitored by the States.
ME. BROGDON. As Liz saysthey do that in Texas.1 y come in

and they measure the food, they see how many cans you have
opened, how many children you prepare for. They are constantly
monitoring to make sure that we are meeting the meal pattern re-
quirements. So if you add -4 now, it is just a recommemla-
tionif you, for instance, say, must serve one ounce of meat/
meat alternate on a daily basis,,, are going to have to do it.

Mr. Comm. So in other words, Department is to, after
the committee and expresses its will and the 'dent
signs this, hopefully, U:ii A will have to work this out.. What they
have done in the the Department has done this for
years, and we strongly recommend they do it againis get
people in. You know, you have two witnesses of the Na-
tion's leading experts on meal patterns is si in the back--you
get people in from the various communities, you talk to them,
and you develop a standard, and you work it out. But we want to
do what you are saying. We do not simply .want to increase the
meal reimbursement, although frankly, it would help States like
Texas. We had another amendment that did not quite make it on
either the House side or the Senate side, which would help States
like Texas, which are required by law, and there are several
Statesyou just happen to have two of them here, New York and
Texas; Tennessee just passed a new one, and there is pending legis-
lation in a number of other States --we want those States to auto-
matically qualify for the higher, severe need reimbursement rate,
just because of the

Ms. CAGAN. They did.
Mr. COONEY [continuing]. Well, they didthat is right. We

wanted that restored. But that is a separate issue. So that would be
a way of restoring benefits. This is different. We want kids to get
more fruits, more grains, more vegetables, and more protein. We do
not want the school lunch director holding tho bag for the cost of
that. That is why I think you saw the Texas Lssociation take the
position they did. If you remove the requirementor, if you put a
requirementgive us the money to do it. Don't give us a require-
ment without the money.

Ms. CAGAN. You always say sinnething that puts ins in mind of
some important thought. Another thing that must be put in the
legislation if it goes is that the States that are already sup-
port because of the mandated programOS in New York State, to
targeted groupsthat there be a caution that the States cannot
then remove their support because that would be doing exactly
what you fear might happen.

Mr. BONET. This is one of the crucial questions, I think.
44.
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Mr. COONEY. Yes. Maintenance of effort clause should be added,
and there are about 10 or 12 States in that area. I think that is a
real good suggestion.

Ms. CAGAN. Absolutely.
Mr. BONEY. One other question on the same subject, is why the

proposal for the breakfast has increased reimbursement for all the
categories. In other words, this comes to the question of the paying
category. Granted, that is a small percentage in the National
Breakfast Program, but still, when you add 6 cents, I think CBO
estimates it is like $4 million worth, just to that area. And granted,
$4 million in the scheme of things isn't that much, but I sort of like
the comment this morning that $100 is a lot of money to a lot of
people.

Ms. BRoonoN. I do not know why it is in there, either. It would
not bother me at all for it not to be in the paid category.

MS. CAGAN. I agree. It is interestingI have 84 percent free in
the lunch program. Of that 84 percent, my breakfast program--and
this has been consistent since the inception of the breakfast pro-
gramhas 98 percent free. There is leas than a statistical percent-
age on the paid. So I would go along with that. I do not think it
would have, really, any impact.

Ms. PARKER. Excuse me, if I may add something here.
Mr. BONNY. What is your name.
Ms. PARKER. Lynn Parker. I was a member of the advisory group

to the national evaluation that they are discussing, and that is why
I thought it would be OK to interrupt for a second. In terms of
adding this money onto the paid category, what the evaluation
found was that for all income levels, there was a difference be-
tween the breakfast eaten at home and the breakfast eaten in
school, in the calcium and magnesium levels, that the breakfast
eaten in school was better than the breakfast eaten elsewhere,
wherever that might be, whether it was a McDonald's or at the
candy store down the street or, at home; the breakfast at school
was superior in calcium and magnesium, and inferior in vitamin A,
B6, and iron. So in that sense, even for that small number of chil-
dren, that extra amount of money would make a difference in the
breakfasts for those children, too.

The other thing to remember is that it would be very difficult to
say to the kids as they walk through the line, "You are a paid
child, so we won't give you the extra whole wheat bread."

Mr. BONEY. No. We are talking about the reimbursement.
Ms. PARKER. Yes, but if the school has to produce meals for all

those children
Ms. CAGAN. Having been in my previous assignment, a budget di-

rector, in those areasI think nationally, it turns out that most of
the kids who participate in the breakfast program are either in the
free or reduced category.

Mr. BoNxy. That is right.
Ms. CAGAN. Because the number of paid kids are so minute,

when you prepare, you can absorb that in your preparation with-
out the need for that additional money.

Ms. PARKER. If you think that is soI just wanted to raise
that-

Ms. CAGAN. Yes. Budgetwise, and preparationwLsedon't you?
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MS. BROGOON. Oh, yes.
Ms. CAGAN. That ha all the time.
Ms. BROGOON. that, if you find there is a problem, you

raise it.
Ms. CAGAN. We were eligible for the especially needy, reimburse-

ment for all schools under the old mandate. When that was
changed, New York City had five schools which were no longer eli-
gible. And I knew that there was no way in the world that they
would accept the responsibility for more tax levy support.. So, in
order to avoid any problems, and since I am concerned with getting
the to the children, they did not even know they were not
e , because I am absorbing the costit is so ridiculously
small.

MR PARKER. Dug. wanted to make it clear`
Ms. CAGAN. Yes, but as I said, that would present 110 17rOblenl,

and definitely, you do not have two different meals. It is ,thatthat
when you are making x number of meals, it does not matter if you
have another 10 kids.

Mr. BOVARD. There is a question I have on your comment, Ms.
Parker. There was a study that showed that provided sup-
pers, and they were slightly better than what the parents provided.
Should schools go in the supper business? M=M the schools just
take over all feedingbecause that seems to be what we are drift-
ing toward.

Ms. PARKER. I do not think that is
Mr. BOVARD. Well, the whole idea of having a subsidy for paid

breakfast& That just does not---
Ms. PARKER. I mean, the fact is that there are many children

who go to school without breakfast now, and we know that children
learn better from the studies that we have been able to find, when
they have breakfast; even more recent studies now, at the Univer-
sity of Texas, that Pollit is doim., show that when kids do not have
breakfast in the morning, they do worse on schecil-tyPe tasks-

So my point is that in terms of looking at the whole educational
system, having a breakfast at school is very important, and in
terms of the logistics even, if you get down to the lvi issue of lo-
gistics, havin* a lunch program at school is very important, and
from a nutritional standpoint, it is clear from the national evalua-
tion that schocl lunch has an impact.

Ms. BLANK. And if we look at the growth in working parents
there are a lot of parents who are leaving at 6 or 7 in the morning,
and you have got to talk about how they are going to get some sup-
port.

Mr. BONEY. But I think my original question was the category of
the Paying student, above 185 percent of poverty, clearly of a
family of four, over $18,000 a year income, and whether it is time-
priate for the Federal Government to be increasing the subsidiza-
tion for that category in the breakfast program.

Ms. CAGAN. I think we are all generally agreed.
Mr. Bortsy. Well, I hear tins side sort of agreeing to it, but I do

not necessarily hear this side.
Mr. COONEY. I would suggest a compromise. Liz, and I think,

Susan, have a point of view, and I do not want to conflict with that.
But I think maybe you write a lot of questions in your business. I
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would suggest that you write a question to the American School
Food Service Association and get some sort of semiofficial response
from them on it. When we originally recommended the provision, it
was designed to impact on low-income children, but since the stat-
ute very clearly says that you are supposed to safeguard the health
and nutritional status of all children, and we tho'ight it would be
more convenient-1 mean, there is also this theme that we want to
be consistent through programsand not everybody is New York
City.

Ms. CAGAN. Here is Texas
Mr. COONEY. Here is Texas. That just proves the point.
Ms. BROGDON. Wait a minute. I only have five schools in my dis-

trict who participate.
Mr. COONEY. It is a different kind of scenario. There are schools

where this may be a problem, and I cannot tell you here today
and I do not want to, because I am not an expert-1 think you
ought to ask the experts that administer the programs, the Ameri-
can School Food Service Association.

Mr. BONET. We have two of their experts. That is why we wanted
to hear from two people--

Mr. COONEY. Well, if you stay here long enough, you are liable to
step in it--

Ms. CAGAN. However, it would be interestingI would concur
with you, Ed, on this, that if ASFSA would indeed get a question-
naire out to every, every EA, not just the ones that are members of
the association, because that is 17 States right out of the pic-
ture---

Mr. COONEY. That would be helpfulthat may cost more than
this provision, but I agree with you there.

Ms. CAGAN. The fact is that then we would have a representative
sampleand then you will find out that some areas might need it
and some not need it, and maybe that would help.

Mr. RONEY. Let me just hit on one more question while we are on
breakfast, that Ms. Brogdon brought up, that I am not sure you
commented on, and that was the offered versus served issue.

Ms. CAGAN. On breakfast?
Mr. RONEY. Yes.
Ms. CAGAN. Well, since I ignored the offer versus served option

does not mean I did not take it for the lunch. I think this, of
course, is ridiculous for the breakfast, and I will tell you why. I
talk about things that are cost effective. I told you earlier in my
testimony that everything is geared, in my mind, toward the integ-
rity of the nutritional programs. We have heard everybody talk
about the intent of the legislation. But nobody talks about the lac*
that USDA has not done things. Who says you have to serve juic
and milk? What is wrong with what we doserve fresh fruit. Yot
should not plan juice and then milk. It is interesting to note, how-
everand I can only talk for New Yorkthat when I read the tes-
timony of ASFSA and the findings of other people, that they talked
about the little children. We do have a problem in New York with
the high school kids, who want to not take all three items, because
they have had juice at homesome of them travel and 11A2 and 2
hours to get to some specialized high school. And we have never
had the problem with the young kids. So maybe again, that is a
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regional kind of problem. So it is very poseible that I might pick up
that option for the high schools. New York City mandated an all-
day kindergarten for all 5-year-o164. We have had some very inter-
esting experiences. We of course, set that as a priority for nutri-
tion education. We worked all summer ling in training the teach-
ers, and we have ongoing programs. We have not one item of
waste. The kids, we figure, have not yet learned that they are not
supposed to like vegetables, and they eat everything. 'They are our
best eaters. And what that has proven is what we said at the begin-
ning. You must start this kind of education, and teach children, to

I I 1. choices for good diets very early in life.
Mr. . And you all want it, as I understand it, really, more

for younger grades?
Ms. Bitoorm. We want it optional at a local levelfor any level.

Our kids have notand I think this is generally in Texas, from all
of our pollsthey do not like solid fruit, whether it be fresh or
canned, for breakfast. They want juice, the ones that want it. So
that puts us with a livid problem, with a small child. I think that
is good, but to us, it is a And if it were a local option,
then as you needed it, each district could pick it up and use it or
not use it.

Mr. BONET. Let's move to lunch here, or else we will be here for
too long. In the reduced-price category, both Marshall and Ed, I
guess, in their testimony had this chart of several school distress,
and the participation in reduced price. Of course, the GAO
that came out this week indicates nothing nearly as lugh as
on a national basis. There is some reduction in reduced price, but
most of the reduction really took place in the paid category. It
seemsat least, I gather, from both testimonies,--that the assump-
tion is that because this is such a problem, we need to lower the
meal price for reduced price back down to pre-1981 levels. I wanted
to especially ask the people who have the prograir s whether 40
cents is too much to be charging for a reduced -price lunch.

Ms. BROGDON. I do not think so. I think it is an adequate
amount. We lost a few when we raised the price. I think if you
drop it, that you are not going to gain that many. You may gain
some. But it is a question to us as to whether lowering the price
would not encourage more people who are ineligible to file for the
p m in the first place.

. CAGAN. You are an advocate of verification of 100 percent, so
what is the difference?

Ms. BSOGDON. Yes, we are, yes, we are.
Ms. CAGAN. You mentioned the report that you just said you

read, that talked about the fact of more paid kids.
Mr. HONEY. Yes.
Ms. CAGAN. Don't tie that up with the drop in reimbursement,

because what happened across this country, unfortunately, is that
many school systems ued their prices. New York State set a
maximum of what LEAS could charge, and they raised it terribly,
and they had a terrible, terrible drop in participation. So that
school systems on their own went back and lowetd the price, and
they got those paid kids back. I want to tell you what we found in
New York on that issue.
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I am also the appeals officer in New Yorkif any parent is
denied a benefitand when that change happened, I got a lot of
appeals, and based on the appeals, I found they had been eligible
the year before, but they did not realize that the income standards
had gone up. Sure enough, they had moved from the free category
into the reduced price. And that year, 100 percent of my appeals
were on the reduced category, and they said things that would
break your heart. They actually are telling me: "Here is my check
stub." Remember, they have to be juftrW for eligibility on gross
income. But they have to live on their net. And one woman who
wrote, a single parent, with two children, sent check stubs. As I
said, it was very sad. She said. "I must have a phone in case there
is an emergency." One day a week, she buys a quarter-pound of
chopped meat, from which she makes a sauce, for pasta. And she
told me what they eat every day. And then her firml sentence was,
"Where am I going to find the money to pay the extra money for
these two children."

Well, when I took a look at what the situation wasand as you
heard before, I am very fortunate in having a very cooperative and
very supportive board of education, and thank God, the mayor of
the city of New York, because in New York City, we are a depend-
ent school district, and all revenues get deposited at the city. They
agreed that we would hold the prices, and so local effort made up
the difference for that loss of reimbursement. So we were able to
maintain the level we had been at the year before. There is no
doubt, because the statistics in New York State as well as other
States show that that was in the reduced-price category more so
than in the paid, that in that first year who the drop-outs were and
are the ones that should be targeted for more help. Those are the
parents that are just making it.

Mr. BONNY. All right. But let me go back and get a shorthand
answer. I am not sure. I thought you were going different ways at
different times. Is 40 cents reasonable, then, the current price ceil-
ing?

Ms. AGAN. I would not object to that going back; I would not
object to the ASFSA position--

Mr. BONNY. Lowering it.
Ms. CAC:AN. We, as I said, are not involved-
Mr. BONEY. You have not had a problem.
Ms. CAGAN. No; we do not have that problem because of local

support.
Mr. ('ooNEY. Rut there are other places in the country. And if

you compare the average monthly participation in the year before
the cuts and the year after the cuts, you will find that there is a 3
million person difference. Participation in school lunch went from
26 million to 23 million. Now, Tom is right when he says that the
bulk of that was paid students, about 2 million children. However,
about 700,000 switched categories and got knocked out of reduced-
price meals, and about 300,000 kids were no longer in the reduced-
price meals. And those 3 million kids went someplace, but they did
not go into the School Lunch Program. So, what we are saying and
what that chartthe reason there is a similarity between the chart
that Marshall uses and the chart that I use is that I xeroxed his
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chart. But other than that, it is incidental. But you do find in those
areas a substantial problem.

There was a young lady from Mums who testified lwre, and in
her situation, she found that their city was sort of like New York, I
guess, in the sense that they did not have that need. But that has
not been the case in the rest of the country.

Mr. Boxer. But frankly, the responses we have had on the com-
mittee from individual areas have generally been much the same
as these ladies have outlined from their areaseither people
picked it up locally, as in New York, or they did not find it that
much of a problem.

Mr. COONEY. Well, they may not find it that much of a problem,
but the kids still are not in it.

Ms. CAGAN. Tom, I agree again. It is so hardand I said it in my
earlier testimonytopaint everybody with the same bread bri
across this country. We had to make a deeisionI must say that I
heard Frances McGowen from Oakland, CA, speak about a week or
so ago at a conference. They found that they had such a lose of
their reduced-price children that by doing other programs such as
catering and other that . can do that you can add a profit
on, and utilize that t to this group. There is such cre-
ativity going on, but unfortunately, not everyplace across this coun-
try has people like Frances or 1.11 like that, and those are the
ones that I think Ed is talking t. It would mean that they
cannot make a go of their program, or that those children, which
are part of the targeted group, have to drop out of the program.
And I definitely think that some consideration should be given to
this. How you word that, I do not know.

Mr. BONaY. Well, that is our problem.
ME. CAGAN. Yes, that is your problem.
Mr. BONET. Well, let me ask this, t ough, which is sort of the

basic question that Senator Helms was talking about, and we al-
-rady asked Ed and kind of struck out. But if the Congress is going
to make increases in some of these areas, either in breakfast or
some combination with reduced price, by increasing the reimburse-
ment and so forth, where, if anywhere, can we have reductions to
pay for thatif you start from the premise which, at least, Senator
Hems does, that we cannot have a net jtrowth in expenditures?

Ms. CAGAN. You are asking about $15U million
Mr. HONEY. Well, whichever part of itany suggestions would be

appreciated.
Me. CAGAN. You may not like my answer, but I am willing to go

on record in saying that without impact on the military outlay and
what they say they need, and also in line with Senator Helms and
the administration's feeling about waste and fraud. Let me give
you an example. Just take the price of what the military has paid
because of their poor contracts in the pastI know, because it has
been in all the newspapers. Do you know we can feed two kids
breakfast and lunch, year-around, free of charge, for that hammer
overcharge.

Now, I am willing to do a whole analysis on that, free of charge.
It has no impact on what the military needs in weapons. it has no
impact on what increases the administration wants for the mili-
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tary. And if I can identify all of the money that is necessary for
thiswould it be a deal?

Mr. BONEY. No, I am afraid not. The point is this
Ms. CAGAN. The money is there; it is being wasted on other

things, and everybody wants to ignore that.
Mr. BONET. N IO, do not think everybody wants to ignore it. We

sort of had this at another hearing, so I will be brief, or maybe it
was actually at ASFSA's meeting, whet. there were some questions.
And certainly, all the Senators on this committee and especially
those who are on the Armed Services Committee who have jurisdic-
tion over military spending, are very interested in eliminating all
of the abuses, notable and more secretive that may occur in mili-
tary spending. But in their capacity as members of this committee,
they are looking at programs within the Department of Agricul-
ture. So it is sort of what we always have, the question of every-
body pointing the other way and saying, "Well, cut him, because he
wastes money," and somebody else is panting over here. So what I
was really hoping to get from you is really dealing with the issue
within child nutrition.

Ms. CAGAN. I have discussed this with USDA over the years. We
rent space to many Head Start and Child Care Programs. They are
in our schools, tinder different regulations. Some child care pro-
grams had gotten massive allocations to put kitchens in, expensive
equipment, and so forth. But the point

Ms. BLANK. That is gone now.
Ms. CAGAN. I know it is gone. But the fact is that we now enter

into agreement, because they found that we can provide meals ac-
cording to the needs of those children and it costs them less than if
they were doing it themselves. My point to USDA and to the State
was that all children that may be based in a school should be eligi-
ble under the National Lunch Program.

The point I am making to USDA is that where the locality can
work it out, that two or more of these programs can sort of piggy-
back on each other, and that is where savings can occur because
we avoid duplication of effort and cost.

Ms. BLANK. I think that that is an interesting idea, and we
should be doing that. Only 10 percent of Head Start Programs are
in the public schools, and more in New York than in other places,
and very few other Child Care Programs are. It is not going to give
youfor example, we need $15 millionit will not give you any-
where near--

Ms. CAGAN. Well, but you know what they saya dollar, a
dollar, a dollar, and it adds up. If we are ring to be forced to say,
"Find your money or make recommendations," then even for that
10 percent, whatever it is, let it be applied back toward your $15
million. That is why I mean.

Mr. COONEY. Representative Bill Goodling has an amendment
that was incorporated on the House side and report language, as
well, that gives the sense of using the school as a nutrition center,
which Liz and other people have done; taking a look at how you
can maximize it for the community in terms of the elderly partici-

. pating and the commodities and so forth. We support all of those
efforts, and we just think that thay are terrific things to do, and we
hope that they will add up to enough money to encompass this.
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Mr. BONKY. Any surstions from Texas?
Ms. Iktoonos. Yes; have two, and they are in what we present-

ed. On the foods, don't tell me that a principal can serve a coke
outside my cafeteria door. We need the sale of those extra things,
not cokes, but additional foods. And let that be a local, let that be a
local. That is ping. to give us more flexibility in our

Mr. Boray. 1Well, you all want it local, but as I rebauddiCASFSA
testimony, they want a national ban.

Ms. Bnootion. We would not oppose that, as long as it iswe
would not oppose that, but we are offering another view of it, an-
other shot. If you cannot do thatwe understood USDA did not
want to do that, and so our feeling would be let the local people
handle it, let them have the control over the competitive kaki.

Another thing, offer versus served at breakfast in Texas would
help. OK. We have talked about a liquid problem. We can also talk
about eggs, and we do serve egp occasionally at breakfast, and we
have a lot of children who would prefer not to take them. So, any
one of the liquid components or the eggs, if they do not choose to
take that item, that is something we are not going to have to
pare. That gives us a little bit of flexibility, and we could put that
money, say, back into the meat/meat alternate requirement, which
most of them will take, the sausage and so on.
Mr. RONEY. Well, I am afraid I do not think we are up to the

$150 million.
Ms. BROGIKM. No, but it would help and make it so that the Fed-

eral Government would not have to fund the whole amount of the
meat/meat alternate.

Mr. RONEY. All 4ht. Let me go to just two more questions re-
garding the lunch. Ed, in your testimony, you have this issue on
the inkind benefits, whether the child nutrition benefit should be
counted as income for food stamps. What about the idea of it being
counted for income for tax purposes, and in particular, with regard
to this ASFSA idea of financing, basically, a universal free lunch?
Mr. COONKY. We basically do not support the concept of nutrition

Programs funding-1 mean, you give somebody nutrition, food be-
cause they have a problem and you say, "By the way, later, we are
going to declare it income."

We are opposed to it. We support the concept of universal free
lunch, and we support the dynamic leadership of ASFSA m this
issue, and would like to see how their financing works out, whether
they use the Hart three-martini lunch or the Matz four-martini
lunch, cutting in half. But we are opposed to counting nutrition
benefits as income.
Ms. BLANK. I think you also have to look at it in light of all the

other benefits that people get, the fringe benefits that are not cur-
rently counted as taxes, and you cannot just pick upI mean, we
are all talking about the fact that we need to restructure our whole
tax system, and it is really not timely to just pick out child nutri-
tion benefits at this point in time.

In addition, we agree with Edwe oppose it.
Ms. Bacxmost. I would hate to be responsible to the parents in

our district for saying, "We are going to send this in to IRS. This is
taxable income." And they are going to come back to us and say,
"December 3, Johnny didn't eat lunch. How come it is on here'?"
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You talk about an accounting problemnow, that would be one.
And I understand they are going for a pilot program. In my mind,
it is questionable whether it is worth a pilot program.

Ms. CAGAN. I am definitely opposed to it. But one of the reasons I
am o ." to it is that it is very discriminatory.

Mr. NW. Which? The accounting or
Ms. CAGAN. The ASFSAoh, I agree with that, completely. The

parents will come back and say, "You cannot bill me for a whole
year in taxes, when my kid was out this date and this date." The
burden of going back to these records is impossible.

But who pays taxes? You have got to realize that you are really
picking out one group that Is going to be poor as far as income
taxes. You can eliminate that higher one, because they have so
many shelters they do not pay anything, anyway. And you can
eliminate those who do not file.

Mr. BONE?. Well, this is the question, in my mind, on how it can
be a self-financing plan. I mean, if everyone were in the high-
income brackets, you would only have 50 percent of the costs recol-
ered, and the average is probably more like 10 percent, and the
universal free lunch idea, as I recall, costa about $3 billion or some-
thing, nationally.

Ms. CAGAN. I happen not to agree with that. We know what we
say, but statistics do not lie, but who makes statistics.

Case in point. The Summer Feeding Program is, in fact, a univer-
sal feeding program in those attendance areas. We have more than
a million kids in New York who are eligible under summer meals,
because it is from age zero through 18; whereas, in the school year,
you have it from 4 to 18.

Now, whereas in the whoal year, with that smaller coverage, we
are feeding about 500,000 kids a day. Here, you have in the
summer, peaking at about 118,000.

So, therefore, when people say, "Oh, every kid that exists in this
society is going to be running because we have universal feeding,"
that is nonsense, not a case, not a piece of data We have over
650.000 valid applications for free and reduced. Even taking into
account the best attendance record, not every kid who is in school
and is eligible comes to have lunch. There are times when there
has been a special meal in the home, or grandma has visited with a
care package, and the kid brings something--

Mr. BONE?. Your point is that the expense would not be that
great?

Ms. CAGAN. That is right. And I keep supporting a feasibility
study. anyplace in this countrybecause it is not right to assume
that every kid who is there is going to participate, because we find
that not happening.

Mr. Bosm. I am not certain but that estimate is already taking
that into account, at least, based on somebody's assumptions,
but--

Ms. CAGAN. I would like to know what the assumptions are, be-
cause I do not think they are valid.

Mr. BONE?. All right. Let me go to the nutrition education,
which several of you mentioned as being--
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Mr. COONEY. Tom, we are on record as favoring a feasibility
studywe support ASFSA's position, and we do not support the
concept of using income.

Ms. CAGAN. That is the Dole recranmendation on a feasibility
study on ways of

Mr. Comm. Not that Dole is aware of.
Mr. BONET. Not that I am aware or.
Ms. CAGAN. I thought it was.
Mr. Boxsit. I don't think so.
Nutrition education. Rd mentioned Senator Helms' definite in-

volvement and encouragement of volunteer efforts and so forth,
and there has been sane discussion about what the States are
doing in various Child Nutrition Programs sort of cm their own and
above the Federal requftemeifts.

What about the idea which was proposed in the House committee
of having some degree of match requirement, to have the States
contribute some 41 of for nutrition education in return
for receiving the

MS. CAGAN. What_ percentage?
Mr. : incr. Like 25 percent.
Mr. s I sv. Yes. Representative Bartlett in his original amend-

ment suggested a 50-60 State match, and Mr. Perkins
how about 26 percent and making it in-kind. That n = t
passed subcommittee, but was reassessed in full committee and did
not make it. Representative Bartlett has stated his views in the mi-
nority report, or a sectUn of H.R. 7and members of the
may want to take a look at that for more details. I think
sentative Bartlett was getting at the general issue, not only on
NET, but SAE and Hall. y; the governmental policy issue.
Should there be a change in the mechanien between the Federal
and State funding. We would be to that, mainly because in
nutrition education, you would n I mean, right now. it is very
difficult to have enough funds to get a half-time person. If that
personif the State agency had to come up with another percent-
age of that money, they may choose not to do so and it would end
that position. And Texas is living proof of this. I am not sure that
New York would be that generous, either.

Ms. CAGAN. I am funding my coordinator now
Mr. COONEY. That is you. I am talking about the State of New

York, not the local, but the State.
Ms. BLANK. Also, you have got to look at New York City in con-

trast to upstate. Look at day care in New York. The city replaced
all that $10 million in New York State, and we saw 8,400 to 12,000
kids lose day care and a 46-percent drop in public funds out of the
city.

Mr. BONET. Well, I think the overall question that they were
dealing with on the House side and that certainly comes up in the
Senate discussion is having some sort of reassessment of the State
and Federal contributions to the program, which right now are
very heavily weighted toward Federal contributions, and whether
there should be some increased State or local funding.

Ms. PARKER. Also, to put on another hat, I am on the board of
the Society for Nutrition Education, which moresents nutrition
educators nationwide, and many of the members of the society are
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nutrition ethication coordinators. We talked to them when this
amendment came upto many of them, not all of themones that
were available, to find out what the impact of this would be. And
although you can never be sure what the impact dr something will
be until it happen.', their sense was that many of the States would
terminate the program, either because they did not have the
money available, or could not show that they were spending 25 per-
cent, or were just unwilling for such a small amount of money,
which it is right now for NET, to spend the time and resources on
the pa rwork that is involved to document it.

Mr. NEY. So 14hink the Wale, though, with this and the issue
of Federal administration is, if it is not worth it for a State to put
in even a little bit of money, the question certainly occurs as to
why thi Federal Government should be financing all the costs.

/- MS. PARKER. It is not a matter of worth it as much as it is a
matter of the States feel they are limited in the amounts of money
that are available to them to run any of their programs.

Mr. BONEY. Well, this is exactly the problem we have at the Fed-
eral Government level.

Mr. COONEY. You see, you run into a situation where you can
only have Child Nutrition Programs where there is an adequate
tax base in the State, and we are concerned' about that. We are not
unsympathetic to Representative Bartlett's issues. I mean, we are
talking about SAE, State administrative expenses, and NET, and
the general concept of the sharing of Federal-State things, and we
agree with him that there ought to be a discussion, there ought to
be hearings on this. And he has recommended that in committee,
and we support that, and I think you need to have State directors
of child nutrition here, locals like you folks, and some other corn-
munky-type off,, to see what is going to happenin Connecti-
cut, you are ; S. ni to do all right; in some other States, -ou may
not. And these ..;e either national emphasis programs, or they are
not.

Ms. CAGAN. I agree a lot with what you said, Tom, because when
people do 1iot put something in, there is not a commitment. But I
think I heard you right, Ed, when you said the recommendation or
amendment that would allow States to put it on an inkind rather
than a cash basis was killed?

Mr. (.7(x)NEv. Yes.
Ms. CAGAN. That, I think, the States would find easier to do.
Mr. Co0NEY. I think some States would find it easier to do.
Ms. ('ALAN. They may find it easier. So I basically agree with

you.
Mr. Cnontry Rut those are the same States that have paperwork

requirements that you htive to clear through channels, and you can
imagine how much.

Ms. CAGAN. Yes; I will tell you what is disturbing to me. Mario
Cuomo is the Governor of New York State, and his wife, Mathilda
Cuomo, was known for her concern and interest in child nutrition.
And when the Federal Government was toying around with the
idea of forcing States to take it over, I found out through the grape-
vine that if New York State was forced to take it over, that Mr.
Cuomo intended to give the Child Care and Summer Meals Pro-
gram to State social serviceswhich made me a little bit bitter
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about what Mathilda knows about nutrition and how it lines up
with the school

And for a rm has that kind of general commitment, and
supposedly, his viifirisaa some kind of knowledge, to put it into an
agency where it does not belong, in my mind Is wrong. I worry, be-
cause I do not know how many other Governors are so committed
to the concept of child nutrition. So that is why I am sitting on the
fence there.

Mr. COONEY. We have a couple of 4 e here from Colorado, and
I was a guest of the State department education out there, one of
the deputy administrators, and we talked about income verifica-
tion. Thme was a school lunch meeting down in Florian I do not
know where Greeley is, but Florison is terrific. We brought
up this issue, though, of paperwork. AiW in your State, they actual-
ly have a committee where, if you want to do this inkin' d thing that
we were talking about, that would have to go to a .1.1ilar com-
mittee and be approved, be of the paperwork requirements
that would necessarily entail.

So the answers to some of these questions are not as simple as
they may . 1 also know you guys have been sitting
around for a . : time, talking, without lunch.

Mr. BoNzv. ell, that is good, because I am ready to wrap up
with child care. You all have waited very patiently, and I saw some
nodding of heads when Helen Blank was ts'fyirw. If you want to
enitair in any discussion rwrd im. child care, dmt you did not
cover with Senator Huddleston or S .tor Helms while they were
hereare there any further points?

I think, certainly, the perspective they represented was very dif-
ferent from what said, el . actually

Ms. Swum. I think it is . - a difference in ies.
We feel that the program is su ; child care. ou fee that
the program is subsidizing child care. e just do not think it is the
vehicle to be subsidizing chiM care.

A couple of things. For instance, I do not remember what Tou
said about not every home day care provider earns more Akan mini-
mum wage, or something like that. You see, I cannot speak for
across the Nation, but in Colorado, if you are going to be a home
day care provider, you have to own your own home, or at least be
able to rent it. You cannot be licensed in an apartment...,

Ms. BLANK. That is not true across the Nation. My iiikome figure
was a national figure.

Ms. BAUDER. OK. I just wanted to bring that u ., because that is
kind of misleading, too. So I think it just depe on your area. I
do not want anybody to go hungry, but I think that there is an in-
credible waste here, in dual funding, and the Government taking
over some responsibility of the parent, especially when there are so
many discriminations in the way the program is now.

Ms. BLANK. Tom, can I just point out that it is interesting that
most of the other providers in your county are part of the ,
and also, if you look at. the-Abt study, most of the money oes #0412.
food, The reason we do connect it so much to child care is the fact
that we know this Congress is not going to provide any more
money to child care, and we think it is very untimely, to make any
cuts in the whole field of child care, given the need. And it is a

no



107

Federal support to child care and to tae family day care system,
and it is really not an appropriate time to take anything away.

Mr. BONET. I think the point they made this morning, at least
well, there is some difference, even with the three on child care
was whether the subsidy that is going on behalf of higher income
children is appropriate. In other words, if you took child care and

ut it back to the way the School Lunch Program, School Breakfast
_am works, where you have different levels of reimbursement

for different levels of incomewhich is what Senator Helms pro-
posed, and which, I guess, Mrs. Smith supportedit is one ap-
proach. Now, granted, the ladies from Colorado, I think, felt that
the Child Care Food Program was unnecessary altogether. So there
is some difference.

Ms. BLANK. We work with an umbrella sponsors' forum that rep-
resents a large number of umbrella sponsors in family day care.
We work with the Children's Foundation, which represents all the
family day care associations in the country. We work with the
Office of Children in Fairfax, and thousands of providers across the
country. And they seem to feel that a means test is so administra-
tively cumbersome, and would, because family day care providers
are neighbors, be so difficult to implement in terms of confidential-
ity, and also lead to some discrimination problems in terms of what
you feed children, that it would force most providers out of the pro-
gram.

Mr. BONET. But I understand they have done that before. I mean
we had, prior to 1980, a means test.

Ms. BLANK. And very few family day care providers would par-
ticipate.

Mr. BONEY. But the ones that were participating prior to the end
of the income test were primarily poor. What has caused such a
problem is that in the time since the means test was eliminated,
the composition of children in day care homes in the Child Care
Food Program has changed dramatically.

Go ahead.
Mrs. SmrrH. Most of the participants in the USDA Child Care

Food Program are above 185 percent of the OMB poverty level.
But I might add, if we had a voucher system whereby funds were

paid directly to the parent, the needy parent, the means test would
not require any kind of nosey neighbor kind of delving into the pri-
vate matters of the family.

M. BLANK. I think, first of all, we would love a voucher system
that gave more money to child care, and I have been trying to get
nickels for title XX and have the administration not even giving us
the $25 million that legally, it is the right of the States to have to
spend for child care. So we are not very close to a voucher system,
and I wish we were, and we would love some more support to child
care to go directly to parents.

Mrs. SMITH. Sure, especially if it is for the needy. I do think it
should be targeted.

Ms. BLANK. Absolutely. We do think, though, the food program
pays an important role. We think it is important, also, to help im-
prove the quality of care, and the family day care systems offer
support to providers and training. Fairfax is wonderful. The train-
ing it provides is really atypical, the 20 hours of training you have
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to have as a family day carf_provider to be registered with 'the
Office for Children's I&R. CUFF has provithx1 some support to the

g.mr, and we have seen a lot of that in the last couple years, and
that is an important support.

Mrs. Siam. With regard to the Office for Children, one need not
have undertaken that family day cure provider training

course to eligible for the I&R system. One has to agree to take
one at some future date, and agree to get onto the USDA Mild
Care Nutrition Program. The method that the Office for Otildren
is currently to institute licensingand the State of Virginia
does not require of day care lunnesis the I&R system.
Many is who have used that system have found it somewhat
less than the yellow pages thmselves, because they say if
they call the Office for Children and wait for the turn-around and
get the thing back, and so forth, for all the informs on it,
say that they could have saved at West b days, by calling
the yellow pages, to find a day care mtem. 'The is in
day care home, and this is a mechanism for that I can see
some need for some support in that regard, but I have a great deal
of reservation with regard to how we are going to institute an
army of people to go out and actually check in the homes, when
the parents thlves are there every day.

Ms. Eh.auwa. I think that is another discusssion that is very im-
portant, to help educate parents how to

Mr. COONEY. There are some questionable things I would like to
bring up, just for the record. When people say there are too many
nonr- y families in the Child Care Food Program, they generally
refer to two sources. One is the Abt study, and the second is an
audit of quality child care in Minnesota.

I would just like to say for the accord that there are k who
dispute those statistics, who would argue that the Abt is in
fact not a nationally representative sample, and the Northeast di-
rectors, director of New York and all State di-
rectors for New land, filed a separate study and signed off on a
policy statement w completely conflicts with the findings of
the Abt study.

I will agree with you, and I think your point is well taken, and
Tom has said this before, that there is evidence that would indicate
that there has been an increase in the number of families over 185
percent. I would argue with the fact that that number is 70 per-
cent, as has been reflected in those studies, and that is something
that we can get statistical buffs together on and deal with.

But since this is a public recd a lot of us do make these
things up as we go along, myself included, I just want to mention
that there are people who do conflict with that.

Mrs. Sum. I heard Mr. Bovard's --
Mr. COONEY. Speaking of making it up as you go along.
Mrs. Shim [continuing]. Yes, I read Mr. Bovard's article in the

"policy Review." And there are a lot of areas that I would ques-
tion.

Mr. COONEY. For example, the stated facts in his testimony,
which is 8 years out of date.

Mrs. Seam. But I think it is important that we look at the
income eligibility requirements, the fact that there are none, and
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yet, Fairfax County, VA, one of the most affluent white-collar
areas of the Nation, really, a suburban community of Washington,
DC

Mr. COONEY. And has one of the best school lunch directors in
the country.

Ms. BLANK. And one of the best child care systems.
Mrs. Salmi. I am talking about child care, as a participant. As

an umbrella system, there are concerns that, this d Care Food
is not specifically to helpit.ig those people who

really need the help, like e-income-earnmg families, the di-
vorced mother with children. = are the kinds of people who ac-
tually need our assistance, and not the dual income, families. I
maintain that the part that has made the biggest impact on our
social services and entitlement programs are the women who
choose to work to supplement their husbands' incomesand I sin
not talking about the loA caseshard cases make bad laws --I am
simply talking about putting a ceiling on the programs so that we
can start redirecting our efforts toward aiding those in true need.

Ms. CAGAN. I would like to make one comment. I found out in
New Yorkas I said, USDA supervises child carein visiting some
of my schools toward the end of the day, in schools with after-
school programs, educational p that food (supper) is funded
under the Child Care Program. nd of course, I started to bug the
USDA. Now, we are very, very conscious of this in New York, and
maybe this is something that could be looked into that should be
eliminated. I know when you are running a programand they are
good programsthat no administrator is going to stop at 5 and get
everybody down, three or four floors from their activities, to come
into the lunchroom to have a supper. Ali, but they are getting paid
for suppers, these outside sponsors, and we should have eliminated,
as I said, most of them. And we are really targeting in, because I

icannot have any onus of any scandal in any program in schools.
Mr. COONEY. It says two meals and a snack. It could be a lunch

and a supper.
Ms. CAGAN. But excuse meyou do not understand. USDA su-

pervises the day care part. The State education department super-
vises the breakfast and lunch. I ga into this school, and I happen to
note what their lunch schedule is. Here, these kids were receiving
a very good lunch as late as 1:30 in the afternoon. So there was no
way in the world that they were going to eat a full supper at 3.
Now, to me, that is fraudfiling for a supper when they end up
getting a snack is immediately a waste and a fraud. That is some-
thing that can be done. I do not know how many of these programs
are subsidized in that way, in what I call an after-school program
this had never been, years ago.

Mrs. Surra. Did I understand you to say that New York City has
an extended day care program in the schools that is --

Ms. CAGAN. No.
Mrs. SMITH. But- -
Ms. CAGAN. No. They were legitimatethis is now where we are

working along with the board of education, because I said if the
need is there, the two programs should be tied up, because where a
child's parent is not homeagain, that avoids duplication, because
you have your people there, and it is a safe place for the children
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to stay. But that is not what has been on. And I only found
out by accident becaua JSDA came to me summer and asked
if I could sudthuily make 10,000 meals a day, because they had an
unscrupulous sponsor, and so I started to look into it. So now, they
may not approve an outside sponsor for this. And I found out that
they were all applying for supper, and getting them, and the chil-
dren were getting a snack.

I submit that maybe this should be looked intothat is what
confuses the day care issue. We do not have day care.

Mr. COONEY. 'flmt is a question of USDA monitoring
Ms. CAGAN. Yea
Mr. Bosse. OK.
Mrs. &ern. So, the extended day care is offered not

through the school system itself, but private organizations
operating in the'school system?

Ms. CAGAN. No. no, no, no It is not even a day care program.
The school system has alwayewhere they elect to have it, opened
certain schools, for programs for children from 8 p.m. to 5 p.m. It
could be a club or it could be a radial program.

Mrs. Saunas. t is a place for them to .
Mrs. Burnt. I see. So it is not an day care program as

61%. CAGAN. Not at all, and that is what we were telling the
board, that perhaps we ought to piggyback the two operations./

Mr. COONEY. Everything that is good and everything that is bad
will all happen at one time in New York City.

Ms. CAGAN. You are absolutely right.
Mr. COONEY. That is why we do not make national policy based

onllie7 York.
MONTGOMERY. Do you think that without the Government

Hupp ement to the day care home provider that the children would
be fed adequately?

Ms. &arm I do not think the children would eat as well. I think
that the Abt study shows, and every Andy that has been
done on the food program shows, that ). -xi eat much better. In
Fairfax County, they just did a study of 69 providers, and it showed
that the children were eating better.

These surveys were done, and Abt did a study that obviously had
to be a comparative study, and the children were definitely eating
betterthey are eating more fruits and juices and less sugar and
fresh vegetables and more protein because of the program.

Mr. COONEY. But that does not mean that you and your daughter
would not be providing higher nutritious foods, because you prob-
ably are.

Mrs. SAUDER. But did I hear you say the AM study, there were
some you could not count?

Mr. Borax. It was a different study that he did not
Mr. COONEY. There are two different AM studies. In W

you have to get familiar with ABCD, FRAC, Abt. There is an A 1,
and there is an Abt 2. I was questioning some of the statistical
framework on which their study was done on income verification.

Mr. Bossy. We all quote the studies that we agree with, and
think the others are statistically wrong.
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Mrs. &UDE& But we would sure take it upon ourselves to survey
our county, and I would tell you that the income is way, way

Mr. Comm. How many nutritionists do you have through your
group?

Mrs. BAUDER. We do not have a group.
Mr. BONKY. They do not belong to the group. They are independ-

ent- They pulled out of the group.
Mr. Cooriev. Do you have any nutrition consultation?
Mrs. Sums. Sure. I have a master's degree in child develop

ment, so I have had six classes in nutrition; my mother started out
in college as a borne economics mr4jorso we know nutrition. But
the Day Care Arnociaties has non that you can go to.
Ames Community College all the tune has loftl courses. If you
want to be involved, all you have to do is go. It does not cost very
much.

Mr. COONEY. My only concern is that what we are discussing
here is national policy. And what happens to us as advocates, as
Tom was saying, one of the criticisms of the ad community
is, "Well, try to get this medical expert because he you, and
he will have that testimony," and Tom has a lwaring in Raleigh,
and he invites fraud certifiers, prosecutors, and God knows, Elliott
Ness, and whoever else. So we are both guilty of the same kinds of
things. But when you get down to national Roney, the things that
drive us crazy are the lack of national nutritional standards which
we can apply on a local level. We got into all kinds of trouble on
the meal pattern issue, when ketchup is a vegetable in school
lunch. People almost lywhed uswe would say, you do not think
we are doing a good and you would see a lot of heads shaking
over here. We have implied that indirectly, and we do not mean
that. What we mean is that there should be national minimum
standards, and we feel strongly about that, and other groups .have,
es well. That is why you run into this

Ms. BLANK. I guess we also feel that all places do not have the
resources you have, all providers do not have the kind of back-
ground.

Mrs. SAUDEIL OK. But how much money do you make a year?
Ms. BLANK. I make enough money.
Mrs. SADDER. OK. Do you think it is right that the Government,

then, if your child were in home day care, should be paying for
your food?

Ms. BLANK. I can get a dependent care tax credit, and I take it,
and it is open to all families. And do you know what else you can
do? You can do salary reduction. And the IRS have come across
there are many families who have housekeepers. And again, Met
families in family day care are working class families. Some may
earn over 185 percent of poverty. Again, national day care studies
conflict with that, but they are not upper income professionals, not
most families. Again, we are talking about national trends. I can
take a credit. All families can take a credit

Mrs. SAUDER. I do not understand the credit. That is, you paying
your babysitter--

Ms. BLANK. Yes, the child care credit. I can get money regardless
of my income.

Mrs. SAUDFX. On your income tax.
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Ms. BLANK. No. I can get a credit, and alsothere are people in
this country who are in a 50 percent tax bracket who, through
their employer, can get their salary reduced and get a $5,000 bene-
fit. So I think that we have to look at overall policy. We have to
look at tax policies and how they affect upper income families and
look at child care and look at what is available and look at the $50
million that goes from the family day care program, and given the
fact that we are not about to put any new supports, evaluate
whether this is not a good way to spend money, because we spend
money supporting child care and other things to families who are
above 185 percent of poverty; we spend much more. And we feel
that this is reasonable.

Mrs. BAUDER. You confuse me because you talk so fast, and I am
not from the East, so I cannot keep up with you.

Mr. COONEY. Not everybody from the East talks that fast.
Mrs. BAUDER. On the one hand, you are saying that the average

family cannot afford it, and on the other hand, you are saying that
there are all kinds of ways that you can make your income look
like you are below- income ---

Ms. BLANK. No. I am saying that there are child care supports
that are available that are much bigger thin: this to higher income
families, and that this is a good use of money because it helps
family day care providers. I am also saying that most families in
family day care are working families.

Mrs. MONTGOMERY. In my area, in the State of Colorado, which I
know very well, the children I take care of are middle-class work-
ing parents. They are on a budget. But the mother wants to work,
or she has to work, and she would rather pay the day care provider
to be out in her career, or she has to. But anyway, I am against it.
Day care providers that I sin familiar with, that I know are a hus-
band and wifethe husband works out, the wife takes care of her
children, either to stay home with her children or just because she
wants to stay home to supplement their income. So she is going to
prepare these nutritious meals. And whether the Government sup-
plements her each month, the food will remain the same. I just do
not believeand I know of several instances, and I probably should
not say thisbut I know that the menus are falsified. And what is
down on paper is not really what they get, because there is no way
that these children can eat these requirements. Their little stom-
achsunless you let them eat, all day, constantly- -

Mrs. BAUDER. But also, there are women, home day care provid-
ers, who are in a university community. We have the University of
Northern Colorado right there in Greeley. There are day care
home providers who go out and do other things. The parent con-
tracts with them to bring their child there, and then they hire col-
lege students to come in and take care of the day care kids in the
morning, while they go out and do other things, simply because
they can afford this with the Wildwood program.

Ms. BLANK. Well, that is an interesting solution. Again, I agree
with FAL I think we need to talk about national providers and na-
tional trends, and your university community, and we need a
broader representation before we can talk about national policy.
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Mrs. Surer'. I would just like to ask if we could have for the
record the amount of funds received by CDF since 1976 from Feder-
al grants

Ms. Bwnc. Zero.
Mr. Comm. Your question would probably be better addressed

to us. We unfortunately, take money from everbody, including pri-
vate industry and the Federal Government, but they will not give
us any more.

CDF, as a matter of principle, has never received a dime of Fed-
eral money. FRAC would take whatever Federal money was avail-
able. It is a difference in style and approach. We would prefer the
better management at CDF and their professional commitments,
but we are a little looser at FRAC, and that is the way it is.

Mrs. SMITH. Are you funded, then, through - -would you tell us
who you are funded through?

Ms. BLANK. You can have it through the record.
Mr. COONEY. We would be glad to tell you all of our resources. It

is kind of a tacky question, but we are used to it, and so we give it.
Mrs. Sawn. Thankyou.
Mr. BOWL Well, I am afraid I may have served as too much of a

catalyst today, in terms of this after-conversation. But I do appreci-
ate everybody coming. Obviously, these programs are going to be
on the committee's agenda for the year.

Thank you all very much for staying around. We appreciate it.
[Whereupon, at 2:15 p.m., the committee adjourned, subject to

call of the Chair.]
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APPENDIX

STATEMENT Of NON. 801 DOLE
A U.S. SENATOR FROM KANSAS

Today 6 will be hearing testimony from various experts in the

field of child nutrition. I would like to welcome them and ex-

press my appreciation to them for taking time from their busy

schedules to be here with us today.

Reauthorixation Promise

Every four years, we have an opportunity to evaluate the child
nutrition programs in their entirety, even thoegh we are techni-

cally engaged in the process of reauthorising only the apnea-

titlement programs, whit!, are WIC, the summer food service

program, nutrition education and training, state administrative

expenses, and the authority for section 32 commodities.

We made a lot of program change, in the school lunch, school

breakfast, child care and the summer food programs back during

the reconciliation process of 1981, just a year after the pro-

grams were reauthorixed the last time. After a period at program

stability, we can now look beck to see how these chaeges have af-

fected the programs in question. I en aware of two bills cur-

rently pending before the Congress and this committeeS. 1913,
the Buddlestan-Cochran bill, and its counterpart, N.R. 4091. Al-

though I disagree with the way in which benefits are targeted un-

der both of these bills, I think they should receive a fair

hearing. We are now at a time in our nation's history when we

must be certain that nutrition program funds are being targeted

effectively to low-income children. As the C80 evaluations

reveal. both of these legislative initiatives would direct over

70 percent of their benefits to children from families above 130

percent of poverty, which defines low-income eligibility for both

the food stamp pr9gram and the school lunch and breakfast

programs.

Dole Support of Child Nutrition

As everyone here knows, I have long been a strong supporter of

child nutrition programs. Nothing has changed my commitment to

these programs or my belief that the Federal Government should

maintain its leadership role in the nutrition program area.

However, the Federal Government can't be expected to do

everything.

(115)
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In recent years, I have been concerned about a tendency for
people to consider these programs in terms of Federal spending
instead of the children served. I would like to address this
concern.

In 1970. the Federal Government was spending just over $700
million on all child nutrition programs. By 1980, this amount
had grown to approximately $4.4 billion, and would have exceeded
$5 billion by FY 82, had it not been for reconciliation.

Based strictly on budgetary considerations, some might say. and
have said, that this over 5002 increase in Federal child nutri-
tion funding is not justified. Others, whose' considerations are
limited to program operations and activities, have said that the
$1.3 billion that Congress cut from the 1982 child nutrition pro-
gram is equally unjustifiable. I would .ike to address both of

these contentions, because I think they are equally false. They
are false because they overlook the important issue of how
changes in funding have affected the children served.

Low-income Targeting

For those who limit their concerns to budget numbers, I would
point out that, in 1970, very little of child nutrition expendi-
tures (about 202) were directed toward low-income children. Only
4.6 million out of the 22.4 million children in the school lunch
program were receiving free or reduced price meals.

Additionally. the school breakfast program. which was better
targeted to low income children, had just begun, and served only
450,000 children. Finally, the WIC program, which many regard as
the best need-based of all child nutrition programs, had not yet

been created.

By 1980, Federal expenditures for children in low-income fami-
lies represented 602 of all Federal child nutrition program
expenditures. The school lurch program served a total of 26.6
million children in 1980. or 4.2 million more children than in

1970. However, all of this growth and more was in the free and
reduced price categories, which increased by 7.3 million children
(to 11.9 million). while participation in the regular, non-income
tested part of the program dropped from 17.8 million to 14.7

million. For the breakfast program, participation grew from a
total of 450,000 in 1970 to 3.6 million in 1980--and 852 of these
children were from low-income families. Finally, the WIC
program, which had not existed in 1970, was serving an average of
nearly 2 million women, infants and children in 1980, and funding
for this program alone represented 162 of all child nutrition
program expenditures.

I recite these statistics for those whose primary interest is
in dollar figures, because I think it is important for them to

understand the human consequences of child nutrition expenditure
growth. The dollar growth in funding for these programs, when
viewed from the context of participation is not as haphazard as a
graph only showing dollars might suggest. Funding grew consid-
erably between 1970 said 1980, but with it came a commitment to
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the needs of low-income children--a commitment which costs more

than just providing a minimal subsidy and letting children pay

the difference, or go hungry.

In the late sixties and early seventies, the Federal C4ernment
embarked on a non-partisan effort to improve the nutrition of our

children, particularly our needy children. As a consequence of

this commitment we have provided the best nutrition programs for

children that the world has ever seen--not perfect perhapsbut
unequivocally the best. Even more importantly, our special

concern for needy children is clearly reflected in the data show-

ing the dramatic increase in the number of such children partici-
pating in these programs, and the proportion of expenditures com-

mitted to their needs. We chose to give more, not because more

is necessarily better, but because more is necessary where there

is greater need.

Effect of Reconciliation

Now let me turn to what happened to child nutrition programs

after 1980 when Congress enacted reconciliation legislation that

reduced program funding. Comoared to 1980, when Federal expendi-

tures for child nutrition were $4.4 billion. 60% of which went to

low-income children, 1983 expenditures were 84.7 billion. And

even more importantly, nearly 83.7 billion of this amount. or 78%

of these funds were expended for low-income children.

In 1980, it is true that there were 26.6 million children par-

ticipating in the school lunch program, compared to 23.1 million

in 1983. However, all of this 3.5 million difference is in the

paid category, where participation is down from 14.7 million to

11.2 million. The same total number of children participated in*
the free and reduced price segment of the program in 1980 as in

1983 - -that is 11.9 million. However, the distribution is

slightly different with reduced price participation going down

from 1.9 million to 1.6 million, while free participation went gt
from 10 million to 10.3 million.

WIC ?regrew

For the WIC program, Federal expenditures grew to approximately

$1.16 billion in 1983 and represented 25% of all child nutrition

program funds. This is an increase of $390 million over the FY

BO funding level for this program and compares to 16% of child

nutrition program funding in 1980. Sore importantly, average WIC
participation in FY 1983 was approximately 2.6 million, compared

to 1980, when average participation was just under 2 million.

Facts Behind Statistics

I am pointing out these statistics for those who continue to

allege that the child nutrition budget cuts of 1981 were too

large, and harmed an inordinate number of low-income children--an

allegation that I believe to be unjustified. It is unjustified

because it looks only to dollar terms and not to the human

reality - -the children being served. end their need. The data in-

dicates that low-income children continue to be served in signif-
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*cant numbers and that a graving proportion of expenditures ere

being distributed on the basis of need. It also appears that
greater numbers of children from families with very low income
levels are participating in the programs than in the past. This

sounds to me like appropriate targeting, and I find it hard to

see the danger in it.

In this difficult time, I believe that those of us involved in
the delicate balancing act of allocating limited Federal
resources should look carefully at the human factor instead of
just dollars. I believe that if we do, we will find that our
current commitment to child nutrition provisos is justified. and
that there is no need to either further reduce eependitures, or
restore program funds.

STATEMENT OF HON. WALTER O. SUOOLESTON
A U.S. SENATOR FROM KENTUCIY

On September 30, 1983, I introduced S. 1913, legislation that
would make needed improvements to the school lunch and other

child nutrition programs. S. 1913 is specifically designed to
make what I believe are essential restorations to, and changes

in. the nutrition programs that are vitally important to the wel-
fare of our nation's children.

The carefully targeted provisions of my bill would benefit
school children of the "working poor' by lowering the cost of a
reduced-price school lunch from 40 cents to 25 cents and the cost
of a reduced-price breakfas from 30 cents to 15 cents; provide

additional funding to improve the nutritional content of meals
provided under the school breakfast program; and benefit children
of low - income working mothers by restoring one meal and one
snack, per day, to the child care food program.

The fact that hundreds of thousands of children who are from
working poor families no longer participate in the child nutri-
tion programs since the implementation of the 1981 and 1982
budget cuts indicates to me that those changes were too severe.
I believe we must reevaluate our earlier decisions.

When introducing S. 1913, I made vary clear that the legisla-
tion was within the budget limitations provided by Congress for

fiscal year 1984. This was an important factor to me, as I am
sure it was with many of the other senators who have joined me in
sponsoring the bill.

Because the bill will repair the damage to these important pro-
grams while remaining within the budget agreed to by Congress. I

hope the Senate will act soon on S. 1913. which to date has 52
cosponsors, or H.R. 4091, similar legislation that is pending on
the Senate calendar.

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your holding this hearing today. and
I look forward to hearing the testimony from our witnesses.
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TESTIMONY OF JOAN N. WOE
DEPUTY ASSISTANT SUNTAN FOR
FOOD Mb CANONICI NOVICES

U.S. DUARTNANT OF AGRICULTURE

Mr. Chairman, and members of the Subcemittes, thank you for
the opportunity to comment on legislation to reauthorize or modify
the Special Supplemental Feed Program for Semen, Infants and
Children (WIC) as well as certain child nutrition programs.

Before commesting on 5.1913, I would like to emphasise that
current laws provide generous child nutrition benefits. Amy child
in a participating school can receive a free meal if his family's
income is less than 130 percent of the poferty line -- almost
$13,000 for a family of four.

Students from families with income up to $18,315 for a family
of four are eligible for alederal subsidy of. 92 cents per meal,
not including the 10 cents per meal average value of boons
commodities which we are no. providing. They cannot be charged
over 40 cents for that lunch which typically casts about $1.30.

Over 23 million children day participate in the school lunch
program. In addition, the Administration's special distribution of
surplus commodities provides extra assistance to families in need.

It is true that we have restrained the budgets of the child
nutrition programs through the judicious changes adopted by
Congress in 1981. The changes that were made served to better
target scarce Federal resources on those in greatest need, improve
program administration and reduce duplication in subsidies.
Despite our reform, the Federal government still provides large
subsidies to upper and middle income families through the child
nutrition programs. For example, this year in the school food
programs, we will spend approximately $460 million to subsidise
meals served to students from families with income above 1113
percent of the poverty guideline. The Child Can Food Program is
growing dramatically in child care homes. Yet, two thirds of that*
homes' subsidies go for families in that same, highest income
group.

S. 1913

The Administration strongly opposes the enactment of 5.1913.
Most of the provisions of 5.1913 are aimed at reversing a ember of
entitlement reforms adopted by Congress as part of the Omnibus
Reconciliation Act of 1981, P.L. 97-35. It would use taxpayer's
money to provide new entitlement funding for abase well above the
poverty line. At a time of unparalled need to control federal
spending, we cannot justify this bill, which would add $180 million
to the deficit in 1985 alone.

S. 1913 provides for:

. Increasing the subsidy for each reduced price lunch and
breakfast served;

. Increasing the subsidy for all breakfasts -- including paid
and reduced price -- by sin cents;
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Expanding the Child Care Feed Program (CCFP) to subsidise
up to three meals and two supplements each day;

Expanding the Special Wilk Program to all kiedergertens and
eliminating the maximum five cents ehimbursement for milk
for nonneedy students;

. Administrative fending to States for storing and
distributing commodities donated under the National School
Lunch Act;

. Reinstating the school feeding programs in high-tuition
private schools;

. Beductiome for welly high medical costs;

. Increasing the funding for the Nutrition Education and
Training (NET) Program.

. Eliminating the link between the Food Stamp Program sod
free meal eligibility standards;

. Delaying verification requirements;

The Administration does not favor an across-the-board,
six-cent increase in school breakfast reimbursements, including
those for nonneedy students. This provision would increase costs
by an estimated $42 million annually. This proposal strikes no as
an over-reaction to recent study findings about the Breakfast
Program. The Breathiest Program is almost always available in
conjunction with nutritionally superior school lunches. Thus, the
overall school nutrition program wariest content is quite good.

Increasing the Federal subsidy for reduced price meals would
expand benefits to the less seedy at an estimated cost of $70
million.

5.1913 provides for restoring child nutrition programs in all
private 'schools, regardless of the Dreg' of tuition charged. The
Administration maintains that families who are able to pay private
school tuitions over $1,500 per year can afford the cost of their
children's meals.

The Special Milk Program cannot operate in any school which
participates in any other child nutrition program. 5.1913 would
exclude kindergartens from this restriction. Since all the child
nutrition programs serve milk as part of their meals and since such

meals may be made available to kindergarten children, we see no
need to permit duplicate milk subsidies for kindergarteners.

The provisions for subsidising three meals and two supplements
daily under the CCFP would give the Federal government the entire
responsibility for feeding a child, abrogatina all family
involvement in preparing meals.

The income verification pilot study is now complete, thus
rendering moot the 5.1913 provision to delay implementation until
after the study's completion. We expect to forward the report on
this study to the Committee within the next month.
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Allowing the exclusion of unusually high medical costs in
determining eligibility for these programs would increase
certification costs, administrative burdens, and complicate
verification of applications, since there would be questions of
interpretation about the level and type of expenses.

Rliminating all references to the Food Stamp Eligibility
Standards. would serve to add further complications to the
eligibility and verification processes since these references
streamline the process, relieving the administrative burden at the

local level.

With regard to increasing the NET Program funding to $8
million, as I will explain shortly, the Administration believes
that funding for the NET Program should be discontinued.

In addition, the Adeinisastion believes that State
Administrative Expense funds, combined with State and local
contributions, are adequate for expenses associated with storing
and distributing commodities donated under the National School

Lunch Act. Additional Federal funds would only supplant present

State and local monies.

EXPIRING AUTHORIZATIONS

Next, the authorisation of five programs expiring this year

must be considered: the WIC Program, the Summer Feeding Program,
State Administrative Expenses, the Nutrition Education and Training

Program, and the Commodity Distribution Program, which provides

support to other food programa.

The Administration recoomiends one year reauthorization for the

WIC Program, the State Administrative Expenses Program and the

Commodity Distribution Program'. It is important, we believe, to

retain the mechanism of reauthorization, so that regular reviews

and appraisals of program effectiveness will occur.

The Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children

(WIC) has expanded rapidly during the past ten years. A major USDA

evaluation of VIC is presently underway, and results will not be

available until late this year. Also, there is a study of VIC

Program participant characteristics not scheduled for completion

until next year. A third study, directed at examining the VIC

potential target population, will not be finished until next year.
In view of the fact that WIC has now grown to the point where it

serves approxlmatley one-fifth of the infants born in America each

year, it seems prudent to leave opportunities open for changes in

program design, should they be warranted. Therefore, a one year

reauthorization of the program is appropriate.

Similarly, a one year reauthorization will enable us the
benefit of reassessing the State Administrative Expenses Program
(SAE) after a complete review of the equity of its distribution

formula. Also, the Commodity Distribution Program reauthorization

can be considered with the benefit of a report on a major
Congressionally-mandated study of that program.

Under the Commodity Distribution Program, USDA has
jurisdiction over the Elderly Feeding Commodity Program. The

President's budget proposes to fund elderly feeding in the
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Department of Health and Semen Services, which already Ma/misters
the nein elderly nutrition program. Under the Older Americans Act,
a mechanism will be provided to allow States to continue to receive
commodities instead of cash if they so des* . Therefore, it is
net appropriate to %weatherise that portion of the Commodity
D istribution Program.

Since 1977 the Nutrition Education Training Program (!NIT)
bee operated to provide seed mosey to State agencies to help them
begin or segment existing Nutrition Ildecation Programs. With State
programs now well established and the total level of support quite
low (at $5 million), we believe it is tins for the States to assume
funding responsibilities. Vb propose that UT be discontinued as a
Federal program, rather than being reentherised.

4

The Department's budget proposes to consolidate the Summer
Food Service and Child Care Food Programs into a Non-School
Food Frogmen Grant to States. This grant would permit States
greater flexibility to design assistance programs for meals served
outside a school setting. States would no longer have to apply
complex set of reimbursement rates or comply with Federal
regulatory requirements.

In addition, while legislative changes have improved the
accountability of the Sommer Feed Service Program, the nature of
the program precludes assurance that program benefits go to
low-income children. Eligibility is established by geographical
area, rather than being determined on an individual basis. Also,
the Child Care Food Program has problems with benefit targeting.
States could address the targeting problem when developing their
nonschool food programs.

Hr. Chat:wen, because of these considerations, we believe that
it would be prudent for the Committee to reauthorise the WIC, SAE,
and Commodity Distribution Programs for one year only. We
recommend that the NET and the Summer Food Service Program not be
reauthorimed, and that the latter be replaced by a nonschool food
program grant so that States can develop their own programs.

Thank you for considering our views. If you have questions,
will be happy to answer them.
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Statitateirr or GENE WHITE, Cteammtmewi4, LEGMBLATIVE AND PUBLIC POLICY Cosenrriss,
Asuarcan Smoot. Peon Seams Association

Mr. Chairman, my name is Gene White, Chairman of the Legislative and Public
Policy Committee. I am ahm the Director of Child Nutrition and Food Distribution
Programs for California State Department of Education.

The American Sclw: Association iMWSA) is pleased and honored to
have this 'Mit* to share the Committee our views on current issues
facing they Nutrition Programs is an annual tradition we appreciate.

The 1985 sent to the , last month does not propose new budget
cuts in child nutrition. We are that the Administration is not
seeking some of the proposals that were by the Congress last year or any
°tiler si=nt new proposers that would reduce the finiding for child nu-
trition. are, however, a number of in proposals contained in the
budget, as well as a number of legislative pupae& pending on the calendar from
last year, that require our attention-

1. ASFSA supports passage of H.R. 7, introduced by Chairman Carl Perkins,
making permanent the several Child Nutrition Programs whose authorizations
expire at the end of the current fiscal year. The Nutrition Education and Training
Program, the Summer Food Service Program for Children, the Commodity Distribu-
tion Pr igram, and the provieion for She Adminietradve Expenses (SAE) expire on
September 30, 1984. AB other Child Nutrition Programs, including the School
Lunch Program and the School Breakfast Program, already have been made perma-
nent.

2. ASIFSA supports passage of H.R. 4091 and S. 1913. Since 1980 the Child Nutri-
tion Programs have been cut by approximately 81.5 billion. S. 1913 and H.R. 4091
would mitigate the harshness of these cuts by restoring approximately 10% of the
cut or $150 million. The legislation would make a number of important changea It
would:

tai Lower thcost of a reduced-price lunch to the children of working poor from
40e per meal to 25* per meal; .

(hi Lower the cost of a reduced-price' breakfast to the children of working poor
from 301 per breakfast to 151 per breakfast and

ici Increase the funding for School Breakfast Programs to improve the nutritional
quality consistent with the find' age of the U.S. Department of Agriculture's Nation-
al Evaluation of School Nutrition published in March 1983.

Additionally, the legislation would provide benefits for the Child Care Food Pro-
gram and private schools.

These changes are modest in nature and targeted specifically to those poor chil-
dren participating in the free and reduced-price school lunch and breakfast pro-
grams.

When H.R. 4091 was being considered by the House last fall, the Administration
pointed aid that more than 70% of the benefits under the bill would go to females
with incomes over139% of the line. It tidied to point out that approximately
70%404'4 of the benefits w oul go to families with incomes below 185% of the pov-
erty line. The bill is intentionally targeted to benefit the working poor, and
SO. The budget cuts enacted as part of the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of I 1 ve
dramatically reduced participation in the reduced-price lunch category. The follow-
ing chart represents some examples. The chart is not meant to represent a statisti-
cally sound national sample, but the examples are instructive.

SCHOOL LUNCH PARTICIPATION REDUCED MU CATEGORY

CONK+ 1980 Oct Pruitt
Way

Arimry OH 1.887 983 48

*mon IN 4,265 1.409 61

RA, NC 2.104 1,966 71

Bersairuis, At 7,881 2,054 79

Atuatenpa, NIA 4,135 2,961 78

Oiew4as0. 041 ?,36b 1.841 22

lowsedle, KY 5,332 1,147 22

Xmas Ory. SO 1.756 1.684 4

fat Lauderdale ti 5.960 5,210 12
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gram. He then went on to propose funding the program by including the value of
the lunch served as taxable moon*.

Last year, Senator Gary Hart introduced legislation that would have reduced the
current 100% tax deduction on business lunches and entertainment expense to 70%
and used the revenue for child nutrition. It was estimated that this legislation
would have generated $1.2 billion in new revenue to the US. Treasury. If you com-
bine Dr. George Graham's suggestion with Congressman Miller's roposa1, you can
raise over 90% of the funds needed to finance the Universal School Lunch Program.
And if the universal program is only extended to elementary schools it would not be
necessary to lower the tax deduction on business luncheons and entertainment ex-
penar to 70%. Sufficient revenue could be raised by lowering the deduction to ap-
proximately 80%.

The declaration of policy in the National School Lunch Act has not been amended
since it was enacted some 37 years ago. Since that time a number of significant
changes have been made. Most importantly was the change enacted in 1971 provid-
ing additional, or special federal innistance, in order to provide free and reduced
price meals to poor children. It was a change that ASFSA strongly supports.

With enactment of the free and re,=- price lunch the mission of the
National School Lunch Program was from a and nutrition
to include an income security component. Concomitantly there has been an
in verification requirement, an increase in documentation requirements and less
sensitivity to poor children from over identification and discrimination.
In short, the ational School Lunch Program is currently facing sonsethieg of an
Identity crisis". Is it a welfare program, or is it a nutrition program for all chil-
dren?

A universal school lunch program for all children would get &awls out of the
costly and burdensome business of having to document and verify the income of
families participating in the programs. These activities are better left to the experts
at IRS. Second, it would iefirus the program on its initial goal of providing nutri-
tious means to all children throughout the nation who wish to participate in the

regardless of income. Third, it would eliminate all problems associated
wiPrZri7entification of poor children and discrimination.

Mr. Chairman, we have been aware of the advantages of a universal free school
lunch program for many years. We have not, however, explored the various options
that may be available for financimg such a program. We therefore request that Con-
gress undertake a pilot project or at least a feasibility study to ascertain the various
methods of operating a self-ilnancing school lunch for all children.

Thank you very much Mr. Chairman, Members of Committee for the opportu-
nity to provide information on our Child Nutrition Programs. We are reedy to
answer any questions that you may have. Thank you very much for permitting us to
testify.

STAIR/4SW OF NANCY VAN DOMMILN, PIRSIDENT, HOARD or DIRSCIORS, WILDWOOD
CHEW Csas PROGRAMS, Agree, CO

Good afternoon. My name is Nancy Van Dotnelen. I appreciate being given the
opportunity to speak here today. I have been involved with the Child Care Food Pro-
gram since its inception in July 1976, as founder, director, and now noses - profit Wild-
wood Child Care Programsa statewide sponsorindoradagetoicy currently serving 2.600
family day care providers and 15,000 children in

Throughout these past seven years, I have had the unique opportunity of direct-
ing Wildwood's administrative operation in three distinctly different phasesthat of
a small, medium, and large sass Wildwood also operated from 1976 to 1980
under the restrictions of income eligibility criteria (means testing). I was able to ob-
serve the benefits that the elimination of income eligibility criteria brought in ex-
panded family day care participation, improved sponsor service levels, and more nu-
tritious meals for the children of working parents.

During my allotted time here today. I would like to speak to the following issues..
1. That the condition of child care for working parents in the United States has

dramaticall changed in the past decade requiring a reconsideration of priorities on
the part of

2. That The Nzi Care Food Program's influence has had a far-reaching positive
effect on: working parents and their children, family day care providers, and spon-
soring organizat .ons.

3. That The 'child Care Food Program should receive no further reductions in
funding given t re importance of its role of child can- support for working parents.

36-1,97 0 - 134 - 9 128
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istrative costa in Ilse child care fi.eld-38% lower: than child case centers on the
COPP. For sponsors, income . criteria will create arklftional papenverk and
problems with recruitment, , and discrimination toward children. As
a result, many sponsors will drop The b.- Care Food Program or be reduced in
size to the level where they have higher administrative costs with less economy of
scale.

Further cuts in The Child CaThe
received a reduction in of approahnately 30% in FY 1982. If

re Food are not warranted.

Senate 1994 were pasted. the result be a cumulative cut in fending over
the past three years of 75%. TO ihrther reduce this would sericeady affect
the health and well-being of seer 272.000 children low and middle income work-

The Sponsor's Form) recommends the fiallowinic
1. That anya=litylegislation which detrimentally impacts on the avWft,

accessibility, of child care programssuch as Senate Bill
1994be redacted by Congrearss.S this current legislative session.

2. That federal assistance for care be recognimed as a high prirrity, and that
support

of
with direct and indirect aid legitimate programs that ealasnao the

this care.
3. well-eiticulated National Child Care Ply be established by Congress

that would identify the country's child care needs and would create national pro-
gram directives to meet them.

I. THE CONDITION Or CRUZ CARE IN TM UNITED STATES IN 19144THIC N6w REALITY vs.
THE OLD STATUS

A. Introduction
The Congress of the United States faces a crucial task in the coming six months

as it deliberates on the federal budget for FY85. Legislators will be making signifi-
cant decisions that will impact this nation --its economy and quality of life. On the
positive side, however. there never has been a more appropriate or opportune time
to reassess national priorities.

One priority that requires immediate and thorough reconsideration is that of
child care with its impact on America's working parents. As meet of no are aware,
this past decade was revolutionary insofar as the care of children in this country
was concerned. Women moved into the work force in unprecedented numbers, plac-
ing their children in care in nonrelative homes and centers. This &et, coupled with
ether changes in the living situations of American created new iressures
on children and their parents as well as new demands on our institutions.

In this important presidential election year, emigrate must take a fresh look at
all issues affecting children with child care high on the hiet The current perception
on the part of many legislators regarding working parents' child care needs most be
replaced by a more sccurate view of the new reality and direction that tinnily Ills
and child rearing are takimg in this country.
11 The New Reality roc the Old Statue

1. Old Statue. Mast mothers were home taking care of their children. Even if
mothers did work it was only for a few hours a day while their children were in
school.

New Regality. Nord American mothers are not home caring for their children.
The percentage of mothers of children under 18 who are in the labor force has

increased fmm 40% in 1970 to almost 60% in 1983.'
The percentage of married women with children under 6 who are in the labor

force has increased from 30% to 50% from 1970 to 19!13.1
The percentage of female-headed families has increased from 7% in 1960 to 19%

in 1982.1 Preliminary data indicates that the vast majority of these women are in
the work force.

Most working mothers work full-time---70% of those with school-age children and
ap=tnately 62% of those with preschoolers work eight hour days.'

ions are for the female labor-force participation rates to continue to in-
crease during the 1980's, although at a slower pace than during the 70's.1 The rate

*Data supplied by Elizabeth Waldman. settler economist, U.S. Bureau of labor Statistics, Di-
vision of Employment and Unemployment

Data supplied by Elizabeth Weldon's, senior economist, U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Di-
vision of Employment and Unemployment.

I 11 S Bureau of Census, "Statistical Abstract of the United States 19K2-83." table 73
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At the present time, The Child Care Food Program has reri.*q 76,700
finnily day care horses oft.vift IT2,000 children with an average of 3.7 t-m
home. These provhboa are with appradmatzdy 700 non-pnilt

cirMizstimisthoughse Senator Helms painted out in Senate BM 1994the (And Cant
nationwide.*

Food Fragrant is "one of the smaller pangrants within the Federal Goventment", its
positive Influence has a far-ntaching eilbet an the field of child care for working par-
eats. It is the aniy of its kind in the United States which mdshlithes a nu-
tritional mesh fed to children In fan* day care homes. The program
benefitic

Childrenprintarily from hirancy to five yean of age during the most intportant
formative years of their growth and development.

Parents-who can concentiate on work knowing their charism are well fed
duiring the Jay. The OCFP reimbursement helps keep the parents' child-care costs
within a reasonsble range.

Day care providentwho receive financial and technical aodstance which helps
them hnprove the quality of their child care.

Employerswho have more productive employees with less child related than-
teeism.

C The detrimental efiect of imam eligibility criteria err working parents
Senator Heim has stated in Senate Bill 1994 that the bask minim for the dras-

tic 45% cut in funding peposed for the day care home portion of The Child Care
Food Propels is warranted since the mo serve* a large poportion of non-poor
children. He bases this concludes on the labrmatiose

An 010 audit of Child Care, a CCPP sponsor out of Mound, Minnesota
which claimed that 7 % all children enrolled with Quality were from homes with
incomes above 186% of the rovertY km&

USDA estimates that 6416 of enrolled children are from annual incomes above
18

t
,315 for

®
four

offrom both
person household.

The atatics supplied these sources in coreseem questionable inp
s$on with

et
minting data &scribing the backgrounds of the per of children in

family day care hams. This data which has been md within the last three
years from a variety of sources gives a comprehensive profile of these working par-
eats, their income levels, and their reasons far sslecti m day care home.

I. Parent Danand for Am* Day OwnAll of the in this section is
taken from the National faudy.

Family day care consti
Day
tutes the most widely used form of day care in the United

States in terms of families using non-relative care and number of children served.
More than half of the children enrolled are under six years of age.
The lament proportion of children placed by parents in family day care are under

the age of three.
Family day care represents) the most prevalent mode of care for the S million

school age children of working parents between the ages of 6 and 13.
40% of the parents using family day care are single parent families-26% are di-

vorced or separated; 15% are
According to a 1978 survey of 10,000 swkift women by Family Circle magazine,

most mothers want federally subsidized, not felly contraW, day care where
parents can pick the facility that suits their needs.'

I Income levels of patents using family day care. The families of children in
family day care tend to be smaller and poorer than the national average. The Na-
tional Day Care Home Study prepared by the Department (4' Health and Human
Services, conducted in 1981. stated that the income of parents using family day care
($12,000-015,000) was lower than the national average (median $16,000). This infor-
mation varies greatly from the USDA estimates included in Senate Bill 1994 stating
that 64% of enrolled children in The Child Care Food Program were from incomes
above 918.315 for a four person household.

Parents of children in v.ed family day cane have lower average incomes
than parents in un4omr family day core."

7 Beverly Waistrom, &Co/Director of the Child Nutrition Division, MS, United States De

Pilt74,161idnaAgiocuillves.ure:.wamenialltar*Hate and Work." Newsweek Alsgagdew. May 1980
6 "Family Day Cue in the U.S. Final of the National Day Care Home Sustrota

Department of Health and Human Services PeMMt. tma. Office of Human Development
September MI
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Studies show that day care is the fourth biggest item in many family budgets
after ta'es, housing, and food."

Family day care costs constitute 6 to 8 pm,mit of a family's gross income. Parents
Pay an the average $.60 an hour per child for care. For many parents, this expense
can easily exceed $30 per week. From a parent's perspective, family day cure, even
though it is the cheapest of alternatives, is a costly endeavor,

Generally, few parents can pey more than 10% of their total family income for
the care of their children without making serious sacrifices." Since the mean
income of parents who choose family day care is $12,000 to $15,00,0, this plates their
maximum ability to pay at about $1,200 to $1,00 a year per childan Amami
which will not support the wages needed for quality care without subsidisation.

at Parent mascots for *electing drily day care Work is obviously the principal
reason for needing child care. But parents' reasons for using family day care in par-
ticular are more varied:

More than half of the parents choose family day care became the costa are lower
than center-based care.

They are seeking the potability of special attention for their child."
There is a strong tendency to prefer family day care for one-to-three year olds."
Family day care provides a stable, warm and stimulating environment which

caters successful! y to the developmental needs of children. °
In the Natal Day Care Home Study, parents were asked what the met impor-

tant requirements were in selecting the family day care home in which they rould
leave their child. One major criteria was that their child's nutritional needs be viet.
At the time this study was compiled, the majority of parents surveyed had placed
their children in non-Child Care Food Program day care homes. Food was the most
often mentioned problem area with 14% of the parents indicating that caregivers
sometimes serve inappropriate foods (e .g.. junk food).

Moreover, the Abt Amociates Study--"Mm Evaluation of The Child Care Food
Program" found: "quite clearlz;hat the CCFP is meeting its goals of providing nu-
tritious meals to children in care in an attempt to improve their diets . . . the
nutritional quality and the variety of food served are significantly better in partici-
pating day care facilities than in non-participating facilities."

4. Conclusion.Family mtiiciar homes are the single largest group of caregivers
faxproviding child care is in this country. The working parents who

are placing their children in Care Food Program homes are primarily low and
middle income parents. Lower child care costa are the primary reason that these
parents have selected family day care. The drastic 45% cut in funding proposed in
Senate Hill 1994 will force the family day care providers to raise their feesfees
which are helping to keep child care available and affordable. If Senate Hill 1994 is
passed. the coats of child care will be increased for primarily low and middle income
parentsa group which is least able to carry the brunt of this expense.
I). The detrimental effect of income eligibility criteria on family day cure providers

1. Profile of the family day care provider.M1 of the data in this section's &scrip-
'km of family day care providers comes from the national study, "Family Day Care
in the United States" and "The Evaluation of the Child Care Food Program': con-
ducted by Abt Associates.

Age and Marital Status
Licensed family day care providers tend to be women in their thirties to fifties.

The older provider tends to be more experienced and less educated. If married, her
husband will be less educated and likely to be unemployed. The younger provider
tends to be better educated, married, and caring for her own children at home.

Household Income

The median annual household income for day care providers was just over
$10010.

s "Who Will Watch The Kids" Working Parents Worry," El S Now It World Report. June
41, P.oci

"Gwen Morgan. Chairperson of thy Social Policy, Committee of the Day ('are Council of
America. -Who Pays Fur Child Carer The Day Care Journal. Vol, 1. No, 2. Fall. 19+12

""Family Day Cart in the US final Report of the National Day Our Horne Study.- U S
Departnamt of Health ar.d Human Services Publication. Office of Human Development Services,
September 15+11
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Family day care provident on The Child Care Food 1Pr have more
rethandouble the food service coots of non-participating providers, the USDA

hnbursement they receive only covers approximately 35% of their food service costs.
=charge a single fee to all panarts which is informally regulated by what the

can bear and which, at the same time. does not offer providers an adequate
wage for their services. Senate Bill 1994 to further reduce the money pro-
viders receive from The Child Care Program driving up child care cads for
parents or lessening even further the already inadequate wages of family day cave
providers. Ultimately. it will be the children who suffer as the quality of their child
care experieme is seriously diminished.
E. The detrimental effect of income eligibility criteria on Child Core Fend Pnwram

immtsors.
The National Day Care Home Study. conducted by the U.S. Department of Health

and Human Services in 1981 described in depth the value of day care systetns which
utilise "umbrella" which, in turn, the delivery of
quality care to clig The key facts from the study describe the assist-
antic Pragram

arg
spoirsTons.aib4lpfmonnisonnglY,day

encour-
age the delivery of quality care, reduce the management burden on state and local
governments. and facilitate day can binding.

CCM' sponsors exert a tremendous influence on family day care and have provid-
ed a strong impetus for the development of needed family day care systems.

Providers surveyed for this study indicated that the organizations of-
fering of The Child Care Food Program had helped them nutritious, high

y food in care. The sponsorhig orgenizations had supported them in thinking
and fin' m meals with USDA nutritional

is
,; in mirecruitnd..

meA melor responsibility of imonsoring organizations is caregiver nt. Pro-
vider turnover and system growth continually create a end for new family day
care homes. Sponsonng organizations make a considerable investment in staff time
to insure that new caregivers can and will provide a high level of care.

Another important function of CCFP sponsors is training providers to ensure that
they offer quality care. The study found the providers received, on the average, five
hours of training per month. Surveyed parents when asked what they looked for in
selecting a family day care home, listed experience with children first and the train -

he provider second.
ng organizations enforce the The Child Care Food Prognun requitement

that participating homes must be licensed. This stipulation has had a brio-fold effect:
It has brought more day care homes into licensing, thereby bringing them into com-
pliance witihn state and local day care requirementsand federal as wellif they
serve federally subsidized children. And, licensing has provided an incentive to
make these I vers inure visible and, therefore, more accessible to parent/4.'6"

The National Care Home Study made five nisi* recommendations regarding
family day care. me of the recommendations require the support and expansion
of sponsoring organizations to accomgish:

(1) Promote the growth of family y care supply to meet the increased demand,
wrticularly in infant and toddler care. In order to assist sponsors in their outreach
for homes offe care, the study recommended that federal reimbursement rates
be set higher for under two years of age.

IV Promote the development of day care systems which play an important role in
ensuring quality by maintaining desirable enrollment levels, monitoring regulatory
compliance, training caregivers. providing technical assistance to the caregiver, and
offering a vehicle for patent involvement.

43) Increase the availability of caregiver training since training does make a dif-
ference in the kinds of experience and opportunities available to children. In reality.
however, statistics show that very few day care providers have been trained. It is
important to note that those that had received training were most likely to be in
sponsored settings.

2. Lower provider participation vs. higher administrative costs.The Abt Study
showed that The Child Care Food Program afor family day care homes was meeting
its goals of providing nutritious meals for children. It also stated:

" "Family Day Care in the U.S. Final Report of the National Day Care Home Stud ,"
Department of Health and Human Services Publication. Offi ce of Human Development

r 1981.
Serleatla )(Amerman. Codirector National Study of Child Care Services funded by the Carne-
gie Foundation. "Tbe Child Om Iltdiste." Working Woman. November 19063.
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That the administrative cods in family day care homes were 33% lower than the
administrative costa in center-based

1080 brought an illerfiefle of MO% between June 1990 and March IMII.
That the limitation of income criteria for family care homes in Wy

That larger sponsors benefit from economies of scale and have significentry lower
administrative costs per home than the small sponsors (918 is. MS per home per
month).

Thesefoye, it would logically fellow that the reinstatinent of income cri-
teria would result in a sharp reduction in provider participation which in
turn, reduce the size of the spineless to the lewd where they would have higher ad-
minietrative costs and less economy of scale. Akio, the reinstatement of income eligi-
bility criteria would result hr miner spongers dropping' out of the (mod Care Food

. at a time when there is an increasing need and thanned for sponsored
.-1 day care home care. This can readily be seem by the 4$4 CCFP spongers

sting
oper-

when Income eligibility criteria were In effect before May 1980as to
the 700 sponsors participating at the present time.

S. Adrninistrutsve probkirts for ikvonsorik

hiserwork Problems

Income eligibility criteria will require income certification documentation from
76,700 families annually. This process increases dramatically the level of paperwork
for spinners. Senrte Bill 1994 makes no provision for increased administrative fund-
ing to cover this cost.

Recruitment Problems

Provider turnover mandides the replacement of homes to maintain the needed
participation level required for a viable sponsorship. Since most iiroviders have chil-
dren from a brood cross section of socio-economic backgroundsr it will be very diffi-
cult to-target potential recruitment areas. Also, it was proven from 1976 to 1980,
when income eligibility was for family dew care providers on the OCFP,
that providers receiving low .,irymeans would not participate in a
which mandated higher food costs and then did not come close to coveting
costs.

Confidentiality Problems

Confidentiality of parent Income information is an extremely sensitive issue in an
informal family day care home setting is which the provider and parents often are
friends and live in the same neighborhood. Sponsors participating in the CCFP
before May 1980 when income eligibility was a part of the program reported that
two major factors limited program participation: low reimbursement to the provid-
er; provider reluctance to gather income eligibility documentation from parents.

Diecrimination Problems

The most devastating effect of income eligibility criteria would be in the possible
discrimination to which a provider would be forced in order to maintain a high
enough reimbursement to cover even a portion of her food costs. At a time when the
demand from parents of all socioeconomic levels is increasing for family day care,
particularly infant and toddler care, providers would be compelled to shift their day
care slots to low income children in order to obtain the subsidy they so desperately
need in their low-paying profession.

.4. Conclusion.--Child Care Food Program sponsoring organisations encourage the
delivery of quality care, reduce the management burdens on state and local govern-
ments, and facilitate day care flooding. They exert a tremendous influence on family
day care homes by encouraging desirable enrollment levels, monitoring re 'awry
compliance. training caregivess, providing technical assistance to the providers, and
offering a vehicle for parent involvement. For these services, sponsors change the
lowest administration costs in the child care field.

The reinstatement of income eligibility criteria could bring about a sharp reduc-
tion in provider participation in the Child Care Food Program which would raise
the level of administrative cast, decrease the economies of scale, and force many

Anto drop out of the Child Care Food Program. Those sponsors that remain in
g3ram will experience problems with: dramatically increased from

income documentation. difficulties with recruitment of low income confi-
dentiality complications involving providers who resist gathering income informs-
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tion from parents, and mail, discrimination twinet middle and high income chil-
dren in the offering of available slots for child care.
F. klirther costs Os the Child aim Food Program are not warranted

Further cuts are not warranted given the degree of cuts air legislated into
the Child Care Food Program in FY 1962 by Public Law 97-35 resulted in a
total Child Care Food Program reduction in funding of approxinuitely &M. The cuts
included:

A 10% economy of scale reduction in administrative reimbursements to CCFP
. In reality, this cut amounted to approximately 23.5% because of the

MigirAlitemetat of the reconciliation language.
An intended 10% cut in provider reimbursement by:

Reducing reimbursement from five meals to no more than two meals and one
snack per child per day.

Allowiiigie
for free or reduced price meals.

the family day care provider to claim her own children only if they
were el

Reducing the reimbursement for children from 16 years to 12 years' of age.
In reality. the effect of P.L. 97-3 on sponsors forced them to reduce their admin-

istrative costs, seek other funding sources, or operate at a loss according to the Abt
Study. The at went on to say that the reduction in reimbursements to the family
day care ranged from 25% in homes serving breakfast, lunch and two
snacks wit the provider not caring for ber own children to 45% to 66% reduction
in homes where the provider's own children were not income

I. Conclusion. The net effect of the cuts legislated in The Care Food Pro-
gram in 1982 was 30%. Now Senate BM 1994 is propoidng that an additional 45%
cut in reimbursement to the family day care pravtder be pamed. It has been proven
that these providers have: average mean incomes sandier the Poverty Level, earn on
the average a fee below the minimum hourly wage, and are the single largest group
of non - relative caregivers in the country for middle and low income parents. If
Senate Hill 1994 were passed, the results would be a cummulative cut in irs for
the Child Care Food Program over the past three years of 75%.

The goal of saving federal money should be realised by reductions in some other
area of the federal NWpt that has not already suffered such serious decreases in
funding This position paper has proven that the Child Care Food Prop- s is a valu-
able program which offers important assistance to working parents anal family day
cure providers FY $2 reductions in funding were deep and cut into the "bone" of
the program. To further reduce this program would seriously affect the health and
well-being of over 270.000 children in this country. We ask that the Senate legislate
no further cuts to this important promise; and, that on the contrary. Congress seri-
ously consider minoring funding to The Child Care Food Program

STATLMENT op ARMAND BALL, EXIKCUTIIIK Vice PRILLISLW-14T, AMERICAN CAMPING
ASSOCIATLON, MARTtNEWILLE, ID

Mr Chairman and Members of the Senate Subcommittee on Nutrition: I am
Armand Ball from Martinsville. Indiana. I am Executive Vice President of the.
American Camping Association which is located on the Outdoor Education Campus
of Indiana University near Martinsville. Indiana.

American Camping Association is a national non-profit professional organization
founded in 1919 to achieve professional practices in organized camps, and to inter-
pret the role of youth camps in the United States. Within our membership are the
directors and owners of children's camps, camps for senior citizens, for families, and
a great variety of special populations whose sponsors or owners include private indi-
viduals. community organizations. the major religious denominations and all the
gio-eat youth organizations in the nation including Bay and Girl Scouts, the Y's,
('amp Fire. Jewish Welfare Board and Salvation Army. The American Camping As-
sociation's national of and fulltime staff is headquartered at Bradford Woods,
Martinsville. Indiana. on the Outdoor Education Campus of Indiana University.
Thirty-two local Sections iChapteno serve the membership and public.

American Camping( Association represents some 60% of the over 11,000 camps in
the' country We estimate over M.000,000 children are served by the nation's camps
each year and over 4.00.090 attend ACA Accredited Camps. One fourth of the
camps in the 1 rioted States are actually accredited under ACA's National Standards
Program Other ramtm, such as private, national agencies and organizations are also
influenced through participation of their national leadership in the American
(' amping Assi slat ion
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The Association's Parents' Guide to Accredited Camps lids, 2,200 youth
. which have been visited while in imeration by trained ACA impactors and
ed by ACA. These camps are located in all 50 states and several foreign countries. I
have placed a copy of this Parent's Guide in each intenber's packet.

The activities of our camps vary as widely as the purposes, personalities and spas
of their owners and sponsors, but an one goal all youth camps leaders in the United
States are united . . .au in the camping field want to operate safe and

camps for those and entrusted to them. This is not just from the
and concern for .,1.1" ". which camping jpeople already have, but it

is obviously "good m" and necsimary for each camp's reputation.
I would like to attest to the benefit of the Summer Reding Program as it affects

organized across the land, not only on behalf of the menibers of the Ameri-
can Cam but the directors of many ausisie not affiliated with our
orgara From the earliest days of camps in our country, there has
been a etrong interest and concern to KovW an outdoor living experence for young- t
stars from the lower econandc strata of society. Early attention to this need was
seen in the Settlement House Deal with particular concern for youngsters living in
the crowded tenement in the city, but soon spread throughout a vatietz:f agenda!
and religious groups. A resurgence of the concern nationally for the "
d the '60's provided some funding and increased activity for camping for the
in child.

In recent years, the soaring rate of inflation and recessionary premarres have
mode it increasingly difficult for the non- profit camp organised to serve children
from lower income families. Non-profit organizations, including churches, have
Made efforts to increase the contributory dollar to meet the increasing costa, but
often hinds available meant the organizations had to limit the number of camper-
ships.

The Summer Feeding Program has provided an opportunity to not only meet the
goals of providing better nutrition for qualified children but also the concern of or-
ganizations to increase the number of youth having an outdoor group living experi-
ence.

: Rather than to belabor my comments, I though you might wilily hearing from
*our constituency directly:
\A director of a Salvation Army resident camp reported their camp was able to
service an additional 125 youngsters from the black community who probably would
not have participated in the Summer Feed' Program in their community.

The Director of Hollow Children's Inc. of Indianapolis. Indiana, re-
ports that the Summer eding Program funding enabled their camp to serve better
quality meals with more meat and fruit juices.

The director of a New York camp reported that their camp was able to provide
the best quality food they have ever been able to serve totally due to the Summer
Feeding Program.

The Director of the Fresh Air Funds Camps of New York stated that (1) the
Summer Feeding Program has fostered not only increased awareness of goad nutri-
tion but conscious efforts by staff to teach principles to campers, and (2) the Food
Program requirements and enforcement by state department officials have led to
better foods handling practices, e,g. use of food without additives or preservatives,
use of only fresh vegetables, and increased concern for etorage.

The director qf four camps of Hiram House in Chagrin Falls, Ohio. notes that it
enabled limited funds to spread in order to serve more children in the area and,
thus. nerve more nutritious meals to more children.

The director of Catholic Youth Camps in St. Paul, Minnesota, reported "We were
able to increase by 100* the number of pom. children coming to camp in our schol-
arship program. Those additional 25 children would not have come to camp if we
had not been provided funds through the SPSP. Needless to say, the environment
from which they came would not have provided them with the nutritious meals they
received while at camp, let alone the opportunity to leave the intercity and experi-
ence the wonder of God's creation."

Since 1976, Channel Three Country Camp has pa. ticipated in the Summer Food
Service Program as administered by the Connecticut State Board of Education. The
Program enables us to improve the quality of the camp's food service which pro-
vides three meals and a snack daily for over 100 children during an 8-week summer
period. These children are from low income families, individually documented as to
family size and income. Loss of this program would severely threaten our camp's
ability to continue providing camping services to these families who have little or
no alternative for summer recreational programs or nutritious meals.
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So to summarize, I find camp directors from throe out the country identifying
three major accomplishments of the Summer Feedinttow.incontein

(1) They have been able to enroll same additional youngsters in camp.
and, therefore. increased the number of children receiving ntftmal food.

(2) They have been able to enrich menus, providing more fresh vegetables, fruits,
meat and milk that has ever been possible m tfie tightly-squeezed food budgets of
non-profit organizations.

(3) They have been able to provide nutritious meals that could never have been
budgeted, thus enriching the child's diet.

Camp often becomes the important link in providing care for children of the
single parent and homes where both parents work. It not only provides good sum--
vision but insures nutritious meals, served by leaders with concern for each child's
food consumption.

There is probably no greup other than school lunch directors with greater experi-
ence in carefid food preparation, budgeting and.cest controls than the camp director
and his/her food service . Even before the days of inflation/recession, camp
directors have had to careful y budget food purchases, design menus to get the
greatest value for the dollar, and to carefully control service topp t waste. Many
of the provisions and regulations of the Summer Feeding Pin aT are second
nature to the camp director, and I have been able to document very little waste in
camp ms across the country. Much of the credit for improved menus and cost
controls goes to the staff of the Forrd'snd Nutrition Service who have prepared ex-
cellent guideline and resources for outer food service personnel.

We view the proposed Block Grant with alarm for several reasons.
(II We believe in many, and per:iaps meet. states there would be a tendency to

utilire all the funds through public entities. Since 9696 of organised camping is clone
under private ausp this would miss the majority of low-income youngsters who
go to camp, as well as eliminate many others from being able to attend camp. From
the outset, there are 17 states that, by state law, would currently be unable to serve
non-public camps. We believe the private sector has a strong and viable role in serv-
ice to the low-income your

(2! We believe there would be a great diversity in eligiblity standards, nutritional
guidelines and assistance under the Block Grant plan. Good nutrition does not vary
from state to state. A child's nutritional needs are a national concern. The state by
state regulation would make it doubly difficult for many camps which are ph
located in one state but serve clientele from adjoining states The program deserves
a national standard and administration.

We have great concern about the number of local units of national youth serving
organizations such as Boy Scouts, YMCA, etc. who have dropped out of this program
because of the increased paperwork required by the collection of social security
numbers for all adult members of a camper's household. These camps felt the in-
creased cost for meeting these requirements was more than the reimbursement re-
ceived. The camps that have dropped have most often been camps which have been
involving low-income youth as a mainstream segment of a camp plation rather
than camps exclusively for low-income youngsters. We regret that these opportuni-
ties for intercultural and cross-societal experiences have been eliminated for many
youngsters.

The American Camping Association supports the value of the Summer Feeding
Program and urges this Committee to reauthorize its existence under the present
system We believe that organized camps are a valuable extension of the Child Nu-
trition Program during the rest of the year. We believe that it is an excellent dem-
onstration of the collaboration of the public and private sector in serving needy chil-
dren Make it possible fOr us to continue to do so

STATFMF".11 OF PATRICIA MALT!. INFICUTIVE QUALITO CUM, CARP%
Movt.m. MN

Patricia Maltz is my name. I urn the chief executive officer of Quality Child Cure.
Inc I appreciate the opportunity to provide specific information to the members of
the Subcommittee on Nutrition I know that many of you have been very supportive
of the issues surrounding family day care and child care in general over the past
years We' have appreciated the leadership contributed on behalf of family day care
and look forward to the continuing commitment.

As an organization, Quality Child Care is nearing the completion of its I nth year
of conducting business We are a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization that provides
services to family day care providers and the children they serve Among other
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number of children that I cared for were five preschoolers including my own two
preschoolers and two schoolege children, one who attended kindergarten and the
other first grade. As I am now m the 13th year of my career in the field
of family day care, I believe that I can offer several A historical perspective
of family day care, views of providers I meet and work with on a very regular basis.
plus a focus on the national policy of child care and the role that family day care
pla_ys.

Family day care has and always will be the major care provider of children in this
nation. My statement is based on the definition of family day care as being the indi-
vidual who cares for children from more than one family while the parents are at
work or school. My definition does not include a requirement that providers be regu-
lated. National studies indicate that for every family care provider who is regulated
in some manner by state regulation, or federal certification there are six to ten in-
dividuals who are not regulated. While we have made some inroads into the regula-
tion of caregivers, we are a long way from full regulation of this service in the
United States today. Family truly a service industry. in this nation.
Whet it has to sell to parents is in providing care for their children, new-
born to generally age 10 and often age 2. Parents, be they tangle Made of house-
hoick; or not. need care for their children so they can support their family.

There are many dimensions to the service of family day care. include flexi-
bility of times that family day care is available- the willingness of .= care
providers to serve lunch twice every when they agree to care for two
ten children, one who attends and one who attends afternoon
kindergarten; and providing care for child who comes early in the morning, eats
breakfast, goes off to school and returns after the school day, has a snack and is
supervised durrih the remainder of the afternoon until the parents arrive back from
work. Additionally, that provider cares for that school-age child full-time on any
school holidays and in Minnesota on any snow days, plus often cares for that child
during the summer when full-time care is again Many providers do the
basic toilet training for children when they are . Providere tell me they also
train the parents. provide the opportunity for learning various skills that are
appropriate for the ages of the children, i.e. large and srcall motor, cognitive, con-
ceptual, language. Many providers work with children who have learning disabil-
ities. Many providers give basic parenting education to first-time parents who do not
have another support group as extended family members to help them in the
very important job of parenting.

Family day care's role is also changing. We see the movement towards more spe-
cialized situations occurring in family day care. Parents need amistance in numer-
ous areas and this service industry is responding. Family day care providers will
assist with hair cuts, kindergarten shots and first visits to dentists. As parents
across the nation have ever-increasing demands made on their time, they will re-
prioritize how they use their tine with their children.

As we move through the ilOs and into the 90s, family day care will continue to
play an ever-increasing valuable role in how this nation cares for its children. We
see increasing numbers of single-parent families. We see increasing demand for
child care service. The combination of these items is going to put a continued stress
on family day care in being responsive in its services, but more importantly on who
will enter the profession of family day care. The question becomes, "What incen-
tives are there for me to choose to be a family day care provider?" As an organiza-
tion. Quality Child Care will be competing with the many other occupations in this
nation for our shrinking pool of available workers. We are on the cutting edge of
making decisions about what enhancements need to be available in family day care
to invite people into the career of caring for children. All of us in this room have a
very serious reponsibility to be considering the question of "Who's going to care for
our children?" This is particularly important as we struggle to remain economically
healthy as a nation based on our ability to produce, be it industrial, be it informa-
tion. be it services, That success will be directly tied to our ability to care for our
children Family day care is the key.

En terms of the clay-to-day activities of family day care, providers generally care
for three to five children. They often begin work between 6:00 and 6:30 a.m. The day
officially ends, in terms of their relationship with the children, between 5:30 and
fi:(10 p.m. That does not mean the end of the family day care duties as there is
always washing to be done, food to be paned, bathroom toilets to be cleaned and
a house to be picked up. A provider's Saturdays' are spent buying groceries and re-

,. plenishing any supplies, such as paper and crayons and those kinds of things, and
watching for good buys at garage sales for toys. Occasionally you are off at a work-
shop getting some additional training in the areas of how to communicate with par-
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Senators, thus far I've shared my knowledge on the subject of family day care. As
perhaps you've gathered, I believe family day care plays a major role in the future
of our nation. It a important to recognize the cost of child care paid by the parents.
With an average cost of $36.00 per week, within ouwreetonsorship, parents pay a
child care bill of approximately ,T,MI0,000 every four

I would like to now direct my comments to the hose of reinstating a means test
for children in family day care. I would like to state clearly that I do not support
the reinstating of a means test for family day care. Philosophically, I understand
the desire to target federal support to the most needy; in practical terms, the con-
cept is unvi. Congress hes spent the last eight years conveying a message to
family day care that it it as a primary means of caring for children.
was done in the 1976 Tax Warn Act where family ray care was given the only
exemption from the ReCtusive Use Rule for a business in the home. The message
repeated itself in the 1978 reauthorization of the Child Care Food Program where
the elimination of the means test occurred, the &riding of atart-up coats for new
sponsors and the mandate to states to outreach extensively to family day care.
Again in 1961, with the effort to reduce federal ". of the CCFP, oc-
curred on this very committee to madam to support day care.
the tremendous burden of paperwork that accompanies a test, this committee
limited the number of meals which could be claimed and im the means
test only for providers own children if a provider wished to daW their meals

These efforts constitute significant statements of support to family day care. To
move to a means test today delivers one measageWW and clear. Family day care,
we no longer support you are the children you care for. I have a difficult tame be-
lieving that you want to advocate this position.

I would like to share what I perceive the impact of the means tests on providers. I
continually hear from providers:

(1) I won't ask my parents to tell me what they earn.
(2) I'm embarrassed to ask my parents to to me this, so I'll drop the program.
(3 My parents work hard and can't afford to pay me more
(4) If I ask them to fill this out, they will think I'm on a welfare program.
(5) There's too much paperwork for the money.
(6) The sponsor has to spend so much to administer this paperwork that they can't

send me much for food.
As a sponsor. I hear:
(1) The costs of ing the papers, including the certification checks each

month, are too m .
(2) It takes 25 days to process this for 1.500 providers even with a computer.
13) We never know from one month to the next if we'll serve enough low income

kids in our homes to cover our administrative costs.
(4) We can only serve towns and cline because it costs too much to sponsor a

home in a rural area.
451 Kids move in and out of family day care more often than in schools or centers

so the ?openwork burden is even greater.
(61 It a hard to tell providers we can't pay them a greater share of the meal reim-

bursement as the administrative costs are so great.
(7, This is the only program we have so well have to go out of business as there's

not enough low income kids in FDC close to us to cover all the administrative costs.
Nary. This program for family day care has created over 600 groups that specifi-

cally sponsor homes. This was in direct response to Congress' desire to have FIX',
served. It is generally the only significant program the group offers.

14 It's good business practice to plan for the futurewith a means test a sponsor
does not know until 30 days after the end of a month whether or not the costs of
administration will be covered. If the costs are not, it's already too late to do some-
thing: secondly. you are now through a second 30 day period of incurring costs; and.
finally, losses cannot, under Child Care Food Program regulations. be carried for-
ward.

I've been asked specifically to speak to the issue of patterning benefits of the
Child Care Food Program for family day care after the area designations used in
summer food programs. In reviewing the locations of the homes in the states we
serve. I believe that this targeting would be of very little benefit. This is based on
the fact that Minnesota, North Dakota. Nebraska, Wisconsin, Illinois and much of
Texas have large geographic areas, not densely populated, but still containing chil-
dren who need care. There may be a specific precinct area of Minneapolis, St. Paul,
Milwaukee or Omaha that would meet the summer food area designation criteria.
However, these do nut represent the areas where the majority of children in family
day care re located. Chicago. Houston. Dallas and San Antonio may have several
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The NET P is equally important in that it mutri.: for the training of the
food service worker and thereby helps to improve school meal management overall.
With the decreased funding for the Child Nutrition P* ograms it becomes more im-
portant than ever that the food service worker be adequately trained in nutrition
and food service management. Moreover, by teaching the food service worker the
principles of nutrition and food preparation techniques the program helps to im-
prove the nutritional value and food quality of the Meals served in the school allele
ria and thereby reduce plate waste.

NET is also important as a cost savings measure ilecause it can ultimately de-
crease health can costs. Education of school age children is thought to be the most
cost-eflicient way in which to develop a nutritionsdly populathm since life-
time food habits are establnbed at an early age. Thus, is an investment in a
person for a lifetime; it offers tools for making Appropriate choices loaf after a
student moves from the classroom into the world where he . she must decide what
to purchase* for the family in the grocery store or order Iron \ a menu in a restau-
rant. By teaching wise food choices early in life, the prove* helps to minimize
future health care costs resulting from poor dietary choices. In a country where six
of the ten leading causes of death are linked to diet, and dental and iron dell-

o
ciency viague much of the school age potlation, this is an his t consideration.

One mal point worth noting ia that utilizes the strengths not only of the
federal government, but also of each of the individual states. The fedeled component
offers costoaving advantages by helping to ensure that success materials
and nutrition education programs are inated throughout the tr?;:magnv d
thus, one program benefits hum the experiencea of others. At the same ti howev-
er, administering the program through state agencies has provided each with
an assessment of the nutrition education needs of its students, teachers itching
food service personnel, and thus allowed the to be tailored to local
needs. Additionally, NET acts as a catalyst for a of nutrition education activity
in the st.tes that would otherwise not occur. It should be noted, however, that the
numerous fiscal constraints faced by the states today makes it impossible for them
to take on full responsibility for nutrition education.

NET is currently operating in 54 states and territories and has reached over
19,072,2142 students, 619,568 teachers and 351,748 food service personnel with nutri-
tion education information. Additionally, many states have been able to provide nu-
trition education information to parents, nurses, dentists coaches, principals, super-
intendents and school business managers as well. Each of these individuals can play
an important role in children with nutrition education.

Since its inception the Program has met with success. An independent pro-
gram evaluation funded by USDA and conducted by Abt Associates, Inc. in 1981
found that even in the initial years NET Programs were fumtioning well and that
program activities were having a positive impact on nutrition knowledge and food
preferences of children. The GAO Report entitled "What Can Be Done to Improve
Nutrition Education Efforts in the Schools?" compiled in May, 1982 by the General
Accounting Office for the Administration, likewise supported the importance and
cost-effectivenese of nutrition education in general and the NET Program in par-
ticular. The NET Program was cited as an effective way to implement a much
needed educational program. Evaluations of the NET Program in the various states
have found equally impressive results including:

Decrease in plate waste e.g.. Arkansas noted that plate waste had decreased by 45
percent.

Increase in school lunch participation e.g., Ohio found that school lunch participa-
tion was 7-S percent higher in NET schools compared to non-NET schools.

Increase in nutrition knowledge tg students, teachers and school food service
personnel e.g., Tennessee teachers and school food service personnel showed a signif-
icant mean gain in nutrition knowledge while elementary children scored higher on
nutrition knowledge than their peers who were not involved in the NET Program.

Change in nutrition practices among students, teachers and school food service
personnel e.g.. California found that food choices among students improved 21 per.
cent; Oregon noted reductions in the fat and siwr_content of school meals, and Ari-
zona reported an increase in the willingness of NET children to try new foods.

Change in attitude toward nutrition among students, teachers and food service
personnel e.g.. California reported students' attitudes about nutrition improved by 5
percent and Washington state reported improved communication among food serv-
ice personnel, principals, teachers and students.

Increase in parent involvement in nutrition education activities e.g.. Florida re-
ported an increase in parent involvement in the school lunch program.
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APRIL 4, 1984 MARIN;

MTN
STATEMENT OF NON. WALTER R. HERMISTON,

A U.S. SENATOR FROM KINTUCIT

Today's bearing will be focusing on a matter of great concern
to me--the future of the school lunch and other child nutrition
programs.

The 1980 and 1981 budget cuts to the school lunch and child nu-
trition programs totalled $1.5 billion. Unfortunately, a portion
of the savings have been realized by penalizing the children of
the working poor who cannot afford to do without the benefit of
the programs since there is no other safety net for them.

S. 1913 is a modest response to a deplorable situationthe
high dropout rate in the reduced-price categories of the school
lunch and breakfast programs. Approximately 400,000 children who
once were receiving reduced-price meals are no longer participat-
ing in the school lunch and breakfast programs. In addition,
children were forced from the free category to the reduced-price
category because the income eligibility levels were changed for
free meals. Moving from free to reduced-price meals was particu-
larly devastating for these children because their cost of a meal
went from free to 40 cents. For a family on a tight budget and
with several children, additional annual expenses of hundreds of
dollars are a severe burden. Congress can remedy this situation
and make other needed improvements in these programs by adding
back only 10 percent of the total $1.5 billion saved.

Although I am encoearged that 52 Senators are supporting my
bill, I am perplexed that critics are charging that the benefici-
aries of my bill are so-called nonneedy children. The fact is,
these are children from families that may not be eligible for

food stamps or other welfare programs but whose income may be as
low as $12,871 for a family of four. I would not for a moment
assume that a family of four with an annual income of $12,871,
before taxes, is having an easy time trying to make ends meet.

Critics have also pointed out that only 30 percent of the addi-
tional benefits provided under my bill are targeted to children
from families whose incomes are below $12,870 per year. I would
point out that the 1981 Reconciliation Act did not cut the sub-
sidies for free meals. Therefore, the major program changes
needed are to assist those families with low incomes in the
$12,871 to $18,315 range.

The simple tact is that the children who should be helped now
are those who were hurt the most by the budget cuts. It is

obvious, based on the drop in participation, that the increased
price for a lunch or a breakfast is difficult to meet for many of
the families with limited incomes.

The dtatus quo for these programs is preferable to the addi-
tional budget cuts that some have proposed, but that is not such
of a choice. It already appears that Congress' pest actions may

149



147

have been penny wise and pound foolish. However, new that we
know what effects these budget cuts have bad on our Nation's
children, I believe we are duty-bound to correct the inequities.

S. 1913 has been carefully targeted to make restorations that
are absolutely essential and make other important improvements
that this Committee and Congress should be addressing.

In the last 6 months, the House passed comparable legislation
to S. 1913 on more than one occasion. Like S. 1913, the House

4091-- awaits the Senate's consideration. In

addition, the House Education and Labor Committee has reported
.R. 7, which includes the provisions of H.R. 4091 and reauthori-

zation f those child nutrition programs that are due to expire
t t = end of this fiscal year.

I hope, Mr. Chairman, that the Committee will see fit to make
the modest restorations and those improvements that are contained
in my bill during the reauthorization process of the child nutri-
tion programs.

I look forward to hearing testimony from today's witnesses.

STATEMENT OF HON. BOB DOLE,
A U.S. SENATOR FROM KANSAS

Mr. Chairman, this hearing represents yet another part of the
series of Subcommittee and full Committee hearings that are oc-

curring in conjunction with the reauthorization of the child nu-
trition programs this year.

Suboxmnittee Hearing

On Monday, March 12, the Subcommittee on Nutrition held a hear-
ing to address various issues concerning the school lunch, school
breakfast, child care food and summer feeding programs, along
with nutrition education and training. The testimony that was

presented to the Subcommittee was very informative and will help
us to sake policy decisions later this year with regard to the

child nutrition programs as a whole.

One of the issues that was explored in the course of this
previous hearing was the impact of 1981 changes in the reduced-

price category of the school lunch program. There are those who
claim that we went too far in raising the price of this type of

lunch from 20 cents to 40 cents, and that consequently, near-poor
children have dropped out of the program. But there are also
those who say that 40 cents is a reasonable price ro charge for a
lunch, given that the price remained so low for no many years

previously. I think this issue probably requires some further
evaluation.

1 5
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Reauthorization Process

This year, we will have an opportunity to take a close look at
all of the child nutrition programs once again, although
technically, only the 'nonentitlement programs are up for

reauthorization. These programs are tlie special supplmental food
program for women, infants, and children (WIC), the summer food
service program, nutrition education and training, State adminis-
trative expenses, and the authority for section 32 commodities.

1981 Reconciliation

During the reconciliation process of 1981, Congress enacted a
lot of changes in the school lunch, school breakfast, child care,
and summer food programs. After a period of program stability,
we can now look back to see how these changes have affected the
programs in question. It is my belief that the changes we made
helped to improve the targeting of benefits, and, in some
instances, eliminated abuses that were in practices. Some pro-
gram directors will actually admit that these changes made them
improve their programs.

At the Subcommittee hearing on March 12, Shaton Evans, the food
service director for Kansas City, Kansas, stated:

"Facing those cuts was no easy task. It was tough and diffi-
cult and scary. Tough for employees who had no lob security for

8 months. It was difficult to reduce the force, to establish
productivity standards, to detail work schedules, to evaluate
staff assignments and to evaluate serving techniques. It was
scary facing the uncertainty of unknown reimbursement rates. But

we did survive and our programs are stronger."

These budget reductions that were enacted in 1981 for the child
nutrition programs totalled $1.3 bill4on, but they received
bipartisan support in the Congress .or slowing the growth of
these programs. We should not retreat from spending reductions
unless some signficant harm has been caused by our previous
actions. Apparently, this is a matter for some debate.

Current Legislation

1 am aware of two bills currently pending before this
Committee': S. 1911, the Huddleston-Cochran bill, and its

counterpart, H.R. 4091. Although I disagree with the way in
which most of the benefits are targeted in both of these bills, I

think the issues they raise should be given a fair hearing in
this Committee. The Federal Government is now operating in a

fiscal climate that demands we be certain nutrition program funds
are being targeted effectively to low-income children.

As the CB0 evaluations reveal, both S. 1913 and H.R. 4091 would
direct over 10 percent of their benefits to children from fami-

lies above 110 percent of poverty, which defines lowincome elig-
ibility for the food stamp school lunch, and breakfast programs.
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Although there are some who would say that we should feed all
American children regardless of income status, there comes a

point when the question must be raised as to who should pay for

feeding of these children. Tt is certainly not inequitable to

expect parents to contribute te their children's school lunches
to the extent that they are capable of paying something.

New Direction for Child Nutrition

Aside from the smaller debates over limited funding restore-
+ tions for various child nutrition programs, I think tie time has
A

come to examine the direction in which many of the child nutri-
tion pfograms are headed. The American School Food Service Asso-
ciation has suggested a new direction for the school lunch pro -

t, gram -- a self-financed universal lunch prograL, which I believe

has some merit as a policy option. However, I do not think that
we are at a stage in the development of these programs where we

could implement such a plan. instead, a feasibility study might

be appropriate at this time, but this kind of debate is most
welcome.

During the time I served as a Member of the Select Committee on
Nutrit)on, and now, as the current Chairman of the Subcommittee

on Nutrition, I have consistently been a strong supporter of the

child nutrition programs. Just because I happen to be in disa-

greement over some policy issues involved in pending legislation
does not, and should not, erode the long-standing support that I

have manifested for these programs. Nothing has changed my com-
mitment to these programs or my belief that the Federal Govern-
ment should maintain its leadership role in the nutrition program
area.

[The following material was inserted by Senator He Ims:j
(The President's Task Force on Food Assistance issued its report

examining Federal food assistance programs on January 18, 1984.
Excerpts from the task force report dealing with Federal child nu-
trition programs are reprinted here.)

I PORT or THE PRESIDENT'S TASK FORCE ON Foos ASSISTANCE

,8!

rti PEDERAL FOOD ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

It Child Nutrition Programs
Each of the child nutrition programs--the National School Lunch Program.

School Breakfast Program, Child Care Feeding Program, Summer Feeding Program,
and the Special Milk Programoffers children, especially low-income children, the
opportunity to partake of meals prepared sway from their homes. Their stated pur-
pier is to provide nutritional supplementation to a presumably vulnerable group.
School feeding programs are intended to contribute to a healthy environment
within which learning opportunities for the children will be enhanced. It should be
noted that the nutritional well-being of low-income children is often insured to a
greater extent than would be statistically apparent because participation in child
nutrition programs is not offset in the calculation of food stamp benefitb. For exam-
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ple. the overlap between the receipt of food stamps and free school lunches has been
valued at more than $500 million annually.

The child nutrition programa include:
School Lunch Frograin.As diecumed earlier, about one-half of all schoolchildren

eat school lunettes. The school lunch program provides cash subsidies and commcrd-
ities to public and private schools to make low-priced and nutritional lunches avail-
able to all students. All lunches, including MI-price lunches, are subsidized to some
degree. Students in households with inemnes below 185 percent of 418,315
for a family of four in 19831 for reduced-price lunches, wh nal law
can cast no more than $40. is in households below 130 percent $ poverty
quality for free lunches.

School Breaker
rani

as in the School Lunch Program, breakfast sub-
sidies are provided for free, reduced price, and paid meals. Subsidies take the form
or both cash and commodities. Schools where more than 40 percent of meals are
free or reduced-priced qualify as baying "severe need" and receive extra reimlnuse-
ments.

Child Care Food Prtiritenirs.Subsidy rates and eligibility criteria for the day care
center program parallel those of the school lunch and breakfast In the
daycare home program, virtually Wall meals are served free, of family
income.

Summer Food These neighborhood programs operate in areas where
more than 50 percent of school lunches are free or reduced price. Summer camp
programs also provide subsidized meals for camps serving low income children.

L Effects of the Omnibus Budget Act.The Task Force is con-
cerned about claims that Omnibus ; Reconciliation Act had impaired the
child nutrition programs and a the have became less widely available
to those who require them. The important of the child nutrition programs is
the National School Lunch Program. The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of
1981 implemented important changes in this program which reduced the subsidy
rates per meal for the full-price and reduced-price lunches, eliminated the emitted
income deduction for determining eligibility, and increased the maximum charge on
reduced-price meals. The income cutoff between reduced-price and hill -price lunches
was lowered from 195 percent to 185 percent of the poverty line and the cutoff point
between free and reduced-price lunches was raised from 125 to 130 percent of the
poverty line. Deductions used in determining income were also limited. Parallel
changes in subsidy rates and eligibility were made in the School Breakfast and Day
Care Center Programs." These changes generally resulted in increases in lunch
prices for stucknits in the paid and reduced-price category. Results of an analysis of
Current Population Survey data similar to that reported for food stamps indicate
that the OBRA changes have not reduced the receipt of free and reduced-price
school lunches within the poverty population. Participation in the hill -price school
lunch program among higher income families has dropped, however, partially in re-
sponse to the decreased subsidization and higher prices of these meals:

SCIVOL LUNCH PUTICIPATON RATIOS

1979 19811 1981 1982

Percentage of tannins recerving free or reduced pre school lunches
Income below 100 percent cowry Ihresketd 512 59 9 519 610

Percentage of 'nitres rev: em Ng pre school Isarlies
Income grater than 185 percent potrty thashold 563 531 511 483

rears se eaters 5 18 Ives arse
Soria Sarni lanslasons fists Macs CPS

These findings are consistent with the testimony we heard indicating that in-
creases in prices reduce the number of children that buy school lunches.

A recent study found that families do not reduce their food expenditures when
their children participate in the program. Thus, a dollar expended in the School
Lunch Program results in a Burger increase in food consumption than, for example.
a dollar expended through the Food Stamp Program. Studies also indicate that
school lunches have a positive impact on nutritional intake. The nutritional benefits

"The Congress/sons! Budget Office estimates that the changes in child nutrition program
implemented in 1981 resulted in savings of 15 billion over the period T. 1914.ri
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to students who participate in the School Breakfast Program, however, are less cer-
tain.

Although the School Lunch Program appears to make a positive contribution to
the intakes of many children, there is no evidence that this results in improved
growth. Studies show that long-term participants in the School Lunch Program do
not achieve greater height than non-participants; however, they are somewhat heav-
ier for their age than non-participants, especially among older children. In contrast,
there are no discernible effects of the School Breakfast Program on either height-
for-age or weight-for-height measures.

lilyEl. for subsidised child care center meals was tightened in parallel with
the cWwes made in the school lunch and school breakfast programs in 1981. Thus,
children in poverty households continue to be eligible for free meals in this pro-

, but subsidy rates have been reduced for children in hider- income house-
In addition, the maximum number of subsidized meals was reduced from

three per day (plus snack) to two per day (plus snack) per child. As a result of these
changes, meals served in child care centers reached a peak in 1981 and declined
about seven t between 1981 and 198$. Available studies indicate that the nu
tritional ity of meals and snacks offered by participating centers is higher than
those offered in non-participating centers.

In contrast to the day care center program, the child care home program, which
ides subsidies for free meals served in day care homes, has continued to expand.
number of meals served was six percent higher in 1983 than in 1981. One prob-

lem with the day care pnagram, however. is that its benefits are poorly targeted.
There is no means-testing in this program, because of excessive administrative costs
that would be required to verify income in these homes. which often have only a
handful of participants. As a result, it is estimated that more than two-thirds of the
participants have incomes in excess of 185% of the poverty line. Thus, the program
essentially subsidizes private home day care for non -poor families. Day care centers,
on the other hand, have more low-income participantsmany in fact are Head
Start centers.

The Summer Food Program continues to offer free meals to all children in certain
low-income areas. Recent program changes, however, have limited the areas where
these meals are served. First, areas eligible for the program have been limited to
those in which 50 percent or more of school meals are served free or at reduced
prices. Second. the kind of organizations that can spo ssor these programs has been
restricted. As a result of these changes, between 1981 and 1983 the number of sites
where summer meals are served has declined from 21,000 to 15,000nearly 30 per-
centand the number of meals served has declined about t2 percent

.! Availability and participationEach of the child nutrition programs exhibits a
marked variation in availability and/or participation across states and even scrums
counties within states. An examination of availability and participation in 14 states
indicates that the share of school lunches in the free and reduced price categories
varies from 2F percent to 75 percent.' The share of students who have access to
school breakfasts varies from eight percent to 80 percent from school to school. The
share of students participating in Summer Feeding Programs varies from less than
one percent to more than five percent.

In sum. the child nutrition programs continue to provide lower-income children
access to nutritional meals outside the home. Free school lunches and breakfasts are
still available to children below 130 percent of the poverty line. Free meals in day-
care centers and homes continue to be available although the maximum number of
meals has been reduced. And free summer meals are still available in many low-
income areas, although their availability has been reduced. The major reductions in
these programs stem from reductions in subsidies to children from households with
incomes above 130 percent of the poverty line.
(' The Speriu/ Supplemental Food Program for Worsen. Infants and Children /WI('/

'rhos program is administered through .fate public health centers. Its goal is to
improve the health of pregnant women, infants and children through food supple-
mentation. monitoring by a health profesaional, and nutritional education. Eligibil-
ity is limited to individuals in households with gross income under 185 percent of
the poverty level who are determined to be at nutritional risk by a health profes-
sional rhs program is available in most but not all counties. Participation requires
victs-tar nutritional risk but there appears to kw substantial variability in what

officials believe constitutes evidence of such risk Such variability inevitably leads to
pronnis in targeting the program to those most in need WIC is not an entitlement

44.. Muff Working, Koper. "(hvrview of Pat-In-pat mit 'fir, ntis
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Crm so services are provided on a priority basis. The foods remitted include
ruices, fortified cerea ls. infant formula, eggs and milk.

Eligibility for WIC is determined by states; however, under federal law, states
cannot set the eligibility cutoff above the level for reduced-price school meals. Thus,
the maximum eligibility limit was reduced when school meal eliiplility was tight-
ened in 1981. Nevertheless, funding siLutmrtkipation have continued to grow. In
19Kt, average participation in WIC rmwhly 2.5 million individuals and
spending for the program totaled rough 7F.1 bill, in 1983, an increase of about
18 percent over 1981 levels of peirlicipation. Spending increased 27 percent over the
same period. (In addition, the CSFP program diatributed about $37 million worth of
commodities.) Data for 1902 indicate that approximately 22 percent of WIC partici-
pants were women, 28 pecent were infants (under one year of age), and 50 percent
were children.

The main concern of the WIC program is the health of pregnant women and
small children. Food supplementation is used to improve the nutritional status of
the unborn fetus and infant children who need special protection. Several studies
have been made concerning WIC's impact on outcomes but, as yet, there
is little professional consensus as to the success of program in attaining its
goals. Supporters of the program interpret available studies as indicating the food
supplementation results in substantive, positive effects on various health indicators.
Cntics claim that there is little credible evidence for these effects, that food supple-
mentation for an already well- nourished population is unlikely to have a substantial
impact; and that food supplementation alone cannot increase gestational periods.
Critics thus argue that it is implausible that participation will have any effect on
such indicators as birthweights, infant mortality, and the growth of children.

It is difficult at present to evaluate fully these claims and counterclaims given the
information available. A major reevaluation of the WIC pprag is now underway
under USDA direction that should help clarify matters considerably. This study will
address four different and important meow (1) availability of benefits by region; (2)
the effect of WIC benefits on children; (3) the effect of nutritional supplementation
on pregnancy outcomes; and (4) the extent to which the WIC food package is shared
within the family. Results are expected during 1984.

Two conclusions from existing studies of prenatal care are of particular relevance:
There is evick-nce that nutritional supplementation is beneficial if the mother is

underweight at the time of conception; however, it appears to be of little (vase-
q.g.mr.0 if the mother is already adequately nourished.

There is evidence that proper maternal and behavioral conditions are crucial for
the growth of the fetus. for example, smoking, drug and/or alcohol abuse, tack of
prenatal care, too low pre-prep:wry weight, too high maternal age. and inadequate
we ht gain all have negative impacts on pregnancy outcomes.

These studies imply that one of the important benefits of the WIC program could
be its ability to persuade women to seek better prenatal care and counseling that
they would not or could not otherwise obtain. WIC does not provide medical services
but if problems are detected, referrals to suitable clinics are made.

Infant mortality rates have been declining secularly for several decades, kit such
rates cannot be viewed as a simple index of nutritional status. Many factors have
contributed to this decline including improved medical care and increased avoidance
of smoking and alcohol. as well as improved nutrition.

vl CONCLIISIONS AND KFAVMNIENDATIONS

I Allow States the option of establishing autonomous food assistance programs
We have become convinced th.,t people in need of food assistance would benefit if

the programs or any subset of them were controlled at a more local level, such us
the state or county. The Fains from such a modification derive from allowing the
states e I i more autonomy in allocating funds among the various food assistance pro-
grams. (2) greater discretion in administering programs, and (3; greater responsibil-
ity for assuring that funds are Orly targeted toward those in greatest need. The
greater flexibility and improved ministration that would be gained would help to
increase the benefits available to the truly needy without at the same time increas-
ing the cost to the taxpayer.

Since circumstances of need often vary from state to state and even county to
county, substantial efficiency gains could be made if a state weer able to take con-
trol of food rwaiistance programs. One reason for this is that the proportion of chil-
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dren and elderly in the population varies across states. Moreover, the ability and
desire of communities to participate in the school breakfast program. the child-care
food program, the summer food and the elderly food program vary mark-
edly across and within states. In lion, nags of food and other essential, such as
energy, also vary across and within states, which means that benefit and eligibility
levels ought to be allowed to vary as well. Thus the Task Force believes that recipi-
ents of food assistance could benefit by allowing each state to determine the appro-
priate mix of food assistance programs for its residents. as well as the eligibility re-
quirements for participation in the programs.

Under a system of ter local control, states would be able to adopt more flexi-
ble programs . at residents who would not necessarily for existing
programs. Greater local control would also enhance the 'ty of funding for
private-sector programs. States or local governments are better able to identi-
fy people and their particular needs than the federal government; yet. under the
present system, the federal government must dictate blanket eligibility criteria for
all the states. State-run programs by definition also combine liability and
bility for errors or overpayments However, some states may find it pre to
continue with some or all of the existing entitlement programs, and for that reason
state control should be . We offer the following '. ": tic recomnsendations:

Recommendation I: (i) Task Force recommends that make participa-
tion in any or all existing food assistance programs optional or the states, utuier
the proviso that a state which chooses to operate an autonomous cannot
divert funds for food assistance programs to other uses. States have the
option of, for example. continuing to participate in the Federal Food Stamp Pro-
gram while establishing autonomous control over all or some of the remaining pro-
grams.

Allocations to states which choose to establish autonomous programs shall be
made according to a formula that would provide a predictable level of funding that
meets the varying needs for food assistance in these states. This formula shall be
based on existin* baseline levels of funding and on changes in food costs and the
state population in need.

(iii) Provisions shall be made that will safeguard local jurisdictions in states oper-
ating autonomous food programs from having to bear an increased share of adminis-
trative Costs.

A state which chooses to assume control of the food assistance programs would
gain the following: (1 s it would be free to establish its own eligibility requirements
and administrative procedures within bounds set by the Federal government, pro-
vided the procedures are not discriminatory (for example p should not be
allowed to discriminate against the homeless); (2) it would be ree to determine the
allocation of funds among its food assistance program% (3) it would be allowed to
distribute benefits through payments in kind or through cash payments.

Past efforts to increase state control over these programs have suffered from sev-
eral major drawbacks: (I) In some cases, the level of the grants given to the states
was proposed to be below current federal spending levels. The intention of this pro-
posal is to reduce neither program expenditures nor administrative support at the
state or local level. Thus, additional costs will not be imposed on the local communi-
ties in states that establish optional programs. (2) In previous proposals there was
no guarantee of a future federal commitment to the funding of the programs based
on changes in food costs and the states' varying needs for assistance over the busi-
ness cycle. States were not given the option of remaining under the existing enti-
tlement system. We have designed our proposal to eliminate these problems.

Imp.-opc targeting and administration

Recommendation Z i. Restrict eligibility for child-care home subsidies to homes in
low income areas. for example, to areas where tle prcent or more of school lunches
are served free or at a reduced price. Subsidies for low-income children in other
areas can he established on the basis of optional means-testing.

Presently the benefits of this program are not effectively targeted toward lower-. income children, and a high proportion of recipient children come from households
substantially above the poverty line. Restricting the areas where the program is
made zovailabl will help target the benefits toward lower income children without
introducing the cumbersome administrative requirements associated with imposing
a direct income eligibility test for each participant.

Recommendation j Reauthorize the WI(' program at current caseload levels for
one yearr
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The General Accounting Office released a on March 30,
1984, entitled "Participation In The National Lunch Pro-
gram" (GAO/RCED-84-132). The letter summary of that report is
printed below.)

U.S. Gasams. ACCOUNTING OVITCM,
Wavhington. DC

B-214750.
Hon. hem A. Mums,
Chairman, Comnsittee on Agrieultuiv, Nutrition and Th reetrit,
U.S. Senate

MAR Mn. ClIAIRIIAIC In a letter dated January 30, 1984, you asked us to &naive
participation in the National School Lunch Program ft.ft the years immediately

and following to the pram= made by tW Oda: Reamdla-
tion Act of 1980 (Public Law N-M) and the Omnibus &Weft Reconciliation Act of
1981 (Public Law 97-35). The specific changes cited in your letter involved fisdesel
reinsbursement rates to schools and income eligibility criteria for free and reduced-
price meala You asked us to inchule inihrmation, thr fiscal years 1979 through 1983
on the number of students receiving free, reduced-price, and school
lunches and the extent to which schools and students have out of the
School Lunch Progreso in recent years.

You also asked us to determine what percentageadoLtrible children receive free
or reduced-price school lunches. We your office that informa-
tion was not available to make such as As an alternative, we agreed to
compare data on the number of Ounffies with el children and incomes meeting
Program olliPlafit7 _criteria with data. At that thee. we ado
agreed to discuss data on School Lunch Program participation reported by the Presi-
dent's Task Force on Food Assistance.

Our analyses were based an available data compiled by the Department of Agri-
culture's Food and Nutrition Service, the Department of Commerce's Bureau of the
Census, and the Department of Educatites's National Center for Education Statis-
tics. These data do not allow us to isolate the effect of each proviaion of the acts on
program participation. Thus, the information presented in this report reflects the
cumulative impact of chanpse during the 5-year 'period covered by our anaIyees. In
order to meet the requested issuance date, we did not verily the accuracy of the
agency-provided data As requested, we did not obtain cabmen& on this
report. A more detailed discuseion of our some and ie presented in ap-
pendix 'VL

The provisions of the 1980 and 1981 reconciliation acts related to income criteria
and meal reimbursement rates took effect in January 1981 and in August and Sep-
tember 1981, respectively. The first fall fiscal year that all of these provi were
in effect was 1982. Together, the mo have tightened e criteria for
schools and students and &crftmd Moral reimbursement rates for free, reduced-

The
and &-pricue l uanncahlyesse.

s
(S

aeree
a mitkasal details./

below. The cited appendixes contain
additional details.

I. Over the last 5 fiscal years (1979 to 1983), the number of students participating
in the Schaal Lunch Program has declined from 27 million to 23.1 million. This
decline is primarily attributable to reductions in the number of students eating full-
price luncthee

The number of students; fidlprice lunches has declined steadily from
15.3 million in fiscal year 1979 to 11. million in fiscal year 1983.

The number of students receiving free lunches in fiscal year 1983 (10.3 million)
was greaser than in fiscal year 1979 (10 million).

The number of students receiving reduced-price lunches in 1983 (1.6 million) was
leas than in 1979 (1.7 million).

Together, the number of students receiving free or reduced-price lunches in-
creased between fiscal years 1979 and 19t41 (11.7 million to 12.5 million), dropped off
in fiscal year 1932 (11.4 million), and increased again in fiscal year 1983 (11.9 mil-
lion).

a The Department of Agriculture's Food and Nutrition Service receives data cm the number If
lunches served in various lunch categorise (free, reduced-price, and full-wWs ) and mathematical
)y derives the number of students these husches t. We used else &nrvice's data on the
number of students participating in the School Program,
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As a result, in fiscal year 11182, for the first time in the history of the program,
more free and reduced-price lunches (1.8143 billion) were served than full-price
lunches (1.877 billion).

Additional information is provided in appendix IL
2. The number of schools and student enrollment have dropped both in the nation

and in the School Lunch Program.
Nationally, the number of schools and enrolled etudento has been steadily declin-

ing over the pest 5 fiscal years-from 109.200 schools and 47.6 million students in
1979 to 106.000 schools and 44.5 million students in 1983. The percent of decline is
2.9 for schools and 6.5 for students.

During this same period, the number of schools patiw in the School Lunch
Program and the total enrollment of those schools also declined-but at a greater
rate than nationally-from 94,300 schools and 44.6 million students in fiscal year
1979 to 90,400 schools and 40.7 million students in fiscal year 1983. The number of
schools in the program decreased by 4_1 percent and student enrollment in those
schools d by 8.7 percent.

The lab decline in the number of schools participating in the School Lunch Pro-
gram in the last 2 fiscal years (1,700 in fiscal year 1982 and 800 in fiscal 1983)
can be attributed to various factors, including (1) net school openings, c o_ r

consolidations in those years. (2) the provision in the 1981 act which excluded
tuition private schools from participation, and (3) schools' decisions to drop
out of the program because of c in income eligibility criteria and federal re-
imbursement rates made by the 1 and 1981 acts.

According to a Food and Nutrition Service telephone survey of 872 public school
districts in December 1981. school officials cited concerns about federal reimburse-
ment rates and student participation as the main reasons for d 'rig out of the
program in fiscal year 1982. (Vie did not evaluate the survey methodology or re-
sults,

In fiscal years 1979. 1980, and 1981, an average of 94.1 percent of all students had
access to the School Lunch Program; in fiscal years 1982 and 1983, 91.6 percent had
access.

In fiscal years 1979. 1980, and 1981, an average of 86.7 percent of all schools par-
ticipated in the School Lunch Program; in fiscal years IWM and 1983. about 85.5 per-
cent participated.

Additional information is provided in affwWix Ill.
3. Although the 1980 and 1981 acts tightened eligibility criteria. total federal ex-

penditures for the School Lunch Program were greater in fiscal year 1983 than at
any time in ;he 5-year period except the peak year of fiscal year 1981. During that
same period, a greater share of federal School Lunch Program expenditures was
used to provide students free lunches. Between 1979 and 1982, the number of fami-
lies with school -age children and incomes at or below 130 percent of the Office of
Management and Budget nonfarm income poverty level (such school children being
eligible for a free lunch) increased. The number of families with children eligible for
reduced -price lunches also increased. but the number of higher income families de-
creased. Federal expenditures for reduced-price and fall-price lunches decreased.

Overall federal expenditures for the School Lunch Program increased during the
first 3 fiscal years ($2.74 billion to $3.29 billion), decreased in fiscal year 1982 to
about $2.95 billion, and increased again in fiscal year 1983 to $3.21 billion-almost
to the level of the 1981 peak fiscal year.

The number of families with school-age children and incomes at or below 130 per-
cent of the poverty level increased from 5.6 million in calendar year 1979 to 7.2 mil-
lion in calendar year 1982--the latest year for which such data were available.

The percentage of federal expenditures for free lunches increased every year be-
tween fiscal years 1979 (62.6 percent) and 1983 (77.4 percent). In doing so. federal
expenditures for free lunches increased from $1.64 billion in fecal year 1979 to $2
billion in 1981, declined slightly to $1.96 billion in fiscal year 19/42, and increased to
$2 16 bill ion in fiscal year 1983

For other income categories, the number of families with school-age children and
incomes from 130 percent up to and including 185 percent of the poverty level (chil-
dren eligible for a reduced-price lunch) increased from 3.2 million to 3.5 million, and
the number of families with incomes over 185 percent (children that would have to
pay the full price) decreased from 20.6 million to 18.1 million.

Correspondingly. the percentage of federal expenditures for reduced-price and
full-price lunches decreased from 9 5 percent and 27.9 percent, res_piectively, in fiscal
year 1979. to 7.9 percent and 14 7 percent. respectively. in 1983. The dollar amounts
decreased from $250 million and $734) million to $V0 million and $410 million, re-
spectively
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Additional Information is 'provided in IV.
4. The President's Teak Force on nod Aisistanceestablished to swami= the

extent of hunger in Americahim also apalysed School Lunch Program participa-
tion. In its January 18. 1984, report. the 'I'mk Force conchaled that the percentage
of families at or below 130 percent of the poverty threshold with echoed-we children
and receiving fine or reduced-price Lundell remained stable between IBM and 1988
eltisectuniort noted that participation declined for families with higrerviceincomes. We

to augment the data sources used by the Task Force with
tion and expenditure data. In the Task awes's findings are consistentPard=
the trends we me reporting. Wee app. V for 0.41tionel datp,)

The attached appendixes contain tables, fres. And narratives which address in
greater detail the matters on which you saisod us to provide infbrmation. As ar-
ranged, unless you publicly announce its ,ontents earlier, we plan no further distri-
bution of this report until 2 clays after itssasses date. At that time, we will send
copies to the Chairman, House oa Education and Labor; the Secretary of
Agriculture; and the Director, Office of Management and Budget. We also will make
copies available to others on request.

Sincerely yours.
J. Derma Near,

Director.

*AMOUNT or SHARON MONTOONRRY AND NANCY SAVOUR, Rows DAY CARR
Pampas, Gaseurr, CO

We believe that the Day Care Home component and the component for Day Care
Centers (that charge a fee for enrollment) of the Child Care Food Program should be
eliminated for the f reasons:

(1) The Program is child care in for-profit centers and for-profit homes
in a manner which not only encourages abuse but spends tax-payer monies in a dis-
criminating fashion.

If the United &atm Government intends to subsidize child care in America: (a) do
it outright rather than through the back door via the School Lunch Act; and/or (b)
stop discriminating by having income limitations in day care centers and not day
care homes.

In the President's Task Force on Food Assistance Report, it has been "estimated
that two-thirds of the participants in home day care program have incomes in
excess of 185% of the poverty line. Day care centers, on the other hand, have more
low-income participantsmimy in fact are Head Start centers." (p. 52)

Many day care centers are NOT Head Start Centers but are, in fact, ft.-wdit
centers being tadmidised under this! progrem by the U.S. pm-a --w&. They do nut
lower their rates to parents who fall under the incorne-lii guidelines in spite
of the fact that they are receiving t money to pay for the child's meals.
Parents pay day care fees of $50. to $90.00 per week to leave their children in
these centers.

for?
Why should the Government pay for something the parents are already paying

(2) The Illy Care Home Component involves Day Care Home Providers. A "home
day care provider" is a self-employed businesswoman who takes care of other peo-
ple's children while the parents are at work. Home Day Owe is a for business

pay the hoin the
eTratcetcliild while the t is at work. This be (ranging from .;.1.00 to $50.00 per

woman's home. Parents borne day careL to care for

week) includes meals. provide formula and diapers.
(3) The system is open for abuse in the following ways:
(a) It is not possible to keep the day care food separate from the family food.
(b) It encourages waste by discouraging use of leftovers. Providers are made to

feel that a new item has to be written on their menu each day.
(c) There is no way to prove the provider is giving the food to the children. She

could be using the money for other things.
(4) The number of day care homes on the food program has quadrupled since 1978

and will continue to increase. The figures stated on page 37 of the Committee Print,
Child Nutrition Program: Description. History, Issues and Options, are not entirely
accurate. It states, "it should also be noted that day care homes partici in the
child care food program constitute about 7 to 8* of all existing day care

The are, in our county (Weld (county, Colorado) over 350 licensed home day care
providers. 95% of them are on the hod program. They are encouraged to belong and
are actively recruited because "the government owes it to them."
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We are not a socialist country. The government "owes" us nothing.
(5) Aside from receiving the following monies from the government

Breakfast (cents) 52.50
Snack (cents) 30.75
Lunch $1.03
Snack (cents) 30.75
Supper $1.03

The home day care provider receive() the following commodities free, either
monthly or quarterly. Quarterly allotments are Cheese (American or cheddar) 60
Ibtk.heHoney 15 Ms; Butter 32 lbs Powdered Milk 50 lbs.,

snack and still be paid 30.75 cents per
conceivably

day served.
day care provider could serve cheese (received free) as a daily

Why should the Government pay twice?

not allowed to receive these commodities. This is discriminatory, y when
Also, home day care providers who are not on the Child Care are

the reason for not being on the food program is because we elo not k is a
good use of tax-payer monies.

6. The . y of Home Day Care involves the birth to tigi. 3 population. Chil-
dren ly go to centers after age 3 in order to go to preschool. Although the

are eneouraged to serve nutritious meals, they are also encouraged not to

banana slices and milk; Stne carrot sticks; Lunch. macaroni and cheese, carrot
"elaborate." Thus, a day's could look like this Breakfast; cereal with a few

and-celery sticks, milk.
For each child, the reimbursement would be $1.80; or for 6 children, $11.16. The

cheese was provided free (surplus). The cost of the rest food way $4.25, leaving
a profit of $6.91.

Also, frequent ear infections are common in the 0-3 range. Milk causes con-
gestion and reoccurrence of ear infectious. Because of this, many children are taken
off milk until the condition clears up. But, awarding to the regulations, milk MUST
be served at breakfast, lunch, and supper. In order to receive reimbursement for the
meal, the provider must state that milk was served when, in truth. it was not
served.

7. To save tax-payer monies. eliminating the dew care home component will
amount to: $110 million in 1984; $120 million in 1985; $130 million in 1986.

8. Eliminating the forprofit day care centers will amount to the following bavingic
$3 million in 1984i $4 million in 1985; $4 million in 1986.

9. If the Home Day Care Provider isn't making enough money in her businese, she
can do several things (1) raise her rateeg (2) take a second shift of children; (3) find a
different job.

She does not need the VA government supplementing her income because, in
fact, she earns considerably more than minimum kluge.

If the government is going to supplement incomes for home day care providers,.
then the government should supplement incomes of all women.

In summation. we feel that this brings an unnecessary burden to the
American taxpayer who is =you 35* of his gross total income in
taws In the earlier days afteralready

when this country was rich, it might have
seemed like a prugram. However, because of programs like this, we now have a
trillion dollar. wit. Therefore, it is absurd to keep this program.

STATEMENT or G.M. Sawn. McLitme, VA
Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, ladies and gentlemen.

Thank you for the opportunity to appear before this committee.
I am an appointee to a non-policy midi* citizen's board that advises the local

governing body concerning issues and policies related to child care in Fairfax
County. Virginia. As the At-Large appointee to the Child Care Advisory Council, I
have become aware of several aspects of governmental policies that I believe are in
need of reform. The Child Care Food program (CCFP), authorized by 17 of
the National School Lunch Act is one those programs in need of

I am here today because I believe that a major aspect in the revitalization of our
nation's economic prosperity can begin with spending programs like this USDA pro.
gram.1 maintain that S. 1994 can be part of that revitalization

My reservations with the tXTP are shared with the Board of Supervisors in Fair-
fax County. The Chairman of the Board, the Honorable John F. Herrity, wrote to
the Director of the Office i Mangement and Budget on November 16. 1981, express -
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ing the board's concern over the fact that the OM L not specifically targeted to
assist low income families.

Should the Senate agree to pm* R 1994. we can begin to use our tax dollais to
help only those who are in need of and thus will reduce the she of our

population. The demand for services the cads associated with the various
and entitlements will also be curtailed. The remedy is simple enough; it is

equitable enough: deny benefits as provided under the current law to the middle
and upper income classes.

In my view. S. 1994 is. then not only a preventative measure, but also a remedial
strategy as well, for it will aid only those who are in need of our assistance, thus
allowing greater concern for the disadvantaged children in family day arse, and not
for the non-needy children who are in family day care. and are the Predominate
participant of the program.

I strongly urge that the Senate pass S. 1994. It will restore the integrity to the
CCFP; it will allow more time, energy at.1 monies to be spent where they are
needed; it will help strengthen the primary social unit, the keystone, of our Society
upon which we all d in and out of the work forcethe family.

Members of the President's Private Sector Survey on Cost Control informed a
House budget task force on November 2, 1988, that perhaps on additional $30 billion
may be saved by simply reforming some of the nation's social programs to end
waste, &alai, abuse and -general

My objective today is to focus illirndiataielneniperarive to be inequity in the CCFP, and
thus its misdirected efforts to assist the needy. It should be noted that I am opposed
to aid to the non-needy. I am in favor of ail to the needy. The middle and upper
income classes, who dominate in the megram, need no advocate. Rather, it is the
child of the economically family who can truly benefit from our ef
forts to assist child care programs in our nation.

Many of the yttrium, social spending entitlement have expanded in
recent years. The OCFP is no exception. When established in 1968, it was to provide
meals and supplimentaries (snacks) to children who were cared for in nonresiden-
tial, i.e., institutional, child care centers. The of the program was the Great
Society. And although there are various eligi ity requirements. the CCFP is an en-
titlement wom.

The CC W has been expanded to include children who are cared for in private
family day care ar ts. Since it is estimated by _the Department of Health
and Human Services approximately 56% of all children who are in day care
are enrolled in family day care. this addition to the program was a significant one.
Moreover, as greater numbers of women seek eoyment outside the home, and
without an income eligibility_ ceiling, the number participants who are thus eligi-
ble to participate in the MW will continue to incresse.

And although the p gram is entitled the Child Care Food Program. it is not a
food program. The family day care moviders who are participating do not, in fact,
receive food commodities fmm the USDA. The title of the progsam is simply a mis-
nomer. The CCFP is not strictly a child nutrition program, either. It is, sn reality.
an income transfer program. But unlike other programs that seek to redis-
tribute wealth from the rich to the poomanyr, the COT is a system that transfers

from the lower and middle income, single income-earning families to the
middle and upper dual interning families, in the predominate case.

Fairfax County, Virginia, is a sponsor of the USDA child food . It is a
populous, affluent suburb of Washington. D.C. Approximately 596, e reside
within its jurisdiction, and although the county as a whole is demogra ically some-
what unique in that it is quite wealthy, it is an area that is well suited to illustrate
the fact that the CCFP is a system in need to reform. That reform that is offered for
your consideration today is in the form of S. 1994

The County of Fairfax has a predominately white (K5.4%) population. Only 5.9%
of its residents err black, with of Spanish origin making up the next highest
group of people (3.391i who there. It is also an aging population, as the
median age of the residents is 29.1 years of age.

According to the 1980 U.S. Bureau of the Census, 66.6% of the residents of Fair.
fax County, Virginia are married. Although divorce is not an unknown factor in the
lives of the residents, there are only 8.3% of all family households headed by fe-
rnlike, with 2.4% of all family households headed by males. for the category of
si le family headed households

Prrhsps the most significant feature of the reaident of Fairfax County, Virginia is
the economic profile of the county residents. The median family income, according
to the figures available from the 1980 census, is V13,286.00 per year. The mean
family income of families with two workers is listed at 639.816.00: families with one
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worker is listed at 8310136.00 per yr. The proportion of families with two or more
income earners in the county is 64.8% of all (anilines.

The house in which the residents live are no less impressive in terms of their rela-
tive affluence. The estimated median value of owned housing units in 1983 Is
6103,600.00, with the median home value of owner-occupied homes listed at
695,200.00, making Fairfax County, VA the fifteenth moat costly housing ranking in
the United States, according to the Census.

In corn . the 1980 Census has estimated that the weighted
three for a family comprised of four perms is $9,860.00 per year. Again, the
median family income in this jurisdictiona legal participant in the DA piv-
gramis $33.M.00 per year. Less than 6.3% of the families in Fairfax County. VA
have incomes less than 69.999.00 per year.

Although Fairfax County, VA is an umbrella sponsor of the USDA program, it is
administered by the county's Office for Children tOFO. Anyone who takes or agrees
to take a family day care classroom training course offered without charge to par-
ticimnts is not only eligible to participate in the county-run program of information
and referral for parents in need of child care arrangements, but aso in the USDA
food program. Sources within the OFC have Indicated that they have had an enor-
mous increase in the number of participants in the pt . The increase has
added an additional burden to the staff. It is not unlike y the OFC has had to
increase its own employees to cover the demand for this service, thus impacting the
local tax base.

Because of the relative affluence of the residents of this participating jurisdiction,
it is possible for a family cd two incomes to gross in ewes: of $35,000.00 per year (as
45% of the residents dot, yet are eligible for benefits from the USDA COPP. This is,
then, money that is going to subsidize the child care costa of the wealthy who choose
to seek employment and the increased salary that dual income families can earn.
Again, every dollar that is allocated to subdize the non-poor is one dollar lees that is
available to amid those who are truly in need of aid.

In the magisterial district in which I reside, 31.8% of the families report income
in excess of $50,000.00 per year 9% report earning incomes in excess of $75,000.00
per year, yet all are eligible to receive . eta under the current provisions of the
Ct7FP.

Who is the family day care provider? More often than not, the provider is a
woman who has children of her own to care for. She may not use the money that
she receives from the COM to purchase more nutritious foods for the children in
her care. Many of these women may be preparing meals and snacks for their own
children, as well as for those children who are in paid care. And although there is a
provision for the provider's own children to participate in the CCFP this section is
income specific, t e., those children of family day care providers whose family
income is less than 186% of proverty, are eligible to participate. The child in the
core of the family day care provider is under no such ceiling limitation. hence the
need for the reform offered by S. 1994. Few, if any women would be willing to spend
extra time and energy to prepare a different meal and/or snack for the day care
child in her care than the meal that she vide far herself as well as her own
childiren I. In short, the day care child y most often receives the meal that
everyone else is served, without discrimination.

One family day care provider who resides in Fairfax County Va, has told me that
she uses the extra to treat herself and her day care children to meals at various
restaurants. She reports that she would otherwise be unable to offer this outing to
the children in her care Another clay care provider saves all of the money that she
receives from the CCFP to purchase additional toys for the use of the children she
cares for as well as for own children.

Sometimes the parents who have their children in family day care arrangements
do not wish to participate in the prwam unless the day care provider is willing to
reduce the cost of the care given to their children by the amount of the subsidy re-
, et (11 the ('('FT reimbursement schedule. The family day care provider may or
may nut he willing to do this. Several parents have expressed their apprehension
over the program, stating that they fail to comprehend the need for participation in
the (VIP for which they are eligible simply by virtue of the fact that they have
children in family day caret, since their children's day care provider is rendering
something that they receive any way goad substitute child care at reasonable cost
given b 3 trustworthy neighbor

There an inspection system, of sorts, involved with the praitram But the reality
is that it t' not nevessary to inspect most Of the home's involved with the (NIT. The
good servo, of the parents of the children entrusted in the care of the family day
care provider is the child's best defense against tht need to arm the social welfare.

162



160

establiehment with the authority to invert these family day care homes. As the
program is administered in Fairfax County, VA these are two inspections made
once a year. The inspector proceeds these visits with a telephone call to the house of
the family day care provider as a matter of common courtesy, as well as to insure
that the m.o' will be at homn:n.= the time allotted for the visit. Surely if a
day care provider were

the
foods in lieu of nutritious foods to her

charges, this system offers atle protection. Again, the best defense here is that
daily inspection that is made by the most interested. involved party of all: the
parent oldie child in family day Cale.

Therefne, in reality the payments received under the Foregone of the CCFP may
not result in increased nutritional value for the children in family day care
matte Instead, the payment received may be used to suingement the incomear ofra%
day care provider. And this is, in my view, what this program is nmily all about
increasing the incomes of the day case provideng or peafiw it is te &ft. ,. the
cost of child care to the working parent. In either case, the dM's nutritional intake
is not affected.

There are other umbrella spongers of the USDA Child Care Food Program ether
than the County of Fairfax that operate within the count onsitstunize usually

sore of the but receive erek&sesnentmo"ne7or administrative costs of the pro.
non-profit agencies that may not be as span -
sorts

The lotion Act of 1881 provided a 10% reduction in these rates. These
agencies are now seeking repeal of this and other reductions.

The bottom line of the CORP is that the value of this and other that are
not income eligibility requirements must be against the
fact that it is the biome family that may bear an unfair burden for this type
of subsidy program. often than not era evidenced by the demographic data of
Fairfax County. VA, a participating jurisdiction in the 1 t,-'1,, the two income earn-

afparnily
may be earning in excess of the salary of the single income family. The

ment out of necessity, as in the case with the single t families. Often aminaPmily
works to the detriment of the simile income family that mint seek

of two parents may be sacrificing in order to its children with the care of
their own mother, rather than a substitute provider. Theme cate=etaif are
not elegible to participate in the USDA food yet their con-
sume no km nutritious foods than the chi of parents who exercise their free
choice and seek employment outside the home when their children are email.

There are many parents of various income levels, who have decided that while
their children are young, their right and free choke is to provide for the day - today
care of their children. The upper income dames have always had this option, just as
they have other options them that may not neceesarily be available to
less affluent families. On the hand, there are many parents of various income
levels who have decided that le their children are young their right and free
choice is to seek alternative substitute care for their ildren. But the fact of the
matter is that the two income earning family, as the figures from Fah Vanttay,
VA demonstrate, is demandliqg services' and beer of that are not to the
single income family, who may in fact be decidedly less well off the dual
income earning families. The equity of setti public policy such as provided in the
(XI? as is now constituted has not been y addressed. S. 1994 will start
that reform, and this equity, in restoring the integrity of the CCFP.

We live in an age Ji* dangerously high budget deficits. When the U.S. Congress
endeavored to enact changes in some of the entitlement programs. some of the re-
forms took the shape of income eligibility requirements. The Gramm-Latta Act is
credited with saving approximately $1.5 billion. Unfortunately, the CCFP. a small
program by federal standards, was not part of that income specific reform. S 1994
would provide that needed reform. It could set a trend toward reforming our entire
social welfare benefita and entitlements such that only those who are in nerd of as-
sistance are eligible far that assistance.

After all the testimony is heard all of the evidence tallied, and the members of
this committee as well as member of the Senate have made their final decision,
there will be one group of citizens that will gain from that decision; one group of
citizens that will louse from that decision. Let it be said that those who were denied
benefits were the affluent. Do not be misled by well-intentioned but misinformed
opponents of S 1994. It in the poor who are in need of assistzutce, not the non-poor.
And with more people seeking aid from our government, there is less money to
assist the truly needy. Their cries fui* assistance are often lost amid the clamor from

-the middle and upper income classes who know how to use the system to their ad-
vantage. and often to the detriment of the under privileged
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It is my opinion, then, that it is an act of true compassion to delete all but the
needy families from this program, thus rendering it kw vulnerable to the valid crit-
icism that it is an income transfer program for the wealthy, from the non-wealthy. I
strongly urge that this Committee pass S. 1994, as well as that it pass the NI
Senate

Thank you for your time and consideration of this testimony.

Coursorrweaurn cv VIRGINIA.
COUNTY or FAIRFAX,

Fairfax, VA, November lit 1981.
Hon. DAVID Srocrisami,
Direcfer, (Nice of Mareageneent and Budget,
Washington, DC

Dsaa Ma. Srocerwi: The Fairfax County Hoard of Supervisors recently took
action to participate as an umbrella sponsor her the second year in the United
Mates t of Agriculture (USDA) ChM Care Food Program far family day
care

While the Board Supervisors support; family day care and this program, it ex-
pressed concern that the USDA Care Food Program for family day care pro-
viders is not epeafically targete_d at low income families. Farther, we are m a period
of bodrcco;oLsod Program , some of which are impi persons truly In
need. y, we are concerned that this serves levels, and
would like to see the is guidelines ea that is is directed to meet the
needs of those families the economic needs.

We would appreciate your of this program to determine how the resources
allocated to the program can be targeted to serving kw income families.

Sincerely.
Joan F. Hissuirrv.

Chairman, Board of Supervisors

lResmit from Washington Pat. Mar. It. 11141

AREAS OF AFFLUENCEFAIRFAX AND MONTGOMERY LEAD CENSUS BUREAU's LIST OF
Wiratenixer LARGE COUNTIES

(By Lawrence Feinberg)

Fairfax and Montgomery counties, the Washington area's two most affluent sub-
urbs, are also the two richest large counties in the nation. according to a new compi-
lation of data by the U.S. Census Bureau.

Four county equivalents called boroughs in oil-rich and high-priced Alaska have
even median household incomes, the bureau said, but none of them has more
than 112.1f, teeidents. The highest is Bristol Bay, Alaskamedian income $33.516.
pop' 1.094.

The ra kings, published in the Census Bureau's new County and City Data Books,
come f the 1980 census.

Fairf and Montgomery were also at the top of the county income heap in the
1970 us. At that time, the rankings were compiled ,aftwding to median family
income 4nd placed Montgomery slightly ahead of Fairfax.

In the' new data incomes are Nsven for households, including not only families,
which the census defines as married couples and their children living at home, but
also unmarried couples, roommates and singles.

By this reckoning the median household income for Fairfax is $30,011, more than
a thousand dollars above the $28,9117 reported for Montgomery. However. Montgom-
ery is still slightly chead of Fairfax in median family income, $33,702 to 1433,173

We decided to change what we rank because of changes in how people live," said/
Elizabeth Busse, a Census Bureau statistician. "In 1970 the family was thg..dosni-
rant life style. It isn't anymore. You have more people living in other types of
households, and we began to think that households were more significant."

The medians are midpoints showing the amount of income that half of Uwe in a
certain group exceed and half fall below. In 1979, the for which income data
were collected by the 1980 census, median ha d income nationwide was
$16.1441.

According to earlier census reports, Washington ins the wealthiest large
Metropolitan area in the country, reflecting the relati ,high income and stability
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of its lame federal work force as well its position as the area with highest propor-
tion of working women.

However, according to tax-return data, the Washington area has fewer people
the highest 'income categories than business and financial centers such as
York, Chicago and Ire Angeles.

In the new compilation, Howard County, 044., is the ninth richest county in
country with a median income of $27,612, while Fairfax City is listed 20th at $25,810
and Prince William County, Va., is 26th at 626,436.

The rankings are for 3,137 counties and count equivalenta, including the bor-
oughs of Alaska, the" of Louisiana, and t cities in Maryland, Vir-
ginia, Missouri and

Other parts of the Washington area still rank relatively high, though their posi-
tions have dropped compared with 1970.

The median income for Prince Georpts County is $22,395, 79th in the country and
down from 26th in 1970; Arlington, 621.713, 37th, ninth a decade ago;
Alexandria, $21,016, 136th, down hem 87th; and the rt

z $16,211, 783rd com-
pared to 406th in 1980.

Beam ted out that some of the changes reflect the switch froni family income
to income as a standard, and in average family and household size.

and economic
The new data book also information on a wide range of other social, political

duo
For example, in a compilation of 952 cities with population over 25,000, Washing-

. -a ranks second to Atlantic City with the most city government workers per capita.
Atlantic City, where gambling casinos are legal, also has the highest crime rate for
any city, while Washington ranks IOlst.

In use of public transportation for getting to work, Washington ranks third, after
New York City and San Francisco; slightly .ahead of Jersey City and Boston.

In dependence on manufacturing. Washington ranks 11th from the bottom with
4.5 percent of its work force holding manufacturing phs.

In median household income for cities, Bowie, Md., ranks 10th at $32,373, though
this was considerably below several unincorporated areas in Fairfax and Montgom-
ery. induct' McLean. Fort Hunt, Potomac and Bethesda. Two relatively small
citi 'n 1. - ,'.4) k highest; Verdes 1$41,973) and Saratoga ($41,143).

.4. ..s.ga also show that
Los ..,amos, N.M., has the hW.:. proportion of persons over 25 with four years

of college. 47.8 percent, followed Pitkin, Colo., which includes Aspen, 461 per-
cent. Five Washington area : are among the top 10 in this category.
Falls Church, 44.9 percent; Mon "% My, 42.8 percent; Arlington. 42.5 per
cent; Fairfax County. 41.8 percent, and era, 40.9 percent.

The highest median value for owneroccu houses, excluding condominiums, is
in Pitkin. Colo , which topped $200,000. top price listed on the census form.
Marin County. Calif.. is second at $151,000, lowed by Honolulu at $130,400. Four
local jurisdictions are among the top 25: Montgomery, 13th at $97.400: Fairfax
County. 15th -# $95,200; Arlington, 21st at $92,900, and Alexandria, 22nd at $92,800

The emir' r ith the highest percentage of persons living below the poverty level
are Tun 152 9 percent), Starr. Texas (50.6 percent). and Owsley. Ky. 448 3
perces

STATCSIENT or StrsAN 11-1X;DON, PRESIDENT, TEXAS SCHoot. FOOD SKI4vIce
ASSOCIATION, FORT WORTH, TX

Mr Chairman. My name ai Susan Bowdon. President of Texas School Food Serv-
ice Association iTS'FSAI. lam also the Director of Food Service for Castleberry Inde-
pendent School District in Fort Worth. Texas. Texas School Food Service Associa-
tion is pleased and honored to have this opportunity to share with the Committee
our views wi current issUes facing the National School Lunch and Breakfast Pro-
grams.

The Child Nutrition Programs are the largest of the federally funded programs in
Texas. During the 1982- 83 school year. Texas received over 217 million in reim-
bursement for serving over 267 million lunches and 70 million breakfasts. Those fig-
ures when averaged show Texas serves over 1.5 million lunches per day of which
approximately 820.01)0154!3i- tare free and reduced-price lunches The number of free
and reduced lunches served daily is the near equivalent of the population of San
Antonio, the 111th largest city in the U.S. The School Breakfast Program served
400,0!0 breakfasts daily in Texas with over 350.000 (87.5040 being free or reduced
price The National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs are a big business in

1 "0
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Texas. TSFSA ieurripose40 over 10,0(1) members) offers the following for your con -
siderat ion

I. COMPETITIVE moos

The proposed rules concerning the competitive food regulations in the National
School Lunch and Breakfast Programs confine the control of competitive foods sales
to the food service area and only during the meal hours. This proposed rule would
allow the school officials, at their discretion, to serve foods such as carbonated bev-
erages monde the door to the cafeteria.

Texas School Food Service Association is to this proposed regulation.
School food service programs often depend on revenues from the sale of addi-
tional food items (beyond the Type A Lunch) to "equipment, offset the
costs of paid lunches, and raise salaries. TSFSA submi the following recommends-
tion: that a federal regulation be enacted which would 've local school district
the authority to set guidelines concerning all food sales premises. In the
area of the competitive foods, the local districts can best what foods should be
served and when those foods should be served. This mendation would also
allow for added finanical flexibility in the food service

II. VERIIPICATION

Texas school districts are required to verify at least 3% the free and reduced-
price meal applications approved for the 1M-84 school y . TSFSA polls have in-
dicated that an average of 11% of the applications were fied with 55% using the
error prone method, 35' using the random selection hod and 10% using other
met hods

Under the present system it is mast frustra ng for all concerned (approved au-
thorities. principals, food service personnel, parents, and children) to approve a
child for free meals and two months later remove that child due to verification re-
sults. This situation could be eliminated if 100% up front documentation of income
is required to be submitted with the initial application. Documentation at the time
of submitting the application would also serve as a deterrent to those applicants
who are ineligible and, thereby, eliminating a child being removed from free
lunches for failure to document one week and reapplying the next week without
submitting documentation. The 100% documentation would also reduce community
and parent confusion; increase the work load for approximately one (1) month in-
stead of to 4 months; and it could be incorporated into the already existing appli-
cation process At the beginning of the school year this increased documentation
would require an extension from 10 to 20 days to receive and process applications at
which time all children previously approved from last year's approvals) for free or
reducedprice meals could continue to receive benefits.

Texas School Food Service Association supports a regulation requiring upfront
documentation of income to be submitted with the free or reduced price meal apple,
atoms This would reduce repetitive paperwork and increase the accountability of

the School Lunch and Breakfast Programs

III SKIKAKFANT

Texas St hold Food Service Association supports the implementation of the offer
vs served tegulat ion during the Breakfast Program with the provision that the final
decision to participate be left to the discretion of the local school district. The fol
Sowing concerns about the Breakfast Program were expressed'

A There is too much liquid at breakfast. Some children have difficulty consum-
ing s ors of milk and 4 ors. of fruit juice. (offer vs. served would help eliminate this,

At lunch a child may select 3 of 5 items with the offer vs. served regulation,
where to breakfast the child must take all foods causing confusion for the child

4(*4 When a child choose's his food there is less plate waste.
Alter very positive reactions to the offer vs. served regulation implementation

during lunch. TSFSA looks forward to the time when we can include offer vs. served
during breakfast. This provision would increase financial flexibility, give children
an opportunity to select foods and increase the consistency of meal pattern choices.

It has been suggested that we should increase the meat/meat alternate to a daily
requirement at breakfast with additional funding to offset the increased expense
torn erns expressed by TSFSA were as follows:

Ai Since s7 of the breakfasts served in Texas are free and reduced-price, the'
importance of protein at breakfast should be considered since the last meal coo
sunned tor t he day by some children may he the school lunch

lss
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Mt If the meal pattern requirements are increased along with funding, the in-
creased requirement should be directly tied to the funding so that funding could not
be reduced without reduction of the meal requirements.

(Ci A good breakfast can be prepared under current requirements.
TSFSA supports the increased meat/meat alternate requirement with the provi-

sion that adequate funding in continually supplied.
Texas School Food Service AsNociation the changes leading to in-

creased flexibility and amours in the Lunch and Breakfast Programs
during the last two school years. is always seeking new means by which to
improve our programs. In summary we support:

Mt returning of control to local school districts of the competitive foods served in
each district;

OP requiring up front documentation for every bee or reduced-reice meal applica-
tion before processing

(Cl implementing the offer vs. served regulation during breakfast; and
(I)t increasing the meat/meat alternate requirement to daily at breakfast with

continued adequate fouling
The money expended by the National School Lunch and Breakfast Pmgrams is

spent for food, labor, supplies, and direct administration of the programs with the
end remit being that a child is served nutritious meals. This meal provides a great-
er opportunity for a child to learn, grow, and fulfill his potential. The Lunch and
Breakfast Programs are an extremely important part cif the federal effort to protect
the nutritional health and well-being of the nation's children.

Thank you very much Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, for the opportu-
nity to provide information on the School Lunch and Breakfast Programs. I am
ready to answer any questions that you may have. Thank you for permitting me to
testify.
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STATEMENT uF MARSHALL MATZ, REPRESENTING AMERICAN SCHOOL FOOD

aKsvicv ASSuCIATION

Mt. Chairman. Meihers of the Committee, my name is

Marshall Mats, with the law f'bn of Barnett 6 Alagia. I an

appearing this morning on behalf of the American School Food

Service Association.

The American School Food Service Association (AMA) is

a nonprofit association of approzimately 60.000 members who are

responsible for the planning, preparing, and serving of school

meals. As such, ASFSA is vitally concerned about the health and

nutritional well-being of the nation's children. Net are pleased

and honored to have this opportunity to share with the Committee

our views on current issues flails, the Child Netrition Programs.

The 1985 Budget sent to the Congress last month does

not propose new budget cuts in child nutrition. We ere extremely

pleased that the Adelnistration is not seeking sons of the

proposals that were rejected by the Congress lest year or any

other significant new proposals that would greatly reduce the

funding for child nutrition. There are, however, a number of

legislative proposals contained in the budget, se well se S

number of legislative proposals reeding on the calendar from last

year, chat require our attention - --

1. The Nutrition (cation cad Training Program, the

Summer Food Service Program for Children, the Commodity Distri-

bution Program. and the prevision fax State Administrative

Expenses (SAS) expire on September 30, 1984. All other Child

Nutrition Programs, including the School Leech Program and the

School Breakfast Program, already have been made permanent.

ASFSA supports a four year extension of these *portant programs

as contained in N.R. 7. reported an March 20, 1984 by the Meuse

Education sad Labor Committee.

2. ASFSA supports passage of S. 1913. Since 1980 the

Child Nutrition Programs have been cut by approtimately $1.5

billion. S. 1913 would mitigate the harshness of these cuts by

restoing approximately 10X of the cut or 5150 million. The

Legislation would makers. number of important cheeses. tt would,

(a) Lower the cost of a reduced -price lunch to

the children of working poor from 40e perseal to 25c per meal,

(b) tower the cost of a reduced-price breakfast

to the children of working poor from 30c per breakfast to 13c per

breakfast; and

(c) lacrosse the funding for School Breakfast

Programs to improve the nutritional quality consistent with the

0+,4,47 0 - S4 - 11
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findings of the U.S. Department of Agriculture's National

Evaluation of School Attrition PrEerame, published to March.
1983.

Additionally, the legislation would provide benefits

for the Child Care 'bed Frowns and private schools.

Thee* changes are modest in mature and targeted

specifically to those poor children participating in the free and

reduced-price school lunch and breakfast proerama.

When S.R. 4091, the compemiom of S. 1913. was being

considered by the Nouse last fall, the Administration pointed out

that more than 702 of the benefits ender the bill would go to

families with incomes over 1302 of the poverty line. It failed

to point out that approximately 702-801 of the benefits would go

to families with incomes below 1851 of the poverty Up*. The

bill is intentionally targeted to benefit the working poor, and

properly so. The budget cuts enacted as part of the Omnibus
Reconciliation Act of 1981 have dramatically reduced participa-

tion in the reduced-price Loma category. The following chart

represents some examples. The chart is not meant to represent a

statistically sound national, sample. but the examples ars

instructive.

SCHOOL LUNCH PARTICIPATION
REDUCED ?RICE CATEGORY

October 1980 October 1983 Z Decline

Akron, OR 1,882 983 482
Memphis, TN 4.265 1,409 67%
Raleigh, NC 2,708 1,966 271
Birminghmwe, AL 2,881 2,054 29%

NMAlbovran 4366 2,967 282/e.
ORCl and,. 2.. 1135 ,841 222

Louisville, ET 5.332 4.147 221
Kansas City, MO 1,756 1,684 41
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 5,960 5.250 12!

In light of this decline we believe that S. 1913 is en

extremely important piece of legislation.

3. ASFSA opposes a nutrition block grant as

recommended by the White Souse Task Force c Food Assistance.

ASFSA believes that the federal. government mast retain primary

responsibility for the child nutrition programs and that such

programs should not be included in any block grant or otherwise

turned back to the states.

Including child nutrition program in a block grant to

the orates represents an abdication of federal responsibility

which would result in many of these child nutrition services

being terminated or drastically reduced A child's need for a

169
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nutritionally adequate diet does not vary from stoats to state.

tf the child nutrition programs are terminated under a block

grant, a child iivitsg La a state with an adequate tax base would

have a much greater chance of receiving a nutritionally adequate

diet than a child growing up ins & state with a poor tax base.

AS1'S believes that child nutrition mast have uniform national

otutramtme through federal programs, for with a batter diet goes a

greater opportunity for children to leans, grow, and fulfill

their potential.

110
ABM therefore, opposes repealing the Child Cats Food

Program and the immunr Flooding' Pitereh nmS replacing the with a

gmmermL metrittor assistmmow grant: fax' the seam reasons. .Tbses

programs are an extremely Important part of the federal effort to

protect the nutritional health and well-being of the nation's

children.

4. ASISA supports the strict regulation of

competitive foods.

(a) 8amtrictionw on the sale of foods sold in

competition with the National School Lunch Frogmen are vital to

protect both the nutritional quality of the program as well as

the financial integrity of the program. ASFSA supports

Legislation that would bar the salts of competitive foods on

school. premises from the beginning of the school day to 30

minutes after the last goal. As you know. the U.S. Court of

Appeals for the District of Columbia recently held that the

Secretary of Agriculture lacked the statutory authority to

justify the current USDA regulations. We believe that situation

should be rmusdied.

(b) Daeineso Week magazine on January 30, 1984

reported "NcDovaIda says it is moving to stay abreast, if not

ahead, of the domestic market . . . and looking at barely tapped

distribution outlets such as schools ---". If fast food

restaurants are allowed to invade the school lunch cafeteria the

profit from the a la carte line currently used to subsidize the

free and reduced price meal program will inure to the benefit of

corporate stockholders, not the school lunch program.

Current law allows the sale of competitive foods, found

by the Secretary to be nutritionally satisfactory, only "if the

proceeds from the sales of such foods will inure to the benefit

of the schools or of organizations of students approved by the

school." We urge the Congress to require strict enforcement of

this important provision of the law and to make clear that it

requires all proceeds to inure to the benefit of schools or of

organizations of students approved by the schools.

5. AMU opposes termination of the Nutrition

4
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Memel= and Mei:miss Plums MST,. emu airport, this original
ommempt of SO costs par *UM per y. Om the peep.= of
untritien education for students and ongoing training for food
service personae..

I. AMU opposes elimlimMtbmt the requirement that
USDA directly administer the CILLA attrition Programs. Ideally
State Agonise sionLit adniedstor their pregame. Rowever.
several states have Lee, policies er eves constitutional

provisions whisk prohibit the State Mutational Agmecy.item
administering non-stheel program. Cerremay, the USDA,

eimbmisters the Child Mariam Program and Special Milk Program

in primate =heels in thirtesa statues the Child Cara Food
Prow= in nine states and the Summer Peed Service Program for
children in seventeen states. If Congress permits the USDA to

withdrew from the administration of Child Nutrition Program.
mess tevainatian may occur in states which are unable or
unwilling to change state Lees.

7. sass, spies= mdse ing of the reinhersement rate
for the reduced-price meals. In raceme years the core for the

reduced-price leech has increased from 10* to 0C. Results of
the National. Evaluation of Schpol Marylon Pruar have shown a

direct relationship between participation and meal price. ASPS*,

therefore. opposes such price increases in the reduced-price meal

categories.

S. ASTRA urges the Congress to require a feasibility

study or pilot project on various methods of operating a self-
financing school leech program for all children.

During the final meeting of the White Mouse Task Force
on Food Asti.staece. Dr. George Graham. a commission member,
re-surfaced the idea that the National School Lunch Program would

better serve all children if it were a universal program. He

then went an to proposer funding the program by including the

value of the lunch served as taxable income.

Last year. Senator Gary Hart introduced legislation

that would have reduced the current 1.00Z tax deduction on

business lunches and entertaimment expense to 701 and used the
rummer far child nottiame. It wino eetimated that this

Legislation would have generated $1.2 billion is new review to
the U.S. Treasury. If you combineDr. George Graham's suggestion

with Senator Mart's proposal. you can raise over 901 of the fends

needed_ to finance the Universal &drool. Lunch Program. And if the

program is only extended to isIenantery schools it would not be

necessary to lower the tax deduction am besieges luncheons and
entertainment =passes to 701. Sufficient revenue could be
raised by lowering the deduction to approximately 801.
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The declaration of policy in the National, School Lunch

Act has not been amended wince it was enacted some 37 years ago.

Since that time a number of significant changes have been made.

Most importantly was the change enacted in 1971 providing

additional, or special federal assistance, in order to provide

free and reduced price meals to poor children. It was a change

that ASISA strongly supports.

With enactment of the free and reduced price lunch

programa themission of the litional. School Lunch Program was

enlarged from a health and nutrition program to include an income

security campmate. Concomitantly there has been an increase in

verification requirements, an increase in documentation require-

ments and less sensitivity to protecting poor children from overt

identification and discriminatien. In short. the National School

Lunch Program is currently facing something of an "identity

crisis". Is it a welfare program, or is it a nutrition program

for all children?

A universal school lunch program for all children would

get schools out of the business of having to document and verify

the income of people within the school. These activities are

better left to the experts at IRS. Second, it would refocus the

programme its initial. goal. of providing nutritious meals to all

children throughout the nation that wish to participate in the

program regardless of income. Third, it would eliminate all

problem associated with identification of poor children and
discriminattom

Mr. Chairman, embalm been aware of the advantages of a

universal free school lunch program for sum? years. We have not,

however. explored the various options that may be available for

financing such a program. We therefore request that the Congress

require a pilot project or at least a feasibility study to
ascertain the various methods of operating a self-financing

school Lunch program for an children. We are most pleased that

H. R. 7 contains such a requirement and hops that this C011aittee
will support such a provision.

Thank you very much Mr. Choirs= and Members of the

Committee. V. are ready to answer any questions that you may

have. Thank you very such for this opportunity.

17,E
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ST entaigter or HIDASI BLAHS, RIIPRIERINTUKI QUID Nu ow Fauna
Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, I am Helen Blank, Director of Child

Care and Family Support at the Children's Defense Fund. CM' is a natiomd public
charity crealnd to provide a .raw end eystematic voice on behalf of the na-
tion's children. We are aro into four pennon are education, child health,
child welfare, and child care and family services. We addrem theme hams
through research, itublic education, of fede and state administra
and legislative policies and practices, network buildingral, technical amistance to

ti
na-
ve

timed, state, and local groups, litigation, community organising, and formation of
specific lame auditions.

CDF appreciates the to testify on the importance of the Mild Care
Fo:dropairam to family pare. e are extremely concerned that If implemented

to place a means test on children in family day care homes who are par-
in the program would have to consequences for parents, been,

aW the providers themselves.
The Mild Cam Food Program is the second lemma of limited leer& sup-

port to child care. It is the source of to flintily day care
which is a major component oirarcountry's patchworkiluarcare system. The im-
plementation of a means teat would not only take flood from children in struggling

families but would also remove a major mous= which has been largely
for strengthening family day care systems in America.

ANY PROPOSAL ertnermo CHILD CARE MUST MI VIM= IN LIGHT Or me SIDIMIIS OAP
THAT NOW MUSTS IISTWININ THE seem or CHILD CARE SWEVHDO AND THE
IMO DEMANDDEMAND

More than one in six American children 13 years old and under, including many
preschoolers, may be going without care. The need fx infant care is steadily climb-
ing as is the demand for after school programs so that children are not left
waiting up to four hours a in empty homes, in or on
streets while parents work. Tlw labor force participation of mothers =childrend
has increased dramatkally in the last forty years. Only 19 percent of women with
children under age 18 were in the labor form in 1947; in contrast., 60 percent of
these women were employed in 1982a threefold fur:ream in about 80 years. As
more and more parents of young children work, child care needs will become an
even greater problem.

41 percent of mothers with children under one are in the labor force.
Almost 46 percent of mothers with children under age three are in the labor

force.
By 19"" at least half of all preschool children-11.5 millionwill have mothers in

the labor force, as will about 60 percent-17.2 millionof all school-age children.

M0111/IRS worm OUT OP ROOM/NW NECILSSITT

Close to one.fifth of all families with children under 18 years of age are headed by
women, with no huaband ipresent. Among blacks, 44 percent of children live with
their mother only. These female heads of households are the principal sources of
support for their families. Married women are also essential providers of family
income. Among married women who work outside the borne, 27 percent have hus-
bands who earn leas than 810,000. 51 percent have husbands who earn less than
$15,000, and 73 percent have husbands who earn less than $20,000.

The average single mother with children is far worse off earning only 89,495 in
1914L

LACK OP APPORDARLZ CHILD CARR IS A MAJOR FACTOR IN SWIPING WOMEN AND
CHILDREN IN POVERTY

A recent Census Bureau survey asked women who were not in the labor force
whether they would work if child care were available at a reasonable coot. Forty-
five percent of single women replied yes as did 36 percent of low-income women
with family incomes under 315,000. The U.S. Commission on Civil Rights notes that
the inability to locate affordable child care restricts not only women's employment
and training opportunities but also their ability to participate in federally supported
education programs. A number of studies have shown that approximately one of
every five or six women is unemployed became she is unable to make satisfactory
child care arrangements The unemployment rate for single mothers with children
under six is nearly 20 percent.
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A mother in Massachusetts talks about the importance of child care to her ability
to work:

"Things are very difficult for me financially right now, but I'm glad I have not
last my day care totally, as I t I might at one point last year. I need day care
so I can work and attend school. Ewa though the incentive is not there to work, I
felt trapped in the welfare system. Day care has given me the freedom to get an
education so that I can get employment and some day get totally out of the welfare
system:*

Secretary Margaret Heckler shares this mother's sentiments: "Availability of ade-
quate day care is an essential element if welfare mothers or others with young chil-
dren are to work".

FAMILY DAY CARE $ THE PRIMARY SMIRCH OF CHILD CARE POE WORM° FAMILIES

Over 50 percent of children are cared for in a home setting including the majority
of infants and toddlers. Parents often prefer to have their younger children cared
for in a home as opposed to a more formal setting. The extraordinary high costs of
center based infant care further deters most families from seeking this option.

Average costs for child care are high.
Atteruge child care costs

Infant (under 2 years)
Group or center $3,000-$5,000 per year.
Family day care: 81,80043,500 per year.

Child (4-5 years)
Group or center $2,20042,200 per year.

Child (school age)
$10-$50 per week.
The cost of family day care is usually below that of center care. Fees in family

day care are more likely to be adjusted according to parents work schedules, further
reducing the cost. Because of the cost differential, family day care is the major
source of child care for hard working families. The National Day Care Home Study
revealed that the average annual income of parents using family day care was
$12,000 to $15,000. A survey of CCFP conducted last year by the Northwest State
Child Nutrition Directors and Child Care Food Program Coordinators found that 69

nt of the children enrolled in family day care and using the Child Care Food
am were from blue collar families. It also revealed that the availability of

CCFP funds has enabled many providers to remain in operation and to keep their
fees at an affordable level. The accessibility of family day care has freer: may fami-
lies from low-income status.

FAMILY DAY CAKE OTS= THE MANY PARENTS WHO WORK ODD HOURS. rtirxranati THAT
CENTERS CANNOT PROVIDE

An umbrella sponsor in Louisville, Kentucky highlights why such flexibility is im-
portant to working parents:

"Last year. 4-C assisted a distraught parent in finding child care to fit her nurse's
training schedule. She was a single parent needing care beginning at 5:30 a.m. for 6-
week shifts which alternated with 6-week shifts scheduled from 12 noon to $00 p.m.
She stressed that she would have to drop out of nurse's training if affordable child
care that could accommodate her schedule could not be found. A family day care
home under (VW sponsorship was able to provide the flexible care she needed.
Today. she is a registered nurse working at a local hospital, earning over $10.00 an
hour

-Family day care provides before and after sclicol care, ensuring this( children get
to and from school safely. These children have care available when schools are
closed for holidays or bad weather. In Louisville, children attend half day kindergar-
ten sessions, either in the morning or afternoon. The family day care provider is
especially important to these families. She makes sure the children are picked up
and delivered by the school buses; according to schedule. She also arranges to serve
lunches at different times to accommodate children leaving at 11:30. and arriving at
12.30."
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THE CHILD CARE VOW PROGRAM HELPS FAMILY DAY CARE PROVIDURS BECOME fumy-
surnaitor TAR PAYING CITIERIES.

Family day care providers, work usually by themselves, 12-14 hour days
for dren, 5-6 days a week. This is a very difficult, emotionally etreseful
physically eidtausting job. Eightreeven percent of fluidly day care earn
Wow the minimum wage. These are women, operating a M=Ir9which
utilizes their skills in caring for children. It is only because of the (3CFP that many
providers are licensed, and visible taxpayers because providers must meet state rev

the food program. many family homes operated "underground and
ulatery requirements in enter to in the program. Before in

did not pay taxes or snake social security contributions. Ironically. the support from
the food which helps women operate their business and avoid
on welfare helps them avoid such in their retirement years since
they earn vital social security credits if operate above ground. Having more
family day care above ground is also to parents because an increased
number of regulated providers also expand access for families seeking child care.
Information and referral auss cannot refer patents to family day care unless it
is licensed or registered. Finding family day care still continues to be difficult with
approximately 75 percent of the praession operating underground.

THE COULD CARE PC100 PROGRAM HELPS TO IMPROVE THE QVAUPY OF FAMILY DAY CARE

Participation in the food is not only important because it insures that
child care is more available to families and that the women providing this care are
helped to move toward self-eufficiency but also because it means that children are
receiving better care. The Child Care Food Program helps to insure quality child
care by carefully monitoring all participating homes two to three times per year.
With increased numbers of women entering the family day care profession but
fewer dollars and less staff available to monitor day care homes, the visits made by
sponsors to the homes are an important way of assuring higher standards. In addi-
tion, CCFP has been largely responsible for upgrading the quality of care to chit.
dren by offering training and technical assistance to providers enrolled in the pro-
gram. This is particularly important in light of federal and state cutbacks in train-
ing funds for child care.

Training in early childhood education has been strongly associated with more
positive and stimulating behavior on the part of caregivers. The valuable contribu-
tion that the umbrella sponsors have made in improving family (JAY care services W
well documented. The National Day Care Home S'sdy, a four year nationwide study
of urban family day care concluded that day care systems such as the anew spurred
by the food program should be promoteda sentiment widely shared by the child
care community. This study found:

"That day care systems play an important role in promoting quality care for
maintaining desirable enrollment levels, monitoring regulatory compliance. training
caregivers. providing technical assistance . (further) the child benefits from im-
proved nutrition in programs subsidized under the MIT and from the skilled care
of a training caregiver."

THE CHILD CAKE MOOD PROGRAM HAS SEEN sue CISSFIFUL IN IMPROVING THE. NUTRITIONAI.
STATUS OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY DAY CARE

A study commissioned by the Department of Agriculture and conducted by Abt
Associates. in 19142 found that "the results indicate quite clearly that the (XII' is
meeting its goal of providing nutritious meals to children in day care". The Family
Day Care Study conducted by the Northeast State Directors concluded that the pri-
mary goal of the program is to provide nutritious meals and snacks to children in
day care, has been achieved in "a dramatic and successful manner".

Parents also benefit from the success of the program in meeting its goals as a
child's eating patterns in day care often carry over to his/her home life.

The dollars from the Child Carr Food Program that are utilized in family day
care represent a sound investment. They help lower-income women to run is small
business in their own homes without necessitating the meta or setting up large

to care for children. Finally and most importantly, they help women to find
and affOrd care so that they can work while their children are cared fur in a sup-
port wt.. family like setting
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A Mr ANN TiwT WOULD HAVE IICKTHEMILLY NH AME CONDEQUENCIDI FOR FAMILY DAY
CARS AS IT WOULD FORCE MOST rgovintnis OUT Of THE SIMMS

Nancy Van Mune len. an umbrella sponsor. testifying before the Subcommittee on
Nutrition highlighted the administrative problems that a means test would
entail:
Aspericork problems

Income eligibility criteria will require income certification documentation from
76.700 families annually. This process increased dramatically the level of paperwork
for sponsors.. Senate Bill 1994 makes no provision fax increased administrative fund-
ing to cover this cost.
Recruitment problems

Provider turnover mandates the replacement of homes to maintain the needed
participation level required for a viable sponsorshi . Since most providers have chil-
dren from a broad cross section of socio-economic growids it will be very diffi-
cult to target potential recruitment areas. Also, it was proven from 1976 to 1980,
when income eligibility was required for family day care providers on the CCFP.
that providers receiving low reimbursements would not participate in a program
which mandated higher food costs and then did not come close to covering these
casts.
Confidentiality problems

Confidentiality of parent income information is an extremely sensitive issue in an
informal family day care home setting in which the provider and parents often are
friends and live in the same neighborhood. Sponsors participating in the CCFP
before May 1980 when income eligibility was a part of the program reported that
two major factors limited progmpromicarticipation:

lAnv reimbursement to the
Provider reluctance to gather income eligibility documentation fnaa parents.

Thscrim r notion probkma
The most devastating effect of income eligibility criteria would be in the possible

discrimination to which a provider would be forced in order to maintain a high
enough reimbursement to cover even a portion of her food casts. At a time when the
demand from parents of all socio-economic levels is increasing for family day care,
particularly infant and toddler care. providers would be compelled to shift their day
care slots to low-income children in order to obtain the subsidy they so desperately
need in their low-paying profession.

An urea means test such as the one proposed by the President's Commission on
Hunger would not allevPite these problems. It would neither be applicable in rural
areas nor smaller or middle size cities which are more likely to have census tracts
which include mixed socio-economic populations.

The Child Care Food Program represents the largest federal source of support for
family day care since the bulk of the funds targeted to child care under the Title
XX Social Services Block Grant are utilized for center -besed care. The $so million
that might be saved by the implementation of a means test would be a very high
price to pay given the negative consequences which would ensue for families, chil-
dren. and low-income providers.

When we look at the value of this $50 million to these families and their children,
we must also look at other choices we have as a country in terms of spending and
revenue raising. Title H of The Children's Survival Bill includes a number of provi-
sions which if passed would more than compensate for the very small amount of
support that the federal government offers to family day care. For example:

The liquor tax of $1050 per gallon has not been changed since 1951. Doubling it
to $21 would raise an estimated $4.5 billion in FY 19145.

A ten percent excise tax on the sale of all recreational boats would generate an
estimate *trot million in revenue.

If the armed forces were required to send low-priority rrwssages by mail rather
than teletype. we could save an estimated $20 million

The overall federal commitment to child care is extremely limited in contrast to
the enormous need for support to working families and their children. Growing
public interest is now focusing on the gap between the need for child care and the
supply After holding a series of hearings on children and family issues at-row the
country. the Select Committee on Children, Youth, and Families made a bipartisan
decision to take an in-depth-look at the child care dilemma faced by American fami-
ties. It would be counter-productive and short-sighted given the tremendous gap in
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child care services to cut back a single federal dollar targeted to child care at a time
when it is most unlikely that new initiatives will be put in place.

STATEMENT OF EDWARD M. COONEY, FOOD RESEARCH AND ACTION CENTER, ON REMALY
or vox Smarm Coserstrrxx or rox Chum Numerous Forum

Mr. Chairman: I would like to thank you and Senator Huddleston for the opportu-
nity for appearing before this committee. I would like to take a moment to give you
a sense 4 the goals of the Child Nutrition Forum.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The Child Nutrition Forum provides a platform from which oritanizations with
widely divergent purposes and interests can ezpress in a unified voice their support
for effective and adequately funded federal nutrition programs for children.

Specifically, the Forum embraces the chief objectives of the National School
Lunch Act of 1946 and the Child Nutrition Act of 1966. These are "to safeguard the
health and well-being of the Nation's children, and to encourage the domestic con-
sumption" of nutritious agricultural foods.

The Forum believes that theme objectives will be achieved through adequate fund-
ing for the programs authorized by these two laws and opposes any attempt to
reduce federal support for them.

The Forum maintains no membership list, rigid governing structure or list of ob-
jectives beyond those expressed above. A small and informal steering committee
composed of representatives from the red community, agricultural producers,
labor. education. the health professions, food service officials, *tate slid local
government. and consumer and advolfacy groups, meets regularl7 to share inform-
.ion about national child nutrition policy developments. From time to tittle, it will
recommend that organizations join with the Forum to operate as a coalition in en-
dorsing a position or statement that reflects this statement of purpose.

would like to share with you some ideas recommended by the steering commit-
tee and contained in S. 191:4 which we believe will Arengthen child nutrition pro-
grams.

School Breakfast Pragruss
We understand that one of the provisions the Committee is considering is the ad-

dition of :04 million dollars for the purpose of providing a meat-meat alternate com-
ponent in the school breakfast program thereby allowing for the improvement of
the nutritional quality of the school breakfast meal pattern. This could be accom-
plished by adding 6 cents to each breakfast reimbursement.

We heartily endorse this provision for a number of reasons:
.1/ A recent nationwide study shows that the nutritional quality of school break-

fasts can be improved. Let me give you a little background. In 1979 the Senate
passed a resolution, commonly referred to as Senate Resolution 90, which asked a
number of questions about the impact of school meals on children and their fami-
lies A number of studies were initiated in response to this resolution, but one of
them specifically looked at the nutritional impacts of the School Lunch. Breakfast,
and Special Milk Programs. It is called the National Evaluation of School Nutrition
Programs. and was completed in April 19/43.

This study reported two major findings concerning the School Breakfast Program
First. the program was shown to increase the likelihood that children will eat
breqkfast As the study points out, this is a major nutritional benefit in that chil-
dren who eat a breakfast are substantially better nourished than those who skip
breakfast Projections made from this study's data show that over 6410,000 students
who currently skip breakfast would eat it if the program were available in their
schisik

second. the schistl breakfast is superior in calcium and magnesium levels to
f*reakfasts chliciren eat elsewhere. but contains less vitamin 116, vitamin A and iron
.kiterestingly enough. however, over a 24-hour period the intake of these nutrients
is simslstr I'm- school breakfast participants and thaw who eat breakfast elsewhere.
Their intake IN made up during the. remainder of the day. Since vitamin A, vitamin
tit; and iron are nutrients for which large proportions of children do not obtain their
Itecomaneraled Ihetary Allowances 4114 pointed out in USDA's National Evaluations,
it makes .4*HW to improve the nutritional quality of the Breakfast Program in such
a way thus the consumption of these nutrients is increased; and the breakfast eaten
it hi IN Ai. closer in mon:tonal queslity to breakfasts eaten at hence,
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In fact, the National Evaluation final report recommends that "the School Break-
fast meal pattern should he examined and improved." It was suprising to all of us
when USDA's original response to this recommendation was to suggest terminating
School Breakfast as a categorial program and placing, it in a block grant with re-
duced funds Obviously this legislative recommenda 'MI conflict" with the findings
of the report_

The National Evaluation results do not tell us which foods made the nutritional
difference between the school breakfasts and those eaten elsewhere. However, it is
likely that it was the meat/meat alternate. First, because the School Breakfast meal
pattern does not require the service of a meat/meat alternate. It does eq ire a
cereal or bread product; juice, fruit, or vegetable; and one half pint of milk.
because cheese and egtpi are good sources of vitamin A, and meat, poultry, fish, and
peanut butter are good sources of iron and vitamin B6. The addition of these meat-
meat alternates to the meal would improve the nutritional quality of school break-
fasts.

(21 Participation in the Breakfast Program by students and schools will probably
increase with this provision because it will increase the variety and appeal of the
Breakfast Program and will increase reimbursements to schools. This increase in
participation by students and schools is very important, especially considering two
of the
participation

Evaluation's findings: that the presence of a School Breakfast Pro-
gram increases the chances that children w31 eat breakfast, and that the Program
is found predominantly in schools located in low income areas and serves primarily

children. In fact, 84 percent of the children why, participate in the Brkeafast
r'urty:rgram are from families eligible for free meals, and 89 percent from families eli-
gible for free or reduced price meals.

i:11 Breakfast is a very important meal for children, as you all know well as par-
ents and as legislators on the Senate Agriculture Committee. We have two kinds of
evidence to show that this is the case. First are the studies of the impact of break-
fast, or the lack of it, on children's learning ability. Dr. Ernesto Pullitt in a 1978
review of the literature on the impact of school feeding programs on education sums
up the evidence on breakfast as follows:

"The studies that focused on the short-term effects of hunger or morning feeding
suggest that the provision of breakfast may both benefit the student emotionally .
and enhance his/her capacity to work on school-type tasks."

A recent carefully controlled study by Dr. Pollitt 09811 of the impact of skipping
breakfast on thirty-four well-nourished nine and 10 year olds showed an adverse
effect on the accuracy of responses on problem-solvi .

The second kind of evidence is what we call anec oral, and that is the reports of
superintendents. principals, school nurses, and teachers. They. tell us again and
again. each time a :VW breakfast program starts. haw children s reading scores in-
creases, how relationship between students of different ages improve in the morn-
ing. how students have less stomachaches, and how much better children pay atten-
tion in claw Earlier this year I was in West Virginia and was told by a long-time
school principal that starting a Breakfast Program in her school had more positive
istivis than any other one thing she had accomplished. We should remember. as I
was remined during my West Virginia trip, that there are many children to whom
the breakfast provided at school is essential, and that this is true now more than
ever with cantinuing high employment in staes like West Virginia.
child t 'toe Food Progrion

Another program upon which may low income families depend is the Child Care
Food Program iCCFPs for preschool children in family day care homes and day care
centers I rtifortunately children who stay at a day care center all day only may re'
41.1v.. two meals ant one snack because of cuts made in federal support for the Child
Care Food Program We understanA that one of the provisions you are considering
%mild add :t Inca; alto a fiat 'k Meek to the Child ('are Food Program, and we urge
you NI adopt at lAd me tell you why

First. the nutritional evidence Before the changes occurred in the number of
meals that could be svrved, USDA carried out an evaluation of the nutritional

4 impact id ('('F'l' through Alit Associates in Massechustts, which showed highly
positive effects In Lett their report stated

the differ. rives between participating and florin:wile:inning day care centu Fitt
meal quality; .ire striking Ear every measure examined. participating centers have
statistically significantly higher levels of meal quality than nonparticipating cen
iris F;.jualIv striking is the findings that participating family day care homes also
serve meals of superior nutritional quality, .1nd that these meals generally contain

higher iroalatv and variety than tires... served by non participating centers
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To be mote specific, day care facilities that participated in OCFP provided a
higher ....rtion of the Recommended Dietary Allowances than non-participating
center. 'Fr superior food . handling, and sanitation techniques, served
significantly more food in vitamin A and C and iron, served fruits, vegetables.
and Jukes 129 percent more often, whole acts 60 percent more often, and
milk more frequently at snacks and lu also served significantly fewer
concentrated sweets and sweet dessert foods and care- givers who talked more
often to children about nutrition end encouraged children to try new foods.

The results of this report are corroborated and elaborated upon by a survey of
CCFP sponsors in the Northeast region carried out by the Connecticut Department
of Education, which will illso be referred to in today's testimony before this commit-
tee by the Children's Defense Fund. The survey found that the quality and quanti-
ties of foods served in day care homes improved with their participation in CCFP,
because of the funding for food and because of an increase in the availability of good
nutrition information that comes with the . As the New England state di-
rectors point out in their survey report, knowledge becomes twice as impor-
tant when you realise that the information is often passed on to the parents of the
children because of the close relationship and contact that is possible in family day
can

They also point out another benefit of CCFP in their report:
-The availability of CCFP funds has enabled many providers to remain in oper-

ation and to keep their fees at an affordable level. The accessibility of affordable
day care has freed many families from low income status.

This is not surprising when one considers ,.he make-up of the parents using the
day care homes participating in (X7FP in the Northeast region-69 percent held
blue-collar or unskilled jobs and 40 percent represented one-parent families.

The impact of the cuts in the number of meals from three to two and number of
snacks from two to one have been quite negative, as evidenced by reports coming in
from ei the country.

Jr v 1983 the California Rural Legal Assistance Foundation surveyed 64
chi' isors (representing over 9.354 children) in ten San Francisco Bay Area
cow! der to measure the longer-term impact of FY 1982 cuts In
their tie... 3 report "Cutting Costs in the Child Nutrition Programs: longer
Range Impact of Federal Budget Oita and How Programs are Coping," the founda-
tion stated that forty-one percent of the surveyed day care programs have been
forced to substantially reduce the number of meals served to the children they care
for Another :18 percent have turned to deficit spending rather than cutting back on
the meats they serve. This means borrowing from educational materials funds stuff
salary funds. etc.. to make ends meet; resulting in less service available to the chii
dren overall and an overworked staff Finally. thirty-four percent have significav'tv
cut back on the variety and euality of foods served.

The Hunger Watch U.S A. report relented by Bread for the World last year re
ports the local effects of budget cuts in federal food assistance programs as cataio
gued by their members in different parts of the country. They report fewer meals
being served to children. because of decreased federal support, in Wake County.
North Carolina; Jamestown, North Dakota; Albuquerque. New Mexico; Topeka.
Kansas; LaCrosse, Wisconsin; Charlottesville, Virginia; Springfield. Vermont; and
Nashville. Tennessee.

Last January, the Children's Defense Fund in collaboration with the Association
of Junior leagues launched Child Watch in over lilt) communities nationwide ti,
monitor the impact of federal budget cuts on needy children and families. In Massa
chusetts, the Child Wr.tch group found that programs across the state had to curtail
the amount and variety of food served. The Minnesota group reported that the qual-
ity and expertise el cooks and staff had to be reduced, worn-out equipment could not
he replaced. and deficits were fared In Maryland meny centers reported a &repose
in the variety of meals served and the number of meals and snacks provided

These changes are occurring at the same time that parents an depending mon
rid more .n day care facilities to help them stay on the job and ensure nutritioui,

meals for timer children in spite of smaller home food bu4rts. These cuts are also
occvrring at the same time as other cuts have made day care programs harder to
maintain reductions in Title XX. (writ, and compensated Child Care cost., ice

AFDC All three of these programs have provided a great deal of support for child
care for low income working families in the past. The Children's Deferilie Funi has
released a report titled Children and Federal Child Care Cuts, which surveys the
impact of federai Title XX cuts on state child care systems. They found that redu
trans en Title XX funding have triggered cuts in state child :are systems throughout
the country. including such practices iss making fewer km-income working (candies
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lig-ible for Tale XX Child ('are, increasing fees for child care, reducing funds for
training child cane workers. lowering child care standards. and cutting back on
staff. Obviously the states would be hard put to make up !Or meals lost when they
cannot even pay for staff Finally. these cuts are happening in the face of an ever-
increasing need fOr child care Almost 6 percent of mothers with children under
three are in the labor force. and almost ro percent of mothers with children age's
three to five are working.

It should be remembered that many of these mothers work long haunt, and two
meals and a snack are not enough food for their children during their working day.
As anyone who has lived with preschoolers knows, they eat a number of small
meals during the day In fact, nutritionists and health professionals recommend
small frequent feedings for this ages group in order to ensure that their nutritional
needs are met. Because of their short attention span, increased exploratory activity.
high level of physical activity. and susceptibility to illnesses, small frequent feed
sags are essential for ; reschuolene For all these reasons. it would be reasonable and
Wise social and health policy to reinstate the provision to these' children of the
amount of food they require over a long day in child care three meals and two
snacks as they were provided previous to fiscal year 1952
.ti.tis,I lunch and nutrition education

We. also support nada. 1 funding for the National School Lunch and NET I'ro
grams In the fall of 19S2. FRAC issued a report titled "The Impact of Child Nutri
tam Budget ruts: A Look At the States and Selected School Districts" We asked
state and lose al school food officials what the principal reason was for children drop
ping out of the school meals programs A significant number of officials indicated
that legislative changes lowering eligibility and raising prices fur lunches and
breakfasts were leading factors in fewer children being able to participate in school
nut rit prognints Therefore we urge the committee to raise the eligibility for re-
duced price lunch from to 1:W, and lower the student charge for school lunch
from lo cents to '.!,`) cents and the charge for school breakfast from :141 cents to
cents

fit Adminp-tration has pomtd out that more than 7011 of the benefits in S 1913
would is to families with incomes over 13lle; of the poverty line It failed to point
out that approxiniatly 711e; SW; of the benefits would go to families with incomes'
Wow IN:r`'; of the poverty line The bill is intentionally targeted to benefit the
working isso, rind properly so According to the American Se' .hool Food Service Asses
ciation. the budget cuts enacted as part of the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1951
have dl.Sifiaticailv reduced participation in the reduced price lunch category The
follywiog :hart represents some examples The chart is nest meant to represent a
-,!:01,11c;f1 1W1:11 sample. but the examples are' instructive

s; ttoo i PARTICIPATION RI DUCE D PRICE (.ATE GOR

do

111 ,*1 .:04' !list! ; .10 11014,triely pit{

1,,tt 1k cif is k trfiCertl ;IhIrtit iimilins: Inc the Nutrition
r.oriirtg ProgrArti 1' 11epart me nt ut Agricultirr witris! in the

t1,1\ ..110,t*.ttli th.rt t 01 the' NET l'iograili was the dio,elopme of sit
:fissro.ar. or: nutrition v thif. coal trey-CI .tccortlphsht-tt, the pro
e ,Iftt bt It.: mitiatti4 '1to Department grieral:y fails to mention th,it th

!hr- pros;r.1711 by 1,1w :also include I, teaching children about WI

1,,To ,11,1 ire rr Lit I, ,h t,r ht silt tl. training good ,..krs the prin,;
t s". food T, 1' 01,111 .ev,t s, etas-to, ..11,11i
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principles of nutrition education. Thus, as Katherine L Clancy, Past President of
the Society for Nutrition Education said in testimony before the Subcommittee on
Nutrition of the Senate Agriculture Committee (February 1982):

"The NET Program not only teaches the concepts of food as it relates to nutrition,
but actually puts these concepta into practice in the lunchroom."

Also. it should be noted that evaluations of the NET program by USDA have
found that the programs in Georgia and Nebraska demonstrated quite positive pro-
gram effects on student nutrition knowledge (USDA, May, 19821. Our recommenda-
tion is to mkt $3 million to the current $5 million( authorisation level of NET so that
$8 million can be made available to states.

There are several areas of disagreement and concern over the Administration at-
tempts to cut or terminate child nutrition programs. I would like to share these con-
cerns with the Committee.
The President's private sector survey on cost control (Grace Commission)

The Grace Commission recommended that School Lunch, School Breakfast, Child
Care Food and Summer Food Service benefits be included as income when "deter-
mining food stamp eligibility and entitlement values". We oppose this recommenda-
tion because:

Currently these (in -kind) food and nutrition benefits are not counted as income for
purposes of the FOP.

Tlne FSP is not designed to meet all of a households' food needs; it is a supplemen-
tal assistance program. For many low income households, these in-kind benefits are
essential if they are to obtain all of the food that is needed to obtain a good diet. A
recent USDA study shows. for example, that school lunches for low income families
do not replace other food, but merely supplement it.

It would be administratively difficult to count such in-kind benefits as income be-
cause assigning a dollar value to these benefits is difficult, if not impossible. In its
report on the 1977 Food Stamp Act, the House Agriculture Committee reported that
Mate food stamp administrators were "virtually unanimous in recommending that
in-kind benefits not be counted as income (Such a proposal) would create an
administrative nightmare."

Families whose religious beliefs require that they send food from home, children
with allergies that cannot be accommodated by the school lunch program, and chil
dren who are home sick from school would be penalized by these recommendations
because their families would be deprived of food stamp benefits.

The Survey's proposal is similar to that proposed by the Reagan Administration.
The Reagan proposal would have cut a family's food stamp benefits by about $10
$11 a month for every child in the family eligible for free school lunches. The
Survey I would cut benefits about $7-$8 a month fo^ every child eligible for
free school lunches

The Reagan proposal was defeated 14-3 in the Senate Agriculture Committee.
with a solid majority of bath Republicans and Democrats opposing it.

The proposal was rejected because it would take food away from many of the
poorest families in the country. Analysis done by the Reagan Administration's own
appointees in USDA showed that 43/. of all families with gross incomes below 50'
of the poverty line the poorest of the poorwould lose benefits under this profits'
al

(7eingrms has long reowniird the complementary relationship between the food
stamp and the other food assistance programs. The fact that more than one pro
gram exists is no accident. Food stamp benefits have never provided nutritionally
adequate diets. and (7o has long recognized the value of food programs for
groups acknowledged tottepecially vulnerable the elderly, the growing child, the
pregnant or nursing mother. Proposals such as this have long -term health and nu
tntionul implications. and should not be carelessly adopted to meet arbitrary cost
cutting goals
The Presider, t Task Flare on Food Assistance

The mayor recommendation of the Task Force is that all of the Federal food pro
grams be consolidated in a block grant to the states. States could choose how to
spend the food assistance funds, and uniform national eligibility standards and ben
eht levels would hr eliminated.

We oppose this recommendation because
Contrary to Task Force assertions, the block grant would he- unable to respond

rapidly to changing economic circumstances within a state, and States would not be
guaranteed adequate federal funds to meet the nutritional needs of their residents

Past experience with the Food Stamp Program and present experience with the
AFIW' program demonstrate that extensive state flexibility invariably results in 4e
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rious gaps in coverage and resultant hardship for the poor. Without national entitle-
ment status for federal food assistance, geography, rather than need, could deter-
mine nutritional status.

No witnesses at any of the public hearings requested or suggested that federal re-
sponsibility for food assistance be turned over to the states. This recommendation
has been opposed by the National Governors Association. the National Association
of Counties, and the U.S. Conference of Mayors as well as over forty national orga-
nizations. Three Task Force members voted against this recommendation.

Food program block grants have been repeatedly rejected by both houses of Con-
gress.

We also oppose the Administration's block grant for the Child Care Food and
Summer Food Programs because:

CCFP was cut 30% or $130 million in F.Y. 19142; SFSPC, was cut 40% or $90 mil-
lion in F.Y. 1982.

The administration's block grant would allow current services funding for these-
programs but eliminate the federal features of entitlement status and automatic in-
creases in reimbursement for rises in the price of food. The Congressional Budget
Office estimates that elimination of these features would reduce funding by 20% or
$80 million by F.Y. 1987.

Both CCF'P and SFSPC have national nutritional standards for children. We as a
nation should be concerned about the nutritional status of an children. A child's
nutritional status should not be dependent upon the adequacy of the tax base of the
state in wtiich he or she happens to reside.
The adrnintstrution's fiscal year 19145 cuts

I have previously addressed several of the Administration's F.Y. 145 budget cuts
but one area of particular concern is the U.S. Department of Agriculture's proposal
to withdraw from the administration of child nutrition programs. Prior to October
1. 19s0 any state agency which did not choose to administer a child nutrition pro-
gram could "turnbatk" the administration of the program to USDA, which by law.
was required to accept the administration of the program, thereby insuring the ben-
efits would be received by program participants in the States. Several state agencies
did turnback program administration in (X'FP. SFSPC and the Special Milk Pro-
gram iSMPi Several States have state laws or policies which either prohibit or dis-
courage the State Educational Agency from administering non-school programs or
programs for private schools. Therefore, these States wanted USDA to administer
these .grams. Subsequent to October 1, 1980 some of the States decided to accept
the ad aistratam of the non-school programs and assign them to an Alternate
State Agi ncy. an agency separate from the State Department of Education. Howev-
r, USDA still administers the Child Care Food Program in nine (91 states (Colorado.

Hawaii, Missouri, Nebraska, New York. Oregon. Teanesaee, Virginia, and Washing-
toni and the Summer Food Service Program for Children in 17 states (Alaska. Cali.
fornia. Gtvrgia. Hawaii. Kansas, Michigan, Minnefrota, Missouri. Nebraska. New
York. North Dakota. Oregon. South ('arolina, Tennessee. Virginia, Washington and
Wyoming, If USDA is able to get Congressional approval for withdrawing from ad-
ministering these programs, program participants will have to rely on States to
khang their constitutions, statutes and or policies and accept the administration of
these programs or face mass child nutrition program termination Currently,
1";.:09 thousand children participate in ('('CFI' in the 9 states cited shove and
0;:inriPi9 thousand children participate in the SFSPC in the 17 states cited above
Please see t 'hart I in the appendix

This pro/sr...if will also have an adverse effect on private schools and institutions
filch rirti,ipate to the National School Lunch Special Milk and the Residential

child Care Institut 10ft programs Chart II to the appendix indicates which states
MI!" t it la lortal prohibit tolls or laws Of policies which inhibit or preclude using

-.tate resources hot scho,ils Chart iI 1.A-ovules data on hires many students
;Ind tri,t It to lof be dripped from this program
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CORI III

EFFECT Of USDA KITIRIZAWL One Maw ef onto INIRITtell
al.

Scbool
tooth

PMTKPATIOS

101tttottoot.-.

II60A11 13.390 (20)

164511149109 10.*10 (52)

91291NIA 10,975 (38)

S. CAROLINA uns (23)

MORASS 10,290 (48)

stamsgA 22.720 (92)

&MAMA 14.04S (44)

TERRESSEE 14.911 ( )_

99.185 E3621

ROOM Institutions

.117 (8)

2,473 (72)

931 (*)

314* (13)

mor cm
224* (11)

240 (3)

4112 Iffi.
3,266 (2431

todfcetes private, iestitetfees -- more mx be dropped fres public
iostftmtloos presently covered by RSA.

Sit)ENIS WHO MAY IIE OROPPEgli

School Lunch

4.806 (5)

4.806 147

MISSOURI

OELARAAE

GEORGIA

*CC,

53131

"Webers are for Privets ACM only. USDA presertIy odninistars
bath public and private RCM in Missouri.

TOTAL NunbEll AFFECTED:

School Lunch

[310] 103.997

108,084

595 institutions

RCCI

$1196
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Finally. we are wry concerned over a proposal by the Department of Agriculture
in its 1985 budget to eliminate the Department's authon:y to administer the school
lunch and child nutrition in private schools in states which are prohibited
by law from doing so. If the rtment discontinues adni:3istering these prams
175,140 children, at a minimum, in 6144 private schools could abruptly be excluded
from participation. We urge you to take necessary action to prevent the Department
from eliminating its responsibility fur children attending private schools in those
eleven states which are prohibited by law from administering these programs for
them.

Mr. Chairman, we respectfully request that this letter be entered into the record
of hearings on child nutrition which are being held by this Committee.

Thank you for your concern and consideration,
Sincerely.

Rev. THOMAS G. GALLAGHER,
Secretory for EdUralion.

1 S S
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S. 1913

11

To provide for improvements in the school lunch and certain other child nutrition
programa.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

:4errastarn 30 (legislative day. Sarrsmitun 26).

Mr MI'lllit.ESTON (for himself and Mr. COCIIIILAN, Mr. &HIEN, Mr. ANDIEWM.
Mr EAOLETIM. Mr. Ilm.t.inos, and Mr. l'nvonl introduced the following
trill. which was read twice and referred to the rommittec on Agriculture.
Nutrition, end Forestry

A BILL
To provide for irnprovements in the school lunch add certain

other child nutrition programs.

fie it enacted by the &nab' (1 MI House of Ilepresenta-

2 tirie.t of the l'nited States; of America in Congress ilA.We Mbhlt

3 That the National School Lunch Act is amended by--

1 ( 11 in subsection (E) of section 6

.`) (A) inserting -(1)- after the subsection ticsig,

t) nation; and

7 (lil adding at the end thereof a new para.

graph (2) as follows:
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2

1 "(2) Each fiscal year, the Secretary shall make

2 available to the States for the transportation and star-

3 age of commodities donated under this section an

4 amount equal to 3 percent of the value of such food.

5 The States may not charge recipient agencies for the

6 distribution of such commodities an amount that is in

7 excess of the State's direct cost of transporting and

8 storing such commodities for recipient agencies minus

9 the amount provided by the Secretary to the States

10 under this subsection.";

11 (2) in section 9(3)

12 (A) in the second sentence of paragraph

13 (1)(A), striking out "For the school years ending

14 June 30, 1982, and June 30, 1983, the" and

15 selling in lieu thereof "The";

Ili (14) striking out the third sentence of pars-

17 graph (1)(A);

18 (C) adding at the end of paragraph (2)(0) a

19 new sentence as follows: "The requirement im-

!?() posed on local school food authorities in the pre-

21 ceding sentence shall not take effect until the pilot

*/*/ study iiiider section 803(e) of the Omnibus Budget

23 Reconciliation Art of 1981 is completed and ana-

24 lyzed and a report of the Department of Agricul-

ir Lure's findings from the study is submitted to the

S POI I IS
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Committee on Agriculture of the House of Repro-

2 sentatives and the Committee on Agriculture, Nu-

3 trition, and Forestry of the Senate. ": and

4 (1)) g out the last sentence of pars-

5 graph (3) and inserting in lieu durreof a new sen-

t tense as follows:

7 "Income that is used for unusually high medical ex-

penses that cannot be reasonably anticipated or con-

9 trolled by the household shall be excluded when deter-

10 mining eligibility for free or reduced-price meals.";

11 (3) in section 11(aX2)--

12 (A) striking out "40 cents" and inserting in

1:3 lieu thereof "25 cents"; and

14 (B) adding at the end thereof a new sentence

15 as follows: "The price charged for a reduced-price

1 t3 lunch shall not exceed 25 cents.";

17 (4) in section 11(0, striking out "section 904(3)"

Is and inserting in lieu thereof "section 11(aX2)";

19 (5) in section 12(d)(5), striking out ", except pri-

20 Vk h(rtOlti whose average yearly tuition exceeds

$1,5(X) per child"; and

22 (6) in section 17(f)(2)(B), striking out "two meals

2:I and one supplement" and inserting in lieu thereof

24 "three meals and two supplements".

K KIS IS
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4

1 Sac. 2. The Child Nutrition Act of 1966 is amended

2 by-
3 (1) in section 3(a)

4 (A) adding after the first sentence a new sen-

5 tense as follows: "Notwithstanding the preceding

6 sentence, the special milk program shall be avail-

7 able to all children in kindergarten program oper-

8 sting through nonprofit schools. "; and

9 (B) striking out the last sentence;

it) (2) in section 4(b)(1)(B)

11 (A) amending the secoid sentence to read as

12 follows; "The national average, payment for each

1:3 reduced-price breakfast shall be 15 cents less than

14 the national average payment for each free break-

15 fast, adjusted to the nearest one-fourth cent.";

16 and

.7 (B) adding at the end thereof a new sentence

18 as follows: "Notwithstanding the preceding se--

19 tenet's, an additional 6 cents shall he provided for

20 each breakfast served under this Act and section

21 17 of the National School Lunch Act, to be used

22 to improve the nutrient content of breakfasts.":

23 (:4) in section 4(b)(1)(( "), striking out "30 cents"

24 and ingerting in lieu thereof "15 rents";

25 (4) in section 4(b)(20)-

S 1911 IS
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15

1 (A) insect* after ;such free lweakfast shall

2 "(1)";

3 (B) striking out it and inserting in lieu

4 thered

5 (C) ig out "Cur and inserting in lieu

6 thereof "(I1)" and

7 (D) inserting beftwe the period at the end

8 thereof a comma and a new clause as follows:

9 "6Q plus an additional 6 cents for each

10 breakfast served under this Act and section

11 17 of the National School Lunch Act, to be

12 used to improve the nutrient content of

13 breakfasts";

14 (5) in section 4(bX2W), stAking out "thirty

15 cents" and inserting in lieu thereof "15 cents";

16 (6) in section 15(cXA), strikimg out ", except pri-

17 vate schools whose average yearly tuition exceeds

/ 18 $1,500 per child"; and

19 (7) in section 190)

20 (A) striking out the subsection designation

21 "(j)" and inserting in lieu thereof "(i)";

22 (B) striking out paragraph (1);

23 (C) redeaignating paragraphs (2) and (3) as

24 paragraphs (1) and (2), respectively; and

M 1413 F4
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6

1 (D) amending paragraph (1), as redesignated,

2 by-
3 (i) staling out "For the fiscal year

4 ending September 80, 1980, and for each

5 fiscal year ending on cw. before September

6 30, 1984, there" and inserting in lieu thereof

7 'There"; and

8 (ii) staffing out "f 15,030,000 for fiscal

9 year 1981, and not more than $5,000,000

10 for each subsequent ' as( inserting in lieu

11 thereof "98,000,003 for zach".

12 Sec. 3. (a) The Secretary of Agricalture shall issue such

13 regulations as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of

14 this Act.

15 (b) MI amendments made by this Act shall become (4'-

16 feetive upon enactment, except for the amendment made by

17 section 1(2XD), which shall be implemented no later than

18 July 1, 1984.

S 1913 IS
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Dee mersierrr or Amuctnnene.
Ormai or TIM SROURARY,
Washington, DC July 1984.

Rom Jesse Hums,
Chairman, Committee on Agriculture, Nutrition and librestry, U.S. Sensate~ Washing-

ton, DC
DEAR Ma. CHAIRMAN: This is in response to your letter requesting a report on S.

1918, "To pr video for improvements in the school lunch and certain other child nu-
trition

1917girams'ereasts subsidies far reduced price lunches and breakfasbg increases re-
imbursements for all breakfasts by 6 centig expands from three to five the maxi-
mum number of meals and snacks subsidised under the Child Care Food Pro-
gram (CCFPt expands the Specild Milk Fregram w to kindetgartens in schools
that already participate in other nutrition programa and eliminates the maximum
5-cent milk stdmidy for these creates a, new administrative
for States for storing and commodities &mated under the N=
School Lunch Act; creates a deduction high medical costs fbr pmp
of income y determination; permits all tuition private to re-
ceive meal increases the funding for the utrition Education and Train-
ing (NET Program; delays income verification and eliminates the
link between food stamp and free school meal

The Department strimgly the enactment of 1913. The bill reveram valu-
able reforms recently by the Congress which better target child nutrition
resources to those most in need. S. 1913 mandates new entitlements for middle and
upper-income students. None of the added finsdhqg would provide additional meals
to the neediest schoolchildren. As the Canvass and the Administration work togeth-
er to reduce alarming deficits, we cannot mw .st the use of scarce Federal resources
to finance the subsidies provided by 8.1815. '1'b., bill would Increase taxpayers' costs
by $186 million by Mood Year le85 and by $1 billion over Fiscal Yeas 1985-1989.
nm following paragraphs explain the in more detail.

families
by

of four with annual1981 reform expands benefits to children ban com
S. 1913 increases subsidiee for red Price 15 cents. This x,

eIn
a1 ar

up to 618.316. These students already receive a 92-cent subsidy for each lunch
served. This provision in no way targets benefits to the neediest recipients and
would cost $70 million in Fiscal Year 1985.

nutritional quality of the meal. Thu hike in reimbursement would y to all
The bill also increaser the breakfast subsidy by 6 cents as a means to liespirove the

meals, including dime served to acorns students. This provision is unneces-
sary% Schools are already to go beyond the minimum meal pattern. The
total impact of the breakfast in combination with lunch is already favorable. and
children generally eat bath where available. This provision would require $42 mil-
lion in Federal hinds in Fiscal Year 1985.

The provision subsidising a third meal and second snack under the CCFP would
provide additional assistance to middle-income families and abrogate all family in-
volvement in preparing meals for their children. These extra subsidies would cost
$28 million in Fiscal Year 19146.

As a result of a 1981 reform, the SMP operates only in schools which do not par-
ticipate in another child nutrition program. S. 1918 pmmits kindergartens in
schools with a lunch or breakfast program to receive SW' subsidies as well. Since
the school programs serve milk as wt. of their meals and since such meals may be
made available to kindergarten chiMren. the Department sees no need to permit du-
plicate milk subsidies for kindergartens. In addition, the bill increases the milk sub-
sidy level for these kindergartens. This provision would cost $16 million in Fiscal
Year 1985, almost doubling the size of the SMP.

States currently receive $44 million in State Administrative Expense funds to op-
erate the child nutrition programs. The Department believes that these funds pro-
vide more than adequate assistance to States for storing and distributing consmod-
ities donated under the National School Lunch Act. The S. 1913 provision creating
additional State administrative fimding for this purpose would cast $15 million in
Fiscal Year 1985.

The bill establishes a deduction for high medical expenses for purposes of deter-
mining income eligibility for free and reduced price meals. This provision compli-
cates the application and verification process as well as increases the potential for
error. It rescinds, in part. the reforms enacted in 1981 which eliminated special de-
ductions for high medical and housing cams in favor of increasing the_el*ibility
guidelines for free school meals. The provision would cost $6 million in Fiscal Year

_195
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S 1913 reverses a 19141 reform by permitting all private schools, regardless of the
level of tuition charged, to receive Federal meal subsidies. The Department main-
tains that families who are able to pay costly private school tuitions should be able
to finance their children's school meals without hardship. Subsidizing these well-off
families would cost $ii million in risco! Year 19945.

The bill increases NET Program funding to $S million The purpose of the NET
Program has been to provide an initial Federal investment in nutrition education
and say a foundation on which States and localities could build. States have now
developed sound nutrition education currricula and these micro grants are no
longer required. This provision would increase costs by $3 million annually.

S. 1913 delays the requirement to verify the income of a sample of those receiving
free and reduced price meals until the verification pilot study is completed. This
provision is no longer relevant. The pilot study report has been issued and schools
and institutions have already implemented the verification requirement.

The bill terminates the link between income eligibility standards for free school
meals and food stamps. Currently. both are set at 130 percent of gross income. Abol-
ishing this link increases the administrative burden and expense forlocal officials
who otherwise would be able to take advantage of the identical standards to expe-
dite the processing of free meal applications and to verify eligibility with food stamp
offices.

The Office of Management and Budget advises that there is no objection to the
presentation of this report, and that enactment of S. 1913 would not be consistent
with the Administration's objectives.

Sincerely,
RICHARD E. LYNG.

Acting Secretary.
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S. 1994
To amend the National School Lamb Act to reinstate income eliplality niter)*
for family or group day care home participants in the child care food program.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

Oeroma 23 (legislative day. OCTONSII W. 19443

Mr. [Inman introduced the following bill; which was read twice and referred to
the Committee on Agriculture. Nutrition, and Forestry

A BILL
To amend the National School Lunch Act to reinstate income

eligibility criteria for family or group day care home partici-
pants in the child care food program.

I Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 lives of the United Stales of America in Congress assembled,

3 That section 17(f) of the National School Lunch Act (42

4 I T.S.C. (766(0) is amended

(1) in paragraph (2)

t; (A) by striking out ", other than family or

7 group day care home sponsoring organizations,"

in subparagraph (A); and

197
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2

(B) by striking out ", or to Wally or group

2 day care home sponsoring organizations under

3 paragraph (3) of this subsection," in subparagraph

4 (B);

5 (2) by striking out paragraph (3); and

6 (3) by redesignating paragraph (4) as pars-

?
7 graph (3).

0
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